
In  

20" July, 2023 

Manager 
Department of Corporate Services 
BSE Limited, 1" Floor, 
Phi roze Jeejeebhoy Towers, 
Data[ Street, 
Mumbai - 400001. 

Scrip Code: 532745 

Dear Sir/Madam, 

Sub: Regulation 34 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations 
....A 'In-lr. /CCDI 11 rrns 	)A1 '5 

Meeting. 

With reference to the above subject, please find enclosed herewith the Annual Report for 
the Financial Year 2022-2023 and the Notice of the 29th  Annual General Meeting ("AGM") of 
Inditrade Capital Limited ('the Company'), including the Audited Financial Statements for 
the Financial Year ended 31st  March, 2023, which is being sent by through electronic mode 
to those Members of the Company, whose e-mail addresses are registered with the 
Company! Depositories! Registrar and Share Transfer Agent. The requirements of sending 
physical copies of the Notice of the AGM and Annual Report to the Members of the 
Company have been dispensed with vide the MCA Circulars and SEBI Circulars. The Notice 
of the 291  AGM and the Annual Report for the Financial Year 2022-2023 have been made 
available on the Company's website - www.inditrade.com . 

We request that the above information may please be taken on records. 

Thanking you. 

Yours faithfully, 

For Inditrade Capital Limited 

Kochi 

* 
Maya Menon 
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer 

End.: As above 

Inditrade Capital Limited 
Registered Address: Second Floor, M E S Building, Kaloor, Kochi, Ernakulam, Kerala, India - 682017 India 

B: 0484 6714800 F: 0484 6714820 E: inditrade@inditrade.com  I www.inditrade.com  I CIN: L67120KL1994PLC008265 

MAYA 
MENON

Digitally signed by MAYA MENON 
DN: c=IN, o=PERSONAL, title=6032, 
pseudonym=dc2cd809a2cca2debbc9827
ed5fc96fda217936c803716247d7b22ebe
dd00cc8, postalCode=680564, st=Kerala, 
serialNumber=7006aeeaa92542a935f09d
21b1b5b732aba0acf78ab99d41dc1669fb
0883926b, cn=MAYA MENON 
Date: 2023.07.20 17:15:58 +05'30'



Transforming Lives
Transforming Communities

Inditrade Capital Limited
Annual Report 2022-23



Forward Looking Statement:

In this Annual Report, we have disclosed forward-looking informaon to enable investors to comprehend our prospects and 

take informed investment decisions. This report and other statements wri�en and oral that we periodically make, contain 

forward-looking statements that set out ancipated results based on the management’s plans and assumpons. We have 

tried, wherever possible, to idenfy such statements by using words such as ‘ancipates’, ‘esmates’, ‘expects’, ‘projects’, 

‘intends’, ‘plans’, ‘believes’ and words of similar substance in connecon with any discussion of future performance. We 

cannot guarantee that these forward-looking statements will be realised, although we believe we have been prudent in our 

assumpons. The achievement of results is subject to risks, uncertaines and even inaccurate assumpons. Should known 

or unknown risks or uncertaines materialise, or should underlying assumpons prove inaccurate, actual results could vary 

materially from those ancipated, esmated or projected. Readers should bear this in mind. We undertake no obligaon to 

publicly update any forward looking statements, whether as a result of new informaon, future events or otherwise.
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Transforming Lives
Transforming Communies

W
elcome to the capvang world of 

I n d i t r a d e ,  w h e r e  l i v e s  a r e 

transformed and communies 

flourish. At Inditrade, we strive towards 

"Transforming Lives, Transforming Communies" 

as we embark on a relentless pursuit of progress 

and empowerment.

Our mission is to go beyond tradional financial 

services to touch the very essence of human 

existence. We believe in the inherent potenal of 

every individual and the immense power of 

collecve transformaon. With this firm belief as 

our guiding light, we have devoted ourselves to 

creang a posive impact in the lives of those we 

serve and the communies we are a part of.

Within the intricate fabric of our lending, 

distribuon, and rural markeng operaons, we 

have witnessed first hand the incredible power of 

our acons. Each transacon, each endeavour, 

carries the potenal to upli� lives, unlock 

opportunies, and foster inclusive growth. We 

understand that true progress lies not only in 

financial gains but also in nurturing dreams, 

igning passions, and creang an environment 

where everyone can thrive.

"Transforming Lives, Transforming Communies" 

resonates deeply with our core philosophy. It 

encapsulates our unwavering commitment to 

empowering individuals, amplifying their voices, 

and creang a ripple effect of posive change that 

extends far beyond the immediate impact. 

Our vision extends to the very fabric of society, 

where vibrant communies are nurtured, and 

collecve well-being flourishes. In the Annual 

Report, you will discover inspiring stories, 

innovave soluons, and transformave 

iniaves demonstrang our commitment to this 

powerful theme. From urban centers to remote 

corners, we strive to leave a lasng legacy of 

progress, empowering individuals to realize their 

ful l  potenal  and fostering the hol isc 

development of communies.

At Inditrade, we believe that transformaon is 

not a solitary Journey; it is a shared endeavor. 

Together, we can shape a world where dreams are 

realized, barriers are broken, and every individual 

has the opportunity to thrive. Join us on this 

transformave journey as we embrace the 

c o m m i t m e n t  o f  " Tr a n s f o r m i n g  L i v e s , 

Transforming Communies" through innovave 

soluons, transformave iniaves and creang 

a future filled with endless possibilies.
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Our Reach
We have spread our wings to 21 states and union territories:

• Maharashtra

• Gujarat

• Madhya Pradesh

• Chhasgarh

• Chandigarh (Union territory)

• Telangana

• Andhra Pradesh

• Tamil Nadu

• Kerala

• Karnataka

• Goa

• Odisha

• Rajasthan

• U�ar Pradesh

• Delhi (Union territory)

• Haryana

• Punjab

• Himachal Pradesh

• Bihar

• Jharkhand and West Bengal.

21
States and

Union Territories
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Our Guiding Principles

Our vision is to transform 

our customers’ dreams 

into reality.

Our Vision

Harnessing human potenal 

through innovave soluons 

at accessible touchpoints.

Our Mission

6 IndItrade CapItal lImIted



Our History

2021 Onwards
• Steady Progress

2020
• Launched Rural Markeng (Boonbox)

• Launched Scalerator (iBOG)

2019
• Launched Retail Insurance Distribuon

2018
• Launched Digital Micro Lending 

• Launched MSME Finance

1994
• Founded as JRG Securies Limited

2015
• Current Management took over 

from Barings Private Equity

2016
• Forayed into Agri-Commodity 

Finance

• Acquired Agri-Commodity Finance 

business in western India

2017
• Launched Micro Finance operaons

• Launched Agri-Commodity 

e-Aucon pla�orm

• We take a calibrated risk to 

achieve sustainable growth 

in business

• Our focus is to be flexible 

with risk-adjusted return

• We emphasise on 

developing book size, which 

is within the purview of our 

risk appete

• We work towards bringing 

in novelty in our operaonal 

domain and generate new 

business opportunies and 

avenues

• A legacy of bringing in new 

successful and innovave 

products in the market

• The technology we use for 

managing credit and risk

• Small cket size which 

appeals and creates a 

natural hedge for risk 

migaon

• Experse in Microfinance, 

MSME finance, Agri-

commodity Finance and 

Distribuon of financial 

services and products

• Robust lending process 

backed by technology

• To create a wholesome unified credit 

pla�orm with impact lending being 

the focal point

• Emphasis on Phygital markeng - an 

omni channel approach, a perfect 

amalgamaon of technological 

integraon and brick and mortar 

setup

• Digitalisaon of the products and 

offerings across segments that 

allows robust and sustainable growth

• Empowering the organisaon with 

well-equipped, trained and proficient 

professionals both management 

team and operaons team

• Establishing a rich legacy of growth 

and upscaling with new acquisions 

and reducing mal-effect of NPAs

Our approach Our strong points Our movaon
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Chairman’s 
Message

Our focus remains on 

serving the underprivileged 

segments of society with 

limited access to large 

institutional funds. 

Dear Shareholders,

I extend a warm welcome to all of you on the 

occasion of the 29th Annual General Meeng of 

Inditrade Capital Limited on behalf of the Board 

of Directors and Team Inditrade. In light of the 

challenging past years marked by the pandemic's 

impact and the resulng decline in asset quality, 

we find ourselves on the cusp of a new era of 

growth. Our objecves are clearly defined, 

collecvely becoming more strategic and 

e x p a n s i v e  a s  w e  e m b r a c e  e m e r g i n g 

opportunies ar is ing from the gradual 

transformaon of the Indian economy. This 

pivotal moment in our journey coincides with the 

growth wave catalysed by various government 

iniaves over the years.

Following consistent growth, our Company has 

faced hardships in recent years due to the 

adverse effects of the pandemic on our lending 

por�olio and the challenges in the Digital 

Lending business. As you know, the Company 

exited the Digital Lending business in early 2021 

and is fully dedicated to Micro Finance and 

MSME Finance, directly and in partnership with 

larger players.

8 IndItrade CapItal lImIted



At Inditrade, we persistently pursue our vision of 

acvely parcipang in naon-building by 

contribung to and strengthening grassroots 

iniaves. We strive to enable and empower our 

customers through various businesses, posively 

impacng their lives and livelihoods. Our focus 

remains on serving the underprivileged segments 

of society with limited access to large instuonal 

funds. Our lending vercals, including Agri-

commodity Finance, Micro Finance, and MSME 

Finance, cater to these aspiring and growing 

underserved populaons. We ancipate that our 

customers' needs will connue to grow, and we 

must be prepared to meet their requirements and 

aspiraons efficiently.

While our diverse lending businesses have 

connued to assist customers, the Inditrade 

Scalerator iniave, launched a couple of years 

ago, has now expanded and aids customers in 

obtaining business loans and financial products 

from mulple service providers, including 

Inditrade. The rapid growth of this segment 

reaffirms our belief that the needs of these 

customers surpass the financing and servicing 

capabilies of any single organizaon.

Another iniave undertaken during FY21, 

Inditrade Rural Markeng, operang under the 

Boonbox brand, has been nurturing and 

developing a carefully cra�ed ecosystem while 

facilitang the accessibility of consumer durables 

and their financing. This business is making 

significant strides in fulfilling the aspiraons of 

rural India.

We are fully commi�ed to connuing our work in 

the chosen fields and contribung to the 

accelerated growth of the economy. We will 

persist in opmizing operaonal efficiency and 

enhancing our skills. Driven by passionate 

individuals, we strive to make a meaningful 

difference in the lives of our customers and the 

communies we engage with.

We firmly believe that the challenging mes are 

now behind us, and the path ahead is becoming 

more strategic and expansive as we strive to 

capture a poron of the growth potenal. We are 

undeniably embarking on an excing new chapter 

in our growth odyssey.

The Inditrade Community Foundaon, established 

by your Company, connues collaborang with 

various communies in and around our operaonal 

areas. The Foundaon is commi�ed to promong 

educaon among economically disadvantaged 

students and providing relief during natural 

calamies. We will connue to strengthen this 

Foundaon and serve the community.

On behalf of the Board, I express my deep 

gratude to our shareholders, clients, business 

partners, financial instuons, and regulators for 

their unwavering support. The remarkable effort 

and determinaon exhibited by Team Inditrade in 

effecvely addressing the challenges of recent 

years while delivering sasfacon to our 

customers assure me that the Company will 

connue to thrive and provide sustainable value to 

all its stakeholders. I sincerely acknowledge their 

support and contribuons. I also thank the 

management team for their dedicaon and 

commitment to fostering an organizaon based on 

values and empowered by a shared vision for the 

future. I eagerly ancipate sharing many more 

milestones with you in the coming years.

Thank you all for the trust.  

Wishing you all the very best!

Sudip Bandyopadhyay
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Mr. Sudip Bandyopadhyay
Non-Execuve Director

Mr. Sudip Bandyopadhyay is a Gold Medalist from the University of Calcu�a and is 

also a qualified Chartered Accountant and a Cost Accountant, with over 3 decades of 

rich and diverse experience in various areas of finance and financial services. He has 

been a part of various large conglomerates such as Hindustan Unilever, ITC and 

Reliance. Mr. Bandyopadhyay's area of experse includes retail and wholesale 

lending, capital markets, commodity and currency markets, wealth management, 

asset management, insurance, investment banking, remi�ance, forex and distribuon 

of financial products. He is also a non-execuve director in many listed and unlisted 

companies. He is currently, one of the Promoters of the Company as well as the 

Chairman of the Inditrade Group of Companies. A visionary, Mr. Bandyopadhyay is 

always on the look-out for emerging trends and new opportunies to unfold; a trait 

which he tries to inculcate amongst those who work and interact with him.

Board of Directors

Mr. Brij Gopal Daga
Independent Director

Mr. Brij Gopal Daga has a Master's degree of Commerce and has professional 

diplomas in Banking, Accountancy, Co-operaon and Secretarial Pracce. In a career 

spanning over more than four decades, Mr. Daga has acquired extensive knowledge 

in diverse fields like Finance, Investment, Capital and Securies Markets, Regulatory 

Compliances, etc. He has served premier instuons like Reserve Bank of India (as 

Asst. Gen. Manager), Unit Trust of India (as Execuve Director), and Central 

Depository Services (India) Ltd. (as Managing Director). Mr. Daga has also served as 

Instuonal Nominee on the Boards of several leading companies and has also been 

a member on commi�ees constuted by the Securies & Exchange Board of India.

Mr. Radhakrishna Nair
Independent Director

A finance professional well versed in Banking Operaons, Treasury and Recovery 

Management, Securies Market Regulaon & Insurance Regulaon and Supervision, 

Radhakrishna Nair is a Former Member of the Insurance Regulatory and Development 

Authority of India (IRDA). His earlier assignments included being Execuve Director 

at the Securies and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), General Manager at Corporaon 

Bank and Managing Director of CorpBank Securies. Mr. Nair is a keen trainer and has 

delivered lectures on the development of money and debt markets, energising the 

corporate bond market at various training centres across the country.

Mr. Kerachan Ayyappan Somasekharan
Independent Director

Mr. Somasekharan is a Commerce and Law graduate holding Associate membership 

of the Insurance Instute of India (AIII). He has a rich experience of over more than 

five decades in the General Insurance sector. He was the Regional Manager of United 

India Insurance and the Execuve Director and CEO of Reliance General Insurance 

Co. Under his leadership, Reliance General Insurance became the third-largest 

private General Insurance Company. He also acted as the principal Consultant of 

India First Life Insurance Company.

Mr. Sivanandhan Dhanushkodi
Independent Director

Mr. Sivanandhan is a rered Director General of Police, Maharashtra. He also served 

as Commissioner of Police, Mumbai a�er the 26/11 a�acks and was responsible for 

building up a world-class an-terrorism mechanism. He is a recipient of the 

President's Disnguished Service Medal. Recently, he has been a member of the 

special task force in the Naonal Security Council secretariat (Prime Minister's 

Office) for revamping India's internal and external naonal security measures. He 

was also the security advisor to the Reserve Bank of India for three years from 2012 

to 2015. He has also co-authored a Naonal bestseller tled “Chanakya's seven 

secrets of leadership”.

Mr. Sudhangshu Shekhar Biswal
Independent Director

Mr. Sudhangshu Biswal is a graduate in Commerce from Utkal University, Odisha and 

an accomplished Chartered Accountant (CA) and Cost & Management Accountant 

(CMA). He has also completed Strategic Finance Program Course from the Asian 

Instute of Management (AIM), Manila, Philippines. Mr. Biswal has been a part of the 

top management and on the Board of various organizaons with cross-funconal 

experience (Corporate Strategy, Fund Raising, Fund Planning & Treasury, Accounts & 

Taxaon, MIS & Budget, Secretarial & Board Compliance, Business Development, 

etc.) of more than 27 years across various industry vercals like Consulng, So�ware, 

Aviaon, Educaon, Infrastructure and Real Estate. 

10 IndItrade CapItal lImIted



Mr. Sudip Bandyopadhyay
Non-Execuve Director

Mr. Sudip Bandyopadhyay is a Gold Medalist from the University of Calcu�a and is 

also a qualified Chartered Accountant and a Cost Accountant, with over 3 decades of 

rich and diverse experience in various areas of finance and financial services. He has 

been a part of various large conglomerates such as Hindustan Unilever, ITC and 

Reliance. Mr. Bandyopadhyay's area of experse includes retail and wholesale 

lending, capital markets, commodity and currency markets, wealth management, 

asset management, insurance, investment banking, remi�ance, forex and distribuon 

of financial products. He is also a non-execuve director in many listed and unlisted 

companies. He is currently, one of the Promoters of the Company as well as the 

Chairman of the Inditrade Group of Companies. A visionary, Mr. Bandyopadhyay is 

always on the look-out for emerging trends and new opportunies to unfold; a trait 

which he tries to inculcate amongst those who work and interact with him.

Board of Directors

Mr. Brij Gopal Daga
Independent Director

Mr. Brij Gopal Daga has a Master's degree of Commerce and has professional 

diplomas in Banking, Accountancy, Co-operaon and Secretarial Pracce. In a career 

spanning over more than four decades, Mr. Daga has acquired extensive knowledge 

in diverse fields like Finance, Investment, Capital and Securies Markets, Regulatory 

Compliances, etc. He has served premier instuons like Reserve Bank of India (as 

Asst. Gen. Manager), Unit Trust of India (as Execuve Director), and Central 

Depository Services (India) Ltd. (as Managing Director). Mr. Daga has also served as 

Instuonal Nominee on the Boards of several leading companies and has also been 

a member on commi�ees constuted by the Securies & Exchange Board of India.

Mr. Radhakrishna Nair
Independent Director

A finance professional well versed in Banking Operaons, Treasury and Recovery 

Management, Securies Market Regulaon & Insurance Regulaon and Supervision, 

Radhakrishna Nair is a Former Member of the Insurance Regulatory and Development 

Authority of India (IRDA). His earlier assignments included being Execuve Director 

at the Securies and Exchange Board of India (SEBI), General Manager at Corporaon 

Bank and Managing Director of CorpBank Securies. Mr. Nair is a keen trainer and has 

delivered lectures on the development of money and debt markets, energising the 

corporate bond market at various training centres across the country.

Mr. Kerachan Ayyappan Somasekharan
Independent Director

Mr. Somasekharan is a Commerce and Law graduate holding Associate membership 

of the Insurance Instute of India (AIII). He has a rich experience of over more than 

five decades in the General Insurance sector. He was the Regional Manager of United 

India Insurance and the Execuve Director and CEO of Reliance General Insurance 

Co. Under his leadership, Reliance General Insurance became the third-largest 

private General Insurance Company. He also acted as the principal Consultant of 

India First Life Insurance Company.

Mr. Sivanandhan Dhanushkodi
Independent Director

Mr. Sivanandhan is a rered Director General of Police, Maharashtra. He also served 

as Commissioner of Police, Mumbai a�er the 26/11 a�acks and was responsible for 

building up a world-class an-terrorism mechanism. He is a recipient of the 

President's Disnguished Service Medal. Recently, he has been a member of the 

special task force in the Naonal Security Council secretariat (Prime Minister's 

Office) for revamping India's internal and external naonal security measures. He 

was also the security advisor to the Reserve Bank of India for three years from 2012 

to 2015. He has also co-authored a Naonal bestseller tled “Chanakya's seven 

secrets of leadership”.

Mr. Sudhangshu Shekhar Biswal
Independent Director

Mr. Sudhangshu Biswal is a graduate in Commerce from Utkal University, Odisha and 

an accomplished Chartered Accountant (CA) and Cost & Management Accountant 

(CMA). He has also completed Strategic Finance Program Course from the Asian 

Instute of Management (AIM), Manila, Philippines. Mr. Biswal has been a part of the 

top management and on the Board of various organizaons with cross-funconal 

experience (Corporate Strategy, Fund Raising, Fund Planning & Treasury, Accounts & 

Taxaon, MIS & Budget, Secretarial & Board Compliance, Business Development, 

etc.) of more than 27 years across various industry vercals like Consulng, So�ware, 

Aviaon, Educaon, Infrastructure and Real Estate. 

11annual report 2022-23

Corporate Overview | management reports | Financial Statements



Mrs. Jhuma Guha
Non-Execuve Director

Mrs. Jhuma Guha is a qualified Chartered Accountant and a qualified Company 

Secretary having a rich experience of over 3 decades in the field of financial services. 

She has worked with various reputed companies like ITC, Reliance Securies Limited, 

Desmoney Securies Private Limited, etc., and brings along with her varied 

experience and experse in the fields of Corporate and Legal Affairs, Compliance, 

Financial Management, Mergers and Acquisions, Strategic Management and 

Planning.

Board of Directors

Mr. Anand Kamalkishore Maliwal
Non-Execuve Director

Mr. Anand Maliwal is a business technologist with more than 18 years of experience 

in financial services sector. His experience is spread across a wide spectrum of 

technology funcons across mulple geographies including India, the UK and Japan. 

Mr. Maliwal has significant experience in managing core technology funcons, 

deploying and rolling out programs, vendor management, technology outsourcing, 

mul-locaon team management and process consulng. He also has a sound 

understanding of newer programs in the field of Mobility, Analycs and Cloud. His 

previous assignments include Desmoney Securies Private Limited, Net worth 

Stock broking, Cognizant Technology Soluons, Polaris So�ware Labs and India 

Infoline Ltd. 

Products and Offerings

• Lending micro business loans to women entrepreneurs

• Loans between ₹ 10,000 and ₹ 60,000

• Joint Liability Group (JLG)-based lending

• Diversify product range to suit all requirements

• Tech-enabled monitoring and collecons

• Lending to Agri-Traders, Stockists, Processors and Farmers

• Loan against non-essenal Agri-commodies upto ₹ 5 Crores

• Conduct evaluaon through exchange and other accredited 
warehouses

• Mobile app soluon for fulfilling demand of processors and 
e-aucon

• Price hedged in exchange, if necessary

Micro Finance

• Lending to small scale merchants (Shops/ Kirana Stores)

• Business Loans upto ₹ 50 lakhs

• Loan applicaon processed within 72 hours

• Credit underwring through alternate means

• Tech-enabled collecons

MSME Finance

Agri-commodity Finance
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• Customer centric offers through various lending organisaons

• Diversified set of lenders including but not limited to Inditrade

• Distribuon of financial services –

 Ÿ Business loans (secured and unsecured)   Ÿ Personal loans

 Ÿ Insurance (Life, Health and General)   Ÿ Gold loans

• End-to-end rural E-commerce

• Rural customers with household income <₹1 lakh per annum

• Customer acquision through affiliates (typically MFI, banking

• correspondents, rural level NGOs, etc.)

• Delivering the product to the customers

st• Product installaon and 1  level customer support

• Direct Life & General Insurance Broker

• Presence in 4 states

• More than 5,000 policies issued in 2022-23

• 1.05 Lakhs plus lives covered under Group Credit and 

1 Lakhs plus under Group Health policies

• ₹39.05 Crores of premium

• 4,700 plus claims serviced

Products and Offerings

Scalerator

Boonbox

Insurance Broking
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A mother of three, Rupali was an expert cook and happy homemaker. Her 

husband, Harishchandra, is a clerk at a local office. With growing kids, the 

need to have extra income was felt. In order to help the situaon, she 

came up with the idea to open a Mess. That is when she first connected 

with Inditrade Microfinance. 

Today she provides others with employment. 

"Now I can clearly see a day in the near future when my loan is 

completely paid back and my business income can be put to good use 

at home, to fund my dreams and those of my family," she says, happily. 

- Rupali Salagar, Maharashtra

Both Sunanda and her husband worked as daily wagers it in texle 

company. With a dream, of starng something of their own she purchased 

their first buffalo and cauously entered the milk business. When Sunanda 

saw that this business had potenal, she approached Inditrade Microfinance 

for a loan of ₹20,000 to purchase more buffaloes. 

Today, she has 25 buffaloes and a robust business. 

"Now, two of my sons have joined me in the business, while the other three a�end 

school, as her business has grown too large for me to handle alone," beams 

Sunanda. The family is experiencing prosperity, thanks to Sunanda's 

entrepreneurial spirit. 
- Sunanda Sunil Jagtap, Maharashtra

Chandrakala Devi approached Inditrade Microfinance so she could covert the 

open area in front of her house into a general store. It was her plan to run this 

store with her four children and share the financial burden with her husband 

who is a carpenter. 

With fast track processing and hassle-free procedures, a loan of ₹25,000 was 

sanconed and within months her family started earning an addional income 

of 400-500 per day. According to Chandrakala, her kids are talking about 

adding more space now.
- Chandrakala Devi, Bihar

Some Success Stories
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Bina, a mother of two had a big scare when her husband developed 

sudden health issues and had to cut down on his working hours. That's 

when her brother suggested she opened a Poha-Jalebi center and 

approach Inditrade Microfinance.

With an inial loan of ₹25,000 within a short me, Bina was able to 

stabilize her family financially and have the courage to expand further. 

Inditrade Microfinance is proud to be a partner in this inspiring journey 

of hers.

- Bina Menaria, Madhya Pradesh

Mamta was struggling to make ends meet with her husband's limited income. She wanted to help 

but wasn't sure how unl she heard about Inditrade Microfinance. With a small loan, she bought 

herself a sewing machine and started creang a future, one dress at 

a me.

Soon a�er she not only bought two more sewing machines and one 

pico-fall machine but was also able to afford the salary of an 

addional tailor at her shop. Her daily income has grown from 

₹200-300 to ₹500-600 now. Mamta managed to turn a new 

chapter in life with a li�le encouragement and lots of 

determinaon.
- Mamta Gurjar, Madhya Pradesh

Prema's life changed six years ago when her husband, the sole bread earner passed 

away. With four members to support Prema had to start working as a daily labour. 

However not having a steady income and one that she could grow, worried her. When 

a group of women from her village decided to access a micro finance loan from 

Inditrade Microfinance, Prema joined them.

Today, Prema runs a saree business earning approximately ₹1,000 -₹1,500 per week. 

She smiles on her journey from house wife to an entrepreneur. Guidance from 

Inditrade Microfinance has added to her confidence of growing her business further.

- R. Prema Kesavapuram, Tamil Nadu

Some Success Stories
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ECOnOmiC OvErviEw

Global Economy

the year 2022-23 started with cautious optimism. restrictions due to 
the pandemic were lifted, and the economy was on a slow recovery path. 
However, the escalation of Russia-Ukraine conflict led to a sharp increase 
in commodity prices, further contributing to global inflation.

Global inflation is set to fall from 8.7 percent in 2022 to 7.0 percent in 2023 
on the back of lower commodity prices, but underlying (core) inflation is 
likely to decline more slowly. Inflation’s return to target is unlikely before 
2025 in most cases.

the most recent projections from the World economic Outlook of the 
International monetary Fund indicate that the global economy is not likely 
to enter a recession in the current or the following year. However, with two 
consecutive quarters of negative Gdp growth, there could be a technical 
recession in europe and possibly even in the United States. However, 
according to the ImF projections, the US economy will unlikely experience 
a Gdp contraction in the current or the following year.

indian Economy

In its flagship World Economic Outlook report, the International Monetary 
Fund (ImF) projected that India would be the fastest-growing economy in 
the world, despite confronting considerable challenges such as financial 
sector turmoil, inflationary pressures, effects of the Russia-Ukraine war, and 
the persistent impact of the Covid-19 pandemic over the past three years.

The Indian economy will grow by 5.9 per cent in the current fiscal year, 
making it the fastest-growing economy in the world. nevertheless, the 
IMF also warned that disruption in the financial system could have a 
detrimental effect on the overall global growth. India’s growth trajectory 
continues to be strong and promising; India and China will contribute to 
half of the world’s growth in 2023.

Additionally, India’s share of global gross domestic product growth is 
expected to surpass that of european giants France and the United 
Kingdom through 2028, making India a key player in driving global 
economic growth. With 20 nations driving 75 percent of global growth, 
India remains among the top contributors, along with China, the US, and 
Indonesia, further cementing its position as a leading economic power.

FinanCial markEt rEviEw

The Indian financial markets play a crucial role in facilitating the transfer 
of funds from savers to borrowers and in mobilizing savings. It provides 
a platform for investors to invest their savings in various securities and 
earn returns while corporations and governments access the necessary 
capital to facilitate investment and promote growth.

Equity market

The Indian equity market has a prominent place in India’s financial sector 
as it is quite developed and modern, on par with international standards. 
Over the years, the Indian stock market has grown exponentially and 
featured among the world’s largest in terms of market capitalisation, 
turnover, and the number of listed companies.

notwithstanding the pandemic woes spanning over the last two years and 
geopolitical tensions arising towards the end of the previous fiscal year, 
the equity market has held firm and shown resilience. FY22 witnessed 

a boom in IpOs listing on the exchanges, with corporate raising highest 
ever funds through IpOs.

Debt market

Unlike India’s equity market, which is vibrant, modern, and comparable 
to those in developed countries, the full potential of the debt market 
remains untapped.

Over the past decade, much has been done to attract higher investment 
flows and facilitate the growth and development of the corporate bond 
market. Some of these efforts include simplifying procedures, establishing 
sophisticated clearing and settlement infrastructure, improving disclosure 
standards and reduction of limits for overseas participation. Consequently, 
India has witnessed a steady rise in the mobilization of corporate bonds, 
with the outstanding corporate bond increasing nearly fourfold from Inr 
11 trillion in FY12 to INR 41 trillion in FY23.

COmpany rEviEw 

the Company along with its subsidiaries is engaged in the business of 
lending to marginalised sectors of the economy. the businesses of micro 
Finance, mSme Finance, micro lending and agri-commodity Finance, 
focus on servicing the underserved in an impactful manner. 

enabling and empowering progress has been the Company motto, and 
to take forward this spirit, the Company’s insurance distribution business 
worked relentlessly during the pandemic and serviced its customers 
efficiently. Inditrade Scalerator facilitates availing of loans and financial 
services for underserved customers from multiple lending organisation, 
including but not restricted to Inditrade, Inditrade rural marketing, under 
its brand ‘Boonbox’, works towards meeting the aspirations of customers 
in rural India by delivering consumer durables to their doorsteps and 
creating innovative financing structures through their third-party partners 
for such purchases.

OpEratiOnal rEviEw

micro Finance

the Company offers credit in rural and semi-urban areas through its 
subsidiary, Inditrade Microfinance Limited. It offers credit support to 
women entrepreneurs, looking to start businesses and for their working 
capital requirements. Credit Information agencies, such as, equifax, CrIF 
High Mark, enable the ascertaining of the borrower’s creditworthiness. 
to minimize the risk arising from client default, the Company restricts its 
exposure to a single client up to rs.30,000/- over the initial period of one 
year. It also undertakes collection of the loan repayments on a fortnightly 
/ monthly basis. The entire process, from collecting KYC information to 
the disbursement of the loans, is digitalized.

the Company has a strong presence in the 9 states having 169 branches. 
The Company has approximately 1, 42,000 borrowers and disbursed an 
aggregate amount of more than rs. 16,666 Cr across these states.

mSmE Financing

the loans are provided in the range of Inr 5 to 30 lakhs to small and 
medium enterprises (proprietorships and partnerships predominantly) 
for a period of 12-36 months. this business started in mumbai and has 
since expanded to include pune, Bengaluru, Hyderabad, new delhi and 
other smaller cities and towns in northern and southern India. the use 

manaGEmEnt DiSCuSSiOn anD analySiS
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of technology enables optimum credit decisions. technology facilitates 
disbursements and collections. the repayments are collected in this 
business on a daily/ weekly/ fortnightly, and in some cases on a monthly 
basis. the average loan size is Inr 15 lakhs and the average tenure is 
around 18 months. The total disbursement under this vertical has been 
close to Rs.430 Cr to about 2500+ clients.

agri Commodity Finance

the Company is involved in the business of providing funding primarily 
against traded non-essential commodities such as soya, pepper, 
cardamom, rubber, etc. the Company generally provides funding for a 
short duration, ranging from one to six months. Its clientele includes 
commodity buyers, traders and those involved in processing. It is ensured 
that credit risk is minimized by adhering to strict norms wherein the 
commodities are held as security are needed to be placed in recognised 
warehouses. Funds are provided against the electronic or physical receipt 
from the warehouses. also, it may be required of the borrowers to sell the 
goods in the futures markets with a time frame that mirrors the terms 
of the funding. 

despite strict norms of lending, the offerings are well-received due to 
attractive warehouse features like providing funds to the extent of around 
95% against goods as compared to bank funding of 70 – 80%, faster 
processing of funds, at attractive rates, etc. The Company’s stronghold 
on Agri-commodity financing remains in the Southern and Central India, 
though it has successfully touched customers across all major commodity 
centres in the country.

insurance Broking

the Insurance Broking business is steadily progressing with a strong base 
in Kochi and delhi, primarily catering to corporate customers. during the 
FY 2020-21, the company expanded its operations to Bengaluru. Offices 
are being planned in multiple locations covering northern and southern 
India for further strengthening the business.

Scalerator (iBog)

Scalerator started business in august, 2020 to help under-served 
customers avail loans and financial services from organized sector. 
Scalerator works with diversified set of lenders, including Inditrade and 
other financial services providers facilitating business loans, personal 
loans, gold loans, and healthcare loans, to customers. the Company 
has a strong presence across southern India and would seek to expand 
its presence in other parts of the country over time. a completely digital 
platform aims to take financial services to the remote parts of the country.

rural marketing (Boonbox)

this business operates under the Boonbox brand and was launched in 
november, 2020. Boonbox attempts to meet the aspirations of Bharat by 
bringing consumer durables and other relevant products to the doorsteps 
in rural India. It uses innovative financial structures by working with 
partners to arrange customer financing. At present, Boonbox operates in 
states of southern India. Aspiring India’s needs are growing further, and 
we envisage Boonbox to rapidly scale up during the next few years and 
expand its business nationwide. 

Financial review

In FY 2022-23, the Company’s total consolidated income (including other 
income) stood at Rs.179.33 Crs as against rs. 200.95 Crs in FY 2021-22. 
The Company’s revenues from operations increased aggregating to Rs. 
167.68 Crs in FY 2022-23 as compared to Rs. 165.94 Crs in FY 2021-22. 

The profit before tax and exceptional items stood at Rs. (20.59) Crs as 
compared to Rs. 6.86 Crs in the previous year. The PAT stood at Rs. (20.27) 
Crs in FY 2022-23 as compared to Rs. 3.83 Crs in FY 2021-22.

the performance highlights of the major subsidiaries of the Company for 
FY 2022-23 were as follows: 

InditradeFincorplimited,recorded a total revenue of Rs. 47.96 Crs as 
compared to Rs. 63.73 Crs in the previous year. The profit after tax 
decreased to Rs. (1.40) Crs as compared to Rs. 0.39 Crs in the previous year.

Inditrade Microfinance Limited, recorded a total revenue down to Rs. 
42.96 Crs as compared to Rs. 48.70 Crs in the previous year. the eBItda 
during the year decreased to Rs. 5.70 Crs as compared to Rs. 26.70 Crs 
in the previous year. The profit after tax went down by Rs. (20.16) Crs as 
compared to rs. 1.33 Crs in the previous year.

Inditrade Business Consultants limited, recorded a total revenue increase 
of 9.26% to Rs. 26.08 Crs as compared to Rs. 23.87 Crs in the previous 
year. The profit after tax decreased to Rs. 3.14 Crs as compared to rs. 
4.64 Crs in the previous year.

Debtors Turnover Ratio for current year is 4.75 as against previous year’s 
ratio of 12.54.

Inventory turnover ratio for current year is 2.30 as against previous 
year’s ratio of 1.73.

Opportunities
• Reviving rural market 
• Leveraging Technology for enhanced productivity, efficiency and 

transforming customer experience
• Digitalisation and data driven decision making 

threats
• Rising inflation
• Increasing geopolitical instability 
• Increase in borrowing costs

Outlook

Assets under management (AUM) of non-banking financial company-
microfinance institutions (NBFC-MFIs) is expected to grow 25-30 percent 
this fiscal amid improving asset quality and continued traction in the 
economic activity, according to CrISIl ratings.

Future, growth is expected to be supported by the strong push towards 
digitisation, better consumer sentiment. the factors such as higher 
provisioning, stronger balance sheets, receding asset quality concerns 
and normalising funding situation could enable nBFCs to drive credit 
demand and improved profitability.

the Company has already diversified its operations to financial products 
distribution business through Scalerator, Boonbox and Insurance Broking. 
the Company is always on look-out for building partnerships with banks 
and other lending institutions.

risk review

risk assessment and management is critical to ensure long-term 
sustainability of our business. the Company has in place a strong 
risk management framework with continuous appraisal by the top 
management. It is vigilant about the risk and has invested in the latest 
state-of-the-art technologies to strengthen and support the various credit 
and risk management processes. Senior management closely reviews 
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the framework and ensures timely modifications based on the changing 
environment. 

the key risk areas such as economic risk, credit risk, asset-liability 
management risk, market risk, operational risk, compliance and regulatory 
risk, IT and cybersecurity risk and attrition risk are identified periodically 
and addressed and suitable mitigation measure, as may be appropriate, 
are initiated for resolving such matters.

internal Control Systems and their adequacy

Pursuant to the provisions of section 134(5)(e) Companies Act, 2013, every 
listed company has to lay down Internal Financial Controls and ensure 
that these are adequate and are operating effectively. Internal Finance 
Controls means the policies and procedures adopted by the Company 
for ensuring the following:-

• Orderly and efficient conduct of its business;

• Adherence to the Company’s policies;

• Safeguarding of its assets;

• Prevention and detection of frauds and errors; and

• Accuracy and completeness of the accounting records and timely 
preparation of reliable financial information.

Inditrade has adequate and suitable internal control systems that are 
continuously monitored and updated to ensure that its assets are 
safeguarded and the internal control system is commensurate with the 
size of the business as well as the industry in which the Company and 
its subsidiaries operates. these systems also ensure that established 
regulations are complied with and pending issues are addressed promptly. 
the adequacy of the internal control systems is audited by the independent 
internal auditors and the reports are reviewed quarterly by the audit 
Committee. all new businesses are automatically included in the internal 
audit schedules and reviewed as per practice.

Human Capital 

the Company has evolved around the motto, “lets progress”. It moves 
to pursue greater efficiency and more growth. People and profit are both 
valued. at Inditrade, while we charter unknown territories and navigate the 
complexities of the new normal business environment alongside pursuing 
the agreed business goals, our priority remains to ensure that employees 
feel safe, secure and grow and fulfil their career aspirations. At Inditrade, 
we encourage business and functional leaders to listen actively, enable 
two-way communication, be engaged, and appreciate employees for their 
efforts and performance.

In line with our efforts in creating a sustainable Purpose-Profit-People 
oriented environment, we have adopted and aligned to the following 
Human Capital practice, which forms the people culture at Inditrade.

• People First Approach – Employee well-being, Welfare and Engagement

• Performance-Driven Target-Oriented Culture

• Information Sharing - Business Updates and Quarterly Newsletters

• Agile and Flexible Outlook

• Learning Orientation

• Future-ready Workforce

there are well-defined Hr policies relating to recruitment, training, 
recognition reward, and retention. the Hr team relentlessly works towards 
“Creating a People Advantage’ organization and periodically embarks on 
several human resource initiatives to enhance the. We are developing 
critical resources to tactfully execute the defined strategy, achieving the 
desired results.

Various employee engagement programs, like quiz competitions, yoga 
training, peer learning session from peers, are undertaken to motivate 
them and create a sense of belongingness.

The Company’s Human Capital headcount, including its group companies, 
stands at 1,217 as on 31st march, 2023.

information technology

Information Technology (IT) is an integral part of the financial industry. The 
organization works on providing the best possible technology platforms 
to the end-users for seamless transaction. the approach, in turn, drives 
sustained business growth in an ever-evolving environment. 

the Company and its subsidiaries have adopted digital processes, to the 
maximum possible extent, for faster services and with minimum tat 
(turnaround time). 

the Company ensures prompt enhancement of its core applications. 
the Company also works on a mix of build and buy model, optimizing 
time-to-market. this enables it to satisfy business needs as well as 
customer expectation beforehand. The Company’s constant efforts have 
secured the future growth of the business with improved system speed, 
performance and response time, which in turn has resulted in directly 
enhancing productivity, efficiency and scalability.

Cautionary Statement

Certain statements in the management discussion and analysis describing 
the Company’s objectives, predictions may be ‘forward-looking statement’ 
within the meaning of applicable laws and regulations. actual results 
may vary significantly from the forward-looking statement contained in 
this document, due to various risks and uncertainties. these risks and 
uncertainties include the effect of economic and political conditions in 
India, volatility in interest rates, new regulations and Government policies 
that may impact the Company’s business as well as its ability to implement 
the strategy.
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dear Shareholders,

Your Directors are pleased to present the 29th Annual Report of your Company and the Audited Financial Statements for the financial year ended 
31st march, 2023.

FinanCial HiGHliGHtS (rs. in lakhs)

particulars Standalone Consolidated 
For the financial year ended For the  financial year ended 

31st march, 2023 31st march, 2022 31st march, 2023 31st march, 2022
total revenue 1,111.44 427.17 16,768.35 16,593.67
Other income 55.06 119.85 1,164.41 3,501.74
Less: Expenditure 83.17 273.91 15,795.92 15,648.88
Profit/ (Loss) before Depreciation, Finance costs, Exceptional items and 
tax expense 1,083.33 273.11 2136.84 4,446.53

Less: Depreciation 292.65 151.47 619.61 472.04
Profit / (Loss) before Finance costs, Exceptional items and Tax expense 790.68 121.64 1,517.23 3,974.49
Less : Finance Cost 579.28 210.95 3,576.44 3,288.20
Profit / (Loss) before Exceptional items and Tax expense 211.40 (89.31) (2059.21) 686.29
Add/(Less): Exceptional items 0 0 0 0
Profit / (Loss) before Tax expense 211.40 (89.31) (2,059.21) 686.29
Less: Tax expense 14.36 41.90 (25.64) 318.25
Profit /(Loss) for the financial year 197.04 (131.21) (2,033.57) 368.04
Share of profit from associate 6.33 14.64
Net Profit for the financial year  
(before minority interest in case of Consolidated) (2,027.24) 382.68

Less: Minority Interest (in case of consolidated) (634.01) (124.91)
Net Profit for the financial year 
(after minority interest in case of Consolidated)

(1,393.23) 507.59

DirECtOrS’ rEpOrt

rESultS OF OpEratiOnS

During the financial year under review, the Company along with its 
subsidiaries/associate companies provided a bouquet of services to 
their customers. 

the Company on a standalone basis has recorded profit before 
exceptional items and tax from operations of Rs. 211.40 Lakhs for 
the financial year 2022-2023 as against loss of Rs. 89.31 Lakhs in the 
corresponding previous financial year. Profit after exceptional items and 
tax from operations stood at Rs. 197.04 Lakhs for the financial year 2022-
2023, as against loss of Rs.131.21 Lakhs in the previous financial year.

SuBSiDiary COmpaniES 

as on 31st march, 2023, the Company has 5 (Five) direct subsidiaries, 
1(One) step-down subsidiary and 2 (two) associate companies/fellow 
subsidiaries, as follows:

Direct Subsidiaries:

1. Inditrade Fincorp limited. 

2. Inditrade Business Consultants limited.

3. Inditrade Microfinance Limited.

4. Inditrade Technologies Limited.

5. Inditrade Community Foundation - a Section 8 Company incorporated 
to primarily undertake CSr activities of the Inditrade Group.

Step-down Subsidiary:

1. Inditrade Scalerator limited

associate Companies 

1. Inditrade rural marketing limited 

2. Inditrade Insurance Broking private limited

aCCOuntS OF SuBSiDiary anD aSSOCiatE COmpaniES

the Board of directors (including audit Committee) have reviewed 
the affairs of the subsidiary and associate companies and the salient 
features of their financial statements in the prescribed format Form 
aOC-1 are annexed as annexure-i.

The audited financial statements of the subsidiary companies and the 
related detailed information will be made available to the Shareholders 
of the Company at the Registered Office of the Company and on the 
Company website www.inditrade.com, under the ‘Investor Relations’ 
section. 

rESErvES

the Board of directors of your Company has decided not to transfer any 
amount for the financial year under review to the Reserves.

DiviDEnD

due to pressure on the liquidity and business operations post-COVId-19 
pandemic and keeping in mind the principle of shared prosperity and 
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sacrifice, it is decided by the Board of Directors that it would be prudent, 
not to recommend any dividend for the financial year under review.

maJOr EvEntS tHat HavE OCCurrED DurinG tHE FinanCial yEar

Following major events have occurred during the financial year under 
review:

a) State of the Company’s affairs:

(i) Changes in the shareholding of the Subsidiaries:

during the year, Inditrade Business Consultants limited, 
subsidiary of the Company had transferred its holdings in 
Inditrade rural marketing limited (Irml) to its fellow subsidiary 
Inditrade Fincorp limited (IFl). as on 31st march 2023, Irml 
continues to be an associate company (as defined in Section 
2(6) of the Companies act, 2013) of Inditrade Capital limited by 
virtue of shares held by Inditrade Fincorp limited (IFl).

b) Change in nature of business by the subsidiaries: 

There are no significant changes in the nature of business carried 
on by the subsidiaries of the Company wherein the impact of such 
changes is 10% or more of the consolidated turnover or consolidated 
net worth of Inditrade Capital limited.  

c) Material changes and commitments, if any, affecting the financial 
position of the Company having occurred since the end of the 
financial year and till the date of this report:

There are no material changes affecting the financial position of the 
Company which have occurred since the end of the financial year 
and till the date of this report. 

iSSuE OF SHarES On riGHtS BaSiS

the Board of directors of Inditrade Capital limited at its meeting held 
on 3rd november, 2022 had decided to issue shares on rights basis to 
eligible equity shareholders at issue price of Rs. 45/- per share (including 
premium of Rs.35/- per share) at right entitlement ratio of 5:13 and issue 
size aggregating approximately to Rs.40.42 Crores. The Company has 
also constituted a rights Issue Committee to decide upon the terms 
and conditions of the rights issue and to deal with other matters in 
connection with/ incidental to the proposed rights issue. 

iSSuE OF SwEat EQuity SHarES

The Company has not issued Sweat Equity Shares during the financial 
year under review and hence the disclosure as required under Section 
54 read with rule 8(13) of the Companies (Share Capital and Debentures) 
Rules, 2014, is not required to be made.

EQuity SHarES witH DiFFErEntial vOtinG riGHtS

the Company has not issued equity Shares with differential voting 
rights during the financial year under review and hence the disclosure as 
required under Section 43 read with rule 4(4) of the Companies (Share 
Capital and Debentures) Rules, 2014, is not required to be made.

maintEnanCE OF COSt rECOrDS

The Company is not required to maintain cost records as specified by 
the Central Government under sub-section (1) of section 148 of the 
Companies act, 2013.

Capital StruCturE

as on date of this report, the authorized Share Capital of the Company 
is Rs. 40,00,00,000/- (Rupees Forty Crore only) divided into 4,00,00,000 
(Four Crore) equity Shares of rs. 10/- each and the issued, subscribed 
and paid-up share capital of the Company is rs. 23,35,36,260 (rupees 
twenty-three Crores thirty-Five lakhs thirty-Six thousand two Hundred 
and Sixty only) divided into 2,33,53,626 (two Crores thirty-three lakhs 
Fifty-three thousand Six Hundred and twenty-Six) equity Shares of 
rs. 10/- each. 

there was no change in the Share Capital Structure of the Company 
during the financial year under review.

annual rEturn

As required under Section 134(3)(a) of the Companies Act, 2013, 
the Annual Return for the Financial Year 2022-2023 is available on 
Company’s Website and can be accessed at https://www.inditrade.
com/investor-relationship.aspx.

COrpOratE GOvErnanCE

the Company is committed to maintain the highest standards of 
corporate governance and adherence to the corporate governance 
requirements set out by the Securities and exchange Board of India 
(SeBI) and the Companies act, 2013. the Company strives to achieve 
fairness for all stakeholders and to enhance long-term value to 
Shareholders. 

As per Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V of the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015, a separate 
section on Corporate Governance practices followed by the Company 
together with the certificate from BVR & Associates Company Secretaries 
llp forms an integral part of this annual report. 

BOarD mEEtinGS

the Board meetings of the Company were held with requisite notice and 
with a valid quorum. The Board met 4 (four) times during the Financial 
Year 2022-2023 on 24th may 2022, 2nd august 2022, 3rd november 2022 
and 31st January 2023.

the maximum interval between any two Board meetings did not exceed 
120 days. 

details of the composition of the Board meetings held, attendance of 
the directors at such meetings and other relevant details are provided 
in the Corporate Governance report.

auDit COmmittEE

The composition of the Audit Committee is as below:

a) mr. Brij Gopal daga (Chairman) - non-executive Independent 
director.

b) mr. Kerachan ayyappan Somasekharan (member) - non-executive 
Independent director.

c) mr. radhakrishna nair (member) - non- executive and Independent 
director.

d) mrs. Jhuma Guha (member) - non- executive director.

there were no changes in the composition of the audit Committee during 
the financial year under review.
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During the Financial Year 2022-2023, all the recommendations made 
by the members of the audit Committee were accepted by the Board. 

nOminatiOn anD rEmunEratiOn COmmittEE

the composition of the nomination and remuneration Committee is 
as below:

a) mr. Kerachan ayyappan Somasekharan (Chairman) - non-executive 
Independent director.

b) mr. Brij Gopal daga (member) - non-executive Independent director.

c) mrs. Jhuma Guha (member) - non-executive director.

there were no changes in the composition of the nomination and 
Remuneration Committee during the financial year under review.

During the Financial Year 2022-2023, all the recommendations made 
by the members of the nomination and remuneration Committee were 
accepted by the Board. 

StakEHOlDErS rElatiOnSHip COmmittEE

the composition of the Stakeholders relationship Committee is as 
below:

a) mr. Kerachan ayyappan Somasekharan (Chairman) - non-executive 
Independent director.

b) mr. Brij Gopal daga (member) - non-executive Independent director.

c) mrs. Jhuma Guha (member) - non-executive director.

there were no changes in the composition of the Stakeholders 
Relationship Committee during the financial year under review.

COrpOratE SOCial rESpOnSiBility (CSr)

the provisions related to CSr activities under Section 135 of the 
Companies act, 2013 were not applicable to the Company for the 
financial year under review, since the Company’s net worth, turnover 
and net profit was below the threshold specified therein.

DirECtOrS anD kEy manaGErial pErSOnnEl

as on 31st march, 2023, the Board of your Company consisted of 
eight directors namely, mr. Sudip Bandyopadhyay - non-executive 
Director (DIN: 00007382), Mr. Brij Gopal Daga - Independent Director 
(DIN: 00004858), Mr. Radhakrishna Nair - Independent Director (DIN: 
07225354), Mr. Kerachan Ayyappan Somasekharan- Independent 
Director (DIN: 01573721), Mr. Sivanandhan Dhanushkodi - Independent 
Director (DIN: 03607203), Mr. Sudhangshu Shekhar Biswal - Independent 
Director (DIN: 07580667), Mrs. Jhuma Guha - Non-Executive Director 
(DIN: 00007454) and Mr. Anand Kamalkishore Maliwal - Non-Executive 
Director (DIN: 07474039).

as per the provisions of the Companies act, 2013, mr. Sudip 
Bandyopadhyay (DIN: 00007382), is retiring by rotation at the ensuing 
29th annual General meeting and being eligible has offered himself for 
re-appointment which has been recommended by the nomination and 
remuneration Committee and the Board of directors of the Company 
and the notice for the ensuing 29th annual General meeting contains the 
details of the said re-appointment.  

all the Independent directors of the Company have complied with the 
requirements laid down under rule 6 of the Companies (appointment 
and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014. 

As per the provisions of Regulation 17(1A) inserted by the SEBI (Listing 
Obligations and disclosure requirements) (amendment) regulations, 
2018, your company seeks approval of shareholders for the continuation 
of Directorship of Mr. K. A. Somasekharan (DIN: 01573721) who will 
be attaining the age of 75 years on 15th July, 2024, as Non-Executive 
Independent director of the Company for the remaining period of his 
existing term in office upto 14th February, 2026.

None of the Directors of the Company are disqualified for being appointed 
as directors, as specified in Section 164 (1)/ Section 164(2) and Rule 14(1) 
of Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014.

mr. naveen Kumar Jain, relinquished his position as Chief Financial 
Officer (KMP) with effect from close of business hours of 3rd november, 
2022 which was accepted by the Board of directors. He was re-
designated as Group Chief Risk & Strategy Officer of the Company. 
the Board placed on record its appreciation for the valuable services 
rendered by him during his tenure as the Chief Financial Officer of the 
Company.

the following are the Key managerial personnel of the Company as on 
31st March, 2023:

• Ms. Maya Menon - Company Secretary cum Compliance 
Officer & Manager

Mr. Ravi Prakash Jain was appointed as Chief Financial Officer (KMP) of 
the Company with effect from 2nd may 2023 in accordance with Section 
203 of the Companies act 2013. 

EvaluatiOn By BOarD OF itS pErFOrmanCE anD tHat OF itS 
COmmittEES anD inDiviDual DirECtOrS

the Board has carried out an annual performance evaluation of its own 
performance, the directors individually as well as the evaluation of 
the working of the Committees of the Board. the Board performance 
was evaluated based on inputs received from all the directors 
after considering criteria such as Board composition and structure, 
effectiveness of Board/ Committees processes, information provided to 
the Board, etc. the Board (excluding the director being evaluated) have 
also evaluated the performance of Independent and non-Independent 
Directors, fulfilment of their independence criteria and their independence 
from the management, performance of the Board as a whole and that of 
the Chairman of the meetings/Committees. 

pOliCy On appOintmEnt anD rEmunEratiOn OF DirECtOrS 
inCluDinG inDEpEnDEnt DirECtOrS, kEy manaGErial pErSOnS 
anD SEniOr manaGEmEnt

the Company has a nomination and remuneration policy for the 
performance evaluation of the individual directors, the Board as 
a whole and its Committees.  the nomination and remuneration 
Committee is responsible for identifying persons who are qualified to 
become directors and who may be appointed in the senior management 
positions in accordance with the criteria laid down in the nomination and 
remuneration policy. the Committee also reviews the policy regarding 
the criteria for appointment and remuneration of directors including 
Independent directors, Key managerial persons and Senior management. 
the Committee also recommends to the Board, the appointment of any 
new directors/Key managerial personnel or removal of the existing 
directors/Key managerial personnel. the Committee recommends to 
the Board as to whether to extend or continue the term of appointment 
of the Independent directors, on the basis of the report of performance 
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evaluation of Independent directors. after carefully evaluating and 
analyzing the recommendations of the nomination and remuneration 
Committee, the Board of directors of the Company decide whether 
to appoint a new director/Key managerial personnel or remove an 
existing director/ Key managerial personnel, as the case may be. the 
nomination and remuneration Committee of the Company oversees 
the implementation of the nomination and remuneration policy of 
the Company. the composition of the nomination and remuneration 
Committee and other relevant details are provided in the Corporate 
Governance report. the nomination and remuneration policy of the 
Company is available on the Company’s website at the below mentioned 
link: https://www.inditrade.com/policies.aspx

the salient features of the nomination and remuneration policy (‘the 
policy’) are as follows:

a. the policy has been framed in accordance with the relevant 
provisions of the Companies act, 2013 and the SeBI (listing 
Obligations and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015. 

b. The policy spells out the criteria for determining qualifications, 
positive attributes, independence of a director and the remuneration 
of directors, Key managerial personnel and Senior management 
including functional heads.

c. The Committee has the discretion to decide whether the qualification, 
expertise and experience possessed by a person are sufficient/ 
satisfactory for the concerned position. no Independent director 
shall hold office for more than two consecutive terms of maximum 
5 years each. In the event the same person is to be appointed as 
an Independent Director after two consecutive terms of five years, 
a cooling period of 3 years is required to be fulfilled. 

d. the director, Kmp and Senior management shall retire as per the 
applicable provisions of the Companies act, 2013 and the prevailing 
policy of the Company. the Board will have the discretion to retain 
the director, Kmp, Senior management in the same position/ 
remuneration or otherwise even after attaining the retirement age, 
for the benefit of the Company.

e. the remuneration/ commission shall be in accordance with the 
statutory provisions of the Companies act, 2013 and the rules made 
thereunder for the time being in force.

f. deviations on elements of this policy in extraordinary circumstances, 
when deemed necessary in the interests of the Company, will be 
made if there are specific reasons to do so in an individual case.

g. In case of any amendment(s), clarification(s), circular(s) etc. issued 
by the relevant authorities, not being consistent with the provisions 
laid down under the Policy, then such amendment(s), clarification(s), 
circular(s) etc. shall prevail upon the provisions hereunder and the 
nomination and remuneration Committee shall amend the policy 
accordingly.

DEClaratiOn By inDEpEnDEnt DirECtOrS

the Independent directors of the Company have given declarations 
that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down under Section 
149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 of the SEBI 
(listing Obligations and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015. 
They have also given a declaration affirming compliance with the code 
of conduct of the Company.

the Board of directors is of the opinion that the Independent directors 
of the Company possess integrity, necessary expertise and experience.  

EmplOyEE StOCk OptiOn plan (ESOp)

In order to attract and retain talent, the Company has put in place - 
Inditrade employee Stock Option plan 2016, which is in compliance 
with the SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) 
regulations, 2021.  

disclosure as required under SeBI regulations read with SeBI circular 
no. CIR/CFD/POLICYCELL/2/2015 dated June 16, 2015 has been made 
available at the Company website at www.inditrade.com.

initiativES witH rEGarD tO tHE HEaltH anD SaFEty OF tHE 
EmplOyEES

the Company had taken various initiatives for ensuring the health and 
safety of employees of the Inditrade group of companies.  Sanitation 
and fumigation of offices was regularly done.  All the directives of the 
Central Government and the applicable State Governments were duly 
followed regarding the functioning of offices.  Work from home option 
was provided to the employees. Further the Company has provided for 
health insurance policies for the employees.

DEpOSitS

During the financial year under review, your Company does not hold/ 
has not accepted any deposits within the meaning of Chapter V of the 
Companies act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder.

partiCularS OF EmplOyEES

disclosure as stipulated under rule 5 of the Companies (appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 is attached 
as annexure-ii.

partiCularS OF lOanS, GuarantEES Or invEStmEntS

the details of Investments, loans or Guarantees covered under the 
provisions of Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in the 
Notes 6, 7 and 30 to the Standalone Financial Statements.

partiCularS OF COntraCtS Or arranGEmEntS witH rElatED 
partiES

all contracts/ arrangements/ transactions entered by the Company 
during the financial year under review were in compliance with the 
applicable provisions of the Companies act, 2013 and the SeBI (listing 
Obligations and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015. there 
are no materially significant Related Party Transactions made by the 
Company with the promoters, directors, Key managerial personnel or 
other designated persons which may have a potential conflict with the 
interests of the Company at large.

all related party transactions were placed before the audit Committee 
and also before the Board for its approval. prior omnibus approval of 
the audit Committee was obtained for the transactions which were of a 
repetitive nature. the transactions entered into pursuant to the omnibus 
approval so granted were reviewed and statements giving details of all 
related party transactions were placed before the audit Committee and 
the Board of directors for their approval on a quarterly basis.

the Company has framed a related party transactions policy which 
is available at the below link: https://www.inditrade.com/policies.aspx 
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particulars of contracts or arrangements with related parties referred to 
in sub section (1) of Section 188 in Form No. AOC-2 of the Companies 
(Accounts) Rules, 2014 is attached as Annexure- III. 

pursuant to the amendment in the SeBI (lOdr)regulations, 2015, the 
Company seeks approval of shareholders for related party transactions 
to be entered into with subsidiary companies and other related 
parties falling within the purview of regulation 23 of the SeBI (lOdr) 
Regulations, 2015. The required details are set out as item no. 7 in notice 
for 29th annual General meeting of the Company.

manaGEmEnt DiSCuSSiOn anD analySiS rEpOrt

As stipulated under Regulation 34 read with Schedule V of the SEBI 
(listing Obligations and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015, 
management discussion and analysis, is presented in a separate section 
forming part of the annual report.

StatutOry auDitOrS anD auDitOr’S rEpOrt

pursuant to the provisions of Section 139 of the Companies act, 2013 
read with the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, Haribhakti 
& Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, Chennai (ICAI Firm Registration No. 
103523W/ W100048) were reappointed as the Statutory Auditors of 
the Company to hold office from the conclusion of 24th annual General 
meeting until the conclusion of 29th annual General meeting. the tenure 
of the present auditor comes to end on the conclusion of 29th annual 
General Meeting. The present auditor has held office for consecutive 
term of 10 years and shall retire at this aGm.

the audit committee had in its meeting held on 25th may, 2023, 
recommended appointment of M/s. Kirtane & Pandit LLP, Chartered 
Accountants, (Firm Regn No. 105215W / W100057) to fill the office 
of retiring auditors. the Board of directors had in its meeting held 
on 25th may, 2023, decided to proceed with the recommendation of 
the committee, subject to approval of members in aGm. the Board 
has received consent letter and certificate from auditors pursuant to 
Section 139/Section 141 confirming that the proposed Auditors satisfy 
the criteria for being appointed as Statutory auditors of the Company.  
If appointed, M/s. Kirtane & Pandit LLP shall hold office as Statutory 
auditors of the company from the conclusion of 29th annual General 
Meeting until the conclusion 34th annual General meeting. the resolution 
for appointment of M/s. Kirtane & Pandit LLP as Statutory Auditor is 
set out as item no. 3 in the notice for 29th annual General meeting of 
the Company.

The reports given by Haribhakti & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, 
Statutory Auditors of the Company on the audited financial statements 
for the financial year 2022-2023 forms part of this Annual Report. The 
Notes on Financial Statements referred to in the Statutory Auditors’ 
report are self-explanatory and do not call for any further comments. 
The Statutory Audit report do not contain any qualifications, reservations, 
adverse remarks or disclaimer.

SECrEtarial auDit anD SECrEtarial COmplianCE rEpOrt

M/s. SVJS & Associates, Practicing Company Secretaries, Kochi were 
appointed to conduct the Secretarial Audit of the Company for the financial 
year 2022-2023, as required under the Section 204 of the Companies 
act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder. the Secretarial audit report 
for the Financial Year 2022-2023 forms a part of this Annual Report. 

The Secretarial Audit report do not contain any qualifications or adverse 
remarks except the below observation:

Sr. 
no

Observation management 
responses

1 pursuant to regulation 23 (9) of SeBI (listing 
Obligations and disclosure requirements) 
regulations, 2015, the listed entity shall 
submit to the stock exchanges disclosures 
of related party transactions in the format as 
specified by the SEBI every six months within 
fifteen days from the date of publication of its 
standalone and consolidated financial results.
there was a late submission (delay of one day) 
of disclosure of related party transactions on 
consolidated basis for the half year ended 31st 
march 2022, for which the Stock exchange 
(BSE) has imposed a fine of Rs. 5,000/-

the delay of one 
day was inadvertent 
and was owing to 
the format changes 
and confusions in 
date of uploading. 
Further, the Company 
has paid the fine.

three subsidiaries of the Company, namely Inditrade Fincorp limited, 
Inditrade Microfinance Limited and Inditrade Business Consultants 
limited are coming within the ambit of “material Subsidiary” as per 
the Securities and exchange Board of India (listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 for the financial year 
2022-2023. Accordingly, pursuant to Regulation 24A of the SEBI 
(lOdr) regulations, 2015, the Secretarial audit reports of Inditrade 
Fincorp Limited, Inditrade Microfinance Limited and Inditrade Business 
Consultants Limited for the financial year 2022-2023 are enclosed and 
forms part of this annual report.

the observations and comments given by the Secretarial auditors in 
their report are self-explanatory and hence do not call for any further 
comments under Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013.

Pursuant to SEBI Circular No. CIR/CFD/CMD1/27/2019 dated 8th 
February, 2019, the Company has submitted the Secretarial Compliance 
Report from a Practicing Company Secretary for the financial year 2022-
2023, on compliance of all applicable SeBI regulations and circulars/
guidelines issued there under with the Stock exchange within the 
prescribed due date.

COnSErvatiOn OF EnErGy, tECHnOlOGy aBSOrptiOn anD FOrEiGn 
EXCHanGE EarninGS anD OutGO

Considering the nature of activities of the Company, the information 
required under Section 134(3)(m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Companies (Accounts), Rules 2014 relating to Energy Conservation, 
technology absorption is not applicable to the Company. However, the 
effort made by the Company along with its Group Companies towards 
technology absorption includes the following:

I. adoption of the latest state of-the-art data centre, software and 
hardware tools available in the market for rendering lending and 
other services more efficiently and effectively.

II. Implemented server virtualization to reduce the Server, power and 
management foot prints. 

III. Implemented the log management to identify detailed server, 
network and application issues and proactively clear them so that 
they do not affect the business operations.
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IV. designed and implemented quality network, server, and It security 
systems that accommodate and protect our digital information.

the Company had no foreign exchange earnings or outgo during the 
financial year under review.

intErnal FinanCial COntrOl anD itS aDEQuaCy

the Company has an effective internal control and risk mitigation 
system, which is reviewed and constantly updated. the internal controls 
including the internal financial control of the Company are managed and 
reviewed by the audit Committee and apart from the staff employed by 
the Company, the Company has also appointed independent Internal 
Auditors to review and monitor the internal financial controls and their 
adequacy. the Internal Financial Controls of the Company are adequate 
and commensurate with the size and nature of business of the Company.  

riSk manaGEmEnt

the Company manages, monitors and reports on the principal risks and 
uncertainties that can impact its ability to achieve its strategic objectives. 

rEpOrtinG OF FrauDS

There was no instance of fraud during the financial year under review, 
which required the Statutory auditors to report to the audit Committee 
and / or the Board under Section 143(12) of the Companies Act 2013 
and rules framed thereunder.

VIGIL MECHANISM/ WHISTLE BLOWER POLICY

In order to address the genuine concerns and grievances of the directors 
and employees of the Company, the Company has established a Vigil 
mechanism/ Whistle Blower policy for directors and employees pursuant 
to Section 177(9) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 22 of the 
SeBI (listing Obligations and disclosure requirements) regulations, 
2015. the Vigil mechanism provides adequate safeguards against 
victimization of director(s) or employee(s) or any other person who avails 
the mechanism and also provides for direct access to the Chairperson 
of the audit Committee in appropriate or exceptional cases.

the Vigil mechanism is available in the website of the Company at the 
below mentioned link: https://www.inditrade.com/policies.aspx

MATERIAL ORDERS OF REGULATORS/COURTS/TRIBUNALS

No significant or material orders were passed by the regulators or courts 
or tribunals, which are likely to impact the going concern status and 
Company’s operation in future.

DiSClOSurE unDEr tHE SEXual HaraSSmEnt OF wOmEn at 
wOrkplaCE (prEvEntiOn, prOHiBitiOn anD rEDrESSal) aCt, 2013 

the Company has in place the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (prevention, prohibition and redressal) policy in line with 
the requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace 
(prevention, prohibition and redressal) act, 2013. the Company has 
complied with the provisions relating to the constitution of Internal 
Complaints Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Women at 
Workplace (prevention, prohibition and redressal) act, 2013.

the following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received 
and disposed off during the financial year 2022-2023:

• no. of complaints at the beginning of the year 2022-2023 : nIl
• no. of complaints received during the year 2022-2023 : nIl
• no. of complaints disposed off during the year 2022-2023 : nIl
• no. of complaints at the end of the year 2022-2023 : nIl

COmplianCE witH SECrEtarial StanDarDS

During the financial year under review, the Company has complied with 
the applicable Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India.

DirECtOrS’ rESpOnSiBility StatEmEnt

In accordance with the provisions of Section 134(5) of the Companies 
Act, 2013, the Board of Directors affirm:

(a) that in the preparation of the annual accounts for the financial year 
ended 31st march, 2023, the applicable accounting Standards have 
been followed and there are no material departures,

(b) that the directors have selected such accounting policies and 
applied them consistently and made judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the 
state of affairs of the Company as on 31st march, 2023 and of the 
loss of the Company for the financial year ended on that date,

(c) that the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the 
maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the Companies act, 2013 for safeguarding the 
assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting fraud and 
other irregularities,

(d) that the Directors have prepared the annual accounts for the financial 
year ended 31st march, 2023 on a going concern basis,

(e) that the Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be 
followed by the Company and that such internal financial controls 
are adequate and are operating effectively and

(f) that the directors have devised proper systems to ensure compliance 
with the provisions of all applicable laws and that such systems are 
adequate and operating effectively.

aCknOwlEDGmEnt

Your Directors place on record their sincere appreciation for the 
assistance and guidance provided by the regulators, BSe limited, 
other statutory bodies and the Company’s bankers for the assistance, 
cooperation and encouragement extended to the Company. Your 
directors wish to place on record their appreciation for the contributions 
made by the employees of Inditrade group at all levels for their efforts, 
hard work and support, which are indispensable for smooth functioning 
of the Company. Your involvement as Shareholders is also greatly valued 
and your directors look forward to your continued support.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 Jhuma Guha Sudip Bandyopadhyay 
Date: 25th may, 2023 Director Director
Place: Mumbai DIN: 00007454 DIN: 00007382
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FOrm aOC-1 annEXurE - i
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of Section 129 read with Rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules,  
2014 Statement containing salient features of the financial statement of Subsidiaries/Associate Companies/Joint Ventures

part “a”: Subsidiaries (rs in lacs)
Sr. 
no.

name of the Subsidiary 
Companies

inditrade Fincorp 
limited

inditrade Business 
Consultants limited 

Inditrade Microfinance 
limited

inditrade Scalerator 
limited 1

inditrade technologies 
limited 

1. reporting period for the 
subsidiary concerned

31st march, 2023 31st march, 2023 31st march, 2023 31st march, 2023 31st march, 2023

2. Date of acquisition 06th September, 2007 27th August, 2008 09th may, 2016 17th november, 2016 27th March, 2018
3. reporting currency Indian rupees Indian rupees Indian rupees Indian rupees Indian rupees
4. Share Capital 5482.46 611.00 5705.80 17.00 1100.00
5. reserves &Surplus 7586.61 1389.43 (923.54) 1.24 (70.57)
6. total assets 27850.24 8921.84 20442.07 1301.07 2488.27
7. total liabilities 14781.17 6921.41 15659.81 1282.83 1458.84
8. investments 4155.88 309.90 0.20 - -
9. turnover 4796.31 2607.90 4255.59 1148.79 361.12

10. Profit/(Loss) before taxation (306.02) 419.23 (2054.53) (47.81) 16.63
11. Provision for taxation/Deferred 

tax 
(166.30) 105.36 (68.37) 2.37 83.25

12. Profit/(Loss) after taxation (139.72) 313.87 (2016.06) (50.18) (66.62)
13 proposed Dividend nil nil nil nil nil
14. %of shareholding 57.00 99.84 60.56 0.00 100.00

note:
1. Inditrade Scalerator limited (Formerly known as Inditrade Commodities trading limited) is a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Inditrade Business Consultants limited.

Inditrade Community Foundation is a Section 8 Company incorporated by Inditrade Capital Limited along with its subsidiaries to primarily undertake CSR activities of the 
Group.  the accounts of Inditrade Community Foundation are not consolidated with that of the Holding Company.

1. names of subsidiaries which are yet to commence operations : nIl
2. names of subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year : nIl

part “B”: associates and Joint ventures
Statement pursuant to Section 129 (3) of the Companies act, 2013 related to associate Companies and Joint ventures

Sr. no name of the associate Companies inditrade rural marketing limited 1 inditrade insurance Broking private limited 2

1. reporting period for the associate concerned 31st march, 2023 31st march, 2023
2. date of acquisition 29th February, 1996 22nd February, 2000
3. reporting currency Indian rupees Indian rupees
4. Share Capital 2,040.00 650.00
5. Reserves &Surplus (1,094.42) (348.28)
6. total assets 7,059.84 394.39
7. total liabilities 6,114.26 92.67
8. Investments - -
9. turnover 5,393.40 410.64

10. Profit/(Loss) before taxation (149.63) 31.40
11. provision for taxation/ deferred tax 3.69 6.05
12. Profit/(Loss) after taxation (153.32) 25.35
13. proposed dividend nil nil
14. %of shareholding 48.42 3 25.00

Note:
1. With effect from 15th december, 2021, Inditrade rural marketing limited is an associate Company for Inditrade Capital limited.
2. With effect from 3rd november, 2021, Inditrade Insurance Broking private limited is an associate Company for Inditrade Capital limited.
3. 47.33% of shares are held through the subsidiary- Inditrade Business Consultants Limited.

1. names of associates or Joint Ventures which are yet to commence operations : nIl
2. names of associates or Joint Ventures which have been liquidated or sold during the year : nIl

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

 Sudip Bandyopadhyay Jhuma Guha
Place: Mumbai Director Director
Date: 25th May, 2023 DIN: 00007382 DIN: 00007454
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annEXurE - ii
a. Disclosure of remuneration as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies act, 2013 read with rule 5(1) of the Companies (appointment 

and remuneration of managerial personnel) rules, 2014.

(i) the ratio of the remuneration of each director to the median 
remuneration of the employees of the Company for the 
financial year:

Mr. Sivanandhan Dhanushkodi (DIN: 03607203), Mr. Radhakrishna Nair (DIN: 7225354) 
and Mr. Sudhangshu Shekhar Biswal (DIN: 7580667) Non-Executive Independent 
directors has received a commission of rs. 2,00,000/- each, along with the sitting fees 
during the financial year 2022-2023. None of the other Non-Executive Independent 
Directors of the Company received any remuneration from the Company in the financial 
year apart from sitting fees. Ratio is: 1:5.43

(ii) the percentage increase in remuneration of each director, 
Chief Financial Officer, Chief Executive Officer, Company 
Secretary or Manager, if any, in the financial year:

Ms. Maya Menon (CS & Manager): 10.62%
mr. naveen Kumar Jain (CFO till 3rd November 2022): nIl
directors not applicable**

**Mr. Sivanandhan Dhanushkodi (DIN: 03607203), Mr. Radhakrishna Nair (DIN: 
7225354) and Mr. Sudhangshu Shekhar Biswal (DIN: 7580667) Non-Executive 
Independent directors has received a commission of rs. 2,00,000/- each, along with 
the sitting fees during the financial year 2022-2023. They were not in receipt of any 
remuneration in the Financial Year apart from sitting fees. None of the other Non 
executive Independent directors of the Company has received any remuneration from 
the Company in the financial year apart from sitting fees received for attending Board 
/ Committee meetings. Hence percentage cannot be calculated.

(iii) the percentage increase in the median remuneration of 
employees in the financial year:

10.62%

(iv) the number of permanent employees on the rolls of the 
Company (as on 31st March, 2023):

2

(v) average percentile increase already made in the salaries of 
employees other than the managerial personnel in the last 
financial year and its comparison with the percentile increase 
in the managerial remuneration and justification thereof and 
point out if there are any exceptional circumstances for 
increase in the managerial remuneration:

nIl

(vi) affirmation that the remuneration paid is as per the 
remuneration policy of the company:

remuneration paid is as per the remuneration policy of the Company. 

B. Disclosure of remuneration as required under Section 197(12) of the Companies act, 2013 read with rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies 
(appointment and remuneration of managerial personnel) rules, 2014 

The details of Top Ten Employees of the Company if employed throughout the financial year or a part of the financial year, drawing remuneration 
exceeding the limits as laid down under Section 197 (12) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies (Appointment 
and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 during the Financial Year 2022-2023: NIL 

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 Jhuma Guha  Sudip Bandyopadhyay 
Date: 25th may, 2023 Director Director
Place: Mumbai DIN: 00007454 DIN: 00007382
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FOrm nO. aOC-2 annEXurE-iii
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the Company with related parties referred to in sub-section (1) of 
section 188 of the Companies act, 2013 including certain arms length transactions under third proviso thereto:

1. Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis : nil

(a) name(s) of the related party and nature of relationship

not applicable

(b) nature of contracts/ arrangements/ transactions
(c) duration of the contracts / arrangements/transactions
(d) Salient terms of the contracts or arrangements or transactions including the value, if any
(e) Justification for entering into such contracts or arrangements or transactions
(f) date(s) of approval by the Board
(g) amount paid as advances, if any
(h) Date on which the special resolution was passed in general meeting as required under first proviso to section 188

2. Details of material contracts or arrangements or transactions at arm’s length basis:
The transactions entered into by the Company during the year with related parties on an arm’s length basis were not material in nature. The 
details of other related party transactions are disclosed in notes forming part of the Financial Statements. the members are requested to 
kindly refer the same.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

 Sudip Bandyopadhyay Jhuma Guha
Place: Mumbai Director Director
Date: 25th May, 2023 DIN: 00007382 DIN: 00007454
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Form no. mr-3

SECrEtarial auDit rEpOrt
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31St marCH, 2023

[Pursuant to Section 204 (1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies  
(appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

to
the members
inditrade Capital limited
Second Floor, m e S Building, Kaloor, 
Kochi, Ernakulam, Kerala – 682017.

We, SVJS & Associates, Company Secretaries, have conducted the 
Secretarial audit of the compliance of the applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by inditrade Capital 
limited [Cin: l67120kl1994plC008265] (hereinafter called the 
“Company”). Secretarial audit was conducted in a manner that provided 
us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of the books, papers, minute books, forms 
and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and 
also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and 
authorized representatives during the conduct of Secretarial audit, the 
explanations and clarifications given to us and the representations made 
by the management, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company 
has, during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st 
march, 2023 (audit period) complied with the statutory provisions listed 
hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board processes and 
compliance mechanism in place to the extent, in the manner and subject 
to the reporting made hereinafter:

We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the Company for the financial year 
ended on 31st March, 2023 according to the provisions of:

(i) the Companies act, 2013 (the act) and the rules made thereunder;

(ii) the Securities Contracts (regulation) act, 1956 (SCra) and the 
rules made thereunder;

(iii) the depositories act, 1996 and the regulations and Bye-laws framed 
thereunder; 

(iv) the Foreign exchange management act, 1999 and the rules 
and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign direct 
Investment, Overseas direct Investment and external Commercial 
Borrowings;

(v) the following regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’): 

(a) the Securities and exchange Board of India (Substantial 
acquisition of Shares and takeovers) regulations, 2011;

(b) the Securities and exchange Board of India (prohibition of 
Insider trading) regulations, 2015;

(c) the Securities and exchange Board of India (depositories and 
Participants) Regulations, 2018;

(d) the Securities and exchange Board of India (Share Based 
Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021;

(e) the Securities and exchange Board of India (listing Obligations 
and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015;

We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the 
following: 

(i) Secretarial Standards relating to meetings of the Board of directors 
(SS-1) and General meetings (SS-2) issued by the Institute of 
Company Secretaries of India;

(ii) the listing agreement entered into by the Company with BSe 
limited;

during the period under review, the Company has complied with the 
provisions of the act, rules, regulations, Guidelines, Standards, etc. 
mentioned above, subject to the following observations:

a) There was a delay of one day in submitting to the stock exchange, the 
disclosure of related party transactions for the half year ended 31st March 
2022, as per Regulation 23 (9) of The Securities and Exchange Board 
of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015. The Management represented that the delay of one day was 
inadvertent and was owing to the format changes and confusion in date 
of uploading.

we further report that:

the Board of directors of the Company is duly constituted. all the 
directors of the Company are non-executive directors.

there were no changes in the composition of the Board of directors 
during the period under review. 

adequate notices were given to all directors to schedule the Board 
meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven 
days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further 
information and clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting 
and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

all decisions of the Board were unanimous and the same was captured 
and recorded as part of the minutes.

we further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the 
Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to 
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations 
and guidelines.
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we further report that during the audit period there were no instances of:

(i) public/right/ preferential issue of shares / debentures/sweat 
equity, etc., except the board resolution passed on 03/11/2022 
for considering the proposal for issue equity shares to the existing 
shareholders on rights basis. As confirmed by the Company, the 
Board of directors has not proceeded with the proposal till date.

(ii) redemption / buy-back of securities;

(iii) Major decisions taken by the members in pursuance to Section 180 
of the Companies act, 2013;

(iv) merger / amalgamation / reconstruction, etc.;

(v) Foreign technical Collaborations.
this report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed 
as ‘annexure a’ and forms an integral part of this report.

For SvJS & associates
Company Secretaries

Jayan k.
partner

CP. No.: 7363, FCS: 8154
Place: Kochi Peer Review Certificate No.: 648/2019
Date: 25th may, 2023 UDIN: F008154E000372485

annEXurE a
to
the members
inditrade Capital limited
Second Floor, m e S Building, Kaloor, 
Kochi, Ernakulam, Kerala – 682017.

Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter. 

1. maintenance of the secretarial records is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility as the Secretarial auditors 
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, based on our audit. 

2. during the audit, we have followed the practices and process as were appropriate, to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of 
the contents of the secretarial records. We believe that the process and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our report. 

3. The correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the Company have not been verified. 

4. Wherever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of 
events, etc. 

5. the compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of management. 
Our examination was limited to the verification of the procedures and compliances on test basis. 

6. While forming an opinion on compliance and issuing the Secretarial audit report, we have also taken into consideration the compliance related 
actions taken by the Company after 31st march, 2023 but before issue of the report.

7. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to future viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with which the 
management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For SvJS & associates
Company Secretaries

Jayan k.
partner

CP. No.: 7363, FCS: 8154
Place: Kochi Peer Review Certificate No.: 648/2019
Date: 25th may, 2023 UDIN: F008154E000372485
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Form no. mr-3

SECrEtarial auDit rEpOrt
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31StmarCH, 2023

[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies  
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

to, 
the members, 
Inditrade Microfinance Limited
Regd. Off.: Unit No. T1-B, 5th Floor, C-Wing, 
phoenix House,Senapati Bapat marg, lower parel,
Mumbai - 400013.

dear Sir/madam,

I have conducted the Secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable 
statutory provisions and the adherence to good corporate practices by 
Inditrade Microfinance Limited, CIN: U67190MH2016PLC306585 (“the 
Company”). Secretarial audit was conducted in a manner that provided 
me a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing my opinion thereon. 

Based on my verification of the Company’s books, papers, minute books, 
forms and returns filed and other records maintained by the Company 
and also the information provided by the Company, its officers, agents 
and authorized representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, 
I hereby report that in my opinion, the Company has, during the audit 
period covering the financial year ended on 31st march, 2023 complied 
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company 
has proper Boardprocesses and compliance mechanism in place to the 
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

I have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns 
filed and other records maintained by the Company for the financial year 
ended on 31st  March, 2023, according to the provisions of:

i. the Companies act, 2013 (the act) and the rules made there under;

ii. The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the 
rules made there under; 

iii. the depositories act, 1996 and the regulations and Bye-laws framed 
there under; 

iv. Foreign exchange management act, 1999 and the rules and 
regulations made there under to the extent of Foreign direct 
Investment, Overseas direct Investment and external Commercial 
Borrowings- (not applicable to the Company during the audit period);

v. the following regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):

a) the Securities and exchange Board of India (Substantial 
acquisition of Shares and takeovers) regulations, 2011;(not 
applicable to the Company during the audit period); 

b) the Securities and exchange Board of India (prohibition of 
Insider trading) regulations, 1992 and Securities and exchange 
Board of India (prohibition of Insider trading) regulations, 2015; 
(applicable to the Company during the audit period as it is a Debt 
Listed Company); 

c) the Securities and exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital 
and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2009 and Securities 
and exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (not applicable to the Company 
during the audit period); 

d) the Securities and exchange Board of India (Share Based 
Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014(not applicable to the 
Company during the audit period);

e) the Securities and exchange Board of India (Issue and listing of 
Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008and Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (Issue and listing of non Convertible Securities) 
regulations, 2021 (applicable to the Company during the audit 
period as it is a Debt Listed Company); 

f) the Securities and exchange Board of India (registrars to an 
Issue and Share transfer agents) regulations, 1993 regarding 
the Companies act and dealing with client; (not applicable to 
the Company during the audit period); 

g) the Securities and exchange Board of India (delisting of equity 
Shares) regulations, 2009- (not applicable to the Company during 
the audit period); and 

h) the Securities and exchange Board of India (Buyback of 
Securities) Regulations, 1998- (not applicable to the Company 
during the audit period).

i) Securities and exchange Board of India (listing Obligations and 
disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015-(applicable to the 
Company during the audit period as it is a Debt Listed Company).

vi. Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934

i further report that, having regard to the compliance system 
prevailing in the Company and on examination of the relevant 
documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, 
the Company has substantially complied with the following laws 
applicable specifically to the Company:

• Reserve Bank of India (RBI) Directions, Guidelines and Circulars 
applicable tononSystemically Important non-deposit accepting 
nBFCs.

I have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of 
the following:

i. Secretarial Standards issued by the Institute of Company 
Secretaries of India with respect to Board meetings and General 
meetings. 

ii. the listing agreement entered into by the Company with BSe 
limited for listing its debt Securities;

during the period under review, the Company has complied 
with the provisions of the act, rules, regulations, Guidelines, 
Standards, etc. mentioned above.
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i further report that: 

1. the Board of directors of the Company is duly constituted with 
proper balance of executive director, non-executive directors and 
Independent directors. 

2. the changes in the composition of the Board of directors that took 
place during the period under review were carried out in compliance 
with the provisions of the act. 

3. adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board 
meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at 
least seven days in advance and at a shorter notice in presence of 
Independent director; and a system exists for seeking and obtaining 
further information and clarifications on the agenda items before 
the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.

4. During the year under review, all the decisions at the meetings of the 
Board and Committees thereof, were carried out unanimously as the 
Minutes of these Meetings did not reveal any dissenting member’s 
view.

5. during the year under review the Company has passed special 
resolution in pursuance of the above referred laws, rules, regulations 
and guidelines. 

I further report that there are adequate systems and processes in 
the Company, commensurate with the size and operations of the 
Company, to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, 
rules, regulations and guidelines.

I further report that thefollowing specific event has a major bearing 
on the Company’s affairs in pursuance of the above referred laws, 
rules, regulations, guidelines, standards, etc., has taken place during 
the year under review:

1. listing of non-Convertible debenturesissued on a private placement 
basis;

2. Reclassification of the Authorised Share Capital and Consequent 
alteration of the memorandum of association of the Company;

3. Conversion of 80,58,000 14% Cumulative Compulsorily Convertible 
preference Shares (CCpS)into equity Shares;

4. Creation and Satisfactionof Charge; and

5. approval of the Scheme of amalgamation of Janakalyan Financial 
Services Private Limited with Inditrade Microfinance Limited.

 

kavita raju Joshi
practicing Company Secretary

Membership No: 9074
CP No: 8893

Place: Mumbai Peer Review Certificate No.: 2159/2022
Date: 15th May, 2023 UDIN: F009074E000310672

this report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed 
as “annexure a” and forms integral part of this report.

annEXurE a
to, 
the members
Inditrade Microfinance Limited
Regd. Off.: Unit No. T1-B, 5th Floor, C-Wing, 
phoenix House,Senapati Bapat marg, lower parel,
Mumbai - 400013.

dear Sir/madam,

My report of even date is to be read along with this letter:

1. maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. my responsibility is to express an 
opinion on these secretarial records based on my audit.

2. I have followed the audit practices and processes as were 
appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness 
of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done 
on test basis to ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial 
records. I believe that the processes and practices, I followed, 
provide a reasonable basis for my opinion.

3. I have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial 
records and Books of accounts of the Company.

4. Wherever required, I have obtained the Management Representation 
about the Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening 
of events, etc.

5. the Compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other 
applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility 
of management. My examination was limited to the verification of 
procedures on test basis.

6. the Secretarial audit report is neither an assurance as to the future 
viability of the Company nor of the efficacy or effectiveness with 
which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

kavita raju Joshi
practicing Company Secretary

Membership No: 9074
CP No: 8893 

Place: Mumbai Peer Review Certificate No.: 2159/2022
Date: 15th May, 2023 UDIN: F009074E000310672
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Form no. mr-3

SECrEtarial auDit rEpOrt
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st marCH, 2023

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies  
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]

to
the members
inditrade Fincorp limited
Second Floor, m e S Building, Kaloor,
Kochi, Ernakulam, Kerala -682017.

We, SEP & Associates, Company Secretaries, have conducted the 
Secretarial audit of the compliance of the applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by inditrade Fincorp 
limited [Cin: u65923kl2007plC021180] (hereinafter called “the 
Company”). Secretarial audit was conducted in a manner that provided 
us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory 
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.  

Based on our verification of books, papers, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the 
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of Secretarial audit, we hereby report 
that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering 
the financial year ended on 31st march, 2023(“audit period”) complied 
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company 
has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the 
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

We have conducted physical verification and examination of the books, 
papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
facilitated by the Company, for issuing the report for the financial year 
ended on 31st March, 2023 according to the provisions of:

(i) the Companies act, 2013 (the act) and the rules made thereunder; 

(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 (‘SCRA’) and the 
rules made thereunder;

(iii) the depositories act, 1996 and the regulations and Bye -laws framed 
thereunder;

(iv) the Foreign exchange management act, 1999 and the rules 
and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign direct 
Investment (FdI), Overseas direct Investment (OdI) and external 
Commercial Borrowings (eCB).

(v) the following regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):

(a) the Securities and exchange Board of India (Substantial acquisition 
of Shares and takeover) regulations, 2011;

(b) the Securities and exchange Board of India (prohibition of Insider 
trading) regulations, 2015 (not applicable to the Company during 
the audit period);

(c) the Securities and exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the 
Company during the audit period);

(d) the Securities and exchange Board of India (registrars to an 
Issue and Share transfer agents) regulations, 1993 regarding 
the Companies act and dealing with client (not applicable to the 
Company during the audit period); 

(e) the Securities and exchange Board of India (Share Based employee 
Benefits) Regulations, 2014(Not applicable to the Company during 
the audit period);

(f) the Securities and exchange Board of India (Share Based employee 
Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (Not applicable to the 
Company during the audit period);

(g) the Securities and exchange Board of India (Issue and listing of 
Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not applicable to the Company 
during the audit period);

(h) the Securities and exchange Board of India (Issue and listing of 
non-Convertible Securities) regulations, 2021(not applicable to the 
Company during the audit period);

(i) the Securities and exchange Board of India (delisting of equity 
Shares) regulations, 2009 (not applicable to the Company during 
the audit period);

(j) the Securities and exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) 
Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the Company during the Audit 
period); and

(k) the Securities and exchange Board of India (listing Obligations and 
disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015.

the above-mentioned regulations are applicable to the Company 
to the extent of being a subsidiary of Inditrade Capital limited, a 
listed Company.

We have also examined the compliance with the applicable clauses 
of the following:

(i)  Secretarial Standard relating to meetings of the Board of 
directors (SS-1) and General meetings (SS-2) issued by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

(ii) tripartite agreement between the Company, Share transfer 
agent and depositories.

during the period under review the Company has complied with 
the provisions of the acts, rules, regulations, Guidelines, etc., 
mentioned above, to the extent applicable.

We further report that, having regard to the compliance system 
prevailing in the Company and on examination of the relevant 
documents and records in pursuance thereof, on test-check basis, 
the Company has complied with the Chapter III B of the reserve Bank 
of India Act, 1934 and Non-Banking Financial Company Directions 
issued by the Reserve Bank of India, applicable specifically to the 
Company.
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to
the members
inditrade Fincorp limited
Second Floor, m e S Building, Kaloor,
Kochi, Ernakulam, Kerala - 682017.

Our Secretarial audit report of even date is to be read along with this 
letter. 

1. maintenance of the secretarial records is the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. Our responsibility as the Secretarial 
auditor is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, based 
on our audit. 

2. during the audit, we have followed the practices and processes 
as were appropriate, to obtain reasonable assurance about the 
correctness of the contents of the secretarial records. We believe 
that the process and practices we followed provide a reasonable 
basis for our report. 

3. The correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books 
of Accounts of the Company have not been verified. 

4. We have obtained the Management representation about the 
Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, 
etc., wherever required.

5. the compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable 
laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of the 
management. Our examination was limited to the verification of 
the procedures and compliances on test basis. 

6. While forming an opinion on compliance and issuing the Secretarial 
audit report, we have also taken into consideration the compliance 
related actions taken by the Company after 31st march, 2023 but 
before the issue of this report.

For SEp & associates
Company Secretaries

(The Peer Review Certificate no. 2763/2022)

CS E p madhusudhanan
partner

M. No.: F10085
Place: Kochi COP No.: 21874
Date: 12th May 2023 UDIN: F010085E000297561

we further report that:

the Board of directors of the Company is duly constituted. the changes 
in the composition of the Board of directors that took place during the 
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions 
of the act.

adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board meetings. 
agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days and 
where the same were given at Shorter Notice, less than 7 (seven) days, 
proper consent thereof were obtained in advance and a system exists 
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the 
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at 
the meeting. 

all decisions at the Board meetings and Committee meetings were 
unanimous and the same was captured and recorded as part of the 
minutes.

we further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the 
Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company 
to monitor and ensure compliance with the applicable laws, rules, 
regulations and guidelines.

we further report that during the audit period there were no public/right/
preferential issue of shares/debentures/sweat equity, redemption/buy 
back of securities,major decisions taken by the members in pursuance 
to section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013  merger/ amalgamation / 
reconstruction, etc., or foreign technical collaborations.

this report is to be read with annexure a of even date and the same 
forms an integral part of this report.

For SEp & associates
Company Secretaries

(The Peer Review Certificate no. 2763/2022)

CS E p madhusudhanan
partner

M. No.: F10085
Place: Kochi COP No.: 21874
Date: 12th May 2023 UDIN: F010085E000297561

annEXurE tO tHE SECrEtarial auDit rEpOrt OF EvEn DatE
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to
the members
inditrade Business Consultants limited
Second Floor, m e S Building, Kaloor,
Kochi, Ernakulam,Kerala– 682017.

We, SEP & Associates, Company Secretaries, have conducted the 
Secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions 
and the adherence to good corporate practices by inditrade Business 
Consultants limited [Cin: u74140kl2008plC023055] (hereinafter 
called “the Company”). Secretarial audit was conducted in a manner that 
provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/
statutory compliances and expressing our opinion thereon. 

Based on our verification of books, papers, minute books, forms and 
returns filed and other records maintained by the Company and also the 
information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized 
representatives during the conduct of Secretarial audit, we hereby report 
that in our opinion, the Company has, during the audit period covering 
the financial year ended on 31st march, 2023(“audit period”) complied 
with the statutory provisions listed hereunder and also that the Company 
has proper Board processes and compliance mechanism in place to the 
extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter: 

We have conducted physical verification and examination of the books, 
papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records 
facilitated by the Companyfor issuing the report for the financial year 
ended on 31st March, 2023, according to the provisions of:

i) the Companies act, 2013(the act) and the rules made thereunder; 

ii) the depositories act, 1996 and the regulations and Bye -laws framed 
thereunder;

iii) Securities Contract regulation act, 1956, (SCra) and the rules made 
thereunder;

iv) the Foreign exchange management act, 1999 and the rules 
and regulations made thereunder to the extent of Foreign direct 
Investment (FdI), Overseas direct Investment (OdI) and external 
Commercial Borrowings (eCB).

v) the following regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992 (‘SEBI Act’):

(a) the Securities and exchange Board of India (Substantial 
acquisition of Shares and takeover) regulations, 2011;

(b) the Securities and exchange Board of India (prohibition of 
Insider trading) regulations, 2015 (not applicable to the 
Company during the audit period);

(c) the Securities and exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to 
the Company during the audit period);

(d) the Securities and exchange Board of India (registrars to an 
Issue and Share transfer agents) regulations, 1993 regarding 
the Companies act and dealing with client (not applicable to 
the Company during the audit period); 

(e) the Securities and exchange Board of India (Share Based 
Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014 (Not applicable to the 
Company during the audit period);

(f) the Securities and exchange Board of India (Share Based 
Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (Not 
applicable to the Company during the audit period);

(g) the Securities and exchange Board of India (Issue and listing 
of Debt Securities) Regulations, 2008 (Not applicable to the 
Company during the audit period);

(h) the Securities and exchange Board of India (Issue and listing 
of non-Convertible Securities) regulations, 2021 (not applicable 
to the Company during the audit period);

(i) the Securities and exchange Board of India (delisting of equity 
Shares) regulations, 2009 (not applicable to the Company 
during the audit period);

(j) the Securities and exchange Board of India (Buyback of 
Securities) Regulations, 2018 (Not applicable to the Company 
during the audit period); and

(k) the Securities and exchange Board of India (listing Obligations 
and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015.

the above-mentioned regulations are applicable to the Company 
to the extent of being subsidiary of Inditrade Capital limited, a 
listed Company.

As informed to us, the following other laws are specifically applicable 
to the Company:

(i) legal metrology act, 2009;

(ii) laws relating to issuance of mandi license under various local 
authorities and for license under Food Safety and Standards 
act, 2006, the Warehousing (development and regulation) act, 
2007.

We have also examined the compliance with the applicable clauses 
of the following:

(i) Secretarial Standard relating to meetings of the Board of 
directors (SS-1) and General meetings (SS-2) issued by the 
Institute of Company Secretaries of India.

during the period under review, the Company has complied 
with the provisions of the acts, rules, regulations, Guidelines, 
etc.,mentioned above, to the extent applicable.

Form no. mr-3

SECrEtarial auDit rEpOrt
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 31st marCH, 2023

[Pursuant to Section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No.9 of the Companies  
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
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to
the members
inditrade Business Consultants limited
Second Floor, m e S Building, Kaloor,
Kochi, Ernakulam, Kerala– 682017.

Our Secretarial audit report of even date is to be read along with this 
letter. 

1. maintenance of the secretarial records is the responsibility of the 
management of the Company. Our responsibility as the Secretarial 
auditor is to express an opinion on these secretarial records, based 
on our audit. 

2. during the audit, we have followed the practices and process as were 
appropriate, to obtain reasonable assurance about the correctness of 
the contents of the secretarial records. We believe that the process 
and practices we followed provide a reasonable basis for our report. 

3. The correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books 
of Accounts of the Company have not been verified by us. 

4. We have obtained the Management representation about the 
Compliance of laws, rules and regulations and happening of events, 
etc., wherever required.

5. the compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable 
laws, rules, regulations, standards is the responsibility of the 
management. Our examination was limited to the verification of 
the procedures and compliances on test basis. 

6. While forming an opinion on compliance and issuing the Secretarial 
audit report, we have also taken into consideration the compliance 
related actions taken by the Company after 31st march, 2023 but 
before issue of this report.

For SEp & associates 
Company Secretaries

(The Peer Review Certificate no. 2763/2022)

CS E p madhusudhanan
partner

M. No.: F10085
Place: Kochi COP No.: 21874
Date: 12th May, 2023 UDIN: F010085E000297515

In respect of other laws specifically applicable to the Company 
we have relied on information/records produced by the Company 
during the course of our audit and the reporting is limited to 
that extent.

we further report that:

the Board of directors of the Company is duly constituted. the changes 
in the composition of the Board of directors that took place during the 
period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions 
of the act.

adequate notice is given to all directors to schedule the Board meetings.
agenda and detailed notes on agenda were sent at least seven days in 
advance and where the same were given at Shorter Notice, less than 7 
(seven) days, proper consent thereof were obtained and a system exists 
for seeking and obtaining further information and clarifications on the 
agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at 
the meeting. 

all decisions at the Board meetings and Committee meetings were 
unanimous and the same was captured and recorded as part of the 
minutes.

we further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the 
Company commensurate with the size and operations of the Company to 
monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations 
and guidelines.

we further report that during the audit period there were no public/ right/ 
preferential issue of shares/ debentures/ sweat equity, redemption/buy 
back of securities, major decisions taken by the members in pursuance 
to section 180 of the Companies Act, 2013 merger/ amalgamation / 
reconstruction, etc., or foreign technical collaborations.

this report is to be read with annexure a of even date and the same 
forms an integral part of this report.

For SEp & associates
Company Secretaries

(The Peer Review Certificate no. 2763/2022)

CS E p madhusudhanan
partner

M. No.: F10085
Place: Kochi COP No.: 21874
Date: 12th May, 2023 UDIN: F010085E000297515

annEXurE tO tHE SECrEtarial auDit rEpOrt OF EvEn DatE
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rEpOrt On COrpOratE GOvErnanCE
1. Company’s philosophy on Code of Corporate Governance:

Your Company is committed to follow the best Corporate Governance practices not only to ensure success in business, but also for maximizing 
value for all the stakeholders, be it members, investors, clients or employees. the trust of the stakeholders is built by maintaining the highest 
ethical standards, transparency and accountability. 

At ‘Inditrade’, emphasis is given to four key building blocks – Trust, Transparency, Technology and Talent. The Directors and Management of 
your Company continue to be committed to adhering to the best governance standards and to comply with the regulatory requirements in the 
true spirit and beyond the letter of law. 

2. Board of Directors:

The Board of Directors of the Company meets regularly to discuss the operational and financial performance of the Company and that of its 
subsidiaries. the Board periodically reviews the compliance reports pertaining to all laws and regulations applicable to the Company as well 
as takes steps to get instances of non-compliances, if any rectified.

i. Composition and Category of Directors:

as on 31st March, 2023, the Company’s Board comprised of 8 (Eight) Directors, out of which 5 (Five) are Independent Non-Executive Directors. 
The Company has complied with the requirement of Woman Director pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 
read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 and Regulation 17 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. All the Directors possess expertise in the financial services sector. The composition of the 
Board and category of directors as on 31st March, 2023 was as follows: 

name of the Directors Din Category
mr. Sudip Bandyopadhyay 00007382 non- executive director/promoter
mr. Brij Gopal daga 00004858 Independent non- executive director
mr. radhakrishna nair 07225354 Independent non- executive director
mr. Kerachan ayyappan Somasekharan 01573721 Independent non- executive director
mr. Sivanandhan dhanushkodi 03607203 Independent non- executive director
mr. Sudhangshu Shekhar Biswal 07580667 Independent non- executive director
mrs. Jhuma Guha 00007454 non- executive director
mr. anand Kamalkishore maliwal 07474039 non- executive director 

ii. List of core skills/expertise/competencies identified by the Board of Directors as required in the context of its business(es) and sector(s) 
for it to function effectively and those actually available with the Board and the names of directors who have such skills / expertise / 
competence:

Core skills / 
expertise / 
competencies

mr. Sudip 
Bandyopadhyay

mr. Brij Gopal 
Daga

mr. 
radhakrishna 
nair

mr. kerachan 
ayyappan 
Somasekharan

mr. 
Sivanandhan 
Dhanushkodi

 mr. 
Sudhangshu 
Shekhar Biswal 

mrs. 
Jhuma 
Guha

mr. anand 
kamalkishore 
maliwal

Leadership/
Operational 
Experience

       

Strategic planning        
Sector / Industry 
knowledge & 
Experience , 
Development and 
innovation

       

technology        
Financial, regulatory 
/ Legal Risk 
management & 
Compliance

       

Corporate 
Governance

       

Culture Building / 
people management

       
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iii. attendance of each Directors at the Board meetings and last annual General meeting (aGm) and number of other Directorships and 
Committees in which a Director is a member or Chairperson as on 31st march, 2023:

name of the 
Director

no of Board 
meetings 
which Director 
was entitled 
to attend

attendance at meetings 
held during 2022-2023

no. of other 
Directorships

Committees in which a 
Director is a member or 
Chairperson

Other listed Entities where the person 
is a Director and the category of 
directorshipBoard 

meetings
last aGm 
held on 2nd 
august, 2022

mr. Sudip 
Bandyopadhyay

4 4 Yes 8 as member-3 
as Chairman-1

i) VSt Industries limited- 
Independent non-executive director

ii) aGS transact technologies limited 
– Non Independent Non- Executive 
director

mr. Brij Gopal 
daga

4 4 Yes 6 as member-5
as Chairman-3

i) WSFX Global pay limited (Formerly 
known as Wall Street Finance 
limited) - Independent non-
executive director

mr. 
radhakrishna 
nair

4 4 Yes 5 as member- 6
as Chairman-2

i) ICICI Bank limited- Independent 
non-executive director

ii) ICICI prudential life Insurance 
Company limited- Independent 
non-executive director

iii) Geojit Financial Services limited- 
Independent non-executive director

mr. Kerachan 
ayyappan 
Somasekharan

4 4 Yes 4 as member-3
as Chairman-2

nil

mr. 
Sivanandhan 
dhanushkodi

4 4 Yes 8 As Member- 8
as Chairman-2

i) Kirloskar Industries limited- 
Independent non-executive director

ii) Forbes & Company Limited- 
Independent non-executive director

iii) United Spirits limited- Independent 
non- executive director

iv) aGS transact technologies limited - 
Independent non-executive director

mr. Sudhangshu 
Shekhar Biswal

4 4 Yes nil as member-nil
as Chairman-nil

nil

mrs. Jhuma 
Guha

4 4 Yes 8 as member - 5
as Chairperson - 2

i) AGS Transact Technologies Limited – 
Independent non- executive director

mr. anand 
Kamalkishore 
maliwal

4 4 Yes 4 as member - 2
as Chairman - nil

nil

notes:

• Number of Board Meetings held during the Financial Year 2022-2023: 4 (Four)

• The Directorships, held by Directors as mentioned above, do not include Alternate Directorships, and Directorships in Private Limited Companies, 
Foreign Companies and Companies registered under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013.

• There is no relationship between the Directors inter se.

• In accordance with Regulation 26 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, Memberships/Chairmanships 
of only Audit Committees and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee in public limited companies (excluding Inditrade Capital Limited) have been 
considered.

• The meetings of the Board of Directors and the above committees have been conducted in the manner as specified in the SEBI (Listing Obligations 
and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015 and Companies act, 2013.

• None of the Directors of your Company is a member of more than 10 Committees or is the Chairman of more than 5 Committees in all the public 
listed companies in which they are directors.
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iv. number of Board meetings held with dates:

During the Financial Year 2022-2023, 4 (four) Board Meetings were held and the details of Board Meetings held are given below: 

Date of Board meeting Board Strength number of Directors present % of attendance
24th may, 2022 8 8 100.00
2nd august, 2022 8 8 100.00
03rd november, 2022 8 8 100.00
31st January, 2023 8 8 100.00

v. Details of Shares/Convertible Instruments held by the Directors

name of Director Category No of Shares/Convertible instruments held
mr. Sudip Bandyopadhyay non-executive director 50,000 equity Shares
mr. Brij Gopal daga Independent non-executive director nil
mr. radhakrishna nair Independent non-executive director nil
mr. Kerachan ayyappan Somasekharan Independent non-executive director nil
mr.Sivanandhan dhanushkodi Independent non-executive director nil
mr. Sudhangshu Shekhar Biswal Independent non executive director nil
mrs. Jhuma Guha non-executive director *5,00,000 Options
mr. anand Kamalkishore maliwal non-executive director *2,90,000 Options 500 equity Shares 

*Note: Employee Stock Options issued to Non-Executive Non-Independent Directors under the Inditrade Employees Stock Option Plan 2016.

vi. Code of Conduct of the Board

the Board of directors has laid down a code of conduct for all the members of the Board and senior management. the Independent directors 
are made aware of their duties and responsibilities and their performance is evaluated by the entire Board apart from the director, who is 
subject to evaluation. 

vii. independent Directors

As on the financial year ended 31st March, 2023, the Company had 5 (five) Independent Directors, viz., Mr. Brij Gopal Daga, Mr. Radhakrishna 
nair, mr. Kerachan ayyappan Somasekharan, mr. Sivanandhan dhanushkodi and mr. Sudhangshu Shekhar Biswal. the Company has received 
declarations from the Independent Directors of the Company confirming that they meet with the criteria of independence as prescribed 
both under sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 16 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
requirements) regulations, 2015. 

the Company has conducted familiarisation programs for its Independent directors to make them aware of the nature of the industry and 
their roles, rights, responsibilities. the details of the familiarization programme and the terms of appointment of the Independent directors 
are available on the Company website - www.inditrade.com. 

It is hereby confirmed that in the opinion of the Board of Directors, the Independent Directors fulfill the conditions specified in the Securities 
and exchange Board of India (listing Obligations and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015 and the Companies act, 2013 and are 
independent of the management.

viii. Details of utilization of funds raised through preferential allotment or qualified institutions placement as specified under Regulation 32 
(7a) of the SEBi (listing Obligations and Disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015. not applicable

ix. A certificate from a Company Secretary in practice that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company have been debarred or 
disqualified from being appointed or currently continuing as Director by the Securities and Exchange Board of India/ Ministry of Corporate 
affairs or any such statutory authority.

The Certificate from a Company Secretary in Practice to this effect forms part of this Annual Report. 

Further, Compliance Certificate from the Practicing Company Secretary regarding Compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance 
forms part of the Boards report.

x. where the Board had not accepted any recommendation of any Committee of the Board which is mandatorily required, in the relevant 
Financial year: nIl. 
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xi. Commodity price risk and Commodity hedging activities. not applicable

Board Committees:

Composition of Committees of the Board:

1) audit Committee

•	mr. Brij Gopal daga  - Chairman (Independent non-executive director)

•	mr. radhakrishna nair - member (Independent non-executive director)

•	mr. Kerachan ayyappan Somasekharan - member (Independent non-executive director)

•	mrs. Jhuma Guha  - member (non-executive director)

2) nomination and remuneration Committee

•	mr. Kerachan ayyappan Somasekharan - Chairman (Independent non-executive director)

•	mr. Brij Gopal daga - member (Independent non-executive director)

•	mrs. Jhuma Guha  - member (non-executive director)

3) Stakeholders relationship Committee

•	mr. Kerachan ayyappan Somasekharan - Chairman (Independent non-executive director)

•	mr. Brij Gopal daga - member (Independent non-executive director)

•	mrs. Jhuma Guha  - member (non-executive director)

meetings of Board Committees held during the Financial year 2022-2023 and attendance:

Board Committees audit Committee Stakeholders relationship 
Committee

nomination and 
remuneration Committee

meetings held 4 1 4
number of meeting and Directors’ attendance
1. mr. Brij Gopal daga 4 1 4
2. mr. radhakrishna nair 4 not a member. not a member.
3. mr. Kerachan ayyappan Somasekharan 4 1 4
4. mrs. Jhuma Guha 4 1 4

a. audit Committee:

i. Brief Description of terms of reference

The Audit Committee of the Company analyses the financial position and results of the operations of the Company. It also 
reviews the significant Related Party Transactions, internal audit reports, internal audit plan and performance of the internal 
auditors and statutory auditors. The terms of reference of the Audit Committee, inter alia, includes the following: 

a) making recommendations for the appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of the auditors of the Company;

B) review and monitor the auditor’s independence and performance and effectiveness of the audit process;

C) examination of the Financial Statements (including of the subsidiaries) and the Limited Review Report/ Auditors’ Report 
thereon;

d) Ratification of modification(s), if any, of the related party transactions;

e) Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments;

f) Verifying that the systems for internal controls in relation to SeBI (prohibition of Insider trading) regulations, 2015 are 
adequate and are operating effectively;

G) Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary;

H) evaluation of internal financial controls, risk management systems and vigil mechanism;

I) monitoring the end use of funds raised through public offers and related matters.
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ii. Composition, name of members and Chairperson of the Committee:

the audit Committee comprises of mr. Brij Gopal daga as Chairman and mr. Kerachan ayyappan Somasekharan, mr. 
radhakrishna nair and mrs. Jhuma Guha as members. the details of the composition of the audit Committee have been 
provided earlier. Ms. Maya Menon, Company Secretary cum Compliance Officer and Manager of the Company acts as the 
Secretary to the audit Committee. 

iii. Meetings and Attendance during the financial year: 

During the financial year under review, 4 (four) meetings of the Audit Committee were held and the details of meetings and 
attendance are given below.

audit Committee
Sr. 
no.

Date of meeting total number of members as 
on the date of meeting

attendance
number of members attended % of total members

1. 24th may, 2022 4 4 100.00
2. 2nd august, 2022 4 4 100.00
3. 03rd november, 2022 4 4 100.00
4. 31st January, 2023 4 4 100.00

total no of meetings : 4 percentage of attendance – 100.00

B. nomination and remuneration Committee:

i. Brief Description of terms of reference

The terms of reference of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, inter alia, includes the following:

1) to review the overall compensation policy, service agreements and other employment conditions of the directors, Key 
managerial personnel (Kmp) and Senior management (one level below the Board); 

2) to help in determining the appropriate size, diversity and composition of the Board; 

3) to identify the persons who are qualified to become directors and who may be appointed in the senior management in 
accordance with the criteria laid down and to recommend to the Board appointments/reappointments and removal of 
directors/ Kmp; 

4) to frame a criterion for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of Directors; 

5) evaluate the balance of skills, knowledge and experience on the Board and prepare a description of the role and capabilities 
required for Independent director(s);

6) to recommend to the Board the remuneration payable to the senior management; 

7) to create an evaluation framework and carry out evaluation of each Director’s performance and performance of the Board 
as a whole; 

8) to provide necessary reports to the Chairman after the evaluation process is completed by the Directors; 

9) to assist in developing a succession plan for the Board; 

10) to assist the Board in fulfilling responsibilities entrusted from time-to-time; 

11) to administer the options under the employee Stock Option Scheme;

12) to delegate any of its powers to any Member of the Committee or the Compliance Officer.

ii. Composition, name of members and Chairperson of the Committee:

the nomination and remuneration Committee comprises of, mr. Kerachan ayyappan Somasekharan as Chairman and mr. 
Brij Gopal daga and mrs. Jhuma Guha as members. all the members in the nomination and remuneration Committee are 
non-executive directors. 
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iii. Meetings and Attendance during the financial year: 

During the financial year under review, 2 (Two) meetings of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee were held and the 
details of meetings and attendance have been provided below:

nomination and remuneration Committee
Sr. 
no. Date of meeting total number of members 

as on the date of meeting
attendance

number of members attended % of total members
1. 24th may, 2022 3 3 100.00
2. 03rd november, 2022 3 3 100.00

total no of meetings: 2 percentage of attendance: 100.00

iv. nomination and remuneration policy:

Your Company is having a well structured Nomination and Remuneration policy which is readily available on the website of the 
Company. You could refer the same by following the link: 

https://www.inditrade.com/policies.aspx

v. Criteria for the evaluation of the performance of the non-Executive Directors and independent Directors: 

The Company has framed a Nomination and Remuneration Policy in accordance with Section 178(3) of the Companies Act, 
2013 which provides for the evaluation of the performance of the directors. the evaluation of the performance of the directors 
is made by a rating method, the criteria of which includes, inter alia, the following:

1. possession of the requisite expertise, experience, industry knowledge, etc.

2. time spent on discussions on strategic and general issues.

3. Monitoring the Company’s internal controls.

4. Independence in true letter and spirit, in the case of Independent Directors.

5. demonstration of the highest levels of integrity.

vi. Details of Directors’ remuneration including sitting fees:

the Independent directors are paid sitting fees for attending the Board and audit Committee meetings of the Company. 

the non-executive directors including the Independent directors do not have any material pecuniary relationship or transactions 
with the Company, other than the remuneration payable as a director of the Company in accordance with the nomination and 
remuneration policy of the Company.

payments, if any, to the non-executive directors will be made in compliance with the provisions of the Companies act, 2013 
and the SeBI (listing Obligations and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015. 

Details of remuneration including sitting fees paid to Directors during the financial year 2022-2023: 

name of the Director Basic pay perquisites Sitting Fees Stock Options granted* Commission**
mr. Sudip Bandyopadhyay nil nil nil nIl nil
mr. Brij Gopal daga nil nil Rs. 2,40,000 nil nil
mr. radhakrishna nair nil nil Rs.2,40,000 nil rs. 2,00,000/-
mr. Kerachan ayyappan 
Somasekharan

nil nil Rs. 2,40,000 nil nil

mr. Sivanandhan dhanushkodi nil nil rs.1,60,000 nil rs. 2,00,000/-
mr. Sudhangshu Shekhar Biswal nil nil rs. 1,60,000 nil rs. 2,00,000/-
mrs. Jhuma Guha nil nil nil 5,00,000 Options nil
mr. anand Kamalkishore maliwal nil nil nil 2,90,000 Options nil

* employee Stock Options issued to non-executive non-Independent directors during the year 2016, under the Inditrade 
employees Stock Option plan 2016.

** the commission paid to non-executive Independent directors is pursuant to the approval of members obtained in annual 
General meeting held on 30th July, 2021.

Note: Members approval is being sought in the ensuing 29th Annual General Meeting to pay an amount not exceeding Rs. 5(five) 
Lakhs as commission, each to the Independent Directors for the financial year 2023-2024.
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C. Stakeholders’ relationship Committee:

i. Composition of the Committee:

The Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee comprises of Mr. Kerachan Ayyappan Somasekharan as Chairman and Mr. Brij 
Gopal daga and mrs. Jhuma Guha as members. all the members of the Committee are non-executive directors. the Board 
has appointed Ms. Maya Menon, Company Secretary as the Compliance Officer of the Company, as required under the SEBI 
(lOdr) regulations, 2015. 

ii. meetings and attendance during the Financial year: 

During the Financial Year under review, one meeting of the Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee was held. The detail of the 
meeting and attendance is given below:

Stakeholders’ relationship Committee
Sr. 
no.

Date of meeting total number of members as on 
the date of meeting

attendance
number of members attended % of total members

1. 24th may, 2022 3 3 100.00
total no of meeting: 1 percentage of attendance – 100.00

iii. Details of queries and grievances received from the members and attended by the Company during the Financial year 2022-
2023 are given below:

pending as on 1st 
april, 2022

received during the year not solved to the satisfaction of 
the shareholders during the year 

pending as on 31st march, 2023

nil nil nil nil

3. General Body meetings:

i. Details of General meetings: 

Details of the last three Annual General Meetings are given below:

Details of last three annual General meetings (aGm)

meeting Financial year to 
which aGm relates Date & time venue no of Special resolution passed

28th 2021-2022 2nd august, 2022 at 10.30 a.m. Video Conferencing /  
Other audio Visual means 2

27th 2020-2021 30th July, 2021 at 10.30 a.m. Video Conferencing /  
Other audio Visual means 4

26th 2019-2020 6th august, 2020 at 10.30 a.m. Video Conferencing /  
Other audio Visual means 1

ii. Special resolutions passed in the last three aGms, with requisite majority:

Financial year to 
which aGm relates Date of aGm particulars

2021-2022 2nd august, 
2022

1. approval for appointment of ms. maya menon as manager of the Company.
2. Approval for the payment of Commission to the Independent Directors for the financial year 2022-2023.

2020-2021 30th July, 
2021

1. Re-appointment of Mr. Brij Gopal Daga (DIN: 00004858) as a Non-Executive Independent Director of the 
Company for a second term of five consecutive years.

2. Re-appointment of Mr. Kerachan Ayyappan Somasekharan (DIN: 01573721) as a Non-Executive 
Independent Director of the Company for a second term of five consecutive years.

3. Approval for the payment of Commission to the Independent Directors for the Financial Year 2020-2021.
4. Approval for the payment of Commission to the Independent Directors for the Financial Year 2021- 2022.

2019-2020 6th august, 
2020

1. Approval for payment of Commission to Mr. Sivanandhan Dhanushkodi – Non Executive Independent 
director of the Company
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iii. Special resolutions passed through postal ballot in the Financial year 2022-2023 with requisite majority:

The Company had not conducted any business through Postal Ballot during the Financial Year 2022-2023.

iv. Special resolutions proposed to be passed through postal ballot:

Currently, there is no proposal to pass any Special resolution through postal Ballot. Special resolutions by way of postal Ballot, if required 
to be passed in the future. the same will be decided at the relevant time.

4. means of Communication

The Quarterly and Half-yearly/ Annual financial results were forthwith communicated to BSE Limited, where the equity shares of the Company are 
listed, as soon as they were approved and taken on record by the Board of Directors. Public notices and financial results were published in leading 
newspapers such as Business Standard, Business Line, Mangalam and Deepika. The financial results, shareholding pattern of the Company and 
the information/disclosures pursuant to the Regulation 30 of the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015 are also put up on the Company’s website www.
inditrade.com. Official news releases, if any, and Investor/ Analysts presentations/ Transcripts are also uploaded on the Company’s website.

The Company’s website (www.inditrade.com) contains a separate dedicated section ‘Investor Relations’ where Members’ information is available. 

5. General Shareholders information:

i. Basic information:

incorporation Details the Company is registered in the State of Kerala, India. the Corporate Identity number (CIn) allotted to the 
Company by the ministry of Corporate affairs (mCa) is l67120kl1994plC008265.

29th aGm Date 11th august, 2023
time & venue for the 29th aGm 2.30 p.m. via Video Conferencing (VC)/Other audio Visual means (OaVm)
Dividend Not recommended by the Board for the financial year 2022-2023.
Dividend payment Date Not applicable, since no dividend is recommended for the financial year 2022-2023.
Financial year 1st april, 2022 to 31st march, 2023.
listing on Stock Exchanges BSe limited

The listing fees for the Financial Year 2022-2023 were duly paid to BSE Limited within the stipulated time. 

ii. Details of listing with Exchange & Stock Code:

name and address of the Stock Exchange Stock Code
BSE Ltd, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Mumbai- 400001 532745
ISIn allotted by depositories INE347H01012

iii. Stock market price Data during the Financial year 2022-2023:

month High price (₹) low price (₹) total turnover (₹)
apr-22 34.15 29.00 31,90,346
may-22 37.90 29.80 77,50,626
Jun-22 36.00 27.00 26,65,087
Jul-22 34.85 27.00 30,50,408
aug-22 36.00 27.15 1,00,84,986
Sep-22 42.00 27.25 3,13,00,791
Oct-22 45.00 34.60 81,02,150
nov-22 43.70 34.15 1,14,52,522
dec-22 37.20 30.10 72,88,358
Jan-23 38.00 32.30 76,88,574
Feb-23 35.00 26.75 38,28,835
mar-23 30.00 24.00 1,11,53,040

(Source: This information is compiled from the data available on the website of BSE Limited.)
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iv. performance in comparison to broad-based indices such as BSE sensex;
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v. Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st march, 2023:

no. of shares no. of Shareholders in percentage no. of shares in percentage
001-500 4,637 84.62 4,84,725 2.08
501-1000 353 6.44 2,78,932 1.19
1001-2000 184 3.36 2,73,595 1.17
2001-3000 86 1.57 2,18,525 0.94
3001-4000 40 0.73 1,41,981 0.61
4001-5000 27 0.49 1,25,729 0.53
5001-10000 71 1.30 5,36,736 2.30
10001 & Above 82 1.49 2,12,93,403 91.18
total 5,480 100.00 2,33,53,626 100.00

vi. Shareholding pattern as on 31st march, 2023:

Category 
Code Category of Shareholder number of Shareholders total number of shares as a percentage of 

(a+B+C)
(a) Shareholding of promoter and promoter Group
(1) Indian 3 1,71,95,511 73.63
(2) Foreign 0 0 0

total Shareholding of promoter and promoter 
Group 3 1,71,95,511 73.63

(B) public Shareholding
(1) Institutions 1 43,269 0.18
(2) non-institutions 6,100 60,47,721 25.90

total public Shareholding 6,101 60,90,990 26.08

(C) Shareholding pattern of the non promoter - non 
public shareholder

(1)  Employee Benefit Trust (under SEBI (Share based 
Employee Benefit and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 
2021)

1 67,125 0.29

Grand total(a)+(B)+(C) 6,105 2,33,53,626 100.00
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vii. Share transfer system:

The Company has appointed Bigshare Services Private Limited as its Registrar & Share Transfer Agent. Share transfers, if any, are 
processed and approved, subject to the receipt of all requisite documents.

the Company seeks to ensure that transfers, if any, are approved for registration within the stipulated period. the transfer of shares in 
physical form, if any, is processed and completed by the Registrar & Share Transfer Agent within a period of fifteen days from the date of 
receipt thereof provided all the documents are in order. In case of shares in electronic form, the transfers are processed by nSdl/CdSl 
through respective depository participants.

Pursuant to Regulation 40 (9) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, certificate on annual basis 
has been issued by a practicing Company Secretary on the due compliance of share transfer formalities by the Company.

Pursuant to SEBI (Depositories and Participants) Regulations, 2018, certificates have also been received from a Practicing Company 
Secretary for timely dematerialization of the shares of the Company and for conducting reconciliation of Share Capital audit on a quarterly 
basis for reconciliation of the share capital of the Company.

viii. Dematerialization of Shares:

the Company has admitted its equity shares to the depository system of national Securities depositories limited (nSdl) and Central 
depository Services (India) limited (CdSl) for dematerialization. as on 31st march, 2023, 99.93% of equity shares of the Company are in 
dematerialized form.

equity shares held in demat and physical mode as on 31st March, 2023 are as below: 

mode of holding Shareholding % to total paid up share capital
nSdl 2,13,99,000 91.63
CdSl 19,37,933 8.30
physical 16,693 0.07
total 2,33,53,626 100.00

ix. Equity Shares in the Suspense account:

In terms of disclosure to be made under Schedule V of the SeBI (listing Obligations and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015, 
the Company reports the following details in respect of equity shares lying in the suspense account which was issued in demat form and 
physical form, respectively:

particulars number of 
Shareholders

number of 
Equity shares

aggregate number of Shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense account lying as on 1st april, 2022 1 450
number of Shareholders who approached the Company for transfer of shares from suspense account during the 
Financial Year

0 0

Number of Shareholders to whom shares were transferred from the suspense account during the Financial Year 0 0
aggregate number of Shareholders and the outstanding shares in the suspense account lying as on 31st march, 
2023

1 450

note: the voting right on these shares lying in the demat Suspense account shall remain frozen till the rightful owners of such shares 
claim the shares.

6. Other Disclosures:

i. Disclosures on related party transactions:

during the year, the Company did not enter into any transaction of material nature with its promoters, directors or their relatives or the 
management except with its subsidiaries and associates, which had received omnibus approval from the audit Committee and the approval 
of the Members. The details of Related Party Transactions are set out in Notes to Standalone Financial Statement Note No: 28

as required under regulation 23(1) of the SeBI (listing Obligations and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015, the Company has 
formulated a policy on materiality of related party transactions and dealing with related party transactions. the policy is available on the 
website of the Company viz., https://www.inditrade.com/policies.aspx.
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ii. Subsidiary /Associate Companies: 

the following are the particulars of the Subsidiary / associate Companies of the Company as on 31st March, 2023:

Sr. 
no. namE OF tHE COmpany CIN / GLN SUBSIDARY / 

aSSOCiatE
% EQuity 

SHarES HElD
appliCaBlE 

SECtiOn
1. Inditrade Fincorp limited U65923KL2007PLC021180 Subsidiary 57.00% 2(87)
2. Inditrade rural marketing limited U66010Kl1996plC010093 associate 48.42% 2(6)
3. Inditrade Business Consultants limited U74140KL2008PLC023055 Subsidiary 99.84% 2(87)
4. Inditrade Insurance Broking private limited U67190KL2000PTC013701 associate 25.00% 2(6)
5. Inditrade Microfinance Limited U67190MH2016PLC306585 Subsidiary 60.56% 2(87)
6 Inditrade Scalerator limited * U74110TG2011PLC077783 Step-down 

Subsidiary
0.00% 2(87)

7. Inditrade technologies limited U72100MH2018PLC307208 Subsidiary 100% 2(87)
8. Inditrade Community Foundation** U85320KL2018NPL052582 Subsidiary 20% 2(87)

*Inditrade Scalaretor Limited is a Wholly Owned Subsidiary of Inditrade Business Consultants Limited. 

** Inditrade Community Foundation is a subsidiary company, registered under Section 8 of the Companies Act, 2013 primarily for undertaking CSR 
activities. Inditrade Capital Limited holds 80% in Inditrade Community Foundation indirectly through its subsidiaries. 

The Company has in place a Policy on Material Subsidiaries which is available in the web-link: https://www.inditrade.com/policies.aspx 

Pursuant to Regulation 24 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, the Company has appointed Mr. 
Brij Gopal daga and mr. Kerachan ayyappan Somasekharan, both of whom are Independent directors of the Company, as the Independent 
Directors in Inditrade Fincorp Limited, Inditrade Microfinance Limited and Inditrade Business Consultants Limited, material subsidiaries 
of the Company.

The Company monitors the performance of its subsidiary companies, inter alia, by the following means:

•	Financial Statements of the subsidiary companies are reviewed quarterly by the Company’s Audit Committee and the Board.

•	minutes of Board meetings of subsidiary Companies are placed and taken on record by the Board. 

iii. Details of material subsidiaries of the listed entity:

Sr. 
no.

namE OF tHE COmpany DatE OF 
inCOrpOratiOn

plaCE OF 
inCOrpOratiOn

namE OF StatutOry auDitOrS DatE OF 
appOintmEnt

1. Inditrade Fincorp limited 06/09/2007 Kochi, Kerala NGS & Co LLP 28/07/2022
2. Inditrade Business Consultants 

limited
27/08/2008 Kochi, Kerala Haribhakti & Co. LLP 

(tenure expiring in the ensuing aGm)
ASA & Associates LLP 
(proposed to be appointed at the ensuing aGm)

29/09/2018

3. Inditrade Microfinance Limited 29/01/2016 Chennai, tamil nadu ASA & Associates LLP 27/07/2022

iv. loans and advances in the nature of loans to subsidiaries:

The disclosure relating to loans and advances as on March 31, 2023 made by the Company and its subsidiaries to firms/companies in 
which directors are interested, are set out in the financial statements for FY 2022-23.

v. Details of non-compliance by the Company, penalties, strictures imposed on the Company by Stock Exchange or SEBi, or any statutory 
authority, on any matter related to capital markets, during the last three years:

year penalties, Strictures imposed by Stock Exchange or SEBi, or any statutory authority
2020-2021 nil
2021-2022 nil
2022-2023 The BSE Limited had levied a monetary penalty of Rs. 5,000/- on 14th July, 2022 for late submission of the disclosure of related party 

transactions on consolidated basis for the half year ended 31st march 2022 pursuant to regulation 23 (9) of SeBI (listing Obligations 
and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015 (delay of One day).
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vi. Vigil Mechanism / Whistle Blower Policy:

the Company has adopted the Vigil mechanism/ Whistle Blower policy pursuant to which employees of the Company can raise their concerns 
relating to fraud, malpractice or any other untoward activity or event, if any, purported to be against the interests of the Company or society 
as a whole. It is confirmed that during the year under review, no employee / personnel have been denied access to the Audit Committee.

vii. Compliance of requirements of regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 of the SEBi (listing 
Obligations and Disclosure requirements), regulations, 2015:

The Company has complied with all the applicable requirements of Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of 
regulation 46 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), Regulations, 2015. 

viii. website

the Company is maintaining a functional website where all material information about the Company is disclosed/hosted. all information 
as specified in the clauses (b) to (i) of Sub-Regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements), 
Regulations, 2015 is available on the Company Website at https://www.inditrade.com.

ix. adoption of Discretionary requirements of SEBi (listing Obligations & Disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015

The Company has adopted the following non-mandatory requirements of SEBI (Listing Obligations & Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 
2015.

a. Modified opinion(s) in audit report:

During the period under review, there was no audit qualification in the Financial Statements. The Company continues to adopt the best 
accounting practices and has complied with the relevant accounting Standards. 

b. reporting of internal auditor:

the Internal auditor of the Company reports directly to the audit Committee, and submits periodical internal audit reports which are reviewed 
by the Committee. there were no adverse remarks or observations in the audit reports during the year under review.

X. the details of fees paid to Statutory auditors by the Company and its subsidiaries, on a consolidated basis, for the Financial year 2022-
2023 are as follows:

(rs. in lakhs)
nature of Service 2022-2023
Statutory audit Fees 38.32
Certification fee 4.59
reimbursement of expenses 2.07
total 44.98

Xi. Disclosure under the Sexual Harassment of women at workplace (prevention, prohibition and redressal) act, 2013:

the Company has in place the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (prevention, prohibition and redressal) policy in line with the 
requirements of the Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (prevention, prohibition and redressal) act, 2013. the Internal Complaints 
Committee (ICC) has been set up to redress any complaint regarding sexual harassment, for the Company and its subsidiaries/associate 
companies. 

The following is a summary of sexual harassment complaints received and disposed off during the financial year 2022-2023: 

No. of complaints at the beginning of the year 2022-2023: NIL

No. of complaints received during the year 2022-2023: NIL 

No. of complaints disposed off during the year 2022-2023: NIL

No. of complaints at the end of the year 2022-2023: NIL
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Bank DEtailS

Members holding shares in physical form are requested to notify the following to the Registrar & Transfer Agents particulars of their bank 
account – name of the bank, branch with complete postal address, account number, MICR and IFSC to facilitate the electronic payment.

members holding shares in dematerialised form and not opted for remittance of dividend through neCS are requested to notify the above details 
to their respective Depository Participants [DPs].

CFO Certification:

Chief Financial Officer (CFO) of the Company gives quarterly/annual certification on financial reporting and internal controls to the Board in 
terms of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015. The CFO of the Company also gives quarterly certification 
on the financial results while placing the financial results before the Board in terms of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
regulations, 2015.

Declaration for compliance with the Code of Conduct:

In accordance with Regulation 26 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, this is to confirm that all 
the Directors and the Senior Management personnel of the Company have affirmed compliance to the Code of Conduct for the Financial Year 
ended 31st march, 2023.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors 

 Jhuma Guha  Sudip Bandyopadhyay 
Date: 25th may, 2023 Director Director
Place: Mumbai DIN: 00007454 DIN: 00007382

address for Correspondence -

Registered Office of the Company registrar and Share transfer agent
inditrade Capital limited
Second Floor, m e S Building, Kaloor,  
Kochi Ernakulam, Kerala-682017.
Ph No.: 484-6714800 
Email: inditrade@inditrade.com

Bigshare Services private limited
1st Floor, Bharat tin Works Building, Opp. Vasant Oasis, makwana road,
Marol, Andheri (East) Mumbai 400059 Maharashtra.
Boardline No. : 022-62638200

For queries relating to Secretarial matters For queries relating to Financial Statements
ms. maya menon
Company Secretary and Compliance Officer
Ph No. : + 91 9895213707
E mail: maya.menon@inditrade.com

mr. ravi prakash Jain
Chief Financial Officer
Ph No. : + 91 98193 44343
E mail: ravi.jain@inditrade.com 
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CErtiFiCatE OF nOn-DiSQualiFiCatiOn OF DirECtOrS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) and Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)

to
the members of 
Inditrade Capital limited
Second Floor, m e S Building 
Kaloor, Kochi, ernakulam
Kerala - 682017

We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the directors of inditrade Capital limited having 
CIN: L67120KL1994PLC008265 and having its registered office at Second Floor, M E S Building, Kaloor, Kochi, Ernakulam, Kerala – 682017 
(hereinafter referred to as ‘the Company’), produced before us by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with 
Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities and  Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure 
requirements) regulations, 2015. 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification Number (DIN) status at the 
portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by the Company and its officers, we hereby certify that none of 
the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated below for the Financial Year ending on 31st march, 2023 have been debarred or disqualified 
from being appointed or continuing as directors of companies by the Securities and exchange Board of India, ministry of Corporate affairs, or any 
such other Statutory authority.
Sr. no. name of Director Din Date of appointment in the Company

1 mr. Sudip Bandyopadhyay 00007382 10th march, 2021
2 mr. Brij Gopal daga 00004858 15th February, 2016
3 mr. radhakrishna nair 07225354 6th august, 2020
4 mr. Kerachan ayyappan Somasekharan 01573721 15th February,2016
5 mr. Sivanandhan dhanushkodi 03607203 10th may, 2019
6 mr. Sudhangshu Shekhar Biswal 07580667 5th november, 2020
7 mrs. Jhuma Guha 00007454 15th February,2016
8 mr. anand Kamalkishore maliwal 07474039 28th January, 2020

ensuring the eligibility of for the appointment / continuity of every director on the Board is the responsibility of the management of the Company. 
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on our verification. This certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the 
Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.

For Caesar pinto John & associates llp 
Company Secretaries 

nikhil George pinto
partner 

M. No. F11074
Cp. no. 16059

Place: Kochi Peer Review Certificate No.: 2148/2022
Date: 25th May, 2023 UDIN: F011074E000375570
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CHiEF FinanCial OFFiCEr CErtiFiCatE
[Issued in accordance with the provisions of Regulation 17(8) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015]

to
the Board of directors
inditrade Capital limited
Second Floor, m e S Building, Kaloor, Kochi 
Ernakulam, Kerala – 682017.

dear Sir(s)/ madam,

I, Ravi Prakash Jain, Chief Financial Officer of Inditrade Capital Limited, hereby certify that I have reviewed the Financial Statements and Cash Flow 
Statements (Consolidated and Standalone) of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31st march, 2023 and that to the best of my knowledge 
and belief state that:

1. these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain statements that might be misleading;

2. These statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance with existing accounting standards, 
applicable laws and regulations;

3. there are, to the best of my knowledge and belief, no transactions entered into by the Company during the year which are fraudulent, illegal or 
violative of the Company’s code of conduct;

4. I accept the responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and that I have evaluated the effectiveness 
of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting and I have disclosed to the auditors and the audit committee, 
deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which I was aware and the steps have been taken to rectify these 
deficiencies; 

5. I have indicated to the Auditors & the Audit Committee -

a) That there were no significant changes in internal control over the financial reporting during the reporting period;

b) That this is the publication of IND-AS compliant results and that the same have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements;

c) There are no instances of significant fraud of which I have become aware and the involvement therein, if any, of the management or an 
employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.

Place: Mumbai ravi prakash Jain
Date: 25th may, 2023 Chief Financial Officer
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CErtiFiCatE On COrpOratE GOvErnanCE
to, 
the members of  
inditrade Capital limited 

We have examined the compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance of Inditrade Capital limited, for the year ended march 31, 2023 as stipulated 
in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses (b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of regulation 46 and para-C, D and E of Schedule V of the Securities and Exchange 
Board of India (listing Obligations and disclosure requirements) regulations 2015 (collectively referred to as “SeBI listing regulations, 2015”). 

The compliance of conditions of Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our examination was limited to 
procedures and implementation thereof, adopted by the Company for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is 
neither an audit nor an expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company. 

In our opinion and to be best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, 

We hereby certify that the company is in compliance with the conditions of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SeBI listing regulations, 2015. 

We state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor the efficiency or effectiveness with which the 
management has conducted the affairs of the Company. 

For Bvr & aSSOCiatES COmpany SECrEtariES llp 

CS vijay S. 
Designated partner 

CP. No. 8268 
Place: Kochi Membership No. 7873 
Date: 25th May, 2023 UDIN: F007873E000377517 
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to the members of inditrade Capital limited

report on the audit of the Standalone ind aS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone Ind aS financial 
statements of inditrade Capital limited (“the Company”), which comprise 
the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss 
(including Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in 
equity and the Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and 
notes to the standalone Ind AS financial statements including a summary 
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information 
(hereinafter referred to as “standalone Ind AS financial statements”) 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone Ind AS financial 
statements give the information required by the Companies act, 2013 
(“the act”) in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in 
conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India 
including the Indian accounting Standards (“Ind aS”) prescribed under 
section 133 of the act, read with the Companies (Indian accounting 
Standards) rules, 2015, as amended, of the state of affairs of the 
Company as at March 31, 2023, its profit (including other comprehensive 
income), its changes in equity and its cash flows for the year ended on 
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on auditing (Sas) 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under 
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities 
for the audit of the Standalone Ind aS Financial Statements section of 
our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the 
Code of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered accountants of India 
(“ICaI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our 
audit of the standalone Ind AS financial statements under the provisions 
of the Act and Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of 
Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone Ind 
AS financial statements.

key audit matters 

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate 
in our report.

Other information

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other 
information. the other information comprises the information 
included in the Chairman’s statement, Director’s report, Management 
discussion and analysis report, report on corporate governance and 
annexures thereto, but does not include the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements, consolidated Ind AS financial statements and our auditor’s 
report thereon. the above mentioned other information are expected to 
be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the standalone Ind AS financial statements does 
not cover the other information and we do not express any form of 
assurance conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the standalone Ind aS financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the standalone Ind AS financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. 

If, based on the work we performed, and if we conclude that there is 
a material misstatement therein we are required to communicate the 
matter to those charged with governance.

responsibilities of management and those Charged with Governance 
for the Standalone ind aS Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters 
stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation 
of these standalone Ind AS financial statements that give a true and 
fair view of the financial position, financial performance (including 
other comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of 
the Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including Ind aS prescribed under section 133 of the 
act, read with the Companies (Indian accounting Standards) rules, 
2015, as amended. this responsibility also includes maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the 
act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application 
of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates 
that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and 
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating 
effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the standalone 

Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone Ind AS financial statements, management is 
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going 
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern 
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management 
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has 
no realistic alternative but to do so.

those Board of directors are also responsible for overseeing the 
Company’s financial reporting process.

auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Standalone ind aS 
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
standalone Ind AS financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s 
report that includes our opinion. reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance 

inDEpEnDEnt auDitOr’S rEpOrt
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with Sas will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material 
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected 
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of this 
standalone Ind AS financial statements. 

as part of an audit in accordance with Sas, we exercise professional 
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. 
We also:

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 
standalone Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. the risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company 
has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management.

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going 
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events 
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s 
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s 
report to the related disclosures in the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our 
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained 
up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or 
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going 
concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the 
standalone Ind AS financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the standalone Ind AS financial statements represent 
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among 
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant 
audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control 
that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement 
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards.

report on Other legal and regulatory requirements

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the 
Order”) issued by the Central Government of India in terms of section 
143(11) of the Act, we report in “annexure 1”, a statement on the 
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent 
applicable.

(2) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief were 
necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law 
have been kept by the Company so far as it appears from our 
examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including 
Other Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in 
equity and the Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report 
are in agreement with the books of account:

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone Ind aS financial 
statements comply with the Ind aS prescribed under section 
133 of the act read with the Companies (Indian accounting 
Standards) rules, 2015, as amended;

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the 
directors as on march 31, 2023, and taken on record by the 
Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 
march 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms of 
section 164(2) of the Act;

i. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements of the Company and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
report in “annexure 2”; 

j. With respect to the other matter to be included in the Auditor’s 
Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) 
of the Act, as amended: 

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the remuneration paid/ provided 
by the Company to its directors during the year is in accordance 
with the provisions of section 197 of the Act;

k. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s 
report in accordance with rule 11 of the Companies (audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the 
best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us:

(i) the Company has disclosed the impact of pending 
litigations on its financial position in its standalone Ind 
AS financial statements – Refer Note 32 on Contingent 
liabilities to the standalone Ind AS financial statements; 

(ii) the Company did not have any long term contracts including 
derivative contracts. Hence, the question of any material 
foreseeable losses does not arises.
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(iii) there has been no delay in transferring amounts, required 
to be transferred, to the Investor education and protection 
Fund by the Company;

(iv) (a) the management has represented that, to the best of 
its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the 
notes to the accounts, no funds have been advanced 
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds 
or share premium or any other sources or kind of 
funds) by the Company to or in any other person(s) or 
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly 
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries;

(iv) (b) the management has represented that, to the best of 
its knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in the 
notes to the accounts, no funds have been received 
by the Company from any person(s) or entity(ies), 
including foreign entities (“Funding parties”), with 
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly 
or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 

the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide 
any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the 
Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(iv) (c) Based on the audit procedures that are considered 
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, 
nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to 
believe that the representations under sub-clause (i) and 
(ii) of rule 11(e), as provided under (a) and (b) above, 
contain any material misstatement.

(v) the Company has not declared nor paid any dividend during 
the year. Hence, reporting the compliance with section 123 
of the act is not applicable.

(vi) as proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (accounts) rules, 
2014 is applicable for the company only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, 
reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For Haribhakti & Co. llp
Chartered accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 103523W / W100048

S. Sundararaman
partner

Place: Chennai Membership No.028423
Date: May 25, 2023 UDIN: 23028423BGYWHC8943

Based on the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting a 
true and fair view on the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the 
Company and taking into consideration the information, explanations 
and written representation given to us by the management and the books 
of account and other records examined by us in the normal course of 
audit, we report that:

(i) (a) (a) the Company has maintained proper records showing 
full particulars, including quantitative details and situation 
of property, plant and equipment and relevant details of 
right of use assets

 (B) the Company has maintained proper records showing 
full particulars of Intangible assets.

(b) The Company has a regular program of physical verification 
of property, plant and equipment to cover all the items in a 
phased manner over a period of three years, which, in our 
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company 
and the nature of its assets. pursuant to the program, certain 
Property, Plant and Equipment were due for verification during 
the year and were physically verified by the management 
during the year. no material discrepancies were noticed on 
such verification.

(c) the Company does not have any immovable property and 
accordingly, reporting under clause (i)(c) of paragraph 3 of 
the Order is not applicable.

(d) the Company has not revalued its property, plant and 
equipment (including right of Use assets) and/or Intangible 
assets during the year. accordingly, reporting under clause (i)
(d) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(e) no proceedings have been initiated or are pending against 
the Company as at march 31, 2023 for holding any 
Benami property under the prohibition of Benami property 
Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder. 

(ii) (a) The Company’s business does not involve inventories, and 
accordingly, the requirements under paragraph 3(ii)(a) of the 
Order is not applicable.

(b) the Company has not obtained any sanctioned working capital 
limit during the year, from banks and/or financial institutions, 
on the basis of security of current assets. therefore, reporting 
under clause (ii)(b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable

annEXurE 1 tO tHE inDEpEnDEnt auDitOr’S rEpOrt
[referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘report on Other legal and regulatory requirements’ section in the independent auditor’s report of even date 
to the members of Inditrade Capital Limited (“the Company”) on the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023]



annual report 2022-23

Corporate Overview | management reports | Financial Statements

61

(iii) (a) during the year, the Company has provided loans or provided advances in the nature of loans, or stood guarantee, or provided security to 
the following entities

Sr. no. particulars Guarantees Security loans advances in the nature of loans
1 Aggregate amount granted / provided during the year( In Lacs)

- Subsidiaries
-Joint Ventures
- associates
- Others

122
nil
nil
nil

nil
nil
nil
nil

10,756.32
nil
nil
nil

nil
nil
nil
nil

2 Balance outstanding as at march 31, 2023 in respect of above cases(in lacs)
- Subsidiaries
- Joint Ventures
- associates
- Others

47,800
nil
nil
nil

nil
nil
nil
nil

4,285.65
nil
nil
nil

nil
nil
nil
nil

(b) the investments made, guarantees provided, security given 
and the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and 
advances in the nature of loans and guarantees provided by the 
Company during the year are not prejudicial to the interest of 
the Company. the company has neither provided any security 
nor any advances in the nature of loans.

(c) the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest 
in respect of the loans and advances in the nature of loans have 
not been stipulated as these loans are repayable on demand. 
thus, we are unable to comment whether the repayments 
or receipts during the year are regular and report amounts 

overdue for more than ninety days, if any, as required under 
clause (iii)(d) of paragraph 3 of the Order

(d) as explained in clause iii(c) of paragraph 3 of the Order, 
reporting under clause (iii)(d) of paragraph 3 of the Order is 
not applicable.

(e) there were no loans or advances in the nature of loan granted 
which has/have fallen due during the year, have been renewed 
or extended. Further, there were no instances of fresh loans 
being granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given 
to the same parties.

(f) the Company has granted loans or advances in the nature of loans either repayable on demand or without specifying any terms or period 
of repayment. details of the same are as below 

particulars related parties
(in lacs)

aggregate amount of loans/advances in nature of loan
- repayable on demand (a)
- agreement does not specify any terms or period of repayment (B)
Total (A+B)

4,285.65
nil

4,285.65
percentage of loans/advances in nature of loan to the total loans 100%

(iv) The Company has complied with the provisions of sections 185 and 
186 of the Act in respect of grant of loans, making investments and 
providing guarantees and securities, as applicable. 

(v) In our opinion, the Company has not accepted any deposits or 
amounts which are deemed to be deposits. accordingly, reporting 
under clause (v) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(vi) the Central Government has not prescribed the maintenance of cost 
records for any of the products of the Company under sub-section 
(1) of section 148 of the Act and the rules framed there under.

(vii) (a) the Company is regular in depositing with the appropriate 
authorities, undisputed statutory dues including Goods and 

Services tax (GST), provident fund, employees’ state insurance, 
income-tax, sales-tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of 
excise, value added tax, cess and any other material statutory 
dues applicable to it, in all cases during the year. during the 
year 2017-18, sales tax, value added tax, service tax and duty 
of excise subsumed in GSt and are accordingly reported under 
GSt.

no undisputed amounts payable in respect of provident fund, 
employees’ state insurance, income tax, GST, customs duty, 
cess and any other material statutory dues applicable to it, 
were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than 
six months from the date they became payable.

(b) The dues outstanding with respect to provident fund, employees’ state insurance, income tax, GST, sales tax, service tax, value added 
tax, customs duty, excise duty and cess, on account of any dispute, are as follows:

Statement of Disputed Dues

name of the statute nature of the dues amount `(in lacs) period to which the amount relates Forum where dispute is pending
Income tax act, 1961 Income tax 260.42 AY' s 2008-09, 2010-11, 2011-12, 

2017-18
Commission of Income tax  
(appeals)/Itat

Finance Act, 1994 Indirect tax 44.76 FYs 2010-11 & 2013-14 Commissioner (appeals) of Central 
excise and Customs
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(viii) We have not come across any transaction which were previously 
not recorded in the books of account of the Company that have 
been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax 
assessments under the Income tax act, 1961.

(ix) (a) the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other 
borrowings or in the payment of interest thereon to any lender.

(b) the Company has not been declared wilful defaulter by any 
bank or financial institution or government or any government 
authority.

(c) the Company did not obtain any money by way of term loans 
during the year accordingly, reporting under clause (ix)(c) of 
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable

(d) On an overall examination of the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements of the Company, the Company has not used funds 
raised on short-term basis for long-term purposes. 

(e) On an overall examination of the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any funds 
from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations 
of its subsidiaries or associate as defined under the Act.

(f) the Company has not raised loans during the year on the 
pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint ventures or 
associate companies, as defined under the Act.

(x) (a) the Company has not raised money by way of initial public 
issue offer / further public offer (including debt instruments) 
during the year. therefore, reporting under clause (x) (a) of 
paragraph 3 of the Order is not applicable.

(b) the Company has not made any preferential allotment or 
private placement of shares or convertible debentures (fully, 
partially or optionally convertible) during the year. therefore, 
reporting under clause (x)(b) of paragraph 3 of the Order is 
not applicable.

(xi) (a) during the course of our examination of the books and records 
of the Company, carried out in accordance with the generally 
accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the 
information and explanations given to us, we have neither 
come across any instance of fraud by the Company nor any 
fraud on the Company has been noticed or reported during 
the year, nor have we been informed of any such instance by 
the management.

(b)  No report under section 143(12) of the Act has been filed with 
the Central Government by the auditors of the Company in 
Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit 
and Auditors) Rules, 2014, during the year or upto the date of 
this report.

(c)  there are no whistle blower complaints received by the 
Company during the year and upto the date of this report.

(xii) In our opinion, the Company is not a nidhi Company. therefore, 
reporting under clause (xii) of paragraph 3 of the Order is not 
applicable.

(xiii) all transactions entered into by the Company with the related parties 
are in compliance with sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where 
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the standalone Ind 
AS financial statements as required by the applicable accounting 
standards.

(xiv) (a) In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system 
commensurate with the size and nature of its business.

(b) We have considered the Internal audit reports of the Company 
issued till date, for the period under audit.

(xv) the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with 
its directors or persons connected with them during the year and 
hence, provisions of section 192 of the act are not applicable to 
the Company.

(xvi) (a) The Company is not required to be registered under section 45-
IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Therefore, reporting 
under clause (xvi)(a) and (b) of paragraph 3 of the Order are 
not applicable.

(b) the Company has not conducted any non-Banking Financial 
or Housing Finance activities without having a valid Certificate 
of registration (Cor) from the reserve Bank of India as per 
the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

(c) The Company is a Core Investment Company (CIC) as defined 
in Core Investment Companies (reserve Bank) directions, 
2016 (“directions”) by the reserve Bank of India and it is 
exempted from obtaining registration as per the directions. 
Further, the Company continues to fulfil the criteria for non-
registration as CIC.

(d) as informed by the Company, the Group to which the Company 
belongs has not more than one CIC as part of the Group. 

(xvii) the Company has not incurred cash losses in the current and the 
immediately preceding financial year.

(xviii) there has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the 
year and accordingly, reporting under clause (xviii) of paragraph 3 
of the Order is not applicable.

(xix) On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of 
realisation of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, 
other information accompanying the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements to the extent furnished to us and our knowledge of 
the Board of directors and management plans as represented to 
us and based on our examination of the evidence supporting the 
assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which cause us 
to believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of this 
audit report and that the Company is not capable of meeting its 
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they 
fall due within a period of one year from the balance sheet date. 
We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future 
viability of the Company. We further state that our reporting is based 
on the facts up to date of the audit report and we neither give any 
guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a 
period of one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged 
by the Company as and when they fall due

(xx) the provisions of section 135 of the act are not applicable to the 
Company. Hence, reporting under clause (xx) of paragraph 3 of the 
Order is not applicable.

For Haribhakti & Co. llp
Chartered accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 103523W / W100048

S. Sundararaman
partner

Place: Chennai Membership No.028423
Date: May 25, 2023 UDIN: 23028423BGYWHC8943
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We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements of inditrade Capital limited (“the Company”) as of march 
31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone Ind AS financial 
statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

management’s responsibility for internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and 
maintaining internal financial controls based on the internal control with 
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance note on audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
reporting (the “Guidance note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
accountants of India (“ICaI”). these responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to Company’s policies, 
the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds 
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required 
under the act.

auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements based on our 
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance note 
and the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the 
Act to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls, 
both issued by the ICaI. those Standards and the Guidance note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform 
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was 
established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively 
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about 
the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements and their operating effectiveness.

Our audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements included obtaining an understanding of internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk that 
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and 
operating effectiveness of internal controls based on the assessed risk. 
The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including 
the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial 
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and 
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements.

meaning of internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial 
Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial 
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control 
with reference to financial statements includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have 
a material effect on the financial statements.

inherent limitations of internal Financial Controls with reference to 
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements, including the possibility of collusion 
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. also, projections 
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements and 
such internal financial controls with reference to financial statements 
were operating effectively as at march 31, 2023, based on the internal 
control with reference to financial statements criteria established by 
the Company considering the essential components of internal controls 
stated in the Guidance note issued by the ICaI.

For Haribhakti & Co. llp
Chartered accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W / W100048

S. Sundararaman
partner

Place: Chennai Membership No.028423
Date: May 25, 2023 UDIN: 23028423BGYWHC8943

annEXurE 2 tO tHE inDEpEnDEnt auDitOr’S rEpOrt
[referred to in paragraph 2(i) under ‘report on Other legal and regulatory requirements’ section in our independent auditor’s report of even date 
to the members of Inditrade Capital Limited on the standalone Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023]
report on the internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statements under clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies 
act, 2013 (“the act”)
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StanDalOnE BalanCE SHEEt
as at march 31, 2023 (all amounts are indian rupees in lacs unless stated otherwise)

particulars note no. as at 
march 31, 2023

as at 
march 31, 2022

i aSSEtS
1 Financial assets

(a) Cash and cash equivalents 4  92.65  11.86 
(b) receivables 5

(i) trade receivables  -  - 
(ii) Other receivables  77.20  - 

(c) loans 6  4,285.65  1,947.76 
(d) Investments 7  8,857.17  8,921.61 
(e) Other financial assets 8  1,155.83  840.06 

2 Non-financial Assets
(a) deferred tax assets (net) 9  283.16  262.22 
(b) Current tax assets (net) 10  48.79  - 
(c) property, plant and equipment 11  24.71  29.64 
(d) Other Intangible assets 11  423.43  705.71 
(e) right-of-use asset 11  3.75  8.73 
(f) Other non-financial assets 12  182.65  247.04 
total assets  15,434.99  12,974.63 

ii liaBilitiES anD EQuity
liaBilitiES
1 Financial liabilities

(a) Borrowings 13  5,829.98  3,709.05 
(b) Other financial liabilities 14  385.96  179.06 

2 Non-financial liabilities
(a) Current tax liabilities (net) 10  -  20.82 
(b) Other non-financial liabilities 15  23.38  9.06 
total liabilities  6,239.32  3,917.99 
EQuity
(a) equity share capital 16  2,328.65  2,328.65 
(b) Other equity 17  6,867.02 6,727.99
total equity  9,195.67 9,056.64
total liabilities and equity  15,434.99 12,974.63

See accompanying notes forming part of the standalone financial statements.

as per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of directors of
 inditrade Capital limited
For Haribhakti & Co. llp
Chartered accountants Sudip Bandyopadhyay Jhuma Guha
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 103523W / W100048 Director Director
 DIN: 00007382 DIN: 00007454
S. Sundararaman 
partner maya menon ravi prakash Jain
Membership No.: 028423 Manager cum Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
 Membership No.: 20656

Place: Chennai Place: Mumbai
Date: 25 May, 2023 Date: 25 May, 2023
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StanDalOnE StatEmEnt OF prOFit anD lOSS
for the year ended  march 31, 2023 (all amounts are indian rupees in lacs unless stated otherwise)

particulars note no. For the year ended 
march 31, 2023 

For the year ended 
march 31, 2022 

rEvEnuE FrOm OpEratiOnS
(i) Interest Income 18 473.00 120.04 
(ii) net gain on fair value changes 19 - 5.80 
(iii) Sale of Services 20 638.44 301.33 
(i) total revenue from operations 1,111.44 427.17 
(ii) Other income 21 55.06 119.85 
(iii) total income (i + ii) 1,166.50 547.02 
Expenses
(i) Finance Cost 22 579.28 210.95 
(ii) net loss on fair value changes 23  2.82  - 
(iii) Employee Benefit Expenses 24  22.61  14.31 
(iv) Depreciation, Amortization & Impairment 11  292.65  151.47 
(v) Other expenses 25  57.74  259.60 
(iv) total Expenses  955.10  636.34 
(v) Profit / (Loss) before tax  211.40  (89.31)
(vi) tax expense 10
Current tax  35.29  - 
For earlier years  -  - 
deferred tax  (20.93)  41.90 
mat credit  -  - 
(vii) Profit / (Loss) after tax  197.04  (131.21)
(viii) Other Comprehensive income
(A) (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  (0.03)  - 

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  0.01  - 
Subtotal (a)  (0.02)  - 
(B) (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss  -  - 

(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss  - 
Subtotal (B)  -  - 
total Other Comprehensive income (a + B)  (0.02)  - 
(iX) total Comprehensive income for the year  197.02  (131.21)
(X) Earnings per equity share
Basic and diluted (rs) 26  0.85  (0.56)
See accompanying notes forming part of the standalone financial statements.

as per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of directors of
 inditrade Capital limited
For Haribhakti & Co. llp
Chartered accountants Sudip Bandyopadhyay Jhuma Guha
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 103523W / W100048 Director Director
 DIN: 00007382 DIN: 00007454
S. Sundararaman 
partner maya menon ravi prakash Jain
Membership No.: 028423 Manager cum Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
 Membership No.: 20656

Place: Chennai Place: Mumbai
Date: 25 May, 2023 Date: 25 May, 2023



66 IndItrade CapItal lImIted

StatEmEnt OF StanDalOnE CaSH FlOw StatEmEnt
for the year ended march 31, 2023 (all amounts are indian rupees in lacs unless stated otherwise)

particulars For the year ended
march 31, 2023

For the year ended
march 31, 2022

a. Cash flow from Operating activities
Net Profit before tax  211.40  (89.30)
Adjustments for:
depreciation, amortization and Impairment  292.65  151.47 
Impairment on investments  -  6.45 
Profit on sale of investment  (22.46)  (102.70)
loss on derecognition of Investment  -  218.84 
net (Gain)/loss on Fair Value Changes  -  5.80 
Interest on lease liabilities  1.16  1.90 
Loss/(profit) on derecognition of Property, plant and Equipment (net)  (0.09)  - 
Unrealized foreign exchange (gain) (net)  -  (6.45)
provisions / liabilities no longer required written back  (17.14)  (4.55)
Bad debts written off  4.13 
Share based payment expense  -  0.38 
Operating profit before working capital changes  469.65  181.84 
movements in working capital:
Decrease/(increase) in other financial assets  (513.67)  (147.23)
Decrease/(increase) in other non-financial assets  77.35  (64.56)
decrease/(increase) in bank deposits  -  39.13 
Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities  212.35  (100.37)
Increase/(decrease) in non-financial liabilities  14.32  7.00 
Cash generated from operations  260.00  (84.19)
direct taxes paid (net of refunds)  (48.79)  - 
Net cash flows from/( used in) operating activities (A)  211.21  (84.19)

B. Cash flow from investing activities
purchase of Investments  -  (1,000.00)
proceeds from sale of Investments  86.90  863.81 
purchase of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets  (0.46)  (846.85)
Sale of property, plant and equipment and Intangible assets  0.09  - 
loans to related parties  (2,337.88)  (1,857.77)
Net cash flows from/( used in) investing activities (B)  (2,251.35)  (2,840.81)

C. Cash flow from Financing activities
proceeds from Borrowings  2,120.93  2,925.08 
payment of lease liabilities  -  (6.16)
Net cash flows from/( used in) financing activities (C )  2,120.93  2,918.92 
Net increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C)  80.79  (6.08)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year  11.86  17.94 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year  92.65  11.86 
Components of cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year as at
march 31, 2023

as at
march 31, 2022

i) Balances with banks (of the nature of cash and cash equivalents) 92.65 11.86
total 92.65 11.86

See accompanying notes forming part of the standalone financial statements.

as per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of directors of
 inditrade Capital limited
For Haribhakti & Co. llp
Chartered accountants Sudip Bandyopadhyay Jhuma Guha
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 103523W / W100048 Director Director
 DIN: 00007382 DIN: 00007454
S. Sundararaman 
partner maya menon ravi prakash Jain
Membership No.: 028423 Manager cum Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
 Membership No.: 20656

Place: Chennai Place: Mumbai
Date: 25 May, 2023 Date: 25 May, 2023
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StanDalOnE StatEmEnt OF CHanGES in EQuity
a. Equity Share Capital (refer note 16)

(1) Current reporting period
particulars as at 

april 01, 2022

Changes in Equity 
Share Capital due to 
prior period errors 

restated balance at 
the beginning of the 

current reporting period

Changes in equity 
share capital during 

the current year 

as at 
march 31, 2023

paid up equity share capital  2,328.65  -  -  -  2,328.65 

(2) previous reporting period
particulars

as at 
april 01, 2021

Changes in Equity 
Share Capital due to 
prior period errors 

restated balance at 
the beginning of the 
previous reporting 

period

 Changes in equity 
share capital during 

the previous year 

as at 
march 31, 2022

paid up equity share capital  2,328.65  -  -  -  2,328.65 

B. Other Equity (refer note 17)
(1) Current reporting period

particulars
reserve and Surplus 

items of other 
comprehensive 

income total Securities 
premium 
account

Capital 
reserve

General 
reserve

Share based 
payments 
reserves 

retained 
earnings 

remeasurements 
of the net defined 

benefit plans 
Opening balance as at april 01, 2022 4,973.50  719.55  129.59  388.16  528.41  (11.22)  6,727.99 
Profit for the year  -  -  -  -  197.04  -  - 
Other Comprehensive Income for the year  -  -  -  -  -  (0.02)  - 
total Comprehensive Income for the year  -  -  -  -  197.04  (0.02)  197.02 
Share based payment expenses  -  -  -  (57.98)  -  -  (57.98)
Closing balance as at march 31, 2023  4,973.50  719.55  129.59  330.17  725.45  (11.24)  6,867.02 

(2) previous reporting period
particulars

reserve and Surplus 
items of other 
comprehensive 

income totalSecurities 
premium 
account 

Capital 
reserve

General
reserve

Share based 
payments 
reserves 

retained 
earnings

remeasurements 
of the net defined 

benefit plans 
Opening balance as at april 01, 2021  4,973.50  719.55  129.59  310.95  659.62  (11.22)  6,781.99 
Profit for the year  -  -  -  -  (131.21)  -  - 
Other Comprehensive Income for the year  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
total Comprehensive Income for the year  -  -  -  -  (131.21)  -  (131.21)
Share based payment expenses  -  -  -  77.20  -  -  77.20 
Closing balance as at march 31, 2022  4,973.50  719.55  129.59  388.16  528.41  (11.22)  6,727.99 

See accompanying notes forming part of the standalone financial statements.

for the year ended march 31, 2023 (all amounts are indian rupees in lacs unless stated otherwise)

as per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of directors of
 inditrade Capital limited
For Haribhakti & Co. llp
Chartered accountants Sudip Bandyopadhyay Jhuma Guha
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 103523W / W100048 Director Director
 DIN: 00007382 DIN: 00007454
S. Sundararaman 
partner maya menon ravi prakash Jain
Membership No.: 028423 Manager cum Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
 Membership No.: 20656

Place: Chennai Place: Mumbai
Date: 25 May, 2023 Date: 25 May, 2023
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Significant Accounting Policies

1. Corporate information

Inditrade Capital limited (“the Company”) was incorporated on 
17 October 1994. During 2018-19, the company had sold its 
principal operating business of equity broking. the company 
continues to hold investments in subsidiaries and associate 
engaged in various businesses.

2. Basis of preparation and presentation

a. Statement of compliance

The financial statements of the company have been prepared 
in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’) 
notified under the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) 
Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time (‘Ind AS Rules’) 
and notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 
(the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions of the Act.

The financial statements have been prepared under the 
historical cost convention, as modified by the application 
of fair value measurements required or allowed by relevant 
accounting Standards. accounting policies have been 
consistently applied to all periods presented, unless 
otherwise stated. The preparation of financial statements 
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, 
liabilities, revenues and expenses and the disclosed amount 
of contingent liabilities.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the 
Company’s Board of Directors on 25-05-2023

b. Functional and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees 
(INR), which is also the Company’s functional currency. All 
amounts are presented in lacs, unless otherwise indicated.

c. Presentation of financial statements

These financial statements have been presented in 
accordance with the format prescribed for non-Banking 
Finance Companies under the Companies (Indian accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, in division III of Notification no. GSR. 
1022 (E) dated 11th October 2018, issued by Ministry of 
Corporate affairs, Government of India.

the Company presents its balance sheet in order of liquidity. 
an analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 
months after the reporting date (current) and more than 12 
months after the reporting date (non– current) is presented 
in notes to the financial statements. Financial assets and 
financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance 
sheet. they are only offset and reported net when, in addition 
to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset 
the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future 
event, the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all of 
the following circumstances:

• The normal course of business

• The event of default

• The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/
or its counterparties

d. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the Company’s financial statements 
requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, 
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying 
disclosures, as well as the disclosure of contingent liabilities. 
The estimates used in the accompanying financial statements 
are based upon management’s evaluation of the relevant facts 
and circumstances as on the date of the financial statements. 
actual results could differ from estimates. any revision to 
the accounting estimates is recognised prospectively in the 
current and future periods. In particular, information about 
significant areas of estimation, uncertainty and critical 
judgments in applying accounting policies that have the most 
significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial 
statements is given below:

• Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets 
depends on the results of the SppI and the business 
model test. the Company determines the business model 
at a level that reflects how groups of financial assets 
are managed together to achieve a particular business 
objective. This assessment includes judgement reflecting 
all relevant evidence including how the performance of the 
assets is evaluated and their performance measured, the 
risks that affect the performance of the assets and how 
these are managed and how the managers of the assets 
are compensated. The Company monitors financial assets 
measured at amortised cost or fair value through other 
comprehensive income that are derecognised prior to their 
maturity to understand the reason for their disposal and 
whether the reasons are consistent with the objective of 
the business for which the asset was held. monitoring is 
part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether 
the business model for which the remaining financial 
assets are held continues to be appropriate and if it is not 
appropriate whether there has been a change in business 
model and so a prospective change to the classification of 
those assets

• Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that 
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most 
advantageous) market at the measurement date under 
current market conditions (i.e., an exit price) regardless 
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated 
using another valuation technique. When the fair values 

nOtES
to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (All amounts are Indian Rupees in Lacs unless stated otherwise)
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nOtES
to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (All amounts are Indian Rupees in Lacs unless stated otherwise)

of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the 
balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they 
are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that 
include the use of valuation models. the inputs to these 
models are taken from observable markets where possible, 
but where this is not feasible, estimation is required in 
establishing fair values. Judgements and estimates 
include considerations of liquidity and model inputs related 
to items such as credit risk (both own and counterparty), 
funding value adjustments, correlation and volatility. For 
further details about determination of fair value please see 
Fair value note in accounting policy.

• Impairment of financial asset

the measurement of impairment losses across all 
categories of financial assets requires judgement, in 
particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of 
future cash flows and collateral values when determining 
impairment losses and the assessment of a significant 
increase in credit risk. these estimates are driven by a 
number of factors, changes in which can result in different 
levels of allowances.

It has been the Company’s policy to regularly review its 
models in the context of actual loss experience and adjust 
when necessary.

• Provisions and liabilities:

provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when 
it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow 
of funds resulting from past operations or events that 
can reasonably be estimated. the timing of recognition 
requires application of judgement to existing facts and 
circumstances which may be subject to change. the 
amounts are determined by discounting the expected 
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the liability.

e. uncertainty on account of Covid-19 pandemic

the COVId -19 pandemic has spread across the globe and 
in India, contributing to   significant volatility in global and 
Indian financial markets and a significant decrease in global 
and local economic activities. Since march 2020, this has 
resulted in imposition of lockdown at various points in times. 
the roll out of vaccination and decrease in incidence of  in 
active cases recently has resulted in lifting of restrictions. 
However, the extent to which the COVId-19 pandemic will 
further impact the Company’s operations and financial 
results will depend on future developments, which are highly 
uncertain, including, among other things, any new information 
concerning the severity of the COVId-19 pandemic and any 
action to contain its spread or mitigate its impact whether 
government-mandated or elected by the Company. as a result 
of the  uncertainties in macro economic condition, the impact 
of the global health pandemic may be different from that 

estimated as at the date of approval of these financial results. 
the Company will continue to closely monitor any material 
changes to future economic conditions.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies applied in preparation of 
the financial statements are as given below:

3.1 Financial instruments

3.1.1. Financial assets

a. initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value, which 
is normally the transaction price. transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets 
(other than financial assets at fair value through Statement 
of Profit or Loss (‘FVTPL’)) are added to the fair value of the 
financial assets, on initial recognition. Such transaction cost 
includes all fees paid or received between parties to the 
contract that would not have been incurred if the entity had 
not acquired the financial asset. Transaction costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL are 
recognized immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.

B. Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets 
are classified in three categories:

a) Financial assets measured at amortized cost 

b) Financial assets measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVtOCI);

c) Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or 
loss (FVtpl); 

The classification depends on the contractual terms of the 
financial assets’ cash flows and the company’s business 
model for managing financial assets.

Business model assessment

the Company determines its business model at the level that 
best reflects how it manages company’s financial assets to 
achieve its business objective.

The Company’s business model is not assessed on an 
instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level of 
aggregated portfolios and is based on observable factors 
such as:

• How the performance of the business model and the 
financial assets held within that business model are 
evaluated and reported to the entity’s key management 
personnel

• The risks that affect the performance of the business 
model (and the financial assets held within that business 
model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed
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• How managers of the business are compensated (for 
example, whether the compensation is based on the fair 
value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash 
flows collected)

• The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also 
important aspects of the Company’s assessment. 

the business model assessment is based on reasonably 
expected scenarios without taking ‘worst case’ or ‘stress case’ 
scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition 
are realised in a way that is different from the Company’s 
original expectations, the Company does not change the 
classification of the remaining financial assets held in that 
business model, but incorporates such information when 
assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial 
assets going forward.

the Solely payments of principal and interest (‘Sppi’) test

As a second step of its classification process the Company 
assesses the contractual terms of financial to identify whether 
they meet the SppI test.

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair 
value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may 
change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there 
are repayments of principal or amortisation of the premium/
discount). 

The most significant elements of interest within a lending 
arrangement are typically the consideration for the time value 
of money and credit risk. to make the SppI assessment, 
the Company applies judgement and considers relevant 
factors such as the currency in which the financial asset is 
denominated, and the period for which the interest rate is set.

a) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Financial assets are measured at amortized cost if both the 
following conditions are met:

• Contractual terms of the asset give rise to cash flows on 
specified dates, that represent Solely Payments of Principal 
and Interest on the principal amount outstanding (‘SPPI’); and

• The asset is held within a business model whose objective 
is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows.

Effective interest rate (Eir) method

After initial measurement, such financial assets are 
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective 
interest rate (eIr) method. Interest income is recognized 
by applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying 
amount of financial assets other than in case of credit-
impaired financial assets where EIR is applied to the 
amortised cost i.e. gross carrying amount of financial assets 
less provision for impairment.

The EIR is computed:

a. as the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to 
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. 

b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial 
instrument in estimating the cash flows 

c. Including all fees received between parties to the contract 
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, 
transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash 
flow are recognised in interest income with the corresponding 
adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets.

b) Financial assets measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FvtOCi)

Debt instruments

Financial assets are measured at FVtOCI if both of the 
following criteria are met:

• Contractual terms of the asset give rise to cash flows on 
specified dates, that represent Solely Payments of Principal 
and Interest on the principal amount outstanding (‘SPPI’); and

• The asset is held within a business model whose objective 
is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows as 
well as selling the asset.

Financial assets included within the FVtOCI category 
are measured initially as well as at each reporting date 
at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the 
other comprehensive income (OCI). Upon disposal, the 
cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is 
reclassified from equity to the statement of profit and loss.

Equity instruments

Investment in equity instruments that are neither held for 
trading nor contingent consideration recognised by the 
Company in a business combination to which Ind aS 103 
‘Business Combination’ applies, are measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income, where an irrevocable 
election has been made by management and when such 
instruments meet the definition of Equity under Ind AS 32 
Financial Instruments: Presentation. Such classification is 
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

amounts presented in other comprehensive income are 
not subsequently transferred to the statement of profit and 
loss. dividends on such investments are recognised in the 
statement of profit and loss.

c) Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 
(Fvtpl)

Any financial asset, which does not meet the criteria for 
categorization as at amortized cost or as at FVtOCI is 
classified as at FVTPL. Financial assets included within the 

nOtES
to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (All amounts are Indian Rupees in Lacs unless stated otherwise)
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FVtpl category are measured at fair value and all changes 
thereto and transaction costs are recognized in the statement 
of profit and loss.

Financial instruments held for trading

A financial instrument is classified as held for trading if it is 
acquired or incurred principally for selling or repurchasing 
in the near term, or forms part of a portfolio of financial 
instruments that are managed together and for which there is 
evidence of short-term profit taking.

d) Equity investment in Subsidiaries and associates

Investment in subsidiaries and associates are carried at Cost 
in the Separate Financial Statements as permitted under Ind 
AS 27 and 28 respectively.

C. De-recognition of financial assets

De-recognition of financial assets due to substantial 
modification of terms and conditions:

The Company derecognises a financial asset, such as a 
loan to customer, when the terms and conditions have been 
renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a 
new loan, with the difference recognised as a de-recognition 
gain or loss, net of impairment loss, if any, already recorded. 
The newly recognised loans are classified as Stage 1 for 
eCl measurement purposes. Based on the change in cash 
flows discounted at the original EIR, the Company records 
a modification gain or loss, net of impairment loss, if any, 
already recorded.

De-recognition of financial assets other than due to substantial 
modification of terms and conditions:

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial 
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is 
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the 
financial asset have expired. 

The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has 
transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for 
de-recognition.

D. impairment of Financial assets

the Company assesses at the end of each reporting period 
whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is 
impaired and determines the expected credit losses. equity 
instruments are not subject to impairment under Ind aS 109.

Expected credit loss (ECl) assessment

the Company records allowance for expected credit losses 
for all loans, other debt financial assets, together with 
financial guarantee contracts.

the eCl allowance is based on the credit losses expected to 
arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected credit 
loss), unless there has been no significant increase in credit 
risk since origination, in which case, the allowance is based 
on the 12 months’ expected credit loss.

write-offs

The Company reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial 
asset when the Company has no reasonable expectations of 
recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. 
this is generally the case when the Company determines that 
the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that 
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts 
subjected to write-offs. any subsequent recoveries against 
such loans are credited to the statement of profit and loss.

3.1.2. Financial liabilities

a. initial recognition and measurement:

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, 
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable 
transaction costs.

B. Subsequent measurement:

The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their 
classification, as described below:

loans and borrowings:

after initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective Interest rate (eIr) method. Gains and losses 
are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are de-
recognised as well as through the eIr amortization process. 
amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium on acquisition and processing fees or 
sourcing costs that are an integral part of the eIr. the eIr 
amortization is included as finance costs in the statement of 
profit and loss.

trade and other payables:

these amounts represent liabilities for goods or services 
provided to the Company which are unpaid at the end of the 
reporting period. trade and other payables falling due within a 
period of 12 months are presented at its carrying amounts as 
it approximates fair value due to the short maturity of these 
instruments. Other payables falling due after 12 months from 
the end of the reporting period are measured and presented at 
amortised cost unless designated as fair value through profit 
and loss at the inception.

Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or 
loss:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include 
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities 
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through 
profit or loss. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading or 
designated as at FVTPL are recognized in the profit or loss.

C. De-recognition of financial liabilities:

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under 
the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. When an 
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the 

nOtES
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same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms 
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 
exchange or Modification is treated as the de-recognition of 
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. the 
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in 
the statement of profit or loss.

3.1.3. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net 
amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently 
enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and 
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets 
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

3.2. property, plant and equipment

property plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the 
costs of day–to–day servicing, less accumulated depreciation 
and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the expected 
useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation 
period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes 
in accounting estimates.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight–line method to 
write down the cost of property and equipment to their residual 
values over their estimated useful lives. land is not depreciated.

useful life of assets as per Schedule ii:

asset Description Estimated useful life
Furniture and fittings 10 years
Office Equipments 5 years
Computers 3 years
Electrical fittings 10 years
V-Sat equipments 10 years

the residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation 
of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial 
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

property plant and equipment is de-recognised on disposal or 
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any 
gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated 
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in other income / 
expense in the statement of profit and loss in the year the asset 
is derecognised. the date of disposal of an item of property, 
plant and equipment is the date the recipient obtains control of 
that item in accordance with the requirements for determining 
when a performance obligation is satisfied in Ind AS 115.

3.3. intangible assets

The Company’s other intangible assets mainly include the value 
of computer software. an intangible asset is recognised only 
when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable that the 
expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will 
flow to the Company. Intangible assets acquired separately are 
measured on initial recognition at cost. Subsequently, they are 
carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment 

losses if any, and are amortised over their estimated useful 
life on the straight line basis over a 5 year period or the license 
period whichever is lower.

the carrying amount of the assets is reviewed at each Balance 
sheet date to ascertain impairment based on internal or external 
factors. Impairment is recognised, if the carrying value exceeds 
the higher of the net selling price of the assets and its value in use.

useful life of assets as per Schedule ii:

asset Description Estimated useful life
Computers Software 3 years

3.4. Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash 
at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original 
maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition, 
highly liquid instruments that are readily convertible into known 
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk 
of changes in value.

3.5. leases

leases are recognized, measured and presented in accordance 
with Ind aS 116 “leases”.

the Company assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, 
at inception of a contract. the Company recognises a right-of-
use asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all 
lease agreements in which it is the lessee, except for short-term 
leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months or less) 
and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the Company 
recognises the lease payments as an operating expense on a 
straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another 
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in 
which economic benefits from the leased asset are consumed.

the lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the 
lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, 
discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate 
cannot be readily determined, the Company uses its incremental 
borrowing rate.

right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of 
lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. If a lease 
transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the 
right-of-use asset reflects that the Company expects to exercise 
a purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated 
over the useful life of the underlying asset. the depreciation 
starts at the commencement date of the lease.

3.6. Impairment of non-financial assets

the Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there 
is an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication 
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is 
required, the Company estimates the asset’s recoverable 
amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an 
asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of 
disposal and its value in use. recoverable amount is determined 
for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash 
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inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets 
or Group of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or 
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered 
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate 
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair 
value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are 
taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, 
an appropriate valuation model is used. these calculations are 
corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for 
publicly traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

the company bases its impairment calculation on detailed 
budgets and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately 
for each of the Company’s CGUs to which the individual assets 
are allocated. these budgets and forecast calculations generally 
cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term 
growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash 
flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections 
beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, 
the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget 
using a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, 
unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this 
growth rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate 
for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the 
entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.

Impairment losses of continuing operations, are recognised in 
the statement of profit and loss.

For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each 
reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that 
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have 
decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the 
asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised 
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change 
in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable 
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. the 
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does 
not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, 
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior 
years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of profit or 
loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which 
case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

3.7. revenue recognition

revenue (other than for those items to which Ind aS 109 
Financial Instruments are applicable) is measured at fair value 
of the consideration received or receivable.

Income from other non-financing activity is recognised as per 
the terms of the respective contract on accrual basis provided 
that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
company and the amount of income can be measured reliably.

dividend income from investments is recognised when the 
shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established.

3.8. Employee benefits

Short term employee benefit Plans

All short term employee benefit plans such as salaries, wages, 
bonus, special awards and medical benefits, which fall due 
within 12 months of the period in which the employee renders 
the related service, which entitles him to avail such benefits 
are recognised on an undiscounted basis, and charged to the 
statement of profit and loss.

Defined Contribution Plans

Contribution to provident funds are made monthly at a 
predetermined rate to the regional provident fund commissioner 
and debited to the statement of profit and loss.

Defined Benefit Plans

provision is made for gratuity based on actuarial valuation, 
carried out by an independent actuary as at the balance sheet 
date using the projected unit credit method. re-measurement, 
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes 
to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets 
(excluding interest), is reflected immediately in the statement 
of financial position with a charge or credit recognised in other 
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.

3.9. taxes

Current tax

Current tax is provided using the tax rates and laws that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and 
includes any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous 
years. Current tax is generally recognized in the statement of 
profit and loss.

Deferred tax

deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between 
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial 
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the 
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally 
recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except when 
the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of 
goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a 
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects 
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred 
tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible temporary 
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits 
will be available against which those deductible temporary 
differences can be utilised.

the carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the 
end of each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is 
no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available 
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Unrecognised 
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and 
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are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that 
future taxable profits will allow the Deferred Tax Asset to be 
recovered.

deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at each reporting 
date at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in 
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax 
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if 
a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the 
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the statement of 
profit and loss, except when they are related to items that are 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, 
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized 
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

3.10. provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets

provisions are recognised when the company has a present 
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events, and 
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When 
the effect of the time value of money is material, the Company 
determines the level of provision by discounting the expected 
cash flows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates specific 
to the liability. the expense relating to any provision is presented 
in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

Where the probability of outflow is considered to be remote, or 
probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be made, a contingent 
liability is disclosed.

Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the 
probability and amount of losses, the Company takes into 
account a number of factors including legal advice, the stage 
of the matter and historical evidence from similar incidents. 
Significant judgement is required to conclude on these estimates.

provisions are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted 
to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer probable 
that the outflow of resources would be required to settle the 
obligation, the provision is reversed. 

Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets are not recognized 
but are disclosed in the notes.

3.11. Employee share based payments

Stock options granted to the employees under the stock option 
scheme established are accounted as per the accounting 
treatment prescribed by the SeBI (Share Based employee 
Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (Formerly the 
SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014) 
issued by Securities and exchange Board of India. the Company 

follows the fair value method of accounting for the options and 
accordingly, the excess of market value of the stock options 
as on the date of grant over the fair value of the options is 
recognised as deferred employee compensation cost and is 
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the vesting 
period of the options.

3.12. Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments at fair value at 
each balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be 
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement 
date. the fair value measurement is based on the presumption 
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes 
place either:

• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 

• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous 
market for the asset or liability which are accessible to the 
Company.

the fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the 
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing 
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in 
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into 
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic 
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by 
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset 
in its highest and best use.

the Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in 
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to 
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable 
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. all assets 
and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in 
the financial statements are categorized within the fair value 
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input 
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

• Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets 
for identical assets or liabilities;

• Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input 
that is significant to the fair value    measurement is directly 
or indirectly observable, or

• Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
unobservable. 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial 
statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines 
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy 
by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input 
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at 
the end of each reporting period.
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3.13. Earnings per Share

Basic Earnings per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit 
or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 
the period. the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the period and for all periods presented 
is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the 
conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the 
number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding 
change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net 
profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during 
the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential 
equity shares.

3.14. Dividends on ordinary shares

the Group recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash 
distributions to equity holders of the company when the 
distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at the 
discretion of the company. as per the corporate laws in India, a 
distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders. 
a corresponding amount is recognised directly in equity.

3.15. Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, where 
by profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of 
transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals of 
past or future cash receipts or payments. The cash flows from 
operating, investing and financing activities of the company are 
segregated based on the available information.
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4 Cash and cash equivalents

particulars as at
march 31, 2023

as at 
march 31, 2022

Balances with bank* 8.57 11.86 
Cheques, drafts on hand 84.08 - 
total 92.65 11.86 
* Balances with bank includes the amount in the name of JrG eSOp trust. 3.54 3.54 

5 trade receivables

particulars as at 
march 31, 2023

as at 
march 31, 2022

trade receivables - - 
Other receivables
receivables considered good - Unsecured 77.20 -
total 77.20 -

trade receivables ageing schedule

particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment - as at march 31, 2023
less than 6 

months
6 months - 1 

year 1-2 years 2-3 years more than 3 
years total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good  60.00  17.20  -  -  -  77.20 
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have 

significant increase in credit risk
 -  -  -  -  -  - 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired  -  -  -  -  -  - 
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables–considered good   -  -  -  -  -  - 
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – which have significant 

increase in credit risk
 -  -  -  -  -  - 

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired  -  -  -  -  -  - 
total  60.00  17.20  -  -  -  77.20 

particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment - as at march 31, 2022
less than 6 

months
6 months - 1 

year 1-2 years 2-3 years more than 3 
years total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good  -  -  -  -  -  - 
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have 

significant increase in credit risk
 -  -  -  -  -  - 

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired  -  -  -  -  -  - 
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables–considered good   -  -  -  -  -  - 
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – which have significant 

increase in credit risk
 -  -  -  -  -  - 

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired  -  -  -  -  -  - 
total  -  -  -  -  -  - 
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6 loans

particulars as at
march 31, 2023

as at
march 31, 2022

loans at amortised cost 
i) loans repayable on demand - to related party*  4,285.65  1,947.76 
ii) Others  231.27  212.58 
total (a) - Gross  4,516.92  2,160.34 
Less: Impairment loss allowance  (231.27)  (212.58)
total (a) - net  4,285.65  1,947.76 

i) Secured  -  - 
ii) Unsecured  4,516.92  2,160.34 
total (B) - Gross  4,516.92  2,160.34 
Less : Impairment loss allowance  (231.27)  (212.58)
total (B) - net  4,285.65  1,947.76 

loans in india 
i) public Sector  -  - 
ii) Others  4,285.65  1,947.76 
total - Gross  4,285.65  1,947.76 
Less: Impairment loss allowance  -  - 
total - net  4,285.65  1,947.76 
loans outside india  231.27  212.58 
Less: Impairment loss allowance  (231.27)  (212.58)
total - net  -  - 
total (C )  4,285.65  1,947.76 
*Bears an interest rate of 12% to 15% p.a.

as at march 31, 2023

type of Borrower amount of loan percentage to the 
total loans 

related party:
Inditrade Fincorp limited  3,815.39 89.03%
Inditrade technologies limited  55.80 1.30%
Inditrade Business Consultants limited  414.46 9.67%
total  4,285.65 100%

as at march 31, 2022

type of Borrower amount of loan percentage to the 
total loans 

related party:
Inditrade Fincorp limited  1,947.76 100.00%
total  1,947.76 100.00%
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7 investments

particulars

as at march 31, 2023 as at march 31, 2022
at fair value

Others total

at fair value

Others totalthrough other 
comprehensive 

income

through 
Profit or 

loss

through other 
comprehensive 

income

through 
Profit or 

loss
Equity instruments
Others  49.82  97.45  -  147.27  49.82  100.27  -  150.09 
Subsidiaries*  -  - 7,695.53  7,695.53  -  -  7,695.53  7,695.53 
associates*  -  -  64.19  64.19  -  -  125.81  125.81 
Joint Ventures  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
preference Shares  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Debentures**  -  -  1,000.00  1,000.00  -  -  1,000.00  1,000.00 
total –Gross (a)  49.82  97.45  8,759.72  8,906.99  49.82  100.27  8,821.34  8,971.43 
(i) Investments outside India  49.82  -  -  49.82  49.82  -  -  49.82 
(ii) Investments in India  -  97.45  8,759.72  8,857.17  -  100.27  8,821.34  8,921.61 
total – (B)  49.82  97.45  8,759.72  8,906.99  49.82  100.27  8,821.34  8,971.43 
Less: Impairment loss allowance (C )  (49.82)  -  -  (49.82)  (49.82)  -  -  (49.82)
total – net D= (a)-(C)  -  97.45  8,759.72  8,857.17  -  100.27  8,821.34  8,921.61 

*Investment in subsidaries and associates accounted at cost as per Ind AS 27 and 28 respectively.
**Investment in Debentures is neither measured at amortised cost nor at Fair Value and refer Note No. 28 Related party disclosures

8 Other financial assets

particulars as at 
march 31, 2023

as at 
march 31, 2022

rental deposit  7.92  8.72 
Insurance deposits  6.31  13.54 
deposit with exchange  34.00  46.00 
advances to related party  1,099.36  764.54 
Interest accrued  0.50  0.36 
advances recoverable in cash or kind  7.74  7.90 
Less: Impairment Loss Allowance  -  (1.00)
total  1,155.83  840.06 

9 Deferred tax assets (net)

particulars as at 
march 31, 2023

 as at 
31 march 2022 

provision for gratuity and bonus  2.11  - 
Impairment loss allowance  19.11  17.86 
arising from timing difference in respect of depreciation  29.71  25.22 
mat credit entitlement  231.75  231.75 
On account of fair valuation of investments  0.47  (12.61)
On account of Other Comprehensive expense  0.01  - 
total Deferred tax asset  283.16  262.22 

10 income tax
the components of income tax expense for the year ended march 31, 2023 and march 31, 2022 are:

particulars For the year ended 
march 31, 2023 

For the year ended 
march 31, 2022 

Current tax  35.29  - 
Deferred tax
 - deferred tax relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences  (20.94)  41.90 
 - mat Credit adjustment  -  - 
total tax charge  14.35  41.90 
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Current tax Asset/(Current Tax liabilities) (Net)

particulars For the year ended 
march 31, 2023

For the year ended 
march 31, 2022

Current tax liabilities (net of advance tax paid)  (48.79)  20.82 
total  (48.79)  20.82 

reconciliation of the total tax charge:
A reconciliation between the tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2023 and 
March 31, 2022 is, as follows:

particulars For the year ended 
march 31, 2023 

For the year ended 
march 31, 2022 

Accounting profit before tax  211.40  (89.31)
Enacted tax rate in india 27.82% 25.26%
expected income tax expense at enacted tax rate  58.81  - 
Tax impact on account of :
depreciation under Income-tax act at different rates  (81.67)  27.42 
expenses allowed only on payment basis  (2.11)
Impairment loss on loans and financial assets disallowed  (1.25)  1.40 
Expenses not deductible in determining taxable profits  80.76  - 
Income not taxable in determining taxable profits  (3.98)  - 
Others  (13.82)  13.08 
adjustment due to change in tax rate  1.52 
adjustment in respect of current tax for earlier years  (23.91)  - 
tax expenses pertaining to current year  14.35  41.90 
effective income tax rate 6.79% -46.92%
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss  14.35  41.90 

Deferred tax asset (net)
The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the Income tax expense:

particulars

as at 
01 april 2022 For the year ended march 31, 2023 as at 

31 march 2023 
Deferred tax 

assets
recognised in 

income Statement
recognised 

in OCi
recognised in 

retained earning
Deferred tax 

assets
provision for gratuity and bonus  2.11  -  -  2.11 
Impairment loss allowance  17.86  1.25  -  -  19.11 
arising from timing difference in respect of depreciation  25.22  4.49  -  -  29.71 
mat credit entitlement  231.75  -  -  -  231.75 
On account of Fair Valuation of Investments  (12.61)  13.08  -  -  0.47 
On account of Other Comprehensive Income  -  0.01  -  -  0.01 
total  262.22  20.94  -  -  283.16 

particulars

as at 
01 april 2021 For the year ended march 31, 2022 as at 

31 march 2022 
Deferred tax 

assets
recognised in 

income Statement
recognised 

in OCi
recognised in 

retained earning
Deferred tax 

assets
Impairment loss allowance  19.26  (1.40)  -  -  17.86 
arising from timing difference in respect of depreciation  52.64  (27.42)  -  -  25.22 
mat credit entitlement  231.75  -  -  -  231.75 
On account of Fair Valuation of Investments  0.47  (13.08)  -  -  (12.61)
total  304.12  (41.90)  -  -  262.22 
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11 property, plant and equipment, intangible assets and right of use asset

particulars v-Sat 
Equipments 

Furniture
and 

Fixtures 

Electrical 
Fittings 

Office
equipment Computers 

total - 
property 
plant and 

Equipment 

Other 
intangible 
assets - 

Computer 
Software 

Building 
(right 
of use 
asset) 

total 

Gross block 
Balance as at april 1, 2021  0.68  48.65  2.61  5.30  22.39  79.63  -  16.18  95.81 
additions  -  -  -  -  -  -  846.85  -  846.85 
deletions / write off  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Balance as at march 31, 2022  0.68  48.65  2.61  5.30  22.39  79.63  846.85  16.18  942.66 
additions  -  -  -  -  0.46  0.46  -  -  0.46 
deletions / write off  -  -  -  -  1.45  1.45  -  -  1.45 
Balance as at march 31, 2023  0.68  48.65  2.61  5.30  21.40  78.64  846.85  16.18  941.67 
accumulated depreciation 
Balance as at april 1, 2021  0.68  14.77  2.61  4.18  22.39  44.63  -  2.47  47.10 
additions  -  4.94  -  0.42  -  5.36  141.14  4.98  151.48 
deletions / write off  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Balance as at march 31, 2022  0.68  19.70  2.61  4.60  22.39  49.99  141.14  7.45  198.58 
additions  -  4.94  -  0.42  0.04  5.40  282.28  4.98  292.66 
deletions / write off  -  -  -  -  1.45  1.45  -  -  1.45 
Balance as at march 31, 2023  0.68  24.64  2.61  5.02  20.98  53.93  423.42  12.43  489.78 
net Block 
as at march 31, 2021  -  33.88  -  1.12  0.00  35.00  -  13.71  48.71 
as at march 31, 2022  -  28.94  -  0.71  -  29.64  705.71  8.73  744.08 
as at march 31, 2023  -  24.00  -  0.28  0.42  24.71  423.43  3.75  451.89 

The company has adopted Ind AS 116, which is effective from April 1, 2019 and applied the standard to its leases, using modified retrospective 
approach. accordingly, the company has not restated comparative information, instead, the cumulative effect of initially applying the standard, if any, 
has been recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings as on april 1, 2019.

12 Other non-financial assets

particluars as at 
march 31, 2023 

as at 
march 31, 2022 

tax payments pending adjustments  158.20  179.02 
prepaid expenses  1.25  2.33 
Balance with government authorities  1.09  36.87 
deposit with provident Fund authority  7.85  7.85 
Other advances  9.98  2.06 
advances recoverable in kind  4.26  18.84 
prepaid rent  0.02  0.06 
total  182.65  247.04 

13 Borrowings

particulars as at 
march 31, 2023 

as at 
march 31, 2022 

at amortised cost
unsecured 
loans repayable on demand from related party*  5,654.98  3,709.05 
loans repayable on demand from directors**  175.00  - 
total  5,829.98  3,709.05 
Borrowings in India  5,829.98  3,709.05 
Borrowings outside India  -  - 
total  5,829.98  3,709.05 

* Bears an interest rate of 12% p.a. w.r.t Inditrade Insurance Broking Pvt Ltd and 14.50% p.a. w.r.t. Inditrade Rural Marketing Ltd from January 2023 
onwards (@ 12% p.a. till December2022)

**Bears an interest rate of 12% p.a
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14 Other financial liabilities

particulars as at 
march 31, 2023

as at 
march 31, 2022

Employee Benefits payable  6.44  3.39 
Other expense payable*  64.52  56.66 
dues to related party  308.61  107.17 
Unclaimed dividend  1.77  1.77 
Financial lease liability  4.62  10.07 
total  385.96  179.06 

*Disclosure under micro, Small and medium Enterprises Development act, 2006

particulars as at 
march 31, 2023 

as at 
march 31, 2022 

principal amount remaining unpaid as at the year end  2.75  2.75 
Interest accrued there on and remaining unpaid as at the year end  -  - 
the amount of interest paid by the buyer under mSmed act, 2006 along with the amounts of the 
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

 -  - 

the amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been 
paid but beyond the appointed day during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the 
mSmed act, 2006

 -  - 

the amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of accounting year  -  - 
the amount of further interest due and payable even in the succeeding year, until such date when the 
interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprise, for the purpose of disallowance as a 
deductible expenditure under section 23 of mSmed act, 2006

 -  - 

Balance of micro and Small Enterprises  2.75  2.75 

15 Other non-financial liabilities

particulars as at 
march 31, 2023

as at 
march 31, 2022

Statutory dues payable  23.38  9.06 
total  23.38  9.06 

16 Equity share capital

particulars as at march 31, 2023 as at march 31, 2022 
no. of Shares amount no. of Shares amount

authorised Share Capital:
equity shares of rs.10/- each 4,00,00,000  4,000.00 4,00,00,000  4,000.00 
issued, subscribed and paid up capital:
equity shares of rs.10/- each, fully paid 2,33,53,626  2,335.36 2,33,53,626  2,335.36 
Less : Shares held by the Employees Stock option payment trust ("JRG ESOP Trust")
(refer note no. 35)

 (67,125)  (6.71)  (67,125)  (6.71)

total  23,286,501  2,328.65  23,286,501  2,328.65 

a) reconciliation of number of equity shares and equity share capital

particulars as at march 31, 2023 as at march 31, 2022 
no.of Shares amount no.of Shares amount

Balance as at the beginning of the year 2,33,53,626  2,335.36 2,33,53,626  2,335.36 
Add: Shares issued during the year  -  -  -  - 
Balance as at the end of the year 2,33,53,626  2,335.36 2,33,53,626  2,335.36 

reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding in JrG ESOp trust 

particulars as at march 31, 2023 as at march 31, 2022 
no.of Shares amount no.of Shares amount

at the beginning and at the end of the year  67,125  6.71  67,125  6.71 



82 IndItrade CapItal lImIted

nOtES
to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (All amounts are Indian Rupees in Lacs unless stated otherwise)

b) Terms/ Rights attached to equity shares
the Company has only one class of shares of equity share having a par value of rs.10 per share. each holder of the equity share is entitled to one 
vote per share. the Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. the dividend proposed (if any) by the Board of directors is subject to the 
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing annual General meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be 
entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. However, no such preferential amounts 
exist currently. the distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

c) Details of the shares held by holding company

name of Shareholder as at march 31, 2023  as at march 31, 2022
no.of Shares % of Holding no. of Shares % of Holding 

Juno moneta technologies private limited 1,70,45,511 72.99% 1,70,45,511 72.99%

d) Details of the shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

name of Shareholder as at march 31, 2023 as at march 31, 2022 
no.of Shares % of Holding no. of Shares % of Holding 

Juno moneta technologies private limited 1,70,45,511 72.99% 1,70,45,511 72.99%

For the period of 5 years immediately preceding the date of Balance sheet
e) Aggregate number & class of shares bought back by the company Nil
f)  Aggregate number & class of shares allotted by the company as fully paid up by way of bonus shares Nil
g)  Aggregate number & class of shares allotted by the company as fully paid up pursuance to contracts without receipt of cash Nil
h) Details of the shares reserved for issue under options
During the financial year 2005-06 the Company had implemented an “Employee Stock Option Plan, 2005” which was subsequently superseded by the 
“Employees Stock Option Plan, 2008” in the financial year 2007-08. The options granted as per the above schemes were forfeited and there were no 
exercisable options as at the beginning of the financial year 2016-17. However, pursuant to the aforesaid schemes, 67,125 equity shares of Rs.10 
each were allotted to JrG eSOp trust which remain with the trust.
ESOp 2016
During the financial year 2016-17 the said Employees Stock Option Plan, 2008 has been amended to align with the new regulations, viz., the 
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (Formerly the SEBI (Share Based Employee 
Benefits) Regulations, 2014) and to rationalise the provisions within the ESOP framework as originally approved. The scheme post amendment has 
been renamed as “Inditrade employees Stock Option plan 2016 (“eSOp 2016”)”.

the eSOp 2016 plan was approved on august 30, 2016 at the annual General meeting of Shareholders and subsequently considered and actioned 
upon by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on February 06, 2017 and was effective from the said date.The plan has been further amended 
at the Annual General Meeting held on August 03, 2018 and actioned upon by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on February 04, 2019 
and designated as eSOp 2016 - plan II for disclosure. the Company has approved the grant of a further 12,50,000 stock options in the nomination 
remuneration Committee meeting held on march 12, 2020. the same has been designated as eSOp 2016 - plan III for the purpose of disclosure.

The objective of the plan is to encourage ownership of the Company’s equity by its employees on an ongoing basis. The ESOP 2016 is intended 
to reward the employees for their contribution to the successful operation of Inditrade Capital limited and to provide an incentive to continue 
contributing to the success of the Company. The basic terms of the options granted under ESOP 2016 plan are as under:
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particulars ESOp 2016 ESOp 2016 - plan ii ESOp 2016 - 
plan iii

Grant date 07-02-2017 05-02-2019 13-03-2020
Options Granted 7,94,500 12,91,500 12,26,000
exercise price (rs. per option) Rs.37.75 Rs.43.20 Rs.38.57
Share price at Grant date - in rs. Rs.36.40 Rs.40.90 Rs.36.70
Vesting period 4 Years 

(25% for each year)
4 Years 

(25% for each year)
4 Years 

(25% for each year)
exercise period 3 years from the 

date of vesting
3 years from the 
date of vesting

3 years from the 
date of vesting

method of accounting Fair value method Fair value method Fair value method
Weighted average fair value per option - in rs. rs.16.56 rs.21.10 Rs.15.74
Options Vested during the year  nil  177,825  240,813 
Options exercised during the year  nil  nil  nil 
Options outstanding at the end of the year 2,33,500 7,11,300 9,63,250
a description of the method used during the year to estimate the fair values of 
Options, the weighted average exercise prices and weighted average fair values of 
Options granted

the fair value of each Option is estimated using the Black 
Scholes Option pricing model.

The significant assumptions used to ascertain the above: ESOp 2016 ESOp 2016 plan ii ESOp 2016 plan iii
(i) risk-free interest rate 6.45% 7.29% 6.11%
(ii) time to maturity 4 years 4.5 years 4.5 years
(iii) expected volatility 61.97% 55.76% 58.30%
(iv) expected dividends 2.06% 0.00% 2.72%
(v) the price of the underlying shares in market at the time of Option grant - in rs. Rs.36.40 Rs.40.90 Rs.36.70
methodology for determination of expected volatility annualised standard deviation of the continuously 

compounded rates of return over a period prior to the date of 
grant, corresponding with the expected life of the option

Shareholding of promoters 
as at march 31, 2023

Sr. no. promoter name no. of Shares %of total 
shares

% Change 
during the year

1. Juno moneta technologies private limited 1,70,45,511 72.99%  - 
2. mr. Sudip Bandyopadhyay  50,000 0.21%  - 
3. A T Invofin India Private Limited 1,00,000 0.43%  - 

total 1,71,95,511 73.63% 0.00%

as at march 31, 2022

Sr. no. promoter name no. of Shares %of total 
shares

% Change 
during the year

1. Juno moneta technologies private limited 1,70,45,511 72.99%  - 
2. mr. Sudip Bandyopadhyay  50,000 0.21%  - 
3. A T Invofin India Private Limited 1,00,000 0.43%  - 

total 1,71,45,511 73.63% 0.00%
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17 Other equity

particulars as at 
march 31, 2023

as at 
march 31, 2022

retained earnings
Opening Balance  528.41  659.62 
Profit for the Year  197.04  (131.21)
Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss  725.45  528.41 

Other comprehensive income
Opening balance  (11.22)  (11.22)
Other comprehensive income for the year  (0.02)  - 
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit plans  (11.24)  (11.22)

Capital reserve  719.55  719.55 
Securities premium reserve  4,973.50  4,973.50 

Share Based payments reserve
Opening Balance  388.15  310.95 
Add: During the year  (57.98)  77.20 
Share Based payments reserve  330.17  388.15 

General reserve  129.59  129.59 
total  6,867.02  6,728.00 

nature and purpose of reserves
Capital reserve:
Capital reserve represents the reserve created on account of non exercise of option within the stipulated time by the erstwhile promoters, to convert 
equity share warrants into equity shares, hence the amount received from the erstwhile promoters was forfeited and the Board of directors approved 
the transfer of the said amount to the credit of capital reserve.

Securities premium reserve:
Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. the reserve can be utilised only for limited purposes such as issuance 
of bonus shares in accordance with the provisions of the Companies act, 2013.

Share based payments reserve: 
the share based payments reserve is used to recognise the grant date fair value of option issued to employees under employee stock option scheme.

General reserve: 
General reserve represents the transfer of amount from employee Stock Option outstanding on account of forfeiture.

18 interest income

particulars For the year ended
 march 31, 2023

For the year ended
 march 31, 2022

Interest on loans  332.85  29.28 
Interest income from investments  140.00  78.63 
Interest on deposits with banks  0.15  12.14 
total  473.00  120.04 

19 net gain on fair value changes

particulars For the year ended
march 31, 2023

For the year ended
march 31, 2022

Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 
- Investments  -  5.80 
Fair Value Changes
- realised  -  - 
- Unrealised  -  5.80 
Total Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes  -  5.80 
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20 Sale of Services

particulars For the year ended
march 31, 2023

For the year ended
march 31, 2022

Income from financial distribution support services  638.44  301.33 
total  638.44  301.33 

21 Other income

particulars For the year ended
march 31, 2023

For the year ended
march 31, 2022

net gain or loss on foreign currency transaction and translation  18.69  6.45 
Less: provision  (18.69)  (6.45)
Profit on sale of investment  22.46  102.70 
Profit on sale of Fixed Asset  0.09  - 
provision written back  -  4.55 
Other non operating income  15.37  12.61 
liabilities written back  17.14  - 
total  55.06  119.85 

22 Finance Cost

particulars For the year ended 
march 31, 2023

For the year ended 
march 31, 2022

Interest expense on lease liability  1.16  1.90 
Interest on loans from institutions and others  578.12  209.05 
total  579.28  210.95 

23 net loss on fair value changes

particulars For the year ended 
march 31, 2023 

For the year ended 
march 31, 2022 

Net Loss on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 
- Investments  2.82  - 
Fair Value Changes
- realised  -  - 
- Unrealised  -  - 
total  2.82  - 

24 Employee Benefit Expenses

particulars For the year ended 
march 31, 2023 

For the year ended 
march 31, 2022 

Salaries and Wages  21.13  12.24 
Contribution to provident and other funds  0.54  0.48 
Staff welfare expenses  0.94  1.22 
eSOp expenses  -  0.38 
total  22.61  14.31 



86 IndItrade CapItal lImIted

nOtES
to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (All amounts are Indian Rupees in Lacs unless stated otherwise)

25 Other Expenses

particulars For the year ended 
march 31, 2023 

For the year ended 
march 31, 2022 

advertisement and publicity  1.29  1.21 
Communication Costs  0.62  0.89 
registrations and renewals  0.67  0.66 
rent,taxes and energy costs  3.07  1.89 
repairs and maintenance  0.38  0.20 
travelling expenses  0.43  0.45 
Insurance charges  2.30  2.22 
Other trading expenses  4.85  3.77 
Office and Branch Expenses  3.47  - 
Directors Commission ( Refer note 28)  6.00  6.00 
printing and Stationery  5.06  0.01 
legal and professional Charges  11.07  8.09 
Auditor's Remuneration ( Refer note 33)  3.76  3.83 
Bad debts written off  4.13  - 
Bank and Other Charges  0.01  0.01 
Director Sitting Fees ( Refer note 28)  10.00  10.40 
loss on derecognition of Investment  -  218.84 
Other expenditure  0.63  1.13 
total  57.74  259.60 

26 Earnings per share 
Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity holders of the Company by weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of the Company by weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential 
ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

Earnings per equity share

particulars For the year ended 
march 31, 2023

For the year ended 
march 31, 2022

Earnings 
Profit / (Loss) for the year (Rs. In Lacs) ( A )  197.04  (131.21)
Shares
number of shares at the beginning and at the end of the year (in nos.) (Basic) ( B ) 2,32,86,501 2,32,86,501
Add: weighted average number of shares arising out of shares to be issued to Employees  -  - 
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year (in nos.) (diluted) (C) 2,32,86,501 2,32,86,501
Basic earnings per share (A/B) - in Rs.  0.85  (0.56)
Diluted earnings per share (A/C) - in Rs.  0.85  (0.56) 
Face value per share - in rs.  10.00  10.00 
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27 Employee benefits
a) Defined contribution plan
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the Company pays fixed contributions and where there is no legal or 
constructive obligation to make further contributions. 

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plans, recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss is as under:

particulars For the year ended 
march 31, 2023 

For the year ended 
march 31, 2022 

Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund  0.77  0.77 
Employer's Contribution to Employee State Insurance  -  - 

b) Defined benefit plans
The Company has funded the gratuity liability ascertained on actuarial basis. The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 
wherein every employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefit provided depends on the employee’s 
length of service and salary at retirement age. 

The plans in India typically expose the Company to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, liquidity risk, longevity risk, salary risk and legislative risk.

investment risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to government 
bond yields. the present value of plan assets is independent of the future discount rate. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a 
plan deficit.

liquidity risk: Employees with high salaries and long durations, accumulate significant level of benefits. If some of such employees resign/ retire 
from the company, there can be strain on the cashflows.

longevity risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants 
both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Salary risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an 
increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

legislative risk: It is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due to change in legislation/ regulation. any amendment 
in The Payment of Gratuity Act with respect to benefits to employees will directly affect the present value of the Defined benefit obligation.

There are no other post-retirement benefits provided to employees.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at 31 March 2023 by 
M/S Kapadia Global Actuaries. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were 
measured using the projected unit credit method.



88 IndItrade CapItal lImIted

Gratuity (funded)

particulars For the year ended 
march 31, 2023 

For the year ended 
march 31, 2022 

liability recognized in the Balance Sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligation
Opening Balance  0.09  1.99 
Current Service Cost  0.31  0.33 
Interest Cost  0.01  0.13 
Due to change in financial assumptions  (0.01)  (0.01)
due to experience adjustment  0.01  (0.28)
Benefits paid  -  (2.06)
Closing Balance  0.41  0.09 
Less: Fair Value of Plan Assets
Opening Balance  7.50  7.02 
Interest income  0.55  0.47 
return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income  (0.05)  0.01 
Closing Balance  7.99  7.50 
Net Liability/ (Asset)  (7.59)  (7.40)
Expenses during the year  nil  nil 
transfer in obligation  -  - 
Current Service cost  -  - 
net interest cost  -  - 
Component of defined benefit cost recognized in statement of profit & loss  -  - 
Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability
 - Actuarial Loss/(Gain) on defined benefit obligation  -  - 
 - actuarial loss/(Gain) on plan assets  -  - 
Component of defined benefit cost recognized in other
comprehensive income

 -  - 

actual return on plan assets  0.50  0.47 
Break up of plan assets:
policy of insurance 100% 100%

principal actuarial assumptions

particulars For the year ended 
march 31, 2023

For the year ended 
march 31, 2022

discount rate 7.50% 7.25%
expected rate(s) of salary increase 7.00% 7.00%
Withdrawal rate 4.00% 4.00%
mortality rate during employment Indian assured lives mortality  

(2012-14) Table

expected return on plan assets is based on expectation of the average long term rate of return expected on investments of the fund during the 
estimated term of the obligations after considering several applicable factors such as the composition of plan assets, investment strategy, market 
scenario, etc.

The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, 
such as supply and demand in the employment market.

the discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of 
the obligations.

nOtES
to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (All amounts are Indian Rupees in Lacs unless stated otherwise)
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The amount included in the financial statements arising from the entity’s obligation in respect of its defined benefit plan is as follows:

particulars For the year ended 
march 31, 2023

For the year ended 
march 31, 2022

Defined Benefit Obligation  0.41  0.09 
plan assets  7.99  7.50 
Net (liability) /asset arising from defined benefit obligation  7.59  7.40 
Amount recognised in the financial statements  nil  nil 

Sensitivity analysis:
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and withdrawal 
rate. the sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end 
of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

particulars
Impact on Defined benefit obligation

For the year ended march 31, 2023 For the year ended march 31, 2022
increase Decrease increase Decrease

discount rate (0.5% movement)  0.38  0.44  0.09  0.10 
Future salary growth (0.5% movement)  0.44  0.38  0.10  0.09 
Withdrawal rate (10% movement)  0.40  0.41  0.09  0.10 

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the 
change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.

Maturity profile of Defined benefit Obligation:

Expected Cashflow For the year ended
march 31, 2023 march 31, 2022

Year 1 cashflow  0.00  0.00 
Year 2 cashflow  0.00  0.00 
Year 3 cashflow  0.00  0.00 
Year 4 cashflow  0.02  0.00 
Year 5 cashflow  0.02  0.01 
Year 6 to Year 10 cashflow  0.13  0.03 

The expected contribution for the next year is 0.80 Lacs (previous year - Rs.0.15 Lacs). The weighted average duration as at March 31, 2023 is 13.37 
years (previous year - 13.21 years).
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28 related party disclosures
a. names of related parties and nature of relationship:

Holding Company Juno moneta technologies private limited
Entities/person having significant influence on the company mr. Sudip Bandyopadhyay
Subsidiary and step down subsidiary Companies / Entities under common control Inditrade Fincorp limited 

Inditrade Business Consultants limited
Inditrade Microfinance Limited
Inditrade technologies limited 
Inditrade Scalerator limited
Inditrade Community Foundation
Inditrade rural marketing limited 

associate company Inditrade Insurance Broking private limited 
key managerial personnel mr. naveen Kumar Jain, CFO (till november 03, 2022)

mr. ravi prakash Jain, CFO (From may 02, 2023)
maya menon, manager cum Company Secretary

Balances with related parties

particulars as at as at
march 31, 2023 march 31, 2022

Advances given/repiad to/(taken from) (net)
Inditrade Fincorp limited  778.42  132.60 
Inditrade Business Consultants limited  41.95  (105.99)
Inditrade technologies limited  43.23  (1.18)
Inditrade Community Foundation  -  0.15 
Inditrade rural marketing limited  (157.84)  182.72 
Inditrade Microfinance Limited  11.88  76.86 
Inditrade Scalerator limited  (149.67)  25.91 
Inditrade Insurance Broking private limited  (1.11)  1.07 

Loans Given / (taken)
Inditrade Fincorp limited  3,815.39  1,947.76 
Inditrade Business Consultants limited  414.46  (1,906.91)
Inditrade rural marketing limited  (5,442.48)  (1,708.65)
Inditrade Insurance Broking private limited  (212.50)  (92.42)
Inditrade technologies limited  55.80  - 

transactions with related parties (contd..)

particulars For the year ended
march 31, 2023 march 31, 2022

Sale of investment
Juno moneta technologies private limited  84.08  130.94 

Corporate Guarantee Commission income (inclusive of GSt)
Inditrade Fincorp limited  5.60  2.56 
Inditrade Business Consultants limited  2.04  2.71 
Inditrade Microfinance Limited  10.12  8.84 

Business Support income (including GSt)
Inditrade Fincorp limited  -  141.60 
Inditrade rural marketing limited 416.37  208.18 

nOtES
to the standalone financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (All amounts are Indian Rupees in Lacs unless stated otherwise)
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transactions with related parties (contd..)

particulars For the year ended
march 31, 2023 march 31, 2022

Reimbursement of expenses (paid)/ recovered (net)
Inditrade Fincorp limited 1197.07 19.82
Inditrade Business Consultants limited 53.34 2.69
Inditrade technologies limited  42.25  13.49 
Inditrade rural marketing limited 10.64 11.10
Inditrade Microfinance Limited  28.35 56.70
Inditrade Scalerator limited 17.74 19.20
Inditrade Insurance Broking private limited 6.50 10.54

interest income (inclusive of tDS)
Inditrade Fincorp limited 348.60 21.76
Inditrade Business Consultants limited 146.12 78.63
Inditrade technologies limited 2.40 1.68
Inditrade rural marketing limited  - 3.60
Inditrade Insurance Broking private limited  - 2.24

interest expense (inclusive of tDS)
Inditrade Fincorp limited  (24.29)  (12.11)
Inditrade Business Consultants limited  (63.81)  (150.50)
Inditrade rural marketing limited  (470.59)  (43.11)
Inditrade Scalerator limited  (16.88)  - 
Inditrade Insurance Broking private limited  (12.64)  (3.32)

Advance given / (received) (Net)
Inditrade Fincorp limited  (848.25)  (50.43)
Inditrade Business Consultants limited  18.66  (59.04)
Inditrade rural marketing limited  (308.75)  12.40 
Inditrade Microfinance Limited  (102.59)  - 
Inditrade Scalerator limited  (176.44)  - 
Inditrade Insurance Broking private limited  2.69  (17.58)

loan given 
Inditrade Fincorp limited  10,035.39  - 
Inditrade Business Consultants limited  618.83  - 
Inditrade technologies limited  102.10  10.50 
Inditrade Insurance Broking private limited  -  154.15 

loan repayment received
Inditrade Fincorp limited  (8,167.76)  - 
Inditrade Business Consultants limited  (204.38)  - 
Inditrade rural marketing limited -  - 
Inditrade technologies limited  (46.30)  (34.00)
Inditrade Insurance Broking private limited  (220.65)

Borrowings (received)
Inditrade Fincorp limited -  (5,212.56)
Inditrade Insurance Broking private limited  (370.83)  (315.25)
Inditrade Business Consultants limited  (495.66)  (4,052.07)
Inditrade rural marketing limited  (8,270.61)  (5,122.10)
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transactions with related parties (contd..)

particulars For the year ended
march 31, 2023 march 31, 2022

Borrowings repaid
Inditrade Fincorp limited  -  7,434.29 
Inditrade Insurance Broking private limited  251.83  222.83 
Inditrade Business Consultants limited  2,402.57  2,234.09 
Inditrade rural marketing limited  4,536.78  3,834.53 

remuneration paid to key management personnel march 31, 2023 march 31, 2022 
Short term employee benefits
ms. maya menon  12.98  7.97 
mr. Vinod mohan  -  5.35 
Sitting fees paid to directors  10.00  10.40 
Commission paid to Directors  6.00  6.00 

Disclosure pursuant to SEBi (listing Obligations and Disclosure requirements) regulation, 2015

particulars of loans Given*
march 31, 2023 march 31, 2022 

transactions 
during the year 

maximum amount 
outstanding during the year 

transactions 
during the year 

maximum amount 
outstanding during the year 

Inditrade Fincorp limited  10,035.39  4,188.82  -  - 
Inditrade Business Consultants limited  618.83  414.46  -  - 
Inditrade Insurance Broking private limited  -  -  154.15  82.05 
Inditrade technologies limited  102.10  102.10  10.50  34.00 

particulars of investment made
march 31, 2023 march 31, 2022 

transactions 
during the year 

maximum amount 
outstanding during the year 

transactions 
during the year 

maximum amount 
outstanding during the year

Equity Shares
Inditrade Business Consultants limited  -  610.00  -  610.00 
Inditrade rural marketing limited  -  29.76  (963.34)  993.10 
Inditrade Fincorp limited  -  2,500.00  -  2,500.00 
Inditrade Microfinance Limited  -  3,455.58  -  3,455.58 
Inditrade Insurance Broking private limited  (61.62)  125.81  (28.24)  154.05 
Inditrade technologies limited  -  1,100.00  -  1,100.00 
digion techsol private limited  
(Formerly known as robocash private limited)

 -  100.27  -  100.27 

Inditrade Community Foundation  -  0.20  -  0.20 
Debenture
Inditrade Business Consultants limited  -  1,000.00  1,000.00  1,000.00 

particulars of Guarantees given** march 31, 2023 march 31, 2022
Inditrade Fincorp limited  3,900.00  6,522.00 
Inditrade Microfinance Limited  31,000.00  16,579.00 
Inditrade rural marketing limited  100.00  - 
Inditrade Business Consultants limited  12,800.00  1,344.00 
total  47,800.00  24,445.00 

* loans given to the subsidiaries and associates are for the purpose of meeting the short term working capital requirement of the subsidiaries and 
associates.

** Guarantees given are in the nature of corporate guarantees on behalf of the subsidiaries for the purpose of availing loans from Banks & Non 
Banking financial Companies.
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29 Disclosure as required by ind aS 116
as lessee:
the Company has entered into commercial leases for leasing of premises. these leases have an average life of 3 years which are renewable on 
a periodic basis by mututal consent of both parties. there is no restriction imposed by lease arrangements such as those concerning dividends, 
additional debts etc.
particulars march 31, 2023 march 31, 2022
(a) depreciation charge for right of Use assets  4.98  4.98 
(b) Interest expense on lease liabilities  1.16  1.90 
(c) expense relating to short-term leases accounted for applying paragraph 6 of Ind aS 116*  -  - 
(d) expense relating to leases of low-value assets accounted for applying paragraph 6 of Ind aS 116*  -  - 
(e) expense relating to variable lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities  -  - 
(f) Income from subleasing of right-of-use assets earned during the period  -  - 
(g) Total cash outflow for leases during the period  6.61  6.16 
(h) additions to right-of-use assets  -  - 
(i) Gains or losses arising from sale and lease back transaction during the year  -  - 
(j) Carrying amount of right-of-use assets at the end of the reporting period  3.75  8.73 

maturity analysis of lease liabilities
particulars < 1 year 1-5 years > 5 years total
as at 31-03-2023  4.62  -  -  4.62 
as at 31-03-2022  5.45  4.62  -  10.07 

*the company has elected to apply para 6 of Ind aS 116 for short term leases. as per the same, the company has recognised the lease payments 
associated with those leases as an expenses in the Statement of profit and loss account.

30 Financial instruments
a. Capital risk management

The primary objective of the company's capital management policy is to ensure that the company maintains healthy capital ratio in order to 
support its business and to maximise shareholders' value. The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it according 
to changes in economic conditions and the risk characteristics of its activities. the capital is mainly funded by equity. there is no change to the 
objectives, policies and processes as compared to the previous year. However, they are under constant review by the Board.

B. Categories of financial instruments

particulars march 31, 2023 march 31, 2022
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value

Financial assets
measured at amortised cost
loans  4,285.65  4,285.65  1,947.76  1,947.76 
Other financial assets  1,155.83  1,155.83  840.06  840.06 
Other receivables  77.20  77.20  -  - 
Cash and cash equivalents  92.65  92.65  11.86  11.86 
Investments  8,759.72  8,759.72  8,821.34  8,867.20 
Total financial assets at amortised cost (A)  14,371.05  14,371.05  11,621.03  11,666.89 
measured at fair value through other comprehensive 
income (B)

 -  -  -  - 

Measured at fair value through profit and loss (C )  -  -  -  - 
Investments  97.45  97.45  100.27  100.27 
Total financial assets (A+B+C)  14,468.50  14,468.50  11,721.29  11,767.15 

Financial liabilities
measured at amortised cost
Borrowings  5,829.98  5,829.98  3,709.05  3,709.05 
Other financial liabilities  385.96  385.96  179.06  179.06 
Total financial liabilities carried at amortised cost  6,215.94  6,215.94  3,888.11  3,888.11 
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C. Financial risk management
the Company has an audit Committee established by its Board of directors for overseeing the risk management Framework and developing and 
monitoring the Company’s risk management policies. The risk management policies are established to ensure timely identification and evaluation 
of risks, setting acceptable risk thresholds, identifying and mapping controls against these risks, monitor the risks and their limits, improve risk 
awareness and transparency. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in the market conditions and 
the Company’s activities to provide reliable information to the Management and the Board to evaluate the adequacy of the risk management 
framework in relation to the risk faced by the Company.

The risk management policies aims to mitigate the following risks arising from the financial instruments:
- market risk
- Credit risk
- liquidity risk

D. market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the market prices.

E. Credit risk management
Credit risk refers to the risk that a counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Company. Credit risk 
encompasses of both, the direct risk of default and the risk of deterioration of credit worthiness as well as concentration risks. Company’s credit 
risk arises principally from loans and investments. exposure pertaining to these are substantially with its subsidiaries. accordingly, there are no 
significant credit risks.

F. liquidity risk management
Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the company will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations associated with financial liabilities that are 
settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. It arises due to shortage of liquid funds in a situation where business conditions unexpectedly 
deteriorate and requiring financing. Being a unregistered core investment company, the Company has adequate cash and cash equivalents to 
maintain liquidity. the Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves, by continuously monitoring forecast and actual cash 
flows and by matching the maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.
The following tables detail the Company’s remaining contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities with agreed repayment periods 
and its non-derivative financial assets. The tables have been drawn up based on the undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on the 
earliest date on which the Company can be required to pay. The tables include both interest and principal cash flows.

liquidity exposure as at march 31, 2023
particulars < 1 year 1-5 years > 5 years total
Financial assets
loans  4,285.65  -  -  4,285.65 
Other financial assets  1,128.39  26.19  1.25  1,155.83 
Other receivables  77.20  -  -  77.20 
Cash and cash equivalents  92.65  -  -  92.65 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents  -  -  -  - 
Investments  -  -  8,857.17  8,857.17 
Total financial assets  5,583.89  26.19  8,858.42  14,468.50 
Financial liabilities
Borrowings  5,829.98  -  -  5,829.98 
Other financial liabilities  385.96  -  -  385.96 
Total financial liabilities  6,215.94  -  -  6,215.94 
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liquidity exposure as at march 31, 2022
particulars < 1 year 1-5 years > 5 years total
Financial assets
loans  1,947.76  -  -  1,947.76 
Other financial assets  789.31  41.97  8.78  840.06 
Cash and cash equivalents  11.86  -  -  11.86 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents  -  -  -  - 
Investments  -  -  8,921.61  8,921.61 
Total financial assets  2,748.93  41.97  8,930.39  11,721.30 
Financial liabilities
Borrowings  3,709.05  -  -  3,709.05 
Other financial liabilities  174.44  4.62  -  179.06 
Total financial liabilities  3,883.49  4.62  -  3,888.11 

G. Level wise disclosure of financial instruments

particulars march 31, 
2023

march 31, 
2022

level valuation techniques 
and key inputs

Investment in equity other than Subsidiary/ associate  97.45  100.27 3 Discounted cash flow
Investment in associate*  171.67  - 3 Discounted cash flow

*Investment in Inditrade Insurance Broking private limited is converted from Subisiday to associate on 03-11-2021
The carrying amounts of borrowings, loans, trade receivables, trade payables, cash and cash equivalents, other bank balances and other financial 
assets and liabilities other than those disclosed in the above table, are considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their short term nature.

31 maturity analysis of assets and liabilities
the table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled.

particulars march 31, 2023 march 31, 2022 
within 12 months after 12 months total within 12 months after 12 months total

assets
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents  92.65  -  92.65  11.86  -  11.86 
receivables
(I) trade receivables  - -  - - - -
Other receivables  77.20  -  77.20  -  -  - 
loans  4,285.65  -  4,285.65  1,947.76  -  1,947.76 
Investments  -  8,857.17  8,857.17  -  8,921.61  8,921.61 
Other financial assets  1,128.39  27.44  1,155.83  789.31  50.75  840.06 
Non-financial Assets
Current tax asset  -  48.79  48.79  -  -  - 
deferred tax assets (net)  -  283.16  283.16  -  262.22  262.22 
property, plant and equipment  -  24.71  24.71  -  29.64  29.64 
Other intangible assets  -  423.43  423.43  -  705.71  705.71 
right-of-use asset  -  3.75  3.75  -  8.73  8.73 
Other non financial assets  5.51  177.14  182.65  18.05  228.99  247.04 
total assets  5,589.40  9,845.59  15,434.99  2,766.98  10,207.65  12,974.63 
liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings  5,829.98  -  5,829.98  3,709.05  -  3,709.05 
Other Financial liabilities  385.96  -  385.96  174.44  4.62  179.06 
Non-financial Liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net)  -  -  -  20.82  -  20.82 
Other non-financial liabilities  23.38  -  23.38  9.06  -  9.06 
total liabilities  6,239.32  -  6,239.32  3,913.37  4.62  3,917.99 
net  (649.92)  9,845.59  9,195.67  (1,146.39)  10,203.02  9,056.64 
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32 Contingent liabilities and Commitments:

particulars as at  
march 31, 2023

as at  
march 31, 2022

1. Guarantees
a) Guarantees on behalf of subsidiary companies  47,800.00  24,445.00 

2. Other contingent liabilities
a) Income tax matters, pending decisions on various appeals made by the company and by the 

department
 260.42  133.81 

b) Other claims against the company not acknowledged as debt  29.16  28.17 
c) Service tax demand disputed in appeal  44.76  66.12 

33 auditors remuneration (Excluding GSt)

particulars For the year ended 
march 31, 2023 march 31, 2022

audit fee  3.65  3.65 
Other services - Certification  -  0.10 
reimbursement of expenses  0.11  0.08 
total  3.76  3.83 

34 Segment information:
There are no reportable segments to be disclosed in the standalone financial statements in terms of Ind AS 108.

35 JrG ESOp trust
as per the requirements of Securities exchange Board of India (employee Stock Option Scheme and employee Stock purchase Scheme) Guidelines 
1999 (‘SEBI guidelines’), since the stock option plans of 2005 and 2008 schemes are administered through a trust, the accounts of the Company are 
prepared as if the Company itself is administering the employee stock option plan. pursuant to such requirement of the SeBI guidelines the equity 
shares issued to the JrG eSOp trust and not exercised by the employees as on 31 march 2023 have been presented as a deduction from the share 
capital. the bank balance of the JrG eSOp trust as on 31 march 2023 net of the loan granted and capital contribution to the JrG eSOp trust by the 
Company has been presented as bank balance of the Company.

36 micro, Small and medium Enterprises Development act, 2006
The management has identified enterprises which have provided goods and services to the company and which qualify under the definition of 
"Micro and Small Enterprises" as defined under Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006 ("the Act"). Accordingly, based on the 
information received and available with the company, there are no amounts payable to such enterprises other than as disclosed in note no.13 to the 
financial statements.

37 reconciliation of provisions as at the Beginning and End of the year

particulars For the year ended 
march 31, 2023 march 31, 2022

impairment loss for doubtful debts
Balance as at the beginning of the year  68.69  69.24 
Less: Provision utilised  -  - 
Less: Provision written back  -  (0.55)
Balance as at the end of the year  68.69  68.69 
Impairment loss for doubtful loans and financial assets
Balance as at the beginning of the year  213.58  207.13 
Add: Additional provision created during the year  18.69  6.45 
Less: Provision utilised  -  - 
Less: Provision written back  (1.00)  - 
Balance as at the end of the year  231.27  213.58 
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38 additional regulatory information
ratios
Sr. no. ratios Comments

1 Capital to risk-weighted assets ratio (Crar) not applicable
As per the RBI Circular reference - RBI/2014-15/299 DNBR (PD) CC.  
No. 002/03.10.001/2014-15, the NBFCs-ND with asset size of less than  
rs. 500 crore, are exempted from the requirement of maintaining Crar.

2 tier I Crar
3 tier II Crar

4 liquidity Coverage ratio not applicable

39 utilisation of Borrowed funds
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kinds of funds) by 
the company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign ("Intermediaries") with the understanding whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the Company (Ultimate Beneficiaries).
the Company has not received any fund from any party(s) (Funding party) with the Understanding that the company shall whether, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Company ("Ultimate Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

40 Standards issued but not yet effective
Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) rules as issued from time to time. On 31 march 2023, mCa amended the Companies (Indian accounting Standards) amendment rules, 
2023, as below:

Ind aS 1 - presentation of Financial Statements - this amendment requires the entities to disclose their material accounting policies rather than 
their significant accounting policies. The effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 01 April 2023. The 
Company has evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is insignificant in the Company’s financial statements.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors - This amendment has introduced a definition of accounting estimates’ 
and included amendments to Ind AS 8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies from changes in accounting estimates. The 
effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 01 april 2023. the Company has evaluated the amendment 
and there is no impact on its financial statements.

Ind aS 12 - Income taxes - this amendment has narrowed the scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not apply to transactions that 
give rise to equal and offsetting temporary differences. the effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 01 
April 2023. The Company has evaluated the amendment and there is no impact on its financial statement.

41 Previous year figures have been reclassified / regrouped wherever necessary to conform to the current year’s classification.

as per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of directors of
 inditrade Capital limited
For Haribhakti & Co. llp
Chartered accountants Sudip Bandyopadhyay Jhuma Guha
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 103523W / W100048 Director Director
 DIN: 00007382 DIN: 00007454
S. Sundararaman 
partner maya menon ravi prakash Jain
Membership No.: 028423 Manager cum Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
 Membership No.: 20656

Place: Chennai Place: Mumbai
Date: 25 May, 2023 Date: 25 May, 2023
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to the members of inditrade Capital limited

report on the audit of the Consolidated ind aS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements inditrade Capital limited (hereinafter referred to as “the 
Holding Company”) and its subsidiaries (the Holding Company and 
its subsidiaries together referred to as “the Group”), and its associate 
, comprising of the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at march 31, 
2023, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Statement of Changes in 
equity and the Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year 
then ended, and notes to the consolidated Ind AS financial statements 
including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other 
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as “consolidated Ind 
AS financial statements”).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the 
explanations given to us and based on the consideration of reports of 
other auditors on separate Ind AS financial statements and on the other 
financial information of the subsidiaries and associate, the aforesaid 
consolidated Ind AS financial statements give the information required by 
the Companies act, 2013 (“the act”) in the manner so required and give a 
true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India including the Indian accounting Standards (“Ind aS”) 
prescribed under section 133 of the act, read with the Companies (Indian 
accounting Standards) rules, 2015, as amended, of the consolidated 
state of affairs of the Group and its associate  as at march 31, 2023, 
their consolidated loss (including other comprehensive income), their 
consolidated changes in equity and their consolidated cash flows for 
the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Standards on auditing (Sas) 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under 
those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for 
the audit of the Consolidated Ind aS Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are independent of the Group and its associate  in accordance 
with the Code of ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered accountants 
of India (“ICaI”) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements under the 
provisions of the Act and Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our 
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and 
the Code of ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the 
consolidated Ind AS financial statements. 

key audit matters 

We have determined that there are no key audit matters to communicate 
in our report.

Other information

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other 
information. the other information comprises the information included 
in the Holding Company’s Chairman’s Statement, Directors’ Report, 
management discussion and analysis report, report on Corporate 
Governance and annexures thereto, but does not include the standalone 

Ind AS financial statements, consolidated Ind AS financial statements and 
our auditor’s report thereon. The above mentioned other information are 
expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements does not 
cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance 
conclusion thereon. 

In connection with our audit of the consolidated Ind aS financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, 
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially 
inconsistent with the consolidated Ind AS financial statements or our 
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated. 

If, based on the work we have performed and the reports of other 
auditors, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this 
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing 
to report in this regard. 

responsibilities of management and those Charged with Governance 
for the Consolidated ind aS Financial Statements 

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
preparation and presentation of these consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements in terms of the requirements of the act that give a true and 
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial 
performance (including other comprehensive income), consolidated 
changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group including 
its associate in accordance with the accounting principles generally 
accepted in India, including Ind aS prescribed under section 133 of 
the act, read with the Companies (Indian accounting Standards) 
rules, 2015, as amended. the respective Board of directors of the 
companies included in the Group and of its associate  are responsible 
for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with 
the provisions of the act for safeguarding the assets of the Group and 
of its associate  and for preventing and detecting frauds and other 
irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate accounting 
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and 
prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate 
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to 
the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements 
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose 
of preparation of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements by the 
directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, the respective 
Board of directors of the companies included in the Group and of its 
associate  are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group and of 
its associate to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, 
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of 
accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Group 
including its associate  or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

the respective Board of directors of the companies included in the 
Group and of its associate are responsible for overseeing the financial 
reporting process of the Group and of its associate.

inDEpEnDEnt auDitOr’S rEpOrt
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auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the Consolidated ind aS 
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
consolidated Ind AS financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an 
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a 
high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in 
accordance with Sas will always detect a material misstatement when it 
exists. misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered 
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis 
of these consolidated Ind AS financial statements. As part of an audit in 
accordance with Sas, we exercise professional judgment and maintain 
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also: 

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those 
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our opinion. the risk of not detecting a material 
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting 
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional 
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.  

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit 
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also 
responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Holding 
Company, its subsidiary companies, and associate company, which 
are companies incorporated in India, have adequate internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements in place and the 
operating effectiveness of such controls.  

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures 
made by management.  

• Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the 
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence 
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or 
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group 
and its associate to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention 
in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated 
Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, 
future events or conditions may cause the Group and its associate 
to cease to continue as a going concern.

• Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the 
consolidated Ind AS financial statements, including the disclosures, 
and whether the consolidated Ind AS financial statements represent 
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves 
fair presentation. 

• Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial 
information of the entities or business activities within the Group and 
its associate of which we are the independent auditors, to express 
an opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. We are 
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the 
audit of the Ind AS financial statements of such entities included 

in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of which we are 
the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the 
consolidated Ind AS financial statements, which have been audited 
by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the 
direction, supervision and performance of the audits carried out by 
them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding 
Company and such other entities included in the consolidated Ind aS 
financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, 
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and 
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal 
control that we identify during our audit. 

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement 
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding 
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other 
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, 
and where applicable, related safeguards. 

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, 
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the audit 
of the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the current year and 
are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our 
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure 
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine 
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the 
adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to 
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication. 

Other matters

(a) We did not audit the Ind AS financial statements of five subsidiaries, 
whose Ind aS financial statements reflects total assets of 
Rs.52,095.43 Lacs and net assets of Rs.18,911.80 Lacs as at 
march 31, 2023, total revenues of rs.10,606.52 lacs and net cash 
outflow amounting to Rs.2,906.41 for the year ended on that date, 
as considered in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements. The 
consolidated Ind AS financial statements also include Group’s share 
of net profit/loss of Rs.6.34 Lacs for the year ended March 31, 2023, 
as considered in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements, in 
respect of one associate, whose Ind AS financial statements have 
not been audited by us. These Ind AS financial statements have 
been audited by other auditors whose reports have been furnished 
to us by the management and our opinion on the consolidated Ind 
AS financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and 
disclosures included in respect of these subsidiaries, and associate, 
and our report in terms of section 143(3) of the Act, in so far as it 
relates to the aforesaid subsidiaries and associate, is based solely 
on the reports of the other auditors.

Our opinion on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements and our 
report on Other legal and regulatory requirements below, is not 
modified in respect of the above matters with respect to our reliance 
on the work done and the reports of the other auditors.

report on Other legal and regulatory requirements

(1) With respect to the matters specified in paragraphs 3(xxi) and 4 of 
the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (the “Order”/ “CARO”) 
issued by the Central Government in terms of section 143(11) of 
the Act, to be included in the Auditor’s report, according to the 
information and explanations given to us, and based on the CarO 
reports issued by us for the Holding Company and its subsidiaries 
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and taking into consideration the reports of other auditors on 
separate Ind AS financial statements of subsidiaries and associate, 
included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the 
Holding Company, to which reporting under CarO is applicable, we 
report in “annexure 1” the details of the qualifications or adverse 
remarks reported in the aforesaid CarO reports.

(2) As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and 
on the consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate 
Ind AS financial statements and the other financial information of 
subsidiaries and associate , as noted in the Other matters section 
above we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit of the aforesaid 
consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

b.  In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law 
relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated Ind aS 
financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from 
our examination of those books and the reports of the other 
auditors;

c.  the Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement 
of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), 
the Consolidated Statement of Changes in equity and the 
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows dealt with by this report 
are in agreement with the relevant books of account maintained 
for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated Ind aS 
financial statements;

d.  In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements comply with the Ind aS prescribed under section 
133 of the act read with the Companies (Indian accounting 
Standards) rules, 2015, as amended;

e.  On the basis of the written representations received from 
the directors of the Holding Company as on march 31, 2023 
and taken on record by the Board of directors of the Holding 
Company and the reports of the statutory auditors of its 
subsidiary companies and associate company, incorporated 
in India, none of the directors of the Group companies and its 
associate companies, incorporated in India, is disqualified as 
on march 31, 2023 from being appointed as a director in terms 
of section 164(2) of the Act;

f.  With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding 
Company, its subsidiary companies and its associate company 
incorporated in India and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls, refer to our separate report in “annexure 2”;

g.  With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s 
Report in accordance with the requirements of section 197(16) 
of the Act, as amended:

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us by the Holding Company and 
the reports of the statutory auditors of its subsidiary companies 
and associate company incorporated in India, the remuneration 
paid/ provided to their directors during the year by the Holding 
Company, subsidiary companies and associate company 
incorporated in India is in accordance with the provisions of 
section 197 of the Act;

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s 
report in accordance with rule 11 of the Companies (audit and 
Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended, in our opinion and to the 
best of our information and according to the explanations given 
to us:

(i) The consolidated Ind AS financial statements disclose the 
impact of pending litigations on the consolidated financial 
position of the Group, and its associate – Refer Note 45 to 
the consolidated Ind AS financial statements;

(ii) the Group and its associate did not have any material 
foreseeable losses on long term contracts including 
derivative contracts;

(iii) there were no amounts which were required to be 
transferred to the Investor education and protection Fund 
by the Holding Company and its subsidiary companies and 
associate company incorporated in India.

(iv) (a) Based on our audit report on separate Ind AS financial 
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary 
companies, incorporated in India, and consideration 
of reports of the other auditors on separate Ind aS 
financial statements of its subsidiary companies, and 
associate company , incorporated in India, whose 
financial statements have been audited under the Act, 
the management of the Holding Company and the 
respective management of the aforesaid subsidiaries, 
and associate, have represented that, to the best of 
their knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed in 
the notes to the accounts of the consolidated Ind aS 
financial statements, no funds have been advanced 
or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) 
by the Group and its associate to or in any other person 
or entity, including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or 
otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly 
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of 
the Group and its associate  (“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) 
or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf 
of the Ultimate 

(iv) (b) Based on our audit report on separate Ind AS financial 
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary 
companies, incorporated in India, and consideration 
of reports of the other auditors on separate Ind aS 
financial statements of its subsidiary companies and 
associate company, incorporated in India, whose 
financial statements have been audited under the Act, 
the management of the Holding Company and the 
respective management of the aforesaid subsidiaries, 
and associate, have represented that, to the best of 
their knowledge and belief, other than as disclosed 
in the notes to the accounts of the consolidated Ind 
AS financial statements, no funds have been received 
by the Group and its associate from any person(s) or 
entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding parties”), 
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise, that the Group and  its associate shall, 
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whether, directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever 
by or on behalf of the Funding party (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or 
the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(c) Based on the audit procedures that are considered 
reasonable and appropriate in the circumstances, and 
consideration of reports of the other auditors on separate 
Ind AS financial statements of the subsidiary companies and 
associate company, incorporated in India, whose financial 
statements have been audited under the act, nothing has 
come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the 
representations under sub-clause (i) and (ii) of rule 11(e), 
as provided under (a) and (b) above, contain any material 
misstatement.

(v) the Holding Company has not declared nor paid any 
dividend during the year. Further, based on the audit reports 
of the subsidiary companies and associate company, 

incorporated in India, those entities have not declared nor 
paid any dividend during the year. Hence, reporting the 
compliance with section 123 of the act is not applicable. 

(vi) as proviso to rule 3(1) of the Companies (accounts) rules, 
2014 is applicable for the company only w.e.f. April 1, 2023, 
reporting under this clause is not applicable.

For Haribhakti & Co. llp
Chartered accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 103523W / W100048

S. Sundararaman
partner

Place: Chennai Membership No. 028423
Date: May 25, 2023 UDIN: 23028423BGYWHB5588

annEXurE 1 tO tHE inDEpEnDEnt auDitOr’S rEpOrt
[Referred to in paragraph 1 under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section in the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date to 
the members of inditrade Capital limited on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31,2023]

According to the information and explanations given to us, and based on the reports issued under the Order by: 

i) us for the Holding Company and its subsidiaries ; and

ii) the respective auditors of the subsidiaries and  associate; 

included in the consolidated Ind AS financial statements of the Company, to which reporting under the Order is applicable, the details of qualifications 
or adverse remarks are as below: 

Sr. 
no.

name Cin Holding Company /
Subsidiary /Associate

Clause number of the CarO report which is 
qualified or adverse

1 Inditrade Business Consultants limited U74140KL2008PLC023055 Subsidiary Clause 3(vii)(a),
2 Inditrade Microfinance Limited U67190MH2016PLC306585 Subsidiary Clause 3(i)(a)(a),Clause 3(iii),Clause 3(xi)

(a),clause 3(xiv)
3 Inditrade Scalerator limited U74110TG2011PLC077783 Subsidiary Clause 3(iii)(b),Clause 3(iii)(c),Clause 3(iii)(d)
4 Inditrade Fincorp limited U65923KL2007PLC021180 Subsidiary Clause 3(iii)(c), Clause 3(iii)( d)
5 Inditrade rural marketing limited U66010Kl1996plC010093 Subsidiary Clause 3(xix)
6 Inditrade technologies limited U72100MH2018PLC307208 Subsidiary Clause 3(ix)(d)
7 Inditrade Insurance Broking private limited U67190KL2000PTC013701 associate Clause 3(vii)(a)

For Haribhakti & Co. llp
Chartered accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No. 103523W / W100048

S. Sundararaman 
partner

Place: Chennai Membership No. 028423
Date: May 25, 2023 UDIN: 23028423BGYWHB5588
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In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements of Inditrade Capital limited(“Holding Company”) as of 
and for the year ended march 31, 2023, we have audited the internal 
financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding 
Company,its subsidiaries audited by us,and relied on the report on 
internal financial controls of subsidiaries and associate audited by other 
auditors, which are companies incorporated in India, as of that date.

management’s responsibility for internal Financial Controls

the respective Board of directors of the Holding Company,its subsidiary 
companies and  its associate company, which are companies 
incorporated in India, are responsible for establishing and maintaining 
internal financial controls based on the internal control with reference 
to financial statementscriteria established by the Holding Company 
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the 
Guidance note on audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
reporting (the “Guidance note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
accountants of India (“ICaI”). these responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient 
conduct of its business, including adherence to the respective company’s 
policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of 
frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting 
records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as 
required under the act.

auditor’s responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial 
controls with reference to financial statements of Holding Company, its 
subsidiary companies, and its associate company,which are companies 
incorporated in India,based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with the Guidance note and the Standards on auditing 
specified under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to 
an audit of internal financial controls, both issued by the ICAI. Those 
Standards and the Guidance note require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable 
assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements was established and maintained and 
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence 
about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of 
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements, assessing the risk that a material weakness 
exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness 
of internal control based on the assessed risk. the procedures selected 
depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the 

risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether 
due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit 
evidence obtained by the other auditors, in terms of their reports referred 
to in the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to 
provide a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statementsof Holding Company, its subsidiary 
companies, and its associate company.

meaning of internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial 
Statements

A company's internal financial control with reference to financial 
statements is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance 
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of 
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financial control 
with reference to financial statements includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in 
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and 
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable 
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit 
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally 
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of 
the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of 
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable 
assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have 
a material effect on the financial statements.

inherent limitations of internal Financial Controls with reference to 
Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with 
reference to financial statements, including the possibility of collusion 
or improper management override of controls, material misstatements 
due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. also, projections 
of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to 
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control with reference to financial statements may 
become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree 
of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to 
the explanations given to us and based on consideration of reporting 
of other auditors as mentioned in Other matters paragraph below, 
the Holding Company, its subsidiary companies, and its associate 
company, which are companies incorporated in India, have, in all material 

annEXurE 2 tO tHE inDEpEnDEnt auDitOr’S rEpOrt
[referred to in paragraph 2(i) under ‘report on Other legal and regulatory requirements’ section in our independent auditor’s report of even date 
to the members Inditrade Capital Limited on the consolidated Ind AS financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023]

report on the internal Financial Controls with reference to Financial Statementsunder clause (i) of sub-section 3 of section 143 of the Companies 
act, 2013 (“the act”)



annual report 2022-23

Corporate Overview | management reports | Financial Statements

103

respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial 
statements were operating effectively as at march 31, 2023, based on the 
internal control with reference to financial statements criteria established 
by the respective companies considering the essential components of 
internal control stated in the Guidance note issued by the ICaI.

Other matters

Our aforesaid reports under section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the 
adequacy and operating effectiveness of the internal financial controls 
with reference to financial statements in so far as it relates to five 

subsidiary companies, and one associate company, which are companies 
incorporated in India, is based on the corresponding reports of the 
auditors of such companies incorporated in India.

For Haribhakti & Co. llp
Chartered accountants

ICAI Firm Registration No.103523W / W100048

S. Sundararaman
partner

Place: Chennai Membership No.028423
Date: May 25, 2023 UDIN: 23028423BGYWHB5588
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COnSOliDatED BalanCE SHEEt
as at march 31, 2023 (all amounts are indian rupees in lacs unless stated otherwise)

particulars note no. as at 
march 31, 2023

as at 
march 31, 2022

i aSSEtS
1 Financial assets

(a) Cash and cash equivalents 4  3,745.20  6,513.92 
(b) Bank balances other than (a) above 5  1,906.36  2,182.33 
(c) receivables 6

(i) trade receivables  2,688.41  888.34 
(ii) Other receivables  527.18  90.89 

(d) loans 7  25,851.76  42,954.86 
(e) Investments 8  1,068.97  1,138.74 
(f) Other financial assets 9  2,804.06  2,849.77 
total Financial assets  38,591.94  56,618.85 

2 Non-financial Assets
(a) Inventories 10  4,639.59  2,189.33 
(b) Current tax assets (net) 11  81.55  -   
(c) deferred tax assets (net) 12  913.70  625.94 
(d) property, plant and equipment 13  341.97  261.49 
(e) right of Use asset 13  361.76  392.10 
(f) Goodwill on Consolidation  190.74  190.74 
(g) Other Intangible assets 14  2,286.19  2,573.30 
(h) Other non-financial assets 15  3,781.67  2,749.03 
total non- Financial assets  12,597.17  8,981.93 
total assets  51,189.11  65,600.78 

ii liaBilitiES anD EQuity
liaBilitiES
Financial liabilities
(a) payables 16

(I) trade payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  -    -   
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 

enterprises
 2,953.11  911.05 

(II) Other payables
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  -    -   
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small 

enterprises
 116.71  176.19 
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as per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of directors of
 inditrade Capital limited
For Haribhakti & Co. llp
Chartered accountants Sudip Bandyopadhyay Jhuma Guha
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 103523W / W100048 Director Director
 DIN: 00007382 DIN: 00007454
S. Sundararaman 
partner maya menon ravi prakash Jain
Membership No.: 028423 Manager cum Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
 Membership No.: 20656

Place: Chennai Place: Mumbai
Date: 25 May, 2023 Date: 25 May, 2023

COnSOliDatED BalanCE SHEEt
as at march 31, 2023 (all amounts are indian rupees in lacs unless stated otherwise)

particulars note no. as at 
march 31, 2023

as at 
march 31, 2022

(b) debt Securities 17  1,000.00  2,500.00 
(c) Borrowings (Other than debt Securities) 18  21,654.14  33,093.16 
(d) Subordinated liabilities 19  2,900.00  2,919.36 
(e) Other financial liabilities 20 1,840.24  3,226.71 
total Financial liabilities 30,464.20 42,826.48
non-Financial liabilities
(a) Current tax liabilities (net) 21  485.83  602.96 
(b) provisions 22  249.13  222.91 
(c) deferred tax liabilities (net) 23  106.07  22.82 
(d) Other non-financial liabilities 24  526.73  485.21 
total non-Financial liabilities  1,367.76  1,333.90 
EQuity
(a) equity share capital 25  2,328.65  2,328.65 
(b) Other equity 26  9,617.89  11,667.18 
Equity attributable to owners of the company  11,946.54  13,995.83 
non controlling Interest 27  7,410.61  7,444.58 
total Equity 19,357.15  21,440.41 
total liabilities and Equity 51,189.11 65,600.78

See accompanying notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements.
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COnSOliDatED StatEmEnt OF prOFit anD lOSS
for the year ended  march 31, 2023 (all amounts are indian rupees in lacs unless stated otherwise)

particulars note no. For the year ended 
march 31, 2023 

For the year ended 
march 31, 2022 

rEvEnuE FrOm OpEratiOnS
(i) Interest Income 28  7,012.54  7,264.95 
(ii) Fees and commission Income 29  1,837.31  1,408.69 
(iii) net gain on fair value changes 30  13.61  13.73 
(iv) Sale of products 31  5,370.74  5,328.89 
(v) Sale of services 32  285.59  405.75 
(vi) Commodity trade Support services 33  2,248.56  2,171.66 
(i)  total revenue from operations  16,768.35  16,593.67 
(i) Other Operating revenue 34  755.26  3,305.64 
(ii) Other income 35  409.15  196.10 
(ii) total income  17,932.76  20,095.41 
Expenses
(i) Finance Cost 36  3,576.44  3,288.20 
(ii) Impairment on financial instruments 37  2,656.29  2,647.87 
(iii) Cost of Goods sold 38  4,055.54  3,996.74 
(iv) Operating expenses 39 441.57  635.85 
(v) Employee Benefit Expenses 40  5,629.64  5,390.85 
(vi) Depreciation, Amortization & Impairment 13&14  619.61  472.04 
(vii) Other expenses 41 3,012.88  2,977.57 
(iii) total Expenses  19,991.97  19,409.12 
(iv) Profit before tax (II - III) (2,059.21)  686.29 
(v) tax expense 42

(1) Current tax  203.60  260.48 
(2) deferred tax  (217.64)  45.09 
(3) For earlier years  (11.60)  12.68 
total tax expense  (25.64)  318.25 

(VI)  Profit  after tax (IV - V)  (2,033.57)  368.04 
(VII)  Add: Share of profit from associate  6.33  14.64 
(VIII)  Profit for the year (VI + VII) (2,027.24)  382.68 
(iX)  Other Comprehensive income

(A) (i) Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  39.37  21.25 
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss  (14.31)  (5.30)

Subtotal (a)  25.06  15.95 
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COnSOliDatED StatEmEnt OF prOFit anD lOSS
for the year ended  march 31, 2023 (all amounts are indian rupees in lacs unless stated otherwise)

particulars note no. For the year ended 
march 31, 2023 

For the year ended 
march 31, 2022 

(B) (i) Items that will be reclassified to profit or loss  -    -   
(ii) Income tax relating to items that will be reclassified to profit or loss  -    -   

Subtotal (B)  -    -   
total Other Comprehensive income (a + B)  25.06  15.95 

(X)  total Comprehensive income for the period (viii + iX)  (2,002.18)  398.63 
(XI) Total Profit for the year attributable to:

- Owners of the Company  (1,393.23)  507.59 
- non-controlling interest  (634.01)  (124.91) 

 (2,027.24)  382.68 
Other comprehensive income/(loss) for the year attributable to:
- Owners of the Company  11.71  10.31 
- non-controlling interest  13.35  5.64 

 25.06  15.95 
total comprehensive income for the year attributable to:
- Owners of the Company  (1,381.52)  517.90 
- non-controlling interest  (620.66)  (119.27) 
total Comprehensive income for the period  (2,002.18)  398.63 

(Xii) Earnings per equity share 43
Basic (rs)  (5.98)  2.18 
diluted (rs)  (5.98)  2.18 

See accompanying notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements.

as per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of directors of
 inditrade Capital limited
For Haribhakti & Co. llp
Chartered accountants Sudip Bandyopadhyay Jhuma Guha
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 103523W / W100048 Director Director
 DIN: 00007382 DIN: 00007454
S. Sundararaman 
partner maya menon ravi prakash Jain
Membership No.: 028423 Manager cum Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
 Membership No.: 20656

Place: Chennai Place: Mumbai
Date: 25 May, 2023 Date: 25 May, 2023
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COnSOliDatED CaSH FlOw StatEmEnt
for the year ended march 31, 2023 (all amounts are indian rupees in lacs unless stated otherwise)

particulars For the year ended
march 31, 2023

For the year ended
march 31, 2022

a. Cash flow from Operating activities
Net Profit before  tax  (2,059.21)  705.02 
Adjustments for:
depreciation, amortisation and impairment  619.61  472.04 
Share based payment expense  (10.38)  76.48 
Interest on income tax refund  (0.35)  -   
net gain or loss on foreign currency transaction and translation  -    (6.45)
Impairment on loans  and investments  2,656.29  2,647.87 
Interest on lease liability  71.23  40.88 
amortization of transaction Costs  -    (0.67)
liabilities no longer required written back  (27.18)  (22.06)
net (gain)/loss on fair value changes on investment  (13.61)  (13.73)
net (gain)/loss on fair value changes on derivatives  -    (719.35)
Irrecoverable advance written off  167.59  212.71 
Operating profit before working capital changes  1,403.99  3,392.74 
movements in working capital:
decrease/(increase) in loans  14,446.81  (15,395.06)
Decrease/(increase) in other financial assets  353.09  132.14 
decrease/(increase) in receivables  (2,236.36)  384.98 
Decrease/(increase) in other non-financial assets  (1,200.23)  (1,193.55)
decrease/(increase) in Inventories  (2,450.26)  4,268.94 
Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities 485.35  336.19 
Increase/(decrease) in non-financial liabilities  41.52  50.64 
Increase/(decrease) in other provision  (21.38)  30.54 
Cash generated from operations 10,822.53  (7,992.44)
direct taxes paid (net of refunds)  (378.00)  (149.44)
net cash flows used in operating activities (a)  10,444.53  (8,141.88)

B. Cash flow from investing activities
purchase of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets  (382.64)  (2,996.90)
acquisition of Subsidiary  -    1,196.14 
Increase in Investment  47.44  (143.27)
Investment in mutual fund  13.61  13.73 
net cash flows used in investing activities (B)  (321.59)  (1,930.30)

C. Cash flow from Financing activities
proceeds/(repayment) of subordinated debts  (19.36)  (1,880.64)
net proceeds of borrowings other than debt securities  (11,439.03)  13,718.35 
payment of lease liabilities  66.73  (15.34)
amount received by issue of debt securities  (1,500.00)  1,000.00 
Net cash flows from/(used in) financing activities (C)  (12,891.66)  12,822.37 
Net increase/(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) (2,768.72)  2,750.19 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period  6,513.92  3,763.73 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the period  3,745.20  6,513.92 

Components of cash and cash equivalents as at
march 31, 2023

as at
march 31, 2022

i) Cash on Hand  8.92  20.50 
ii) Balances with banks (of the nature of cash and cash equivalents)  3,736.28  6,493.42 

total  3,745.20  6,513.92 
See accompanying notes forming part of the standalone financial statements.

as per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of directors of
 inditrade Capital limited
For Haribhakti & Co. llp
Chartered accountants Sudip Bandyopadhyay Jhuma Guha
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 103523W / W100048 Director Director
 DIN: 00007382 DIN: 00007454
S. Sundararaman 
partner maya menon ravi prakash Jain
Membership No.: 028423 Manager cum Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
 Membership No.: 20656

Place: Chennai Place: Mumbai
Date: 25 May, 2023 Date: 25 May, 2023
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COnSOliDatED StatEmEnt OF CHanGES in EQuity
a. Equity Share Capital (refer note 25)

(1) Current reporting period
particulars as at 

april 01, 2022

Changes in Equity 
Share Capital due to 
prior period errors 

restated balance at the 
beginning of the current 

reporting period

Changes in equity 
share capital during the 

current year 

as at 
march 31, 2023

paid up equity share capital  2,328.65  -    -    -    2,328.65 

(2) previous reporting period
particulars as at 

april 01, 2021

Changes in Equity 
Share Capital due to 
prior period errors 

restated balance at the 
beginning of the previous 

reporting period

 Changes in equity 
share capital during the 

previous year 

as at 
march 31, 2022

paid up equity share capital  2,328.65  -    -    -    2,328.65 

B. Other Equity (refer note 26)
(1) Current reporting period
particulars

reserve and Surplus 
items of other 
comprehensive 

income

Equity 
attributable 
to owners 

of the 
company

non-
controlling 
interest*

total 
Securities 
premium 
account

Capital 
reserve

General 
reserve

Share based 
payments 
reserves 

Statutory 
reserve

retained 
earnings 

remeasurements 
of the net defined 

benefit plans 
Opening balance as at april 01, 2022  4,973.50 1,200.10  147.06  388.15  1,224.02  3,718.03  16.32  11,667.18  7,444.58 19,111.76 
additions during the year  -    -    -    (57.98)  (431.17)  -    (489.15)  (489.15)
Profit for the year (1,393.23)  (1,393.23)  (634.01) (2,027.24)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year  -    -    -    -    -    10.93  10.93  13.35  24.28 
total Comprehensive Income for the year (1,393.23)  10.93  (1,382.29)  (620.66) (2,002.95)
Finance Cost on equity component of CCd 
within group

 -    -    -    -    (22.32)  -    (22.32)  (22.32)

Cost of Control  (586.69)  (586.69)  586.69 -
transfer to Staturoy reserve  -    -    -    -    431.17  -    431.17  431.17 
Closing balance as at march 31, 2023  4,973.50 1,200.10  147.06  330.17  792.85  2,146.96  27.25  9,617.89  7,410.61 17,028.50 

(2) previous reporting period
particulars

reserve and Surplus 
items of other 
comprehensive 

income

Equity 
attributable 
to owners 

of the 
company

non-
controlling 
interest*

total
Securities 
premium 
account 

Capital 
reserve

General
reserve

Share based 
payments 
reserves 

Statutory 
reserve

retained 
earnings

remeasurements 
of the net defined 

benefit plans 
Opening balance as at april 01, 2021  4,973.50 1,200.10  147.06  310.95  1,187.52  3,291.55  6.01  11,116.69  6,328.75 17,445.44 
additions during the year  -    -    -    77.20  36.50  -    113.70  -    113.70 
Profit for the year  507.59  507.59  (124.91)  382.68 
Other comprehensive income for the year  -    -    -    -    -    10.31  10.31  5.64  15.95 
total Comprehensive Income for the year  -    -    -    -    507.59  10.31  517.90  (119.27)  398.63 
Finance Cost on equity component of CCd 
within group

 (44.61)  (44.61)  -    (44.61)

Cost of Control  -    -    -    -    -    -    -    1,235.10 1,235.10 
transfer to Staturoy reserve  (36.50)  (36.50)  (36.50)
Closing balance as at march 31, 2022  4,973.50 1,200.10  147.06  388.15  1,224.02  3,718.03  16.32  11,667.18  7,444.58 19,111.76 

*Refer Note 27

for the year ended march 31, 2023 (all amounts are indian rupees in lacs unless stated otherwise)

as per our report of even date attached For and on behalf of the Board of directors of
 inditrade Capital limited
For Haribhakti & Co. llp
Chartered accountants Sudip Bandyopadhyay Jhuma Guha
ICAI Firm Registration No.: 103523W / W100048 Director Director
 DIN: 00007382 DIN: 00007454
S. Sundararaman 
partner maya menon ravi prakash Jain
Membership No.: 028423 Manager cum Company Secretary Chief Financial Officer
 Membership No.: 20656

Place: Chennai Place: Mumbai
Date: 25 May, 2023 Date: 25 May, 2023
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Significant Accounting Policies

1. Corporate information

Inditrade Capital limited (“the Company”) along with its 
subsidiaries (hereinafter collectively referred to as ‘the group”) 
are primarily engaged in the business of financial services, 
commodity broking, direct insurance agents, marketing support 
services, e-commerce in rural areas and dealing in commodities. 
The Company's equity shares are listed in Bombay Stock 
exchange.

2. Basis of preparation and presentation

a. Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statements of the Company 
have been prepared in accordance with Indian accounting 
Standards (‘Ind AS’) notified under the Companies (Indian 
accounting Standards) rules, 2015 as amended from time 
to time ('Ind AS Rules') and notified under Section 133 of the 
Companies Act, 2013 (the ‘Act’) and other relevant provisions 
of the act.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared 
under the historical cost convention, as modified by the 
application of fair value measurements required or allowed 
by relevant accounting Standards. accounting policies have 
been consistently applied to all periods presented, unless 
otherwise stated. The preparation of consolidated financial 
statements requires the use of certain critical accounting 
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts 
of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses and the disclosed 
amount of contingent liabilities.

The financial statements were authorised for issue by the 
Company’s Board of Directors on May 25, 2023.

b. Functional and presentation currency

These consolidated financial statements are presented in 
Indian Rupees (INR), which is also the Group’s functional 
currency. all amounts are presented in lakhs, unless 
otherwise indicated.

c. Presentation of consolidated financial statements

These consolidated financial statements have been presented 
in accordance with the format prescribed for non-Banking 
Financial Companies under the Companies (Indian accounting 
Standards) Rules, 2015, in division III of Notification no. GSR. 
1022 (E) dated 11th October 2018, issued by Ministry of 
Corporate affairs, Government of India.

the Group presents its Balance Sheet in order of liquidity. an 
analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12 months 
after the reporting date (current) and more than 12 months 
after the reporting date (non– current) is presented in notes 
to the consolidated financial statements. Financial assets and 
financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the Balance 
Sheet. they are only offset and reported net when, in addition 
to having an unconditional legally enforceable right to offset 
the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future 

event, the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all of 
the following circumstances:

• The normal course of business

• The event of default

• The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the Company and/
or its counterparties

d. Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of the consolidated financial statements 
requires management to make judgements, estimates and 
assumptions that affect the reported amount of revenues, 
expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying 
disclosures, as well as the disclosure of contingent liabilities. 
The estimates used in the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements are based upon management’s evaluation of the 
relevant facts and circumstances as on the date of the financial 
statements. actual results could differ from estimates. 
any revision to the accounting estimates is recognised 
prospectively in the current and future periods. In particular, 
information about significant areas of estimation, uncertainty 
and critical judgments in applying accounting policies that 
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized 
in the consolidated financial statements is given below:

• Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets 
depends on the results of Solely payments of principal and 
Interest (SppI) and the business model test. the Group 
determines the business model at a level that reflects 
how groups of financial assets are managed together to 
achieve a particular business objective. this assessment 
includes judgement reflecting all relevant evidence 
including how the performance of the assets is evaluated 
and their performance measured, the risks that affect the 
performance of the assets and how these are managed and 
how the managers of the assets are compensated.

The Group monitors financial assets measured at 
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive 
income that are derecognised prior to their maturity to 
understand the reason for their disposal and whether the 
reasons are consistent with the objective of the business 
for which the asset was held. monitoring is part of the 
Group’s continuous assessment of whether the business 
model for which the remaining financial assets are held 
continues to be appropriate and if it is not appropriate 
whether there has been a change in business model and so 
a prospective change to the classification of those assets.

• Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that 
would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a 
liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most 
advantageous) market at the measurement date under 
current market conditions (i.e., an exit price) regardless 
of whether that price is directly observable or estimated 

nOtES
to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (All amounts are Indian Rupees in Lacs unless stated otherwise)
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nOtES
to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (All amounts are Indian Rupees in Lacs unless stated otherwise)

using another valuation technique. When the fair values 
of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the 
Balance Sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they 
are determined using a variety of valuation techniques that 
include the use of valuation models. 
the inputs to these models are taken from observable 
markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, 
estimation is required in establishing fair values. 
Judgements and estimates include considerations 
of liquidity and model inputs related to items such as 
credit risk (both own and counterparty), funding value 
adjustments, correlation and volatility. For further details 
about determination of fair value please see Fair value note 
in accounting policy.

• Impairment of financial asset
the measurement of impairment losses across all 
categories of financial assets requires judgement, in 
particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of 
future cash flows and collateral values when determining 
impairment losses and the assessment of a significant 
increase in credit risk. these estimates are driven by a 
number of factors, changes in which can result in different 
levels of allowances.
It has been the Group’s policy to regularly review its models 
in the context of actual loss experience and adjust when 
necessary.

• Provisions and liabilities:
provisions and liabilities are recognized in the period when 
it becomes probable that there will be a future outflow 
of funds resulting from past operations or events that 
can reasonably be estimated. the timing of recognition 
requires application of judgement to existing facts and 
circumstances which may be subject to change. the 
amounts are determined by discounting the expected 
future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current 
market assessments of the time value of money and the 
risks specific to the liability.

e. principles of Consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial 
statements of the Company, its subsidiaries (being the 
entities that it controls) and associates (being entity over 
which it has siginificant influence) as at March 31, 2023.
• Subsidiaries:

Control is evidenced when the Subsidiaries is exposed, or 
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the 
investee and has the ability to affect those returns through 
its power over the investee. 
Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting 
rights result in control. to support this presumption and 
when the Group has less than a majority of the voting 
or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all 
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it 
has power over an investee, including:

• The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders 
of the investee

• Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

• The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

• The size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative 
to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other 
voting rights holders

the Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an 
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are 
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. 
Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group 
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the 
Group loses control of the subsidiary. assets, liabilities, 
income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed 
of during the year are included in the consolidated financial 
statements from the date the Group gains control until the 
date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared using 
uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other 
events in similar circumstances. If a member of the Group 
uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the 
consolidated financial statements for like transactions and 
events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments 
are made to that Group member’s financial statements in 
preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure 
conformity with the Group’s accounting policies. The 
financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of 
consolidation are drawn up to same reporting date as that 
of the parent company, i.e., year ended on march 31, 2023.

The consolidated financial statement of the Group 
combines the financial statement of the parent and its 
subsidiaries line by line by adding together the like items 
of the assets, liabilities, income and expenses. all the intra 
group assets, liabilities, income, expenses, unrealised 
profits/losses on intra group transaction are eliminated on 
consolidation.

non-controlling interest represents that part of the total 
comprehensive income and net assets of the subsidiaries, 
attributable to interests which are not owned by the Group.

• Associate:

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant 
influence. Significant influence is the power to participate in 
the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, 
but is not control or joint control over those policies.

The Group’s investments in its associate is accounted for 
using the equity method. Under the equity method, the 
investment in an associate is initially recognised at cost. 
the carrying amount of the investment is adjusted to 
recognise changes in the Group’s share of net assets of 
the associate since the acquisition date. Goodwill relating 
to the associate is included in the carrying amount of the 
investment and is not tested for impairment individually.
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The Statement of Profit and Loss reflects the Group’s share 
of the results of operations of the associate. any change in 
OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s 
OCI. In addition, when there has been a change recognised 
directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises 
its share of any changes, when applicable, in the statement 
of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting 
from transactions between the Group and the associate 
are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the associate. 
The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an 
associate is shown on the face of the Statement of Profit 
and loss.

f. uncertainty on account of Covid-19 pandemic

Covid 19 witnessed in last 2 financial years, has significantly 
reduced in its intensity. Consequently, the restrictions 
imposed have been lifted. the Company will continue to 
closely monitor any material factors impacting to future 
economic conditions.

3. Significant Accounting Policies

The significant accounting policies applied in preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements are as given below:

3.1 Financial instruments

3.1.1. Financial assets

a. Date of recognition

Financial assets and liabilities, with the exception of loans, 
debt securities, and borrowings are initially recognised on the 
trade date, i.e., the date that the Company becomes a party 
to the contractual provisions of the instrument. loans are 
recognised when fund transfers are initiated to the customers’ 
account or cheques for disbursement have been prepared. 
the Group recognises debt securities and borrowings when 
funds reach the Group.

B. initial recognition and measurement 

All financial assets are recognized initially at fair value, which 
is normally the transaction price. transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets 
(other than financial assets at Fair Value Through Statement 
of Profit or Loss (‘FVTPL’)) are added to the fair value of 
the financial assets, on initial recognition. Such transaction 
cost includes all fees paid or received between parties to the 
contract that would not have been incurred if the entity had 
not acquired the financial asset. Transaction costs directly 
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets at FVTPL are 
recognized immediately in Statement of Profit and Loss.

C. Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets 
are classified in three categories:

a) Financial assets measured at amortized cost 

b) Financial assets measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVtOCI);

c) Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or 
loss (FVtpl);

The classification depends on the contractual terms of the 
financial assets’ cash flows and the company’s business 
model for managing financial assets.

Business model assessment

the Group determines its business model at the level that 
best reflects how it manages company’s financial assets to 
achieve its business objective.

The Company's business model is not assessed on an 
instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level of 
aggregated portfolios and is based on observable factors 
such as:

• How the performance of the business model and the 
financial assets held within that business model are 
evaluated and reported to the entity's key management 
personnel

• The risks that affect the performance of the business 
model (and the financial assets held within that business 
model) and, in particular, the way those risks are managed

• How managers of the business are compensated (for 
example, whether the compensation is based on the fair 
value of the assets managed or on the contractual cash 
flows collected)

• The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are also 
important aspects of the Company’s assessment. 

the business model assessment is based on reasonably 
expected scenarios without taking 'worst case' or 'stress case’ 
scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial recognition 
are realised in a way that is different from the Company's 
original expectations, the Company does not change the 
classification of the remaining financial assets held in that 
business model, but incorporates such information when 
assessing newly originated or newly purchased financial 
assets going forward.

the Solely payments of principal and interest (‘Sppi’) test

As a second step of its classification process the Group 
assesses the contractual terms of financial asset to identify 
whether they meet the SppI test.

‘Principal’ for the purpose of this test is defined as the fair 
value of the financial asset at initial recognition and may 
change over the life of the financial asset (for example, if 
there are repayments of principal or amortisation of the 
premium/discount). 

The most significant elements of interest within a lending 
arrangement are typically the consideration for the time value 
of money and credit risk. to make the SppI assessment, 
the Company applies judgement and considers relevant 
factors such as the currency in which the financial asset is 
denominated, and the period for which the interest rate is set.

nOtES
to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (All amounts are Indian Rupees in Lacs unless stated otherwise)
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a) Financial assets measured at amortized cost

Financial assets are measured at amortized cost if both the 
following conditions are met:

• Contractual terms of the asset give rise to cash flows on 
specified dates, that represent Solely Payments of Principal 
and Interest on the principal amount outstanding (‘SPPI’); and

• The asset is held within a business model whose objective 
is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows.

Effective interest rate (Eir) method

After initial measurement, such financial assets are 
subsequently measured at amortized cost using the 
effective Interest rate (eIr) method.  Interest income is 
recognized by applying the effective interest rate to the gross 
carrying amount of financial assets other than in case of 
credit-impaired financial assets where EIR is applied to the 
amortised cost i.e. gross carrying amount of financial assets 
less provision for impairment.

The EIR is computed:

a. as the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash 
receipts through the expected life of the financial asset to 
the gross carrying amount of a financial asset. 

b. By considering all the contractual terms of the financial 
instrument in estimating the cash flows 

c. Including all fees received between parties to the contract 
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate, 
transaction costs, and all other premiums or discounts.

any subsequent changes in the estimation of the future cash 
flow are recognised in interest income with the corresponding 
adjustment to the carrying amount of the assets.

b) Financial assets measured at fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FvtOCi)

Debt instruments

Financial assets are measured at FVtOCI if both of the 
following criteria are met:

• Contractual terms of the asset give rise to cash flows on 
specified dates, that represent Solely Payments of Principal 
and Interest on the principal amount outstanding (‘SPPI’); and

• The asset is held within a business model whose objective 
is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows as 
well as selling the asset.

Financial assets included within the FVtOCI category 
are measured initially as well as at each reporting date 
at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the 
other comprehensive income (OCI). Upon disposal, the 
cumulative gain or loss previously recognized in OCI is 
reclassified from equity to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity instruments

Investment in equity instruments that are neither held for 
trading nor contingent consideration recognised by the 

Company in a business combination to which Ind aS 103 
‘Business Combination’ applies, are measured at fair value 
through other comprehensive income, where an irrevocable 
election has been made by management and when such 
instruments meet the definition of Equity under Ind AS 32 
Financial Instruments: Presentation. Such classification is 
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis.

amounts presented in other comprehensive income are 
not subsequently transferred to the Statement of Profit and 
loss. dividends on such investments are recognised in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss. 

c) Financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss 
(Fvtpl)

Any financial asset, which does not meet the criteria for 
categorization as at amortized cost or as at FVtOCI is 
classified as at FVTPL. Financial assets included within the 
FVtpl category are measured at fair value and all changes 
thereto and transaction costs are recognized in the statement 
of profit and loss.

Financial instruments held for trading

A financial instrument is classified as held for trading if it is 
acquired or incurred principally for selling or repurchasing 
in the near term, or forms part of a portfolio of financial 
instruments that are managed together and for which there 
is evidence of short-term profit taking.

D. De-recognition of financial assets

De-recognition of financial assets due to substantial 
modification of terms and conditions:

The Group derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan 
to customer, when the terms and conditions have been 
renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a 
new loan, with the difference recognised as a de-recognition 
gain or loss, net of impairment loss, if any, already recorded. 
The newly recognised loans are classified as Stage 1 for 
eCl measurement purposes. Based on the change in cash 
flows discounted at the original EIR, the Company records 
a modification gain or loss, net of impairment loss, if any, 
already recorded.

De-recognition of financial assets other than due to substantial 
modification of terms and conditions:

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial 
asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is 
derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the 
financial asset have expired. 

The Group also derecognises the financial asset if it has 
transferred the financial asset and the transfer qualifies for 
de-recognition.

The Group has transferred the financial asset if, either:

i. the Group has transferred its contractual rights to receive 
cash flows from the financial asset; or
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ii. It retains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed 
an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without 
material delay to a third party under a ‘pass–through’ 
arrangement.

pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the 
Group retains the contractual rights to receive the cash 
flows of a financial asset (the 'original asset'), but assumes a 
contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to one or more 
entities (the 'eventual recipients'), when all of the following 
three conditions are met:

• The Group has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual 
recipients unless it has collected equivalent amounts from 
the original asset, excluding short-term advances with 
the right to full recovery of the amount lent plus accrued 
interest at market rates;

• The Group cannot sell or pledge the original asset other 
than as security to the eventual recipients; and

• The Group has to remit any cash flows it collects on 
behalf of the eventual recipients without material delay. In 
addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash 
flows, except for investments in cash or cash equivalents 
including interest earned, during the period between the 
collection date and the date of required remittance to the 
eventual recipients.

A transfer qualifies for De-recognition if either:

i. the Group has transferred substantially all the risks and 
rewards of the asset; or

ii. the Group has neither transferred nor retained substantially 
all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred 
control of the asset.

the Group considers control to be transferred if and only if, 
the transferee has the practical ability to sell the asset in its 
entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to exercise that 
ability unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions 
on the transfer.

When the Group has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards or has retained 
control of the asset, such as securitisation arrangements, 
the asset continues to be recognised only to the extent of 
the Company’s continuing involvement, in which case, the 
Company also recognises an associated liability (net of 
any regulatory investments). the transferred asset and the 
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects 
the rights and obligations that the Company has retained. 
Company continues to recognise interest income of such 
asset and also recognises the interest expense and other 
transaction cost (net of income from any margin or other 
regulatory deposits and servicing fee relating to securitisation 
arrangement) pertaining to the associated liability.

E. impairment of Financial assets
the Group assesses at the end of each reporting period 
whether a financial asset or a group of financial assets is 

impaired and determines the expected credit losses. equity 
instruments are not subject to impairment under Ind aS 109.
Expected credit loss (ECl) assessment
the Group records allowance for expected credit losses for 
all loans, other debt financial assets, together with financial 
guarantee contracts. 
the eCl allowance is based on the credit losses expected to 
arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected credit 
loss), unless there has been no significant increase in credit 
risk since origination, in which case, the allowance is based 
on the 12 months’ expected credit loss. 
Both lifetime eCls and 12-month eCls are calculated either 
on individual basis or on collective basis, depending on the 
nature of the underlying portfolio of financial assets. The 
Company has established a policy to perform an assessment, 
at the end of each reporting period, of whether a financial 
asset’s credit risk has increased significantly since initial 
recognition, by considering the change in the risk of default 
occurring over the remaining life of the financial asset.
Based on the above, the Group categorises its loans into 
Stage 1, Stage 2 and Stage 3 as described below:
Stage 1
All exposures where there has not been a significant increase 
in credit risk since initial recognition or that has low credit risk 
at the reporting date and that are not credit impaired upon 
origination are classified under this stage. Stage 1 loans also 
include facilities where the credit risk has decreased and the 
loan has been reclassified from Stage 2.
Stage 2
All exposures where there has been a significant increase in 
credit risk since initial recognition but is not credit impaired 
are classified under this stage. Stage 2 loans also include 
facilities where the credit risk has decreased and the loan has 
been reclassified from Stage 3.

Stage 3

all exposures assessed as credit impaired when one or more 
events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future 
cash flows of that asset have occurred are classified in this 
stage.

A financial asset is also considered ‘credit-impaired’ when 
one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the 
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have 
occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the 
following observable data:

a) Significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

b) the restructuring of a loan or advance by the company on 
terms that the company would not consider otherwise;

c) Indications of the borrower likely to enter bankruptcy or 
other financial reorganisation; or
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d) the disappearance of an active market for a security 
because of financial difficulties.

write-offs
The Group reduces the gross carrying amount of a financial 
asset when the Group has no reasonable expectations of 
recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. 
this is generally the case when the Group determines that 
the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that 
could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts 
subjected to write-offs. any subsequent recoveries against 
such loans are credited to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.1.2. Financial liabilities
a. initial recognition and measurement:

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, 
in the case of loans and borrowings, net of directly attributable 
transaction costs.

B. Subsequent measurement:
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their 
classification, as described below:
loans and borrowings:
after initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings 
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective Interest rate (eIr) method. Gains and losses 
are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are de-
recognised as well as through the eIr amortization process. 
amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any 
discount or premium on acquisition and processing fees or 
sourcing costs that are an integral part of the eIr. the eIr 
amortization is included as finance costs in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss.
trade and other payables:
these amounts represent liabilities for goods or services 
provided to the Group which are unpaid at the end of the 
reporting period. trade and other payables falling due within a 
period of 12 months are presented at its carrying amounts as 
it approximates fair value due to the short maturity of these 
instruments. Other payables falling due after 12 months from 
the end of the reporting period are measured and presented at 
amortised cost unless designated as fair value through profit 
and loss at the inception.
Financial liabilities measured at fair value through profit or 
loss:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include 
financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities 
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through 
profit or loss. Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading or 
designated as at FVTPL are recognized in the profit or loss.

C. De-recognition of financial liabilities:
A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under 
the liability is discharged or cancelled or expired. When an 
existing financial liability is replaced by another from the 

same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms 
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an 
exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of 
the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. the 
difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognized in 
the Statement of Profit or Loss.

3.1.3. Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net 
amount is reported in the Balance Sheet if there is a currently 
enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts and 
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realize the assets 
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

3.2. property, plant and equipment
property, plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the 
costs of day–to–day servicing, less accumulated depreciation 
and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the expected 
useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation 
period or methodology, as appropriate, and treated as changes 
in accounting estimates.
Depreciation is calculated using the straight–line method to 
write down the cost of property and equipment to their residual 
values over their estimated useful lives. land is not depreciated.
useful life of assets as per Schedule ii:

asset Description Estimated useful life
Furniture and fittings 10 years
Office Equipments 5 years
Computers 3 years
Electrical fittings 10 years
V-Sat equipments 10 years

* estimated useful life of these assets based on usage and 
replacement policy of such assets.

the residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation 
of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at  each financial 
year end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

the Company in addition also has leasehold improvements that 
are depreciated over their lease term.

property, plant and equipment is de-recognised on disposal or 
when no future economic benefits are expected from its use. Any 
gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated 
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in other income / 
expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss in the year the asset 
is derecognised. the date of disposal of an item of property, 
plant and equipment is the date the recipient obtains control of 
that item in accordance with the requirements for determining 
when a performance obligation is satisfied in Ind AS 115.

3.3. intangible assets

The Group’s other intangible assets mainly include the value 
of computer software. an intangible asset is recognised 
only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is 
probable that the expected future economic benefits that 
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are attributable to it will flow to the Group. Intangible assets 
acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at 
cost. Subsequently, they are carried at cost less accumulated 
amortisation and impairment losses if any, and are amortised 
over their estimated useful life on the straight line basis 
over a 3 year period or the license period whichever is lower.

the carrying amount of the assets is reviewed at each Balance 
Sheet date to ascertain impairment based on internal or external 
factors. Impairment is recognised, if the carrying value exceeds 
the higher of the net selling price of the assets and its value in use.

3.4. Cash and Cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the Balance Sheet comprise cash 
at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original 
maturity of three months or less, which are subject to an 
insignificant risk of changes in value.

3.5. leases

leases are recognized, measured and presented in accordance 
with Ind aS 116 “leases”.

the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a lease, 
at inception of a contract. the Group recognises a right-of-use 
asset and a corresponding lease liability with respect to all 
lease agreements in which it is the lessee, except for short-
term leases (defined as leases with a lease term of 12 months 
or less) and leases of low value assets. For these leases, the 
group recognises the lease payments as an operating expense 
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease unless another 
systematic basis is more representative of the time pattern in 
which economic benefits from the leased assets are consumed.

the lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the 
lease payments that are not paid at the commencement date, 
discounted by using the rate implicit in the lease. If this rate 
cannot be readily determined, the group uses its incremental 
borrowing rate.

right-of-use assets are depreciated over the shorter period of 
lease term and useful life of the underlying asset. If a lease 
transfers ownership of the underlying asset or the cost of the 
right-of-use asset reflects that the group expects to exercise a 
purchase option, the related right-of-use asset is depreciated 
over the useful life of the underlying asset. the depreciation 
starts at the commencement date of the lease.

3.6. inventories

Cost comprises all cost of purchase and other cost incurred in 
bringing the inventories to their present location and condition, 
which is determined on First in First Out ('FIFO') basis. Net 
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary 
course of business less the estimated cost necessary to make 
the sale.

3.7. Impairment of non-financial assets

the Group assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is 
an indication that an asset may be impaired. If any indication 
exists, or when annual impairment testing for an asset is 

required, the Group estimates the asset’s recoverable amount. 
An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s or 
cash-generating unit’s (CGU) fair value less costs of disposal 
and its value in use. recoverable amount is determined for 
an individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash 
inflows that are largely independent of those from other assets 
or group of assets. When the carrying amount of an asset or 
CGU exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered 
impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are 
discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate 
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of 
money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair 
value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are 
taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, 
an appropriate valuation model is used. these calculations 
are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices 
for publicly traded companies or other available fair value 
indicators.

the Group bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets 
and forecast calculations, which are prepared separately for 
each of the Group’s CGUs to which the individual assets are 
allocated. these budgets and forecast calculations generally 
cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term 
growth rate is calculated and applied to project future cash 
flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections 
beyond periods covered by the most recent budgets/forecasts, 
the group extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using 
a steady or declining growth rate for subsequent years, unless 
an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth 
rate does not exceed the long-term average growth rate for the 
products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity 
operates, or for the market in which the asset is used.
Impairment losses of continuing operations, are recognised in 
the Statement of Profit and Loss.
For assets excluding goodwill, an assessment is made at each 
reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that 
previously recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have 
decreased. If such indication exists, the Group estimates the 
asset’s or CGU’s recoverable amount. A previously recognised 
impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change 
in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s recoverable 
amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. the 
reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of the asset does 
not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying 
amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation, 
had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior 
years. Such reversal is recognised in the Statement of Profit or 
loss unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which 
case, the reversal is treated as a revaluation increase.

3.8. Hedge accounting
Hedges are expected to be highly effective in achieving 
offsetting changes in fair value or cash flows and are assessed 
on an ongoing basis to determine that they actually have been 
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highly effective throughout the financial reporting periods for 
which they were designated. Hedges that meet the strict criteria 
for hedge accounting are accounted for, as described below:
A cash flow hedge is a hedge of the exposure to variability in 
cash flows that is attributable to a particular risk associated 
with a recognised asset or liability or a highly probable forecast 
transaction and could affect profit or loss. For qualifying cash 
flow hedges, the effective portion of the cumulative gain or loss 
on the hedging instrument is initially recognised directly in OCI 
within equity (cash flow hedge reserve). The ineffective portion 
of the gain or loss on the hedging instrument is recognised 
immediately in net gain/loss on fair value changes in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

3.9. revenue recognition
revenue (other than for those items to which Ind aS 109 
Financial Instruments are applicable) is measured at fair value of 
the consideration received or receivable. revenue is recognised 
upon transfer of control of promised goods or services to 
customer in an amount that reflects the consideration we expect 
to receive as per the agreement with the customer. 
the Company has applied revenue recognition criteria for 
each distinct performance obligation. the transaction price 
is allocated to each performance obligation based on the 
standalone selling price.
additional interest, cheque bounce charges and all other 
charges relating to financing activities are recognised as income 
on realisation due to uncertainty in their collection.
Income from other non-financing activity is recognised as per 
the terms of the respective contract on accrual basis provided 
that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the 
company and the amount of income can be measured reliably.

dividend income from investments is recognised when the 
shareholder’s right to receive payment has been established.

3.10. Employee benefits

Short Term Employee Benefit Plans

All short term employee benefit plans such as salaries, wages, 
bonus, special awards and medical benefits, which fall due 
within 12 months of the period in which the employee renders 
the related service, which entitles him to avail such benefits 
are recognised on an undiscounted basis, and charged to the 
Statement of Profit and Loss.

Defined Contribution Plans

Contribution to provident funds are made monthly at a 
predetermined rate to the regional provident fund commissioner 
and debited to the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Defined Benefit Plans

provision is made for gratuity based on actuarial valuation, 
carried out by an independent actuary as at the Balance Sheet 
date using the projected unit credit method. re-measurement, 
comprising actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the changes 
to the asset ceiling (if applicable) and the return on plan assets 

(excluding interest), is reflected immediately in the statement 
of financial position with a charge or credit recognised in other 
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur.

3.11. income taxes

Current tax

Current tax is provided using the tax rates and laws that have 
been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date and 
includes any adjustment to tax payable in respect of previous 
years. Current tax is generally recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss.

Deferred tax

deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between 
the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the financial 
statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the 
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are 
generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences, 
except when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial 
recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction 
that is not a business combination and, at the time of the 
transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable 
profit or loss. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised 
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it 
is probable that taxable profits will be available against which 
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. 

the carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the 
end of each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no 
longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available 
to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Unrecognised 
deferred tax assets are re-assessed at each reporting date and 
are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that 
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be 
recovered.

deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at each reporting 
date at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period in 
which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax 
rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively 
enacted by the end of the reporting period. 

deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if 
a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets 
against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the 
same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss, except when they are related to items that are 
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, 
in which case, the current and deferred tax are also recognized 
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

minimum alternate taX (mat)

minimum alternate tax (mat) paid in accordance with the 
tax laws, which gives future economic benefits in the form of 
adjustment to future income tax liability, is considered as an 
asset if there is convincing evidence that the Company will 
pay normal income tax. accordingly, mat is recognised as an 
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asset in the Balance Sheet when it is highly probable that future 
economic benefit associated with it will flow to the Company.

3.12. provisions, Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets
provisions are recognised when the Group has a present 
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of past events, and 
it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. When 
the effect of the time value of money is material, the Group 
determines the level of provision by discounting the expected 
cash flows at a pre-tax rate reflecting the current rates specific 
to the liability. the expense relating to any provision is presented 
in the Statement of Profit and Loss net of any reimbursement.
Where the probability of outflow is considered to be remote, or 
probable, but a reliable estimate cannot be made, a contingent 
liability is disclosed.
Given the subjectivity and uncertainty of determining the 
probability and amount of losses, the Group takes into account a 
number of factors including legal advice, the stage of the matter 
and historical evidence from similar incidents. Significant 
judgement is required to conclude on these estimates.
provisions are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date and 
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. If it is no longer 
probable that the outflow of resources would be required to 
settle the obligation, the provision is reversed. 
Contingent liabilities and Contingent assets are not recognized 
but are disclosed in the notes.

3.13. Employee share based payments
Stock options granted to the employees under the stock option 
scheme established are accounted as per the accounting 
treatment prescribed by the SeBI (Share Based employee 
Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (Formerly SEBI 
(Share Based Employee Benefits) Regulations, 2014) issued 
by Securities and exchange Board of India. the Company 
follows the fair value method of accounting for the options and 
accordingly, the excess of market value of the stock options 
as on the date of grant over the fair value of the options is 
recognised as deferred employee compensation cost and is 
charged to the Statement of Profit and Loss over the vesting 
period of the options.

3.14. Fair value measurement
The Group measures financial instruments at fair value at 
each Balance Sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be 
received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the measurement 
date. the fair value measurement is based on the presumption 
that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes 
place either: 
• In the principal market for the asset or liability, or 
• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous 

market for the asset or liability which are accessible to the 
Company.

the fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the 
assumptions that market participants would use when pricing 
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in 
their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into 
account a market participant’s ability to generate economic 
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by 
selling it to another market participant that would use the asset 
in its highest and best use.

the Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in 
the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to 
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable 
inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. all assets 
and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in 
the financial statements are categorized within the fair value 
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level input 
that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

• Level 1: Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets 
for identical assets or liabilities;

• Level 2: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input 
that is significant to the fair value    measurement is directly or 
indirectly observable; or

• Level 3: Valuation techniques for which the lowest level 
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is 
unobservable. 

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial 
statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether 
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is 
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end 
of each reporting period.

3.15. Earnings per Share

Basic Earnings per Share is calculated by dividing the net profit 
or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the 
weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during 
the period. the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the period and for all periods presented 
is adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the 
conversion of potential equity shares that have changed the 
number of equity shares outstanding, without a corresponding 
change in resources.

For the purpose of calculating diluted earnings per share, the net 
profit or loss for the period attributable to equity shareholders 
and the weighted average number of shares outstanding during 
the period is adjusted for the effects of all dilutive potential 
equity shares.

3.16. Dividends on ordinary shares

the Group recognises a liability to make cash or non-cash 
distributions to equity holders of the Company when the 
distribution is authorised and the distribution is no longer at 
the discretion of the Company. as per the corporate laws in 
India, a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the 
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shareholders. a corresponding amount is recognised directly in 
equity.

3.17. Segment information

the accounting policies adopted for Segment reporting are in 
line with the accounting policies of the Group with the following 
additional policies:

Revenue and expenses have been identified to segments on 
the basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the 
Segment. revenue and expenses, which relate to the enterprise 
as a whole and are not allocable to Segments on a reasonable 
basis have been included under “Un-allocable”.

Assets and liabilities have been identified to segments on the 
basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the 
Segment. assets and liabilities, which relate to the enterprise 
as a whole and are not allocable to Segments on a reasonable 
basis have been included under “Un-allocable”.

3.18. Statement of Cash Flows

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, where 
by profit / (loss) before tax is adjusted for the effects of 
transactions of non-cash nature and any deferrals or accruals 
of past or future cash receipts or payments. For the purpose 
of the Statement of Cash Flows, cash and cash equivalents as 
defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are 
considered an integral part of cash management of the Group.

3.19. Standards issued but not yet effective

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or 
amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian 
accounting Standards) rules as issued from time to time. On 31 
march 2023, mCa amended the Companies (Indian accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023, as below:

Ind aS 1 - presentation of Financial Statements - this amendment 
requires the entities to disclose their material accounting 
policies rather than their significant accounting policies. 
the effective date for adoption of this amendment is annual 
periods beginning on or after 01 april 2023. the Company has 
evaluated the amendment and the impact of the amendment is 
insignificant in the Company’s financial statements.

Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates 
and Errors - This amendment has introduced a definition of 
accounting estimates’ and included amendments to Ind AS 
8 to help entities distinguish changes in accounting policies 
from changes in accounting estimates. the effective date for 
adoption of this amendment is annual periods beginning on or 
after 01 april 2023. the Company has evaluated the amendment 
and there is no impact on its financial statements.

Ind aS 12 - Income taxes - this amendment has narrowed the 
scope of the initial recognition exemption so that it does not 
apply to transactions that give rise to equal and offsetting 
temporary differences. the effective date for adoption of this 
amendment is annual periods beginning on or after 01 april 
2023. the Company has evaluated the amendment and there is 
no impact on its financial statement.
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4 Cash and cash equivalents

particulars as at
march 31, 2023

as at 
march 31, 2022

Cash on hand  8.92  20.50 
Balances with banks :

In current account *  3,736.28  6,493.42 
total  3,745.20  6,513.92 
* Balance in current account includes the amount in the name of JrG eSOp trust  3.54  3.54 

5 Bank balance other than cash and cash equivalents

particulars as at 
march 31, 2023

as at 
march 31, 2022

Earmarked balances:
margin money deposit **  240.00  240.00 

Fixed deposit with original maturity more than 3 months  1,666.36  1,942.33 
total  1,906.36  2,182.33 
**For Securitisation arrangements

6 trade and other receivable 

particulars as at
march 31, 2023

as at 
march 31, 2022

trade receivables
Unsecured, considered good  2,688.41  888.34 

 2,688.41  888.34 
Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk  12.50  12.50 
Less :Impairment loss allowance  (12.50)  (12.50)
total trade receivables  2,688.41  888.34 

Other receivables
Secured, considered good  -    -   
Unsecured, considered good  527.18  90.89 

 527.18  90.89 
Receivables which have significant increase in credit risk  -    -   
Less :Impairment loss allowance  -    -   
total Other receivables  527.18  90.89 
note: 
The credit period normally ranges from 30 to 60 days without security. No interest is charged on trade receivables. Trade receivable with significant 
increase in credit risk and with credit impairment and consequent impairment loss allowance is identified on individual assessment basis.

trade receivables ageing schedule

particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment - as at march 31, 2023
less than 6 

months
6 months - 1 

year 1-2 years 2-3 years more than 3 
years total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good  2,688.41  -    -    -    -    2,688.41 
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have 

significant increase in credit risk
 -    -   -  -    -    -   

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired  -    -   -  -    -    -   
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables–considered good   -    -    -    -    -    -   
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – which have significant 

increase in credit risk
 -    -    -    -    12.50  12.50 

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired  -    -    -    -    (12.50)  (12.50)
total  2,688.41  -    -    -    -    2,688.41 
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particulars
Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment - as at march 31, 2022
less than 6 

months
6 months - 1 

year 1-2 years 2-3 years more than 3 
years total

(i) Undisputed Trade receivables – considered good  888.34  -    -    -    -    888.34 
(ii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – which have 

significant increase in credit risk
 -    -   -  -    -    -   

(iii) Undisputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired  -    -    -    -    -   
(iv) Disputed Trade Receivables–considered good   -    -    -    -    -    -   
(v) Disputed Trade Receivables – which have significant 

increase in credit risk
 -    -    -    -    12.50  12.50 

(vi) Disputed Trade Receivables – credit impaired  -    -    -    -    (12.50)  (12.50)
total  888.34  -    -    -    -    888.34 

7 loans

particulars as at
march 31, 2023

as at
march 31, 2022

loans - at amortised cost
(a)
(i) loan to customers 
i) mortgage/property loans  235.02  606.95 
ii) Business loans (Sme)  3,670.83  6,866.54 
iii) Business loans (Others)  7,548.82  9,410.60 
iv) micro Finance  16,172.76  26,893.16 
(ii) Others  380.27  440.25 
total (a) -Gross  28,007.71  44,217.50 
Less: Impairment loss allowance  (2,155.95)  (1,262.64)

total (a) -net  25,851.76  42,954.86 
(B)
(i) Secured by tangible assets  235.02  606.95 
(ii) Unsecured  27,772.68  43,610.55 
total (B) -Gross  28,007.71  44,217.50 
Less: Impairment loss allowance  (2,155.95)  (1,262.64)

total (B)-net  25,851.76  42,954.86 
(C) 
(C) (i) loans in india
(i) public Sector - -
(ii) Others 27,776.44 44,004.92
total (C) (i) -Gross 27,776.44 44004.92
Less: Impairment loss allowance (1,924.68) (1,050.06)
total (C) (i) -net 25,851.76 42,954.86
(C) (ii) loans Outside india (231.27) (231.27)
Less: Impairment loss allowance (231.27) (212.58)
total (C) (ii)-net - -

total C(i) and C(ii) 25,851.76 42,954.86
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Credit Quality of assets 
The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum exposure to credit risk pertaining to loan to customer based on the Group’s internal 
credit rating system and year-end stage classification. The amounts presented are gross of impairment allowances. 

particulars march 31, 2023 march 31, 2022
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 total

i) mortgage/property loans  196.54  38.35  0.13  235.02  574.40  32.55  -  606.95 
ii) Business loans (Sme)  2,679.93  302.57  688.33  3,670.83  6,197.29  387.27  281.98  6,866.54 
iii) Business loans (Others)  4,921.91  2,559.73  67.18  7,548.82  8,853.23  291.63  265.74  9,410.60 
iv) micro Finance  14,645.30  807.88  719.58  16,172.76  26,492.50  47.25  353.41  26,893.16 
total 22,443.68  3,708.53  1,475.22  27,627.44  42,117.42  758.70  901.13  43,777.26 

Summary of ECl provisions:
particulars march 31, 2023 march 31, 2022

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 total
i) mortgage/property loans  0.50  7.67  77.68  85.85  3.22  3.26  -  6.48 
ii) Business loans (Sme)  50.09  50.00  264.48  364.57  53.68  3.82  276.19  333.68 
iii) Business loans (Others)  132.27  551.66  67.18  751.11  23.18  1.52  10.08  34.78 
iv) micro Finance  83.40  98.93  529.41  711.74  293.26  23.62  353.41  670.29 
total  266.26  708.26  938.75  1,913.27  373.33  32.22  639.68  1,045.22 

A. Mortgage/Property Loan
an analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount as follows:
particulars march 31, 2023 march 31, 2022

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 total
Gross carrying amount opening 
balance

 574.40  32.55  -  606.95  669.04  -  -  669.04 

new assets originated or purchased  80.15  5.80  -  85.95  55.73  -  -  55.73 
assets derecognised or repaid 
(excluding write offs)

 (457.88)  -  -  (457.88)  (117.82)  -  -  (117.82)

transfers to Stage 1  -  -  -  -  (32.55)  -  -  (32.55)
transfers to Stage 2  -  -  -  -  -  32.55  -  32.55 
transfers to Stage 3  (0.13)  -  0.13  -  -  -  -  - 
amounts written off  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
Gross carrying amount closing 
balance 

 196.54  38.35  0.13  235.02  574.40  32.55  -  606.95 

reconciliation of ECl balance is given below:
particulars march 31, 2023 march 31, 2022

General approach General approach
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 total

ECl allowance - opening balance  3.22  3.26  -  6.48  1.59  0.33  -  1.92 
new assets originated or purchased  0.50  7.67  -  8.17  3.22  3.26  -  6.48 
assets derecognised or repaid 
(excluding write offs)

 -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 

transfers to Stage 1  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
transfers to Stage 2  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
transfers to Stage 3  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
recoveries  (3.22)  (3.26)  -  (6.48)  (1.59)  (0.33)  -  (1.92)
amounts written off  -  -  77.68  77.68  -  -  -  - 
ECl allowance - closing balance  0.50  7.67  77.68  85.85  3.22  3.26  -  6.48 
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B. Business loans (SmE)
an analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount as follows:
particulars march 31, 2023 march 31, 2022

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 total
Gross carrying amount  
opening balance

 6,197.29  387.27  281.98  6,866.54  4,676.69  124.88  190.49  4,992.06 

new assets originated or purchased  2,453.02  130.90  161.06  2,744.98  6,982.79  5.25  -  6,988.04 
assets derecognised or repaid 
(excluding write offs)

(5,268.22)  (87.23)  (113.17)  (5,468.62)  (4,675.16)  73.50  (411.31)  (5,012.97)

transfers to Stage 1  (501.18)  (280.72)  213.88  (568.02)  (671.46)  -  -  (671.46)
transfers to Stage 2  (0.14)  171.01  -  170.87  -  183.64  -  183.64 
transfers to Stage 3  -  -  397.14  397.14  -  -  487.82  487.82 
amounts written off  (200.84)  (18.66)  (252.56)  (472.06)  (115.57)  -  14.98  (100.59)
 Gross carrying amount closing 
balance 

 2,679.93  302.57  688.33  3,670.83  6,197.29  387.27  281.98  6,866.54 

reconciliation of ECl balance is given below:
particulars march 31, 2023 march 31, 2022

General approach General approach
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 total

ECl allowance - opening balance  53.68  3.82  276.19  333.69  79.13  0.27  46.38  125.78 
new assets originated or purchased  0.35  0.33  98.11  98.79  32.79  4.32  229.81  266.92 
assets derecognised or repaid 
(excluding write offs)

 (26.02)  (2.19)  -  (28.21)  (40.23)  (0.78)  -  (41.01)

transfers to Stage 1  30.74  48.87  -  79.61  -  -  -  - 
transfers to Stage 2  -  1.35  -  1.35  -  -  -  - 
transfers to Stage 3  -  -  (80.96)  (80.96)  -  -  -  - 
Unwind of discount  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
recoveries  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
amounts written off  (8.66)  (2.18)  (28.86)  (39.70)  (18.01)  -  -  (18.01)
ECl allowance - closing balance  50.09  50.00  264.48  364.57  53.68  3.82  276.19  333.68 

C. Business loans (Others)
particulars march 31, 2023 march 31, 2022

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 total
Gross carrying amount opening 
balance

 8,853.23  291.63  265.74  9,410.60  7,080.46  298.27  600.90  7,979.63 

new assets originated or purchased  10,007.81  -  123.67  10,131.48 10,285.21  -  -  10,285.21 
assets derecognised or repaid 
(excluding write offs)

(11,379.40)  (291.63)  (322.23) (11,993.26)  (6,263.08)  -  -  (6,263.08)

transfers to Stage 1  (2,559.73)  -  -  (2,559.73)  -  -  -  - 
transfers to Stage 2  -  2,559.73  -  2,559.73  -  -  -  - 
transfers to Stage 3  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
amounts written off  -  -  -  -  (2,249.36)  (6.64)  (335.16)  (2,591.16)
Gross carrying amount closing 
balance 

 4,921.91  2,559.73  67.18  7,548.82  8,853.23  291.63  265.74  9,410.60 
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reconciliation of ECl balance is given below:
particulars march 31, 2023 march 31, 2022

General approach General approach
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 total

ECl allowance - opening balance  23.18  1.52  10.08  34.78  463.27  13.14  270.58  746.99 
new assets originated or purchased  660.75  -  57.10  717.85  10.38  1.52  10.08  21.98 
assets derecognised or repaid 
(excluding write offs)

 -  (1.52)  -  (1.52)  -  -  -  - 

transfers to Stage 1  (551.66)  -  -  (551.66)  -  -  -  - 
transfers to Stage 2  -  551.66  -  551.66  -  -  -  - 
transfers to Stage 3  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
recoveries  -  -  -  -  -  -  -  - 
amounts written off  -  -  -  -  (450.47)  (13.14)  (270.58)  (734.19)
ECl allowance - closing balance  132.27  551.66  67.18  751.11  23.18  1.52  10.08  34.78 

D. micro Finance
an analysis of changes in the gross carrying amount as follows:
particulars march 31, 2023 march 31, 2022

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 total
Gross carrying amount opening 
balance

 26,492.50  47.25  353.41  26,893.16  17,567.63  1.92  220.36  17,789.91 

new assets originated or purchased  9,998.24  97.32  244.39  10,339.95  26,186.55  10.13  2.10  26,198.78 
assets derecognised or repaid 
(excluding write offs)

 (19,433.61)  (100.52)  (47.23) (19,581.36)  (17,081.06)  (4.45)  (10.02) (17,095.53)

transfers to Stage 1  0.02  (0.02)  -  -  -  -  -  - 
transfers to Stage 2  (788.95)  788.95  -  -  (40.93)  40.93  -  - 
transfers to Stage 3  (474.54)  (5.46)  480.00  -  (139.69)  (1.28)  140.97  - 
amounts written off  (1,148.36)  (19.64)  (310.99)  (1,478.99)  -  -  -  - 
Gross carrying amount closing 
balance

 14,645.30  807.88  719.58  16,172.76  26,492.50  47.25  353.41  26,893.16 

reconciliation of ECl balance is given below:
particulars march 31, 2023 march 31, 2022

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 total Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 total
ECl allowance - opening balance  293.26  23.62  353.41  670.29  157.72  0.96  220.36  379.04 
new assets originated or purchased  1,090.31  -  690.88  1,781.19  135.54  23.62  141.86  301.02 
assets derecognised or repaid 
(excluding write offs)

 -  (20.18)  (240.57)  (260.75)  -  (0.32)  (9.45)  (9.77)

transfers to Stage 1  0.01  (0.01)  -  -  -  -  -  - 
transfers to Stage 2  (117.87)  117.87  -  -  -  -  -  - 
transfers to Stage 3  (33.95)  (2.73)  36.68  -  -  (0.64)  0.64  - 
amounts written off  (1,148.36)  (19.64)  (310.99)  (1,478.99)  -  -  -  - 
ECl allowance - closing balance  83.40  98.93  529.41  711.74  293.26  23.62  353.41  670.29 

Disclosure as required by RBI circular DOR.No.BP.BC.63/21.04.048/2019-20 dated April 17, 2020 issued by Reserve Bank of India on 'Covid-19 
Regulatory Package - Asset classification and Provisioning are given below:
particulars as on

march 31, 2023
i) amount in Sma/Overdue categories as on 29th February 2020 where moratorium extended  17,921.90 
ii) Respective amount where asset classification is extended* nil
iii) provision made in terms of paragraph 5 of the above circular** nil
iv)provision adjusted against slippages in terms of paragraph 6 of the circular not applicable

* There are nil accounts as on March 31,2023 where the asset classification benefits is extended by the Company upto August 31, 2020
**the Company had made adequate provision for impairment loss under eCl model for the year ended march 31, 2023. 

during the year ended march 31, 2023, the company has invoked resolution plans to relieve COVId-19 pandemic related stress to eligible borrowers. 
the resolution plans are based on the parameters laid down in the resolution policy approved by the Board of directors of the company and in 
accordance with the guidelines issued by the rBI on august 06, 2020. the staging of accounts and provisioning for the eligible accounts where the 
resolution plans are invoked and implemented is in accordance with the Board approved policy in this regard. 
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Disclosure as per the format prescribed as per the notification no. RBI/2020-21/16 DoR.no.BP.BC/3/21.04.048/2020-21 for the year ended March 
31, 2023 is given below:
type of Borrower a B C D E

Exposure to accounts classified 
as Standard consequent to 

implementation of resolution 
plan – position as at the end of 

the  previous half-year (a)

Of (a), 
aggregate debt 

that slipped 
into npa during 

the half-year 

Of (a) 
amount 

written off 
during the 
half-year 

Of (a) amount 
paid by the 
borrowers 
during the 
half-year 

Exposure to accounts classified 
as Standard consequent to 

implementation of resolution 
plan – position as at the end of 

this half-year
personal loan  -  -  -  -  - 
Corporate person
- mSmes  83.00  649.21  -  -  - 
- Others  1,523.38  246.05  819.42  122.55  335.36 
total  1,606.38  895.26  819.42  122.55  335.36 

Hon’ble Supreme Court, in a public interest litigation (Gajendra Sharma vs. Union of India & Anr.) vide an interim order dated September 3, 2020, has directed 
that accounts which were not declared NPA till August 31, 2020 shall not be declared as NPA till further orders. However, such accounts had been classified 
as stage 3 and provision had been made accordingly. The interim order stood vacated on March 23, 2021 vide the judgement of the Hon’ble Supreme Court in 
the matter of Small Scale Industrial Manufacturers Association v/s & Ors. and other connected matters. In accordance with the instructions in paragraph 5 of 
the RBI circular no. RBI/2021-22/17 doR. STR. REC . 4/ 21.04.048/ 2021-22, dated April 07, 2021 issued in this connection, the group was already classifying 
the NPA accounts as Stage 3 and provision was made accordingly, without considering the above mentioned asset classification benefit for accounting 
purpose, there is no change in asset classification on account of the interim order dated March 23, 2021.
The Group had credited an ex-gratia amount of Rs. 33.27 lakhs for the payment of difference between the compound interest and simple interest to 
the accounts of borrowers in specified loan accounts between March 1, 2020 and August 31, 2020 as per the eligibility criteria and other features 
as mentioned in the notification dated October 23, 2020 issued by Government of India, Ministry of Finance, Department of Financial Services. The 
Company had filed a claim with the State Bank of India for reimbursement of the said ex-gratia amount as specified in the notification and Company 
received the same on 8th Decemeber 2021.

8 investments

particulars

as at march 31, 2023 as at march 31, 2022
at fair value

Others* total

at fair value

Others* totalthrough other 
comprehensive 

income

through 
Profit or 

loss

through other 
comprehensive 

income

through 
Profit or 

loss
Equity instruments
Others  49.82  998.45  70.53  1,118.79  49.82  1,001.27  137.47  1,188.56 
total –Gross (a)  49.82  998.45  70.53  1,118.79  49.82  1,001.27  137.47  1,188.56 
(i) Investments outside India  49.82  -    -    49.82  49.82  -    -    49.82 
(ii) Investments in India  -    998.45  70.53  1,068.97  -    1,001.27  137.47  1,138.74 
total – (B)  49.82  998.45  70.53  1,118.79  49.82  1,001.27  137.47  1,188.56 
Less: Impairment loss allowance (C )  (49.82)  -    -    (49.82)  (49.82)  -    -    (49.82)
total – net D= (a)-(C)  -    998.45  70.53  1,068.97  -    1,001.27  137.47  1,138.74 

*Investments in associates accounted as per Ind As 28.

9 Other financial assets

particulars as at 
march 31, 2023

as at 
march 31, 2022

rental deposit  207.78  215.31 
Security deposit  46.42  32.81 
deposits with exchanges  35.08  61.65 
advances to employees  2.09  12.04 
Electricity deposits, telephone & Other deposits  -    13.54 
advances recoverable in cash or in kind  7.74  7.90 
margin money deposit and its accrued interest  200.09  880.10 
Other advances  2,303.87  1,620.42 
advances considered doubtful  287.51  287.51 
Fixed deposit with remaining maturity of more than 12 months *  0.99  7.00 
Less :Impairment loss allowance **  (287.51)  (288.51)
total  2,804.06  2,849.77 

* includes deposits pledged with bankers, represent the amount of deposit to be maintained with scheduled banks as per regulation 23 of irDa 
(insurance Brokers) regulations 2018
** refer note 48
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10 inventories

particulars as at 
march 31, 2023

as at 
march 31, 2022

inventories at lower of Cost & net realisable value:
Stock-in-trade  4,639.59  2,189.33 
total  4,639.59  2,189.33 

11 Current tax assets (net)

particulars as at 
march 31, 2023

as at 
march 31, 2022

Current tax assets (net)  81.55  -   
total  81.55  -   

12 Deferred tax assets (net)

particulars as at 
march 31, 2023

 as at 
31 march 2022 

Deferred tax assets
provision for gratuity and bonus  59.61  23.41 
Impairment on financial instruments  553.06  330.50 
arising from timing difference in respect of depreciation  67.25  46.63 
mat credit entitlement  231.75  231.75 
Others  14.45 (6.35) 
total Deferred tax asset (a) 926.12 625.94
Deferred tax liability
On account of Ind aS transitional adjustments  -    -   
Impact of gratuity OCI  (12.42)  -   
total deferred tax liabilities(B) (12.42)  -   
net deferred tax asset (a-B)  913.70  625.94 

Deferred tax asset (net)
The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the Income tax expense:

particulars

as at 
01 april 2022 For the year ended march 31, 2023 as at 

31 march 2023 
Deferred tax 

assets
recognised in 

income Statement
recognised 

in OCi
recognised in 

retained earning
Deferred tax 

assets
Impact of provision for gratuity 45.68  15.31  (12.42)  -    48.57 
Expected Credit Losses on Loans and financial assets  357.76  221.36  -    -    579.12 
eCl created on loans securitised and loans under 
partnership

 -    -    -    -    -   

arising from timing difference in respect of depreciation  45.39  10.06  -    -    55.45 
Fair Valuation of Investments Ind aS 109  (11.40)  18.62  -    -    7.22 
Impact of eIr on advances and Borrowings  (55.73)  22.46  -    -    (33.27)
Other temporary differences  (0.11)  10.30  -    -    10.19 
On account of roU asset and lease liability  10.11  2.99  -    -    13.10 
amortisation of service fee income  2.48  (0.92)  -    -    1.56 
Gain on derecognition of loans owing to assignment and 
securitisation

 -    -    -    -    -   

mat credit entitlement  231.77  -    -    -    231.77 
total  625.94  300.18  (12.42)  -    913.70 
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particulars

as at 
01 april 2021 For the year ended march 31, 2022 as at 

31 march 2022 
Deferred tax 

assets
recognised in 

income Statement
recognised 

in OCi
recognised in 

retained earning
Deferred tax 

assets
Impact of provision for gratuity  32.09  17.71  (4.12)  -    45.68 
Expected Credit Losses on Loans and financial assets  336.19  21.57  -    -    357.76 
eCl created on loans securitised and loans under 
partnership

 -    -    -    -    -   

arising from timing difference in respect of depreciation  51.12  (5.73)  -    -    45.39 
Fair Valuation of Investments Ind aS 109  0.47  (11.87)  -    -    (11.40)
Impact of eIr on advances and Borrowings  (8.26)  (47.47)  -    -    (55.73)
Other temporary differences  (0.11)  -    -    -    (0.11)
On account of roU asset and lease liability  8.29  1.82  -    -    10.11 
amortisation of service fee income  0.96  1.52  -    -    2.48 
Gain on derecognition of loans owing to assignment and 
securitisation

 -    -    -    -    -   

mat credit entitlement  231.77  -    -    -    231.77 
total  652.51  (22.45)  (4.12)  -    625.94 

13 property, plant and equipment

particulars 
Furniture

and 
Fixtures 

Computers Office
equipment 

lease 
improvements

Electrical 
fittings

v-Sat 
equipments Building Sub 

total
rOu 

asset total 

Deemed Cost  as at 
april 1, 2021 

 137.25  262.21  32.83  176.34  3.03  0.82  -   612.48  763.68 1,376.16 

additions  5.65  17.85  12.55  1.38  -    -    -    37.43  274.48  311.91 
disposals / write off  6.27  16.73  5.39  -    -    -    -    28.39  33.38  61.77 
Gross carrying amount 
as at march 31, 2022 

 136.63  263.33  39.99  177.72  3.03  0.82  -   621.52  1,004.78 1,626.30 

additions  4.77  17.53  6.11 - - -  164.06  192.47  197.74  390.21 
disposals / write off  1.45 - - - -  -    1.45  24.90  26.35 
Gross carrying amount 
as at march 31, 2023 

 141.40  279.41  46.10  177.72  3.03  0.82  164.06 812.54  1,177.62 1,990.16 

accumulated 
depreciation 
Balance as at april 1, 
2021 

 32.48  156.63  15.01  49.73  3.03  0.82  -   257.70  433.99  691.69 

depreciation  13.87  64.97  6.57  32.61  -    -    -    118.02  207.72  325.74 
accumulated 
depreciation on 
disposals/write off 

 1.38  11.94  2.37  -    -    -    -    15.69  29.03  44.72 

Balance as at march 
31, 2022 

 44.97  209.65  19.22  82.34  3.03  0.82  -    360.03  612.68  972.71 

depreciation  13.51  36.88  6.30  25.71 - -  34.75  117.15  213.85  331.00 
accumulated 
depreciation on 
disposals/write off 

-  1.45 - - - -  5.15  6.60  10.67  17.27 

Balance as at march 
31, 2023 

 58.48  245.08  25.52  108.05  3.03  0.82  29.60  470.57  815.86 1,286.44 

net Carrying amount 
as at march 31, 2022  91.67  53.66  20.77  95.38  -   -  -    261.48  392.10  653.59 
as at march 31, 2023  82.92  34.33  20.58  69.67  -    -    134.46  341.97  361.76  703.73 

There is no revaluation of Property, Plant & Equipment & other Intangible assets during the year ended 31st March 2023 and 31st March 2022.
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14 Other intangible assets
particulars Computer Software
Deemed cost as at april 1, 2021  25.44 
additions  2,703.05 
disposals / write off  3.50 
Gross carrying amount as at march 31, 2022  2,724.99 
additions  1.50 
disposals / write off  -   
Gross carrying amount as at march 31, 2023  2,726.49 
accumulated amortisation
Balance as at april 1, 2021  7.90 
additions  146.30 
accumulated amortisation on disposals / write off  2.51 
Balance as at march 31, 2022  151.69 
additions  288.61 
accumulated amortisation on disposals / write off  -   
Balance as at march 31, 2023  440.30 
net Carrying amount
as at march 31, 2022  2,573.30 
as at march 31, 2023  2,286.19 

15 Other non-financial assets

particluars as at 
march 31, 2023 

as at 
march 31, 2022 

tax payments pending adjustments (net)  1,390.69  1,062.64 
Capital advances  3.74  3.74 
Balance with government authorities  840.44  828.78 
provident Fund demand paid under protest  24.15  24.15 
Service tax demand paid under protest  244.97  16.74 
advance for purchases  1,063.18  485.66 
prepaid expenses  73.11  46.56 
mat credit entitlement  5.56  5.56 
Other advances  135.83  275.20 
total  3,781.67  2,749.03 

16 payables

particluars as at 
march 31, 2023 

as at 
march 31, 2022 

(i) traDE payaBlES
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  -    -   
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises  2,953.11  911.05 
total trade payables  2,953.11  911.05 
(ii) OtHEr payaBlES
(i) total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises  -    -   
(ii) total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small enterprises  116.71  176.19 
total Other payables  116.71  176.19 
 total   3,069.82  1,087.24 
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trade payables ageing schedule

particulars

as at march 31, 2023

totalOutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
less than 1 

year 1-2 years 2-3 years more than 3 
years

(i) mSme  -    -    -    -    -   
(ii) Others  2,995.85  17.46 0.35  56.16  3,069.82 
(iii) Disputed dues – MSME  -    -    -    -    -   
(iv)disputed dues - Others  -    -    -    -    -   

particulars

as at march 31, 2022

totalOutstanding for following periods from due date of payment
less than 1 

year 1-2 years 2-3 years more than 3 
years

(i) mSme  -    -    -    -    -   
(ii) Others  1,069.73  7.70  -    9.81  1,087.24 
(iii) Disputed dues – MSME  -    -    -    -    -   
(iv)disputed dues - Others  -    -    -    -    -   

17 Debt Securites

particluars as at 
march 31, 2023 

as at 
march 31, 2022 

debt Securities  1,000.00  2,500.00 
total  1,000.00  2,500.00 

Borrowings in India  1,000.00  2,500.00 
Borrowings outside India  -    -   

The Company's subsidiary, "Inditrade Microfinance Limited" had issued 200 Secured, Rated, Listed, Reedemable, "Series - B" Non-Convertible 
debentures bearing a face value of rs. 10,00,000/- (rupees ten lakh) each, aggregating upto rs. 20,00,00,000/· (rupees twenty Crore only) allotted 
on a private placement basis on 30th December, 2020 with a tenor of 18 Months and coupon rate of 11.50% p.a. These debentures have been 
subsequently listed in the debt Segment of Bombay Stock exchange.Out of the above, 50 debentures amounting to rs 5,00,00,000 are held by 
another subsidiary "Inditrade Fincorp Limited" as on March 2022.

Nature of security :The facility is secured on a first and exclusive charge basis by way of hypothecation over the portfolio loans in such a way that 
the security cover of 1.25 times is maintained throughout the tenor of the debentures.

the subsidiary, on march 31, 2022, further issued 100 Secured, rated, listed,reedemable,non-Convertible debentures bearing a face value of rs. 
10,00,000/- (rupees ten lakh) each, aggregating upto rs. 10,00,00,000/· (rupees ten Crore only) allotted on a private placement basis on 30th 
March 2022 with a tenor of 24 Months and coupon rate of 10.00% p.a. These debentures have been subsequently listed in the Debt Segment of 
Bombay Stock exchange.

Nature of security :The facility is secured on a exclusive first ranking and continuing  charge basis by way of hypothecation over the portfolio loans 
in such a way that the security cover of 1.25 times is maintained throughout the tenor of the debentures.
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18 Borrowings

particulars as at 
march 31, 2023 

as at 
march 31, 2022 

at amortised Cost
(a)
(a) term loans

(i) From Banks  11,334.70  20,614.84 
(ii) From Financial Institutions  5,447.13  10,401.48 
(iii) From Other Corporates  1,362.83  627.17 

(b) working Capital loan
(i)Working Capital loan from banks  2,916.21  1,349.67 
(ii)Working Capital loan from Financial Institutions  28.31  100.00 

(c) loans repayable on demand from Directors  175.00  -   
(d) Bank Overdraft  389.96  -   

total (a)  21,654.14  33,093.16 
(B)
Borrowings in india
Secured  20,116.31  32,365.99 
Unsecured  1,537.83  727.17 

total (B)  21,654.14  33,093.16 
(C)
Borrowings in India  21,654.14  33,093.16 
Borrowings outside India  -    -   

total (C)  21,654.14  33,093.16 

19 Subordinated liabilities (at amortised cost)

particulars as at 
march 31, 2023 

as at 
march 31, 2022 

(a)
Subordinated debt  2,900.00  2,919.36 

total (a)  2,900.00  2,919.36 
(B)
Secured  -    -   
Unsecured  2,900.00  2,919.36 

total (B)  2,900.00  2,919.36 
(C)
Subordinated debts in India  2,900.00  2,919.36 
Subordinated debts outside India  -    -   

total (C)  2,900.00  2,919.36 

Borrowings (other than debt securities) and Subordinated Debts
as at march 31, 2023
particulars rate of interest repayment details amount  Security 
term loan from banks 6.00% - 16.60% 1 to 30 instalments of monthly /

Quarterly frequency
6,228.94 loan portfolio

term loan from banks 8.75 % - 14.50 % 1 to 36 instalments of monthly/
Quarterly frequency

 3,046.17 loan portfolio

Term loan from financial institutions 13.50% 1 to 25 instalments of monthly 
frequency

 2,335.02 Secured by an charge on mSme 
loans portfolio. 

Term loan from financial institutions 6.00% - 16.60% 1 to 30 instalments of monthly /
Quarterly frequency

 2,455.56 loan portfolio

Term loan from financial institutions 8.75 % - 14.50 % 1 to 36 instalments of monthly/
Quarterly frequency

 656.55 loan portfolio

term loan from banks 7.00% - 8.60% repayment in 2 equal 
instalments

 2,059.59 Secured by book debts of LAP & 
mSme loans portfolio.
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Working Capital loan from banks 9.30% - 10.10% On demand  2,916.21 pledge of storage receipts / 
demat receipts

Bank Overdraft 12.47% - 15.25% Bank Overdraft  389.96 loan portfolio
Working Capital Loan from financial 
institutions

21.00% On demand  28.31 personally Guaranteed by the 
promoter and group Chairman 
of Inditrade Group

term loan from other corporates 12.00% - 14.50% On demand  1,362.83 Unsecured
loan from directors 14.00% On demand  175.00 Unsecured
Subordinated debts - Banks 10.00% - 14.50% Bullet repayment  2,900.00 Unsecured

as at march 31, 2022
particulars rate of interest repayment details amount  Security 
term loan from banks 6.00% - 16.25% 1 to 24 instalments of monthly 

frequency
 15,260.67 loan portfolio

term loan from banks 9.00% - 13.95% 1 to 36 instalments of monthly 
frequency

 937.50 loan portfolio

Term loan from financial institutions 13.50% 1 to 25 instalments of monthly 
frequency

 3,571.87 Secured by an charge on mSme 
loans portfolio. 

Term loan from financial institutions 6.00% - 16.25% 1 to 24 instalments of monthly 
frequency

 6,747.73 loan portfolio

Term loan from financial institutions 9.00% - 13.95% 1 to 36 instalments of monthly 
frequency

 81.88 loan portfolio

term loan from banks 9.00% - 14.50% Bullet repayment  900.00 loan portfolio against bank
term loan from banks 7.00% - 8.60% repayment in 2 equal 

instalments
 3,516.67 Secured by book debts of LAP & 

mSme loans portfolio.
Working Capital loan from banks 9.30% - 10.10% On demand  1,349.67 pledge of storage receipts / 

demat receipts
Working Capital Loan from financial 
institutions

14.50% On demand  100.00 Unsecured

term loan from other corporates 12.00% - 14.50% On demand  627.17 Unsecured
Subordinated debts - Banks 9.00% - 14.50% Bullet repayment  2,919.36 Unsecured

20 Other financial liabilities

particulars as at 
march 31, 2023

as at 
march 31, 2022

Employee benefits payable  368.15  63.08 
Other payable  602.49  1,533.73 
payable towards Securitised/assigned portfolio  48.46  67.72 
Security deposit  14.05  10.91 
Unclaimed dividend  1.77  1.77 
Interest accrued and due on borrowings  168.50  -   
lease liability  552.88  414.92 
expenses payable  83.94  180.21 
Bank Overdraft  -    954.37 
total 1,840.24  3,226.71 

21 Current tax liabilities (net)

particulars as at 
march 31, 2023

as at 
march 31, 2022

Current tax liabilities  485.83  602.96 
total  485.83  602.96 
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22 provisions

particulars as at 
march 31, 2023

as at 
march 31, 2022

Provision for Employee Benefits  249.13  222.91 
total  249.13  222.91 

23 Deferred tax liability (net)

particulars as at 
march 31, 2023

as at 
march 31, 2022

Deferred tax liabilities
Impact of provision for gratuity  (5.67)  (0.45) 
arising from timing difference in respect of depreciation  111.74  23.27 
total Deferred tax liabilities  106.07  22.82 

the following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the income tax expenses:

particulars

as at 
march 31 2022 For the period ended march 31, 2023 as at 

march 31 2023
Deferred tax 

liability
recognised in 

income Statement
recognised 

in OCi
recognised in 

retained earnings
Deferred tax 

liability
Impact of provision for gratuity  (0.45)  (5.22) -  -    (5.67)
arising from timing difference in respect of 
depreciation

 23.27  88.47  -    -    111.74 

total  22.82  83.25  -    -    106.07 

particulars

as at 
march 31 2021 For the period ended march 31, 2022 as at 

march 31 2022
Deferred tax 

liability
recognised in 

income Statement
recognised 

in OCi
recognised in 

retained earnings
Deferred tax 

liability
Impact of provision for gratuity  -    (0.45) -  -    (0.45)
arising from timing difference in respect of 
depreciation

 (0.02)  23.29  -    -    23.27 

total  (0.02)  22.84  -    -    22.82 

24 Other non-financial liabilities

particulars as at 
march 31, 2023

as at 
march 31, 2022

Statutory dues payable  433.98  483.80 
Income received in advance  92.75  0.53 
advance from customers  -    0.88 
 total   526.73  485.21 

25 Equity share capital

particulars as at march 31, 2023 as at march 31, 2022 
no. of Shares amount no. of Shares amount

authorised Share Capital:
equity shares of rs.10/- each 4,00,00,000  4,000.00 4,00,00,000  4,000.00 
issued, subscribed and paid up capital:
equity shares of rs.10/- each, fully paid  23,353,626  2,335.36  23,353,626  2,335.36 
(-) Shares held by employee Stock Option payment trust (JrG eSOp trust)
(Refer Note 46)

 (67,125)  (6.71)  (67,125)  (6.71)

total  23,286,501  2,328.65  23,286,501  2,328.65 
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a) reconciliation of number of equity shares and equity share capital

particulars as at march 31, 2023 as at march 31, 2022 
no.of Shares amount no.of Shares amount

Balance as at the beginning of the year  23,353,626  2,335.36  23,353,626  2,335.36 
movement during the year  -    -    -    -   
Balance as at the end of the year  23,353,626  2,335.36  23,353,626  2,335.36 

b) reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding in JrG ESOp trust 

particulars as at march 31, 2023 as at march 31, 2022
no.of Shares amount no.of Shares amount

Balance as at the beginning and end of the year  67,125  6.71  67,125  6.71 

c) rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares and terms of conversion of other securities into equity.
the Company has only one class of shares of equity share having a par value of rs. 10 per share. each holder of the equity share is entitled to one 
vote per share. the Company declares and pays dividends in Indian rupees. the dividend proposed (if any) by the Board of directors is subject to the 
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing annual General meeting. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be 
entitled to receive any of the remaining assets of the company, after distribution of all preferential amounts. However, no such preferential amounts 
exist currently. the distribution will be in proportion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

d) Details of the shares held by holding company

name of Shareholder as at march 31, 2023  as at march 31, 2022
no.of Shares % of Holding no. of Shares % of Holding 

Juno moneta technologies private limited  17,045,511 72.99%  17,045,511 72.99%

e) Details of the shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company

name of Shareholder as at march 31, 2023 as at march 31, 2022
no.of Shares % of Holding no. of Shares % of Holding 

Juno moneta technologies private limited  17,045,511 72.99%  17,045,511 72.99%

f) For the period of 5 years immediately preceding the date of Balance sheet
Aggregate number & class of shares allotted by the company as fully paid up pursuance to contracts without receipt of cash - Nil
Aggregate number & class of shares bought back by the company - Nill
Aggregate number & class of shares allotted by the company as fully paid up by way of bonus shares - Nil

g)  there are no bonus shares issued or shares bought back or shares issued for consideration other than cash by the parent Company during 
preceeding the balancesheet date.

h) Details of shares reserved for issue under options
During the financial year 2005-06 the Company had implemented an “Employee Stock Option Plan, 2005” which was subsequently superseded 
by the “Employees Stock Option Plan, 2008” in the financial year 2007-08. The options granted as per the above schemes were forfeited in earlier 
years and there were no exercisable options as at the beginning of the financial year 2016-17. However, pursuant to the aforesaid schemes, 67,125 
equity shares of rs.10 each were allotted to JrG eSOp trust which remain with the trust.

ESOp 2016
During the financial year 2016-17 the said Employees Stock Option Plan, 2008 has been amended to align with the new regulations, viz., the 
Companies Act, 2013 and SEBI (Share Based Employee Benefits and Sweat Equity) Regulations, 2021 (Formerly SEBI (Share Based Employee 
Benefits) Regulations, 2014) and to rationalise the provisions within the ESOP framework as originally approved. The scheme post amendment has 
been renamed as “Inditrade employees Stock Option plan 2016 (“eSOp 2016”)”.

the eSOp 2016 plan was approved on august 30, 2016 at the annual General meeting of Shareholders and subsequently considered and actioned 
upon by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on February 06, 2017 and was effective from the said date. The plan has been further amended 
at the Annual General Meeting held on August 03, 2018 and actioned upon by the Board of Directors at their meeting held on February 04, 2019 
and designated as eSOp 2016 - plan II for disclosure. the company has approved the grant of a further 12,50,000 stock options on the nomination 
remuneration committee meeting held on march 12, 2020. the same has been designated as eSOp 2016 - plan III for the purpose of disclosure.
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The objective of the plan is to encourage ownership of the Company’s equity by its employees on an ongoing basis. The ESOP 2016 is intended 
to reward the employees for their contribution to the successful operation of Inditrade Capital limited and to provide an incentive to continue 
contributing to the success of the Company.  The basic terms of the options granted under ESOP 2016 plan are as under:

particulars ESOp 2016 ESOp 2016 - plan ii ESOp 2016 - 
plan iii

Grant date 07-02-2017 05-02-2019 13-03-2020
Options Granted  794,500  1,291,500  1,226,000 
exercise price (rs. per option) Rs.37.75 Rs.43.20 Rs.38.57
Share price at Grant date - in rs. Rs.36.40 Rs.40.90 Rs.36.70
Vesting period 4 Years 

(25% for each year)
4 Years 

(25% for each year)
4 Years  

(25% for each year)
exercise period 3 years from the 

date of vesting
3 years from the 
date of vesting

3 years from the 
date of vesting

method of accounting Fair value method Fair value method Fair value method
Weighted average fair value per option - in rs. rs.16.56 rs.21.10 Rs.15.74
Options Vested during the year  nil  177,825  240,813 
Options exercised during the year  nil  nil  nil 
Options outstanding at the end of the year  233,500  711,300  963,250 
a description of the method used during the year to estimate the fair values of 
Options, the weighted average exercise prices and weighted average fair values of 
Options granted

the fair value of each Option is estimated using the Black 
Scholes Option pricing model.

The significant assumptions used to ascertain the above: ESOp 2016 ESOp 2016 plan ii ESOp 2016 plan iii
(i) risk-free interest rate 6.45% 7.29% 6.11%
(ii) time to maturity 4 years 4.5 years 4.5 years
(iii) expected volatility 61.97% 55.76% 58.30%
(iv) expected dividends 2.06% 0.00% 2.72%
(v) the price of the underlying shares in market at the time of Option grant - in rs. Rs.36.40 Rs.40.90 Rs.36.70
methodology for determination of expected volatility annualised standard deviation of the continuously 

compounded rates of return over a period prior to the date of 
grant, corresponding with the expected life of the option

i) Details of Shareholding of promoters
Shares held by promoters as at march 31, 2023:

Sr. no. promoter name no. of Shares %of total 
shares

% Change 
during the year

1. Juno moneta technologies private limited 1,70,45,511 72.99%  - 
2. mr. Sudip Bandyopadhyay  50,000 0.21%  - 
3. A T Invofin India Private Limited 1,00,000 0.43%  - 

total 1,71,95,511 73.63% -

Shares held by promoters as at march 31, 2022:

Sr. no. promoter name no. of Shares %of total 
shares

% Change 
during the year

1. Juno moneta technologies private limited 1,70,45,511 72.99%  - 
2. mr. Sudip Bandyopadhyay  50,000 0.21%  - 
3. A T Invofin India Private Limited 1,00,000 0.43%  - 

total 1,71,95,511 73.63% -
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26 Other equity

particulars as at 
march 31, 2023

as at 
march 31, 2022

Other reserves:
Capital reserve
at the beginning of the year  1,200.10  1,200.10 
additions during the year  -    -   
Utilisation during the year  -    -   
at the end of the year  1,200.10  1,200.10 
Securities premium reserve
at the beginning of the year  4,973.50  4,973.50 
additions during the year  -    -   
Utilisation during the year  -    -   
at the end of the year  4,973.50  4,973.50 
Statutory reserve
at the beginning of the year  1,224.02  1,187.52 
additions during the year  (431.17)  36.50 
Utilisation during the year  -    -   
at the end of the year  792.85  1,224.02 
General reserve
at the beginning of the year  147.06  147.06 
additions during the year  -    -   
Utilisation during the year  -    -   
at the end of the year  147.06  147.06 
Share Based payments reserve
at the beginning of the year  388.15  310.95 
additions during the year  (57.98)  77.20 
Utilisation during the year  -    -   
at the end of the year  330.17  388.15 
retained Earnings
at the beginning of the year  3,718.03  3,291.55 
Profit for the year  (1,393.23)  507.59 
Finance Cost on equity componenet within group  (22.32)  (44.61)
Cost of Control  (586.69) -
Closing Balance  1,715.79  3,754.51 
transfer to statutory reserve  431.17  (36.50)
at the end of the year  2,146.96  3,718.03 
Other Comprehensive income:
Remeasurements of the net defined benefit plans
at the beginning of the year  16.32  6.01 
additions  10.93  10.31 
at the end of the year  27.25  16.32 
total   9,617.89  11,667.18 
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nature and purpose of reserves
Capital reserve:
Capital reserve represents the reserve created on account of non exercise of option within the stipulated time by the  erstwhile promoters, to convert 
equity share warrants into equity shares, hence the  amount received from the erstwhile promoters was forfeited and the Board of directors approved 
the transfer of the said amount to the credit of capital reserve.

Securities premium reserve:
Securities premium reserve is used to record the premium on issue of shares. the reserve can be utilized only for limited purposes such as issuance 
of bonus shares, buy back of its own shares and securities in accordance with the provisions of the Companies act, 2013.

Statutory reserve: 
Statutory reserve represents the reserve created as per Section 45IC of the RBI Act, 1934, pursuant to which a Non-Banking Financial Company shall 
create a reserve fund and transfer therein a sum not less than twenty per cent of its net profit every year as disclosed in the Statement of Profit and 
loss account, before any dividend is declared.

General reserve: 
General reserve represents the transfer of amount from  employee Stock Option outstanding on account of forfeiture.

Share Based payments reserve: 
the share based payments reserve is used to recognise the grant date fair value of option issued to employees under employee stock option scheme.

27 non-controlling interest 

particulars as at 
march 31, 2023

as at 
march 31, 2022

Share of nCi in retained Earnings
at the beginning of the year  7,435.71  6,325.52 
Share of NCI in Profits - Revenue  (634.01)  (124.91)
Share of nCI adjusted with new holding pattern  586.69  1,235.10 
at the end of the year  7,388.39  7,435.71 
Share of NCI in Profits - OCI
at the beginning of the year  8.87  3.23 
additions  13.35  5.64 
at the end of the year  22.22  8.87 
total  7,410.61  7,444.58 

28 interest income

particulars as at 
march 31, 2023

as at 
march 31, 2022

Interest on loans  6,511.88  6,794.92 
Interest received on fixed deposits  110.56  130.56 
excess interest earned on account of securitization and direct assignment  54.79  42.39 
Interest Income from Investment  14.49  57.50 
Other interest income  320.82  239.58 
total  7,012.54  7,264.95 
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29 Fee and commission income

particulars For the year ended
 march 31, 2023

For the year ended
 march 31, 2022

Commission on managed portfolio  342.40  141.99 
Commission on facilities of Cross Sell  26.44  408.32 
Service fee on direct assignment  536.72  -   
advisory and other fee  62.39  80.00 
Commission Income  815.24  494.02 
Other Fee Income  54.12  284.36 
total  1,837.31  1,408.69 

30 net gain on fair value changes

particulars For the year ended
march 31, 2023

For the year ended
march 31, 2022

Net gain on financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss 
(i) On trading portfolio

- Investments  13.61  13.73 
total net gain on fair value changes  13.61  13.73 
Of the above
Fair Value changes:

- realised  13.61  7.93 
- Unrealised  -    5.80 

Total Net gain/(loss) on fair value changes  13.61  13.73 

31 Sale of products

particulars For the year ended
march 31, 2023

For the year ended
march 31, 2022

Income from Sale of Goods  5,370.74  5,328.89 
total  5,370.74  5,328.89 

32 Sale of Services

particulars For the year ended
march 31, 2023

For the year ended
march 31, 2022

Income from Financial distribution services  285.59  4.90 
Income from Insurance Broking  -    400.85 
total  285.59  405.75 

33 Commodity trade support services

particulars For the year ended
march 31, 2023

For the year ended
march 31, 2022

Profit/(Loss) on trading in commodities (net)  1,145.43  976.60 
Commodity trade Support Services - Income  481.30  475.71 
Profit/(Loss) on trading in derivative instruments - Commodity and currency Derivatives  621.83  719.35 
total  2,248.56  2,171.66 

34 Other operating revenue

particulars For the year ended
march 31, 2023

For the year ended
march 31, 2022

Other Operating revenue  755.26  3,305.64 
total  755.26  3,305.64 
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35 Other income

particulars For the year ended
march 31, 2023

For the year ended
march 31, 2022

net gain or loss on foreign currency transaction and translation  -    6.45 
liabilities no longer required/Sundry balances  written back  27.18  22.06 
Interest Income on Income tax refund  0.35  -   
Profit on sale of investment  22.46  102.70 
Consultancy Income  100.00  -   
miscellaneous income  259.16  64.89 
total  409.15  196.10 

36 Finance Cost

particulars For the year ended 
march 31, 2023

For the year ended 
march 31, 2022

Interest on borrowings  3,171.86  2,792.67 
Interest expense on lease liability  71.23  40.88 
Other interest expense  -    15.57 
Interest on Subordinate liabilities  320.34  430.47 
Other borrowing cost  13.01  8.61 
total  3,576.44  3,288.20 

37 Impairment of financial instruments

particulars For the year ended
march 31, 2023

For the year ended
march 31, 2022

On Financial instruments measured at amortised Cost
loans  2,656.29  2,647.87 
total  2,656.29  2,647.87 

38 Cost of goods sold

particulars For the year ended
march 31, 2023

For the year ended
march 31, 2022

Cost of goods sold  4,055.54  3,996.74 
total  4,055.54  3,996.74 

39 Operating expenses

particulars For the year ended 
march 31, 2023 

For the year ended 
march 31, 2022 

Business incentive  178.01  531.65 
transportation charges  263.56  104.20 
total 441.57  635.85 

40 Employee Benefit Expenses

particulars For the year ended 
march 31, 2023 

For the year ended 
march 31, 2022 

Salaries, wages and bonus  5,104.31  4,798.72 
Contributions to provident and other funds  413.00  394.54 
Staff welfare expenses  122.71  121.11 
eSOp expenses  (10.38)  76.48 
total  5,629.64  5,390.85 
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41 Other Expenses

particulars For the year ended 
march 31, 2023 

For the year ended 
march 31, 2022 

Power & fuel  16.27  34.56 
rent  408.99  360.64 
rates and taxes  45.69  46.02 
Insurance  18.80  24.30 
repair and maintenance  154.97  167.27 
advertisement and Business promotion expenses  23.42  55.12 
traveling expenses  295.21  240.29 
Communication expenses  43.71  58.23 
Printing & Stationery  48.74  37.59 
Office and branch expenses  122.29  83.07 
professional and consultancy charge   413.50  303.17 
auditors remuneration (refer note - 1 below)  44.98  30.45 
directors sitting fees  37.86  59.52 
Commission to directors  20.00  14.00 
Corporate social responsibility (refer note - 2 below)  4.30  31.60 
Bank and other charges  64.68  46.98 
loss on sale of investment  -    218.84 
Warehouse charges  97.38  119.52 
arbitrage and trading expenses  227.30  185.21 
Irrecoverable advances written off  167.59  212.71 
registration and renewals  2.76  5.39 
Computer software expenses  82.84  53.45 
Corporate guarantee commission  0.77  0.58 
net loss on FV changes  2.82  -   
Commission and brokerage  136.36  64.14 
Software usage charges  176.03  -   
Funds deployed  13.19  34.17 
miscellaneous expenses  342.43  490.75 
total 3,012.88  2,977.57 

note 1: auditors remuneration (Excluding GSt)

particulars For the year ended 
march 31, 2023 

For the year ended 
march 31, 2022 

Statutory Audit & Limited Review  38.32  26.35 
Other services  4.59  3.40 
reimbursement of expenses  2.07  0.70 
total  44.98  30.45 

note 2: Details of Corporate Social responsibility  expenditure

particulars For the year ended 
march 31, 2023 

For the year ended 
march 31, 2022 

Gross amount required to be spent by the group during the year  4.30  31.60 
amount Spent during the year on
(i) Construction/acquisition of any asset  -    -   
(ii) On purposes other than (i) above  4.30  31.60 
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42 income tax
the components of income tax expense for the  year ended march 31, 2023 and march 31, 2022 are:

particulars For the year ended 
march 31, 2023 

For the year ended 
march 31, 2022 

Current tax  203.60  260.48 
adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years  (11.60)  12.68 
deferred tax relating to origination and reversal of temporary differences  (217.64)  45.09 
total  (25.64)  318.25 

reconciliation of the total tax charge:
A reconciliation between the tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by India’s domestic tax rate for the year ended March 31, 2023 and 
March 31, 2022 is, as follows:

particulars For the year ended 
march 31, 2023 

For the year ended 
march 31, 2022 

Profit before tax  (2,059.21)  686.29 
enacted tax rate in India  refer note below  refer note below 
expected income tax expense at statutory tax rate  79.45  283.72 
tax impact on account of 
depreciation under Income-tax act  (1.24)  28.78 
expenses allowed only on payment basis  (11.48)  2.22 
Expenses not deductible in determining taxable profits  286.50  (45.84)
adjustment in respect of current tax for earlier years  (51.58)  -   
adjustment due to change in tax rate  (61.90)  -   
Set off of brought forward losses  -    (19.17)
provision for doubtful debts disallowed  0.48  (3.25)
Income not taxable in determining taxable profit  (3.98)  -   
Unused Business tax losses reversal -  25.67 
Impairment loss on loan and financial assets disallowed  (1.25)  1.40 
Others  (260.64)  44.72 
tax expenses pertaining to current year  (25.64)  318.25 
Effective income tax rate 1.25% 46.37%
Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss  (25.64)  318.25 
note: Enacted tax rate in india

Entities forming part of consolidation For the year ended 
march 31, 2023 

For the year ended 
march 31, 2022 

Inditrade rural marketing limited 26.00% 26.00%
Inditrade Fincorp limited 25.17% 25.17%
Inditrade Microfinance Limited 25.17% 25.17%
Inditrade Capital limited 25.26% 25.26%
Inditrade Insurance Broking private limited 27.82% 27.82%
Inditrade Business Consultants limited 25.17% 25.17%
Inditrade technologies limited 25.17% 25.17%
Inditrade Scalerator limited 25.17% 25.17%
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43 Earnings per share 
Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity holders of Company by the weighted average 
number of equity shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders of Company by the weighted average number of equity shares 
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the dilutive potential 
ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

Earnings per equity share

particulars For the year ended 
march 31, 2023

For the year ended 
march 31, 2022

Earnings 
Profit / (Loss) for the year ( A )  (1,393.23)  507.59 
Shares
number of shares at the beginning of the year (Basic) (in numbers) ( B )  2,32,86,501  2,32,86,501 
Add: weighted average number of shares arising out of shares to be issued to Employees  -    -   
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding at the end (diluted) (in numbers) ( C)  2,32,86,501  2,32,86,501 
Basic earnings per share (A/B) - in Rs.  (5.98)  2.18 
Diluted earnings per share (A/C) - in Rs.  (5.98)  2.18 
Face value per share - in rs.  10.00  10.00 

44 ind as 116 Dislosures
as lessee:
the Company has entered into commercial leases for leasing of  premises. these leases have an average life of 2-6 years which are renewable on a 
periodic basis by mutual consent of both parties.
particulars march 31, 2023 march 31, 2022
(a) Interest expense on lease liabilities  71.23  40.88 
(b) expense relating to short-term leases accounted for applying paragraph 6 of Ind aS 116*  260.51  226.19 
(c) Total cash outflow for leases during the period  189.16  273.31 

maturity analysis of lease liabilities:
particulars < 1 year 1-5 years > 5 years total
(a) as at 31-03-2023  276.66  276.22  -    552.88 
(b) as at 31-03-2022  70.16  344.76  -    414.92 

*the company has elected to apply para 6 of Ind aS 116 for short term leases and leases of low-value assets. as per the same, the company has 
recognised the lease payments associated with those leases as an expenses in the Statement of profit and loss account.

45 Contingent liabilities and commitments

particulars as at 
march 31, 2023

as at 
march 31, 2022

a) Guarantees outstanding  47,700.00  -   
b) Other contingent liabilities

-  Income tax matters, pending decisions on various appeals made by the Company and by the 
department

 622.95  496.34 

- Claims against the company not acknowledged as debt  36.51  35.52 
-  Provident Fund dues disputed in appeal against which Rs. 33.81 Lacs (PY - 38.33 Lacs) is paid 

under dispute and included other non financial assets
 36.29  36.30 

-  Service Tax demand disputed in appeal against which predeposit has been made Rs.50.74 Lacs  
(PY - 29.78 Lacs) included under non financial assets

 331.59  219.79 

- performance security provided by the Company pursuant to business correspondent agreement  875.32  278.43 
- Bank guarantee to agricultural market Committee  5.50  5.50 
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46 JrG ESOp truSt
as per the requirements of Securities exchange Board of India (employee Stock Option Scheme and employee Stock purchase Scheme) Guidelines 
1999 (‘SEBI guidelines’), since the stock option plans of 2005 and 2008 schemes are administered through a trust, the accounts of the Company are 
prepared as if the Company itself is administering the employee stock option plan. pursuant to such requirement of the SeBI guidelines the equity 
shares issued to the JrG eSOp trust and not exercised by the employees as on 31 march 2023 have been presented as a deduction from the share 
capital. the bank balance of the JrG eSOp trust as on 31 march 2023 net of the loan granted and capital contribution to the JrG eSOp trust by the 
Company has been presented as bank balance of the Company.

47 The group has exposure to National Spot Exchange Limited (NSEL) of Rs.287.50 Lacs with respect to the proprietary contracts. NSEL has not been 
able to adhere to its payment obligations. the management has taken appropriate actions and is pressing for the early settlement of the dues. 
Pending final outcome which is uncertain, the management has provided for the same in earlier years. In the current year company has not received 
any amount from nSel. 

48 impairment loss allowance

particulars For the year ended 
march 31, 2023

For the year ended 
march 31, 2022

receivables
(a) Balance as at the Beginning of the year  12.50  92.31 
Add: Additional provision created during the year - -
Less: Provision utilised -  (79.81)
Balance as at the end of the year  12.50  12.50 
Other Financial assets
(b) Balance as at the Beginning of the year  288.51  288.51 
Less: Provision utilised  -    -   
Less: Provision written back  1.00  -   
Balance as at the end of the year  287.51  288.51 
loans
(c ) Balance as at the Beginning of the year  1,262.64 1465.39
Add: Additional provision created during the year  -    -   
Less: Provision utilised  -    -   
Less: Provision written back  893.31  (202.75) 
Balance as at the end of the year  2,155.95  1,262.64 

49 Employee benefits
a) Defined contribution plan
A defined contribution plan is a post-employment benefit plan under which the group pays fixed contributions and where there is no legal or 
constructive obligation to make further contributions. 

Contribution to Defined Contribution Plans, recognised as an expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss is as under:

particulars For the year ended 
march 31, 2023 

For the year ended 
march 31, 2022 

Employer's Contribution to Provident Fund  251.63  235.85 
Employer's Contribution to Employee State Insurance  42.64  31.48 
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b) Defined benefit plans
The group has funded the gratuity liability ascertained on actuarial basis.  The gratuity plan is governed by the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972 wherein 
every employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefit. The level of benefit provided depends on the employee’s length 
of service and salary at retirement age. 

The plans in India typically expose the group to actuarial risks such as: investment risk, liquidity risk, longevity risk, salary risk and legislative risk.

investment risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate determined by reference to government 
bond yields. the present value of plan assets is independent of the future discount rate. If the return on plan asset is below this rate, it will create a 
plan deficit.

liquidity risk: Employees with high salaries and long durations, accumulate significant level of benefits. If some of such employees resign/ retire 
from the company's in the group, there can be strain on the cash flows.

longevity risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants 
both during and after their employment. An increase in the life expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

Salary risk: The present value of the defined benefit plan liability is calculated by reference to the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an 
increase in the salary of the plan participants will increase the plan’s liability.

legislative risk: It is the risk of increase in the plan liabilities or reduction in the plan assets due to change in legislation/ regulation. any amendment 
in The Payment of Gratuity Act with respect to benefits to employees will directly affect the present value of the Defined benefit obligation.

There are no other post-retirement benefits provided to employees.

The most recent actuarial valuation of the plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at 31 March 2023 by 
M/S Kapadia Actuaries and Consultants. The present value of the defined benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service 
cost, were measured using the projected unit credit method.

Gratuity (funded)

particulars For the year ended 
march 31, 2023 

For the year ended 
march 31, 2022 

liability recognized in the Balance Sheet
Present value of defined benefit obligation
Opening Balance  189.80  153.33 
transfer in obligation  -    (13.32)
Current Service Cost  73.39  68.16 
Interest Cost  12.27  9.08 
Due to change in financial assumptions  (5.28)  (3.45)
due to change in demographic assumptions  (23.25)  -   
due to experience adjustment  (14.12)  (21.52)
Benefits paid  (4.41)  (4.37)
Closing Balance  228.40  187.91 
Less: Fair Value of Plan Assets
Opening Balance  28.75  26.76 
transfer in obligation  -    -   
Interest income  3.10  1.81 
return on plan assets excluding amounts included in interest income  (1.03)  (0.70)
Employers’ Contribution  -    -   
Benefits paid  -    (10.94)
Closing Balance  30.82  16.93 
Net Liability/ (Asset)  197.58  170.98 
Expenses during the year   
transfer in obligation  -    -   
Current Service cost  72.54  67.83 
net interest cost  10.25  7.61 
Component of defined benefit cost recognized in statement of profit & loss 82.79 75.44
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Remeasurement of net defined benefit liability
 - Actuarial Loss/(Gain) on defined benefit obligation  (42.67)  (24.68)
 - actuarial loss/(Gain) on plan assets  0.98  0.70 
Component of defined benefit cost recognized in other
comprehensive income

 (41.69)  (23.98)

actual return on plan assets  2.07  1.11 
Break up of plan assets:
policy of insurance 100% 100%

principal actuarial assumptions

particulars For the year ended 
march 31, 2023

For the year ended 
march 31, 2022

discount rate 7.25% - 7.30% 6.10% - 7.25%
expected rate(s) of salary increase 7.00% 7.00%
Withdrawal rate  4.00% - 25.00%  4.00% - 25.00% 
rate of return on plan assets 7.00% - 7.26% 6.55% - 7.26%
mortality rate during employment Indian assured lives mortality  

(2012-14) Table

expected return on plan assets is based on expectation of the average long term rate of return expected on investments of the fund during the 
estimated term of the obligations after considering several applicable factors such as the composition of plan assets, investment strategy, market 
scenario, etc.

The estimates of future salary increase, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors, 
such as supply and demand in the employment market.

the discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of Government of India securities as at the balance sheet date for the estimated term of 
the obligations.

The amount included in the financial statements arising from the entity’s obligation in respect of its defined benefit plan is as follows:

particulars For the year ended 
march 31, 2023

For the year ended 
march 31, 2022

Defined Benefit Obligation  228.40  187.91 
plan assets  30.82  16.93 
Net (liability) /asset arising from defined benefit obligation  (197.58)  (170.98)
Amount recognised in the financial statements  8.31  178.38 

Sensitivity analysis:
Significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligation are discount rate, expected salary increase and withdrawal 
rate. the sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of the respective assumptions occurring at the end 
of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

particulars
Impact on Defined benefit obligation

For the year ended march 31, 2023 For the year ended march 31, 2022
increase Decrease increase Decrease

discount rate (0.5% movement)  224.52  232.39  182.62  197.51 
Future salary growth (0.5% movement)  232.37  227.58  197.29  182.76 
Withdrawal rate (10% movement)  223.15  233.84  185.36  194.48 

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlikely that the 
change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated.
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Maturity profile of Defined benefit Obligation:

Expected Cashflow For the year ended
march 31, 2023 march 31, 2022

Year 1 cashflow  59.60  12.30 
Year 2 cashflow  34.95  20.62 
Year 3 cashflow  35.47  18.41 
Year 4 cashflow  33.80  19.99 
Year 5 cashflow  30.11  20.71 
Year 6 to Year 10 cashflow  79.14  77.82 

The expected contribution for the next year is Rs.24.52 Lacs (previous year - Rs.32.61 Lacs). The weighted average duration as at March 31, 2023 is 
5.09 years (previous year - 9.64 years).

50 related party disclosures
a. names of related parties and nature of relationship:

Holding Company Juno moneta technologies private limited
Entities/person having significant influence on the company Sudip Bandyopadhyay
key managerial personnel naveen Kumar Jain, CFO ( till november 03,2022)

ravi prakash Jain , CFO (From may 02,2023)
Vinod mohan, manager Cum Company Secretary  
(till aug 06, 2021)
maya menon, manager cum Company Secretary  
(From november 02, 2021)
Jhuma Guha, non executive director
anand Kamalkishore maliwal, non executive director

transactions and balance with related parties

particulars
march 31, 2023 march 31, 2022 

transactions 
during the year

Amount Payable/ 
receivable

transactions 
during the year

Amount Payable/ 
receivable

Commission payable to directors  6.00  (6.00)  6.00  (6.00)
remuneration paid
Salaries and other allowances 
Vinod mohan  -    -    5.35  -   
maya menon  12.98  -    7.97  -   
Sitting fees paid to directors  10.00  -    10.40  -   

note: 
Salaries and other allowances paid to Key Managerial Person of subsidiary companies aggregates to Rs. 222.63 Lacs (Previous Year Rs. 223.21 
lacs)
Sitting fees paid to directors of subsidiary companies aggregates to rs. 19.50 lacs (previous year rs.20 lacs)
Commission payable to directors of subsidiary companies aggregates to Rs. 44.36.00 Lacs (Previous Year Rs. 36.00 Lacs)

nOtES
to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (All amounts are Indian Rupees in Lacs unless stated otherwise)



146 IndItrade CapItal lImIted

51 Details of subsidiaries and associates

particulars place of 
incorporation

Effective Holding
march 31, 2023 march 31, 2022

Direct subsidiaries  
Inditrade rural marketing limited  
(formerly known as Inditrade derivatives and Commodities limited)

India 28.07% 48.34%

Inditrade Business Consultants limited India 99.84% 99.84%
Inditrade Fincorp limited  
(formerly known as JrG Fincorp limited)

India 57.00% 57.00%

Inditrade Microfinance Limited India 77.40% 80.75%
Inditrade technologies limited  
(formerly known as Inditrade Housing Finance limited)

India 100.00% 100.00%

Inditrade Community Foundation India 66.85% 67.52%
Step down subsidiary
Inditrade Scalerator limited  
(formerly known as Inditrade Commodities trading limited)

India 99.84% 99.84%

associate
Inditrade Insurance Broking private limited India 25.00% 49.00%

52 Financial instruments
Capital management
The Group’s capital management strategy is to ensure that it has sufficient capital for business operations, strategic investment, regulatory 
requirements and to provide reasonable return to the shareholders.  The Group’s policy is to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, 
creditor and market confidence and to sustain future development of the business. The Group’s objective when managing capital is to maintain an 
optimal structure so as to maximize shareholder value.

Financial instruments - Fair value measurement

particulars march 31, 2023 march 31, 2022
Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value

Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents  3,745.20  3,745.20  6,513.92  6,513.92 
Bank balances other than Cash and cash equivalent  1,906.36  1,906.36  2,182.33  2,182.33 
trade receivable  2,688.41  2,688.41  888.34  888.34 
Other receivable  527.18  527.18  90.89  90.89 
loans  25,851.76  25,851.76  42,954.86  42,954.86 
Other financial assets  2,804.06  2,804.06  2,849.77  2,849.77 
measured at amortised cost  37,522.96  37,522.96  55,480.11  55,480.11 
measured at Fair value through other comprehensive 
income

 -    -    -    -   

Investments
Through Profit or Loss  998.45  998.45  1,001.27  1,001.27 
Others  70.53  70.53  137.47  137.47 
Measured at Fair value through profit and loss account 998.45 998.45 1,001.27 1,001.27

Financial liabilities
trade payable  2,953.11  2,953.11  911.05  911.05 
Other payable  116.71  116.71  176.19  176.19 
Borrowings  21,654.14  21,654.14  33,093.16  33,093.16 
debt securities  1,000.00  1,000.00  2,500.00  2,500.00 
Subordinated liabilities  2,900.00  2,900.00  2,919.36  2,919.36 
Other financial liabilities 1,840.24 1,840.24  3,226.71  3,226.71 
measured at amortised cost 30,464.20 30,464.20  42,826.47  42,826.47 
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Financial risk management
the Group has put in place a robust risk management framework to promote a proactive approach in reporting, evaluating and resolving risks 
associated with the business. Given the nature of the business that the Group is engaged in, the risk framework recognizes that there is uncertainty 
in creating and sustaining value as well as in identifying opportunities. Risk management is therefore made an integral part of the Group’s effective 
management practice. The Group has an elaborate process for risk management. Major risks identified by the businesses and functions are 
systematically addressed through mitigating actions on a continuing basis.

Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk that a customer or counterparty will default on its contractual obligations resulting in financial loss to the Group. The group’s 
main income generating activity is lending to customers and therefore credit risk is a principal risk. Credit risk mainly arises from loans and advances. 
the Group has a comprehensive framework for monitoring credit quality of its retail and other loans primarily based on days past due monitoring at 
period end. repayment by individual customers and portfolio is tracked regularly and required steps for recovery are taken through follow ups and 
legal recourse.

The group has comprehensive and well-defined credit policies across various businesses, products and segments, which encompass credit 
approval process for all businesses along with guidelines for mitigating the risks associated with them. the appraisal process includes detailed 
risk assessment of the borrowers, physical verifications and field visits. The group has a robust post sanction monitoring process to identify credit 
portfolio trends and early warning signals. this enables it to implement necessary changes to the credit policy, whenever the need arises.

Determination of Expected Credit loss:
The Group classifies its loans under following pools:
1. Business loans (Others) 3. mortgage/property loans
2. Business loans (Sme)  4. Micro Finance

determination of expected credit loss in done on collective assessment basis for each pool as mentioned above. the group reviews the credit 
quality of its loans based on the ageing of the loan at the period end. In assessing the impairment of loans to customers under expected Credit loss 
(ECL) Model, the loans in each pool are classified into three stages. The three stages reflect the general pattern of credit deterioration of a financial 
instrument.

Stage wise classification applied for each pool and determination of ECL is as follows:
a. Business loans (Others)

particulars Days past due 
(DpD)

Stages

High grade not yet due Stage 1
Standard grade 1-30 dpd Stage 1
Sub-standard grade 31-90 dpd Stage 2
Credit impaired 91 dpd or more Stage 3

B. Business loans (SmE)

particulars Days past due 
(DpD)

Stages

High grade not yet due Stage 1
Standard grade 1-90 dpd Stage 1
Sub-standard grade 90-180 DPD Stage 2
Credit impaired 180 DPD or More Stage 3
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C. mortgage loans

particulars Days past due 
(DpD)

Stages

High grade not yet due Stage 1
Standard grade past due upto 6 

months
Stage 1

Sub-standard grade 6-18 months past 
due

Stage 2

Credit impaired > 18 months Stage 3

D. Micro finance 

particulars Days past due 
(DpD)

Stages

High Grade 0 Stage 1
Standard Grade 1 - 89 Stage 1
Sub-standard Grade 90 - 179 Stage 2
Credit Impaired 180 or more Stage 3

Determination of ECl in respect of loan to customers: the group estimates the probability of default based on past trend, primarily on the basis of 
days past due. Further, the group additionally considers the prudential norms for provisioning of assets as contained in extant guidelines for nBFC, 
laid down by rBI, as a minimum benchmark for eCl.

policy for write off of loan assets
The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when there is no realistic prospect of further recovery. This is generally the case when 
the group determines that the borrower does not have assets or sources of income that could generate sufficient cash flows to repay the amounts 
subject to the write-off. However, financial assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities under the Company’s recovery 
procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.

Operational risk
Operational risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people or systems, or from external events. the operational 
risks of the companies in the group are managed through comprehensive internal control systems and procedures and key back up processes. 
In order to further strengthen the control framework and effectiveness, the companies in the group has established risk assessment and control 
measures at branches to identify process lapses by way of exception reporting. this enables the management to evaluate key areas of operational 
risks and the process to adequately mitigate them on an ongoing basis. the companies in the Group also undertakes risk based audits on a regular 
basis across all business units / functions. While examining the effectiveness of control framework through self-assessment, the risk-based audit 
would assure effective implementation of self-certification and internal financial controls adherence, thereby, reducing enterprise exposure.

market risk
Market Risk is the possibility of loss arising from changes in the value of a financial instrument as a result of changes in market variables such as 
interest rates, exchange rates and other asset prices. The Group’s exposure to market risk is a function of asset liability management activities. The 
Group is exposed to interest rate risk and liquidity risk. the Group continuously monitors these risks and manages them through appropriate risk 
limits.

interest rate risk
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. 
The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s debt obligations with fixed interest rates and 
investments.

liquidity risk management
liquidity risk relates to our potential inability to meet all payment obligations when they fall due or only being able to meet them at excessive costs. 
The objective of the liquidity risk management framework is to ensure that the Group can fulfil its payment obligations at all times and can manage 
liquidity and funding risks within its risk appetite. the asset liability Committee regularly monitors the liquidity position and the duration of assets/
liabilities and ensures that liquidity is strictly managed as per the policy.

Following are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities / financial assets at the reporting date. The amounts are gross and undiscounted and 
include estimated interest payments / receipts and exclude the impact of netting agreements.
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liquidity exposure as at march 31, 2023
particulars < 1 year 1-5 years > 5 years total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents  3,745.20  -    -    3,745.20 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents  559.37  1,346.99  -    1,906.36 
trade receivables  2,688.41  -    -    2,688.41 
Other receivable  527.18  -    -    527.18 
loans  22,158.65  3,693.11  -    25,851.76 
Investments  -    -    1,068.97  1,068.97 
Other financial assets  2,184.69  618.12  1.25  2,804.06 
Total financial assets  31,863.49  5,658.22  1,070.22  38,591.94 
Financial liabilities
trade payables  2,093.88  859.23  -    2,953.11 
Other payables  116.71  -    -    116.71 
Borrowings including debt securities  16,918.84  5,735.30  -    22,654.14 
Subordinated liabilities  -    2,900.00  -    2,900.00 
Other financial liabilities 1,549.97  290.27  -   1,840.24
Total financial liabilities 20,679.40  9,784.80  -   30,464.20

liquidity exposure as at march 31, 2022
particulars < 1 year 1-5 years > 5 years total
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents  6,513.92  -    -    6,513.92 
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents  266.15  1,916.18  -    2,182.33 
trade receivables  888.34  -    -    888.34 
Other receivable  90.89  -    -    90.89 
loans  34,948.55  7,764.53  241.78  42,954.86 
Investments  -    -    1,138.74  1,138.74 
Other financial assets  1,448.96  1,392.03  8.78  2,849.77 
Total financial assets  44,156.81  11,072.74  1,389.30  56,618.85 
Financial liabilities
trade payables  911.05  -    -    911.05 
Other payables  48.03  128.16  -    176.19 
Borrowings including debt securities  15,725.64  19,867.52  -    35,593.16 
Subordinated liabilities  1,000.00  1,919.36  -    2,919.36 
Other financial liabilities  2,937.74  288.97  -    3,226.71 
Total financial liabilities  20,622.46  22,204.01  -    42,826.47 

Level wise disclosure of financial instruments

particulars march 31, 
2023

march 31, 
2022

march 31, 
2021

level valuation techniques 
and key inputs

Investment in equity instrument - Unquoted  998.45  1,001.27  995.47 3 Discounted cash flow
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53 maturity analysis of assets and liabilities
the table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settled. derivatives 
have been classified to mature and/or be repaid within 12 months, regardless of the actual contractual maturities of the products. With regard to 
loans and advances to customers, the Company uses the same basis of expected repayment behaviour as used for estimating the eIr. 

particulars march 31, 2023 march 31, 2022 
within 12 months after 12 months total within 12 months after 12 months total

assets
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents  3,745.20  -    3,745.20  6,513.92  -    6,513.92 
Bank Balance other than Cash and cash 
equivalents

 559.37  1,346.99  1,906.36  266.15  1,916.18  2,182.33 

receivables
(I) trade receivables  2,688.41  -    2,688.41  888.34  -    888.34 
(II) Other receivables  527.18  -    527.18  90.89  -    90.89 
loans  22,158.65  3,693.11  25,851.76  34,948.55  8,006.31  42,954.86 
Investments  -    1,068.97  1,068.97  -    1,138.74  1,138.74 
Other financial assets  2,184.69  619.37  2,804.06  1,448.96  1,400.81  2,849.77 
Non-financial Assets
Inventories  4,639.59  -    4,639.59  2,189.33  -    2,189.33 
Current tax asset  81.55  81.55  -    -    -   
deferred tax assets (net)  -    913.70  913.70  -    625.94  625.94 
Goodwill on Consolidation  -    190.74  190.74  -    190.74  190.74 
property, plant and equipment  -    341.97  341.97  -    2,113.66  2,113.66 
right-of-use asset  -    361.76  361.76  -    392.10  392.10 
Other Intangible assets  -    2,286.19  2,286.19  -    721.13  721.13 
Other non financial assets  2,292.30  1,489.37  3,781.67  1,657.58  1,091.45  2,749.03 
total assets  38,876.93  12,312.17  51,189.11  48,003.72  17,597.06  65,600.78 
liabilities
Financial liabilities
(I) trade payables  2,093.88  859.23  2,953.11  911.05  -    911.05 
(II) Other payables  116.71  -    116.71  48.03  128.16  176.19 
debt Securities  -    1,000.00  1,000.00  2,000.00  500.00  2,500.00 
Borrowings (other than debt security)  15,918.85  5,735.29  21,654.14  15,725.65  16,367.51  33,093.16 
Subordinated liabilities  -    2,900.00  2,900.00  -    2,919.36  2,919.36 
Other Financial liabilities 1,549.97  290.27 1,840.24  2,871.05  355.66  3,226.71 
Non-financial Liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net)  485.83  -    485.83  602.96  -    602.96 
deferred tax liabilities (net)  -    106.07  106.07  -    22.82  22.82 
provisions  188.33  60.80  249.13  60.52  162.39  222.91 
Other non-financial liabilities  526.73  -    526.73  485.21  -    485.21 
total liabilities  20,880.30  10,951.66 31,831.96  22,704.48  20,455.90  44,160.37 
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54 In respect of the subsidiary company, Inditrade Fincorp limited (hereinafter referred to as “IFl”), the law enforcement agencies of telangana  have 
been investigating some of the subsidiary company’s former digital lending partners on the basis of complaints from a few customers. In that re-
gard, the authorities had issued instructions of debit freeze on 29 bank accounts of IFL having an aggregate balance of INR 24.74 crores. The debit 
freeze not being tenable, as there were no specific allegations against IFL. The authorities have  withdrawn the debit freeze instructions on 22 bank 
accounts for an aggregate amount of INR 18.51 crores as on March 31, 2023. For the balance amount, the matter is being actively pursued at ap-
propriate forums.
In a parallel proceeding, the law enforcement agency at Bangalore  has provisionally attached Inr 9.69 crores in various bank accounts which is also 
being contested by the company. 
the company challenged the debit freezing orders of the law enforcement agencies before the appropriate forum, and got favourable order / direc-
tion  to unfreeze an amount of upto INR 5.57 cr. The matter is being pursued to have the freeze lifted on the said amount.
The subsidiary company believes that, looking into the overall nature of the case, there  should be no financial loss except for uncertainty of the time 
on account of the envisaged litigations and  loss of income of the subsidiary company not being able to deploy the frozen amount in its business.

55 In respect of the subsidiary Inditrade Microfinance Limited (herein after referred to as “IMFL”), The Board of Directors of IMFL at its meeting held on 
7th October, 2022 has, inter alia, approved the Scheme of Amalgamation of Janakalyan Financial Services Private Limited (‘Transferor Company’) 
with Inditrade Microfinance Limited (‘Transferee Company’) with effect from 1st July, 2022 (“Appointed Date”) under Sections 230 to 232 of the 
Companies act, 2013.
the entire undertaking of the transferor Company shall, be transferred to and vested in the transferee Company, as a going concern with effect from 
the appointed date pursuant to the provisions contained in Sections 230 and 232 of the Companies act, 2013.
the Scheme is subject to necessary statutory and regulatory approvals.the transferee company has obtained the order dated 20 February 2023 
allowing the merger application from the Hon"ble National Company Law Tribunal (NCLT), Mumbai Bench, and the order for the transferor company 
is awaited from nClt, Kolkata Bench. the companies are in the process of obtaining other approvals in relation to the scheme. the scheme will be 
given effect to on receipt of all required approvals.
In consideration of the Transferee Company will issue and allot to the members of the Transferor Company 82 Equity Shares of Rs.10/- each in the 
transferee Company credited as fully paid up for every 100 equity Shares of rs.10/- each fully paid up held by them in the capital of the transferor 
Company. there is no cash consideration.

56 As per the Reserve Bank of India (Regulatory Framework for Microfinance Loans) Directions, 2022, the subsidiary Inditrade Microfinance Limited 
is required to have minimum 75% of the total assets as qualifying assets, which has not been met as at March 31, 2023.  The Board of Subsidiary 
company is taking steps to comply with the qualifying asset criteria.
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57 Securitisation/Assignment of loan portfolio
During the year the subsidiary companies Inditrade Fincorp Limited and Inditrade Microfinance Limited (herein referred as "the subsidiary compa-
nies") have sold loans through securitisation/assignment. The information on securitisation/assignment activity of the subsidiary companies as 
originators are as shown below:

particulars year ended  
march 31, 2023

year ended  
march 31, 2022

amount of exposures to securitization transactions other than mrr
a) Off-balance sheet exposures
i) exposure to own securitizations
* First loss  -    -   
* Others  -    -   
ii) exposure to third party securitizations
* First loss  -    -   
* Others  -    -   
b) On-balance sheet exposures
i) exposure to own securitizations
* First loss  -    -   
* Others  -    -   
ii) exposure to third party securitizations
* First loss  -    -   
* Others  -    -   

during the year the subsidiary companies have sold loans through securitization/assignment. the information on securitization/ assignment activity 
of the subsidiary companies as originators are as shown below:

particulars year ended  
march 31, 2023

year ended  
march 31, 2022

total number of loans securitized/assigned  5,468.00  -   
total book value of loans securitized/assigned  1,086.56  -   
Sale consideration received for loans securitized/assigned  1,005.06  -   
premium received on securitization  -    -   
Premium recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss (net of loss on closure of securitization 
transactions)

 -    -   

Excess interest spread recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the year  34.35  42.39 
mrr in respect of assignment transactions  -    1.13 
mrr in respect of securitisation transactions  54.33  -   

58 Sector wise non-performing assets (npas)

Sector

percentage of npas to total advances in 
that sector

as at  
march 31, 2023

as at  
march 31, 2022

agriculture and allied activities 4.32% 2.03%
mSme 5.75% 13.46%
Other Corporate borrowers - -
Services 3.65% 2.29%
Unsecured personal loans 1.37% 10.33%
auto loans - -
Other personal loans* - -
* comprises of loans given in microfinance sector
NPA identified is as per the prudential norms laid down by RBI for NBFC-MFI and the circulars and guidelines issued with regard to moratorium and 
restructuring.
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59 Schedule to the Balance Sheet of a non-Banking Financial Company as required in terms of paragraph 13 of non-Banking Financial (non-
Deposit accepting or Holding) Companies prudential norms (reserve Bank) Directions, 2015.
liabilities side:

particulars as at  
march 31, 2023

as at  
march 31, 2022

1. loans and advances availed by the nBFC’s inclusive of interest accrued thereon but not paid:
(a) Debentures : Secured  1,000.00  2,000.00 
  : Unsecured  -    -   
(Other than falling within the meaning of public deposits)
(b) deferred credits  -    -   
(c) term loans  19,471.18  35,470.68 
(d) Commercial paper  -    -   
(e) public deposits  -    -   
(f) Other loans (Working Capital Facility)
  From Banks  -    -   
  From Others  -    -   
(g) Subordinated debt  1,000.00  1,000.00 
total  21,471.18  38,470.68 

asset side:

particulars as at  
march 31, 2023

as at  
march 31, 2022

2. Break-up of loans and advances including bills receivables  [other than those included in (3) 
below]
(a) Secured (Gross)  3,380.77  9,854.46 
(b)  Unsecured (Gross)  23,045.15  35,872.19 

3. Break up of leased assets and stock on hire counting towards aFC activities (net of provisions)
(i) Lease assets including lease rentals under sundry debtors:

(a) Financial lease  -    -   
(b) Operating lease  -    -   

(ii) Stock on hire including hire charges under sundry debtors:
(a) assets on hire  -    -   
(b) repossessed assets  -    -   

(iii) Other loans counting towards aFC activities
(a) loans where assets have been repossessed  -    -   
(b) loans other than (a) above  -    -   

4. Break up of investments
Current investments:
1. Quoted
(i) Shares: 

(a) equity  -    -   
(b) preference  -    -   

(ii) debentures and bonds  -    -   
(iii) Units of mutual funds  -    -   
(iv) Government securities  -    -   
(v) Others (please specify)  -    -   
2. unquoted
(vi) Shares: 

(a) equity  -    -   
(b) preference  -    -   

(vii) debentures and bonds  -    -   
(viii) Units of mutual funds  -    -   
(ix) Government securities  -    -   
(x) Others (please specify)  -    -   
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particulars as at  
march 31, 2023

as at  
march 31, 2022

non-current investments:
1. Quoted

(xi) Shares: 
(a) equity
(b) preference  -    -   

(xii) debentures and bonds  -    -   
(xiii) Units of mutual funds  -    -   
(xiv) Government securities  -    -   
(xv) Others (please specify)  -    -   

2. unquoted  -    -   
(xvi) Shares: 

(a) equity  2,654.88  879.64 
(b) preference  600.00  1,600.00 

(xvii) debentures and bonds  -    500.00 
(xviii) Units of mutual funds  -   
(xix) Government securities  -   
(xx) Others (SeBI regulated Capital Fund)  901.00  901.00 

5. Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in(2) and (3) above

particulars as at march 31, 2023 
Secured (Gross) unsecured (Gross) total 

1. Other than related parties  149.17  25,570.31  25,719.48 
 149.17  25,570.31  25,719.48 

5. Borrower group-wise classification of assets financed as in(2) and (3) above

particulars as at march 31, 2023 
Secured (Gross) unsecured (Gross) total 

1. Other than related parties  9,854.46  33,938.56  43,793.02 
 9,854.46  33,938.56  43,793.02 

6. Investor group-wise classification of all investments (current and non current) in shares and securities (both quoted and unquoted):

particulars

Market value / break up or fair value or 
nav

as at march 31, 
2023

as at march 31, 
2022

1. Other than related parties  901.00  -   

7. Other information
particulars

(i) Gross non-performing assets
(a) related parties  -    -   
(b) Other than related parties  3,839.24  1,061.13 

(ii) net non-performing assets
(a) related parties  -    -   
(b) Other than related parties  2,441.05  444.67 

(iii) assets acquired in satisfaction of debt (net of provisions)  -    -   
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60 maturity pattern of loans and Borrowings:
maturity pattern as at march 31, 2023

particulars upto 1 
month

1 to 2 
month

2 to 3 
month

3 to 6 
months

6 months 
to 1 year

1 to 3 
years

3 to 5 
years

Over 5 
years total

Subordinate debt  1,000.00  1,000.00 
debt securities  1,000.00  1,000.00 
Borrowings  1,546.50  399.68  559.64  2,365.87  4,051.44  3,854.05  12,777.18 
loans*  2,723.68  994.21  974.04  2,731.93  3,453.20  1,053.04  -    2,121.33  14,051.43 

maturity pattern as at march 31, 2022

particulars upto 1 
month

1 to 2 
month

2 to 3 
month

3 to 6 
months

6 months 
to 1 year

1 to 3 
years

3 to 5 
years

Over 5 
years total

Subordinate debt  1,000.00  1,000.00 
debt securities  1,500.00  1,000.00  2,500.00 
Borrowings  1,421.88  827.41  815.43  3,779.87  5,326.58  11,756.62  23,927.78 
loans*  2,789.67  1,824.57  1,866.56  5,158.16  9,490.81  5,779.13  -    -    26,908.92 
* loans are shown before reducing the impairment provisions

61 mOvEmEnt OF npas

particulars as at  
march 31, 2023

as at  
march 31, 2022

movement of npas (Gross)
(a) Opening balance  1,061.13  838.81 
(b) additions during the year  4,030.75  843.06 
(c) reductions during the year (including loans written off)  1,018.71  620.73 
(d) Closing balance  4,073.17  1,061.13 
movement of npas (net)
(a) Opening balance  444.67  395.65 
(b) additions during the year  2,221.51  421.05 
(c) reductions during the year (including loans written off)  227.71  372.03 
(d) Closing balance  2,438.47  444.67 
movement of provision for npas 
(a) Opening balance  616.47  454.81 
(b) additions during the year  1,809.25  424.32 
(c) reductions during the year (including loans written off)  791.01  262.66 
(d) Closing balance  1,634.71  616.47 
*NPA identified as per prudential norms laid down by RBI for NBFCs.

62 undisclosed income
Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecored in the books of account, in the tax assessments under the Income 
Tax Act, 1961 as income during the Year.

63 transactions with Struck-off Companies
The Company does not have any transactions with Companies struck-off under Section: 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or Section: 560 of Companies 
act, 1956.

64 Declaration of Dividend
during the year, Company has not declared or paid any dividend

65 Details of Benami property held
no proceedings have been initiated or pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Benami transactions (prohibition) 
Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder, as at 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

nOtES
to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (All amounts are Indian Rupees in Lacs unless stated otherwise)
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66 wilful Defaulter
The Company is not a declared wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or other lender, in accordance with the guidelines on wilful 
defaulters issued by the reserve Bank of India, during the year ended 31 march 2023 and 31 march 2022.

67 Compliance with number of layers of companies
The Company has complied with the number of layers prescribed under clause (87) of section 2 of the Act read with Companies (Restrictions on 
number of Layers) Rules, 2017.

68 undiclosed income
there have been no transactions which have not been recorded in the books of accounts, that have been surrendered or disclosed as income 
during the year ended 31 march 2023 and 31 march 2022, in the tax assessments under the Income tax act, 1961. there have been no previously 
unrecorded income and related assets which were to be properly recorded in the books of accounts during the year ended 31 march 2023 and 31 
march 2022.

69 Details of Crypto Currency or virtual Currency
the Company has not traded or invested in Crypto Currency or Virtual Currency during the year ended 31 march 2023 and 31 march 2022.

70 title Deeds of immovable property not held in the name of the Company
the Company does not hold any immovable property as on 31 march 2023 and 31 march 2022. all the lease agreements are duly executed in 
favour of the Company for properties where the Company is the lessee.

71 revaluation of property, plan & equipment and intangible assets
There is no revaluation of Property, plan & equipment and other intangible assets during the year ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022.

72 utilisation of Borrowed Fund and share premium
as a part of normal lending business, the Company grants loans and advances on the basis of security guarantee provided by the Borrower/ co-
borrower and makes investments. These transactions are part of Company's normal non-banking finance business, which is conducted ensuring 
adherence to all regulatory requirements.

73 (a)  Other than the transactions declared above, no funds have been advanced or lended or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium 
or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in any other persons or entities, including foreign entities (" Intermediaries") with 
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall lend or invest in party identified by or on behalf of the 
Comapny (Ultimate Benefeciaries).

(b)  the Company has also not received any fund from any parties (Funding party) with the understanding that the Company shall whether, directly 
or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified by or on behalf of the Funding Party ("Ultimate Beneficiariers") or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

nOtES
to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023 (All amounts are Indian Rupees in Lacs unless stated otherwise)
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notice is hereby given that the 29th annual General meeting (aGm) of the 
members of Inditrade Capital limited (the Company) will be held on Friday, 
11th august, 2023 at 2.30 p.m (iSt) through Video Conferencing (VC) or 
Other Audio Visual Means (OAVM) to transact the following business:

a. OrDinary BuSinESS:

1. adoption of audited Financial Statements.

to receive, consider and adopt the audited Financial Statements of 
the Company (including the Consolidated Financial Statements), for 
the financial year ended 31st march, 2023, together with the reports 
of the Board of directors and the auditors thereon.

2. re-appointment of Director retiring by rotation.

To re-appoint Mr. Sudip Bandyopadhyay (DIN: 00007382), 
who retires by rotation as the director of the Company at this 
annual General meeting and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment. 

3. appointment of Statutory auditors.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) 
the following resolution as a an Ordinary resolution:

“rESOlvED tHat pursuant to the provisions of the Section 139, 
141, 142 and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies 
act 2013 and rules made thereunder and SeBI (listing Obligations 
and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015 (including any 
statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time 
being in force), the approval of the members of the Company be 
and is hereby accorded for the appointment of M/s. Kirtane & 
pandit llp, Chartered accountants, (Firm regn no. 105215W / 
W100057) as the Statutory Auditors of the Company in place of 
retiring auditors M/s. Haribhakti & Co. LLP, Chartered Accountants, 
to hold office for a period of 5 (Five) years from the conclusion of 
this 29th Annual General Meeting until the conclusion of the 34th 
Annual General Meeting to be held for the Financial Year 2027-
2028 on such remuneration not exceeding Rs. 5,00,000/- (Rupees 
Five lakhs only) in addition to the applicable taxes and out of 
pocket expenses as may be fixed by the Audit Committee/Board 
of directors in consultation with the auditors, and which may be 
altered as per the mutual discussions, and as may be the agreed 
by audit Committee and Board of directors.”

“rESOlvED FurtHEr tHat any one of the directors or the 
Company Secretary be and is hereby severally authorized to do all 
such acts deeds, matters and things as may be necessary to give 
effect to the above resolution.”

B. SpECial BuSinESS:

4. approval for the continuation of mr. k. a. Somasekharan (Din: 
01573721) as non-Executive independent Director of the Company 
beyond the age of 75 years.

To consider and, if thought fit, to with or without modification(s) 
the following resolution as a Special resolution:

“rESOlvED tHat pursuant to Regulation 17(1A) of the SEBI 
(listing Obligations and disclosure requirements) (amendment) 
Regulations, 2018 (including any statutory modification(s) or re-
enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force), the approval 
of the members of the Company, be and is hereby accorded for 

the continuation of Directorship of Mr. K. A. Somasekharan (DIN: 
01573721), as Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company, 
beyond the age of 75 years till the expiry of his existing term in office 
upto 14th February, 2026.”

“rESOlvED FurtHEr tHat any one of the directors or Company 
Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized to 
do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered 
necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

5. approval for the payment of Commission to the independent 
Directors for the financial year 2023-2024.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) 
the following resolution as a Special resolution:

 “rESOlvED tHat pursuant to the provisions of Section 197, 198 
read with Schedule V and all other applicable provisions of the 
Companies act, 2013 (the “act”) and the rules made thereunder 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof, 
for the time being in force) and the provisions of Regulation 17(6) 
of the Securities and exchange Board of India (listing Obligations 
and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015, approval of the 
members of the Company be and is hereby accorded to the Board 
of directors of the Company (hereinafter referred to as “the Board” 
which term shall be deemed to include any Committee of the 
Board) to pay remuneration by way of commission, not exceeding 
an amount of rs. 5,00,000/-(rupees Five lakhs only) each to the 
Independent Directors of the Company as may be identified by the 
Board, for the financial year 2023-2024, in such proportions and 
in such manner as may be recommended by the nomination and 
remuneration Committee and as decided and determined by the 
Board of Directors of the Company."

"rESOlvED FurtHEr tHat for the financial year 2023-2024, 
if the Company has no profits or its profits are inadequate, the 
Company may pay to the Independent directors the aforementioned 
remuneration in accordance with the provisions of Schedule V of 
the Act."

"rESOlvED FurtHEr tHat the aforesaid remuneration shall be 
in addition to the sitting fees, if any, payable to the Independent 
directors for attending the meetings of the Board or any 
Committee thereof, as may be decided by the Board of directors 
and reimbursement of expenses for participation in such Board or 
Committee meetings."

"rESOlvED FurtHEr tHat any one of the directors or the 
Company Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby severally 
authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may 
be considered, necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect 
this resolution.”

6. approval for giving loan or guarantee or providing security 
in connection with loan availed by any of the Company's 
subsidiary(ies) or any other person specified under Section 185 
of the Companies act, 2013.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s) 
the following resolution as a Special resolution:

"rESOlvED tHat pursuant to the provisions of Section 185 and 
other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies act, 2013 
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(the "Act") and the Companies (Meeting of Board and its Powers) 
Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification(s), clarification(s), 
substitution(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof for the time being in 
force), consent of the members of the Company, be and is hereby 
accorded to the Board of directors of the Company (hereinafter 
referred to as the "Board", which term shall be deemed to include, 
unless the context otherwise required, any Committee of the Board 
or any Director(s) or Officer(s) authorised by the Board to exercise 
the powers conferred on the Board under this resolution) for giving 
loan(s) in one or more tranches including loan represented by way 
of book debt (the "Loan") to, and/or giving of guarantee(s), and/
or providing of security(ies) in connection with any loan taken/
to be taken by any entity which is a Subsidiary or associate or 
Joint Venture or group entity of the Company or any other person 
in which any of the director of the Company is deemed to be 
interested (collectively referred to as the "Entities"), up to a sum 
not exceeding Rs. 500 Crores [Rupees Five Hundred Crores Only] 
at any point in time, in its absolute discretion deem beneficial and 
in the best interest of the Company.”

“rESOlvED FurtHEr tHat the powers be delegated to the Board 
of the Company and the Board is hereby authorised to negotiate, 
finalise agree the terms and conditions of the aforesaid loan/
guarantee/security and to do all such acts, deeds and things as may 
be necessary and incidental including signing and/or execution of 
any deeds/documents/undertakings/agreements/papers/writings 
for giving effect to this Resolution."

“rESOlvED FurtHEr tHat any one of the directors or Company 
Secretary of the Company be and are hereby severally authorized to 
do all such acts, deeds, matters and things as may be considered 
necessary, desirable or expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

7. approval for existing as well as new material related party 
transactions.

To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without modification(s) 
the following resolution as an Ordinary resolution:

“rESOlvED tHat pursuant to the provisions of regulation 23 of 
the Securities and exchange Board of India (listing Obligations 
and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015, as amended 
from time to time, (“SeBI lOdr”), read with the provisions of 
Section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the rules made 
thereunder, any other applicable laws/statutory provisions, if any, 
(including any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment(s) thereof, 
for the time being in force), the Company’s Policy on Related Party 
transactions, and based on the approval and recommendation of 
the audit Committee and the Board of directors of the Company, the 
approval of the members of the Company be and is hereby accorded 
to the Board of directors of the Company (hereinafter called “the 
Board” which term shall be deemed to include any Committee which 
the Board may constitute for the purpose) to carry out or continue 
to carry out material related party transaction(s)/ Contract(s)/ 
arrangement(s)/agreement(s) (whether by way of an individual 
transaction or transactions taken together or series of transactions 
or otherwise) with entities falling within the definition of ‘Related 
Party’ under Section 2(76) of the Act and/or Regulation 2(1)(zb) of 
the SeBI listing regulations of the SeBI lOdr, in the respect of -

a) sale, purchase or supply of any goods or materials; 

b) selling or otherwise disposing of, or buying, property of any kind;

c) leasing of property of any kind;

d) availing or rendering of any services, including but not limited to 
availing/providing of loans, obtaining or providing Guarantee in 
connection with the loans/ facilities taken/ to be taken, availing 
and rendering of services related to common expenses;

e) appointment of any agent for purchase or sale of goods, 
materials, services or property;

f) such related party’s appointment to any office or place of profit 
in the company, its subsidiary company or associate company;

g) underwriting the subscription of any securities or derivatives 
thereof, of the company;

h) transfer of any resources, services or obligations; 

to meet on words next line its business objectives/ requirements 
(“related party transactions”), on such material terms and 
conditions as detailed in the explanatory statement to this 
resolution and as may be mutually agreed between related 
parties, from the date of this annual General meeting (aGm) 
upto the date of the 30th aGm, such that the maximum value of 
the related party transactions with such parties, individually 
or in aggregate, does not exceed the value as specified under 
each category for each financial year, provided that the said 
contract(s)/arrangement(s)/ transaction(s) shall be carried 
out in the ordinary course of business of the Company and 
in respect of transactions with related parties under Section 
2(76) of the Act, are at arm’s length basis.

"rESOlvED FurtHEr tHat the Board be and is hereby 
authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and things 
as it may deem fit at its absolute discretion and to take all 
such steps as may be required in this connection including 
finalizing and executing necessary documents, contract(s), 
scheme(s), agreement(s) and such other documents as may 
be required, seeking all necessary approvals and to do all acts, 
deeds, matters, and things that may be incidental, necessary, 
proper, desirable or expedient to give effect to this resolution, 
for and on behalf of the Company and settling all such issues, 
questions, difficulties or doubts whatsoever that may arise and 
to take all such decisions from powers herein conferred to, 
without being required to seek further approval of the members 
and that the members shall be deemed to have given their 
approval thereto expressly by the authority of this resolution."

"rESOlvED FurtHEr tHat that all actions taken by the Board 
in connection with any matter referred to or contemplated 
in this resolution, be and are hereby approved, ratified and 
confirmed in all respects.”

"rESOlvED FurtHEr tHat any one of the directors or 
Company Secretary of the Company, be and are hereby 
severally authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and 
things as may be incidental, necessary, desirable or expedient 
to give full effect to the foregoing resolution.”

By the order of the Board of Directors

maya menon
Place: Mumbai Company Secretary
Date: 25th May, 2023 Membership No.: ACS 20656
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nOtES:
1. the statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies act, 

2013 with respect to the Business set out in the notice is annexed. 

2. Pursuant to the General Circular No. 10/2022 dated December 28, 
2022, issued by the ministry of Corporate affairs (mCa) and Circular 
SEBI/HO/CFD/PoD-2/P/CIR/2023/4 dated January 5, 2023 issued 
by SeBI (hereinafter collectively referred to as “the Circulars”), 
companies are allowed to hold aGm through VC, without the physical 
presence of members at a common venue. Hence, in compliance with 
the Circulars, the aGm of the Company is being held through VC.

3. Members as on the cut-off date (record date) of 4th august, 2023 
shall only be entitled for availing the remote e-voting facility or vote 
in the annual General meeting (aGm) of the Company. a person who 
is not a member on the cut-off date should accordingly treat this 
notice for information purposes only.

4. Since the AGM is held through VC/OAVM, where physical attendance 
of members in any case has been dispensed with, there is no 
requirement of appointment of proxies. accordingly, the facility of 
appointment of proxies by the members will not be available for 
this meeting and hence requirement of attaching the proxy Form 
and attendance Slip has been dispensed herewith and hence not 
annexed to this notice.

5. the relevant Statutory registers, memorandum and articles, will be 
available electronically for inspection by the members during the 
aGm. all documents referred to in the notice will also be available 
for electronic inspection without any fee by the members from the 
date of circulation of this notice up to the date of aGm, i.e. 11th 
august, 2023. members seeking to inspect such documents can 
send an email to maya.menon@inditrade.com.

6. Corporate members intending to send their authorized 
representative(s) to attend the meeting pursuant to Section 
113 of the Companies act, 2013 are requested to send to the 
Company, a Certified True Copy of the relevant Board Resolution 
together with their respective specimen signatures authorizing 
their representative(s) to attend and vote on their behalf to the 
scrutiniser by email to svjsassociates@gmail.com. The authorized 
representative(s) shall enjoy all the rights of a member present in 
person.

7. A person can be an authorized representative of more than one Body 
Corporate. In such a case, he is treated as more than one member 
present in person for the purpose of quorum.

8. In compliance with the MCA circulars and latest SEBI Circular 
(dated 5th January, 2023) extending relaxation to companies from 
dispatching of physical copies of notice, annual report. members 
may kindly note that sending of physical Copies of annual report 
to members have been dispensed with and is being sent through 
electronic mode to those members whose e-mail addresses are 
registered with the Company or depositories. members may also 
note that the notice of the 29th aGm and the annual report 2022-
2023 will be available on the Company’s website www.inditrade.com 
and can also be accessed from the website of the Stock exchange 
i.e. BSe limited at www.bseindia.com and disseminated on the 
website of CdSl at www.evotingindia.com.

9. pursuant to the mCa Circulars and SeBI Circulars, the notice of 
the 29th aGm and the annual report for the year ended 31st march, 
2023, the Audited Financial Statements for the Financial Year 2022-
2023, are being sent only by email to the members. therefore, those 
members, whose email address is not registered with the Company 
or with their respective depository participant/s, and who wish to 
receive the notice of the 29th aGm and the annual report for the 
Financial Year 2022-2023 and all other communication sent by the 
Company, from time to time, can get their email address registered 
as detailed in point no 25.

10. In case of joint holder attending the meeting, only such joint holder 
who is higher in the order of names will be entitled to vote.

11. members holding shares in dematerialised mode are requested 
to intimate all changes pertaining to their bank details, neCS, 
mandates, nominations, power of attorney, change of address/
name, pan details, etc. to their depository participant only and not 
to the Company’s Registrar and Transfer Agents. Changes intimated 
to the Depository Participant will then be automatically reflected in 
the records of the registrar and transfer agents which will help the 
Company and its Registrar and Transfer Agents to provide efficient 
and better service to the members.

12. In accordance with the amendments to Regulation 40 of the Listing 
regulations, Securities and exchange Board of India (SeBI), decided 
that requests for effecting transfer of listed securities shall not be 
processed unless the securities are held in dematerialized form 
with a depository (national Securities depository limited or Central 
depository Services (India) limited). members holding shares in 
physical Form are requested to consider converting their holding 
to dematerialized Form in order to eliminate all risks associated 
with physical shares. members can contact the registrar and Share 
transfer agent (rta) in this regard. members holding shares in 
electronic form are requested to intimate immediately any change 
in their address or bank mandates to their depository participants 
with whom they are maintaining their demat accounts. 

13. the Securities and exchange Board of India (SeBI) has mandated 
the submission of permanent account number (pan) by every 
participant in the securities market. members holding shares in 
electronic form are, therefore, requested to submit the pan to their 
depository participants with whom they are maintaining their demat 
accounts. members holding shares in physical Form can submit 
their pan details to the Company. 

14. Additional Information required to be furnished under Regulation 36 
(3) of the SeBI (listing Obligations and disclosure requirements) 
regulations 2015 and Secretarial Standards-2 with respect to 
the director(s) seeking appointment/re-appointment at the aGm 
has been furnished and forms a part of the notice and has been 
given in the explanatory statement. the director(s) have furnished 
the requisite consents/declarations for their appointment/re-
appointment. 

15. the facility for joining the meeting shall be kept open at least 15 
minutes before the time scheduled to start the meeting and shall 
not be closed till the expiry of 15 minutes after such scheduled time.

16. We will be publishing a public notice by way of advertisement in 
Business line and deepika with the suitable details of the ensuing 
annual General meeting.
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17. The Company has engaged the service of Central Depository 
Services (India) limited, for assisting the members for casting of 
votes by remote e-voting as well as the e-voting system on the date 
of the aGm and VC facility shall also be provided by CdSl.

18. The attendance of the Members attending the AGM through VC/
OaVm will be counted for the purpose of ascertaining the quorum 
under Section 103 of the Companies act, 2013.

19. Since the aGm is held through VC/OaVm, the route map is not 
annexed in this notice.

20. the facility of participation at the aGm through VC/OaVm will 
be made available to maximum 1000 members on first come 
first served basis. This will not include large Members (Members 
holding 2% or more shareholding), promoters, Institutional Investors, 
directors, Key managerial personnel, the Chairperson of the 
audit Committee, nomination and remuneration Committee and 
Stakeholders relationship Committee, auditors etc. who are allowed 
to attend the AGM without restriction on account of first come first 
serve basis.

21. M/s. SVJS & Associates, Company Secretaries, Kochi, has been 
appointed as the Scrutinizer to scrutinize the remote e-Voting 
process and casting vote through the e-Voting system during the 
meeting in a fair and transparent manner.

22. during the 29th aGm, the Chairman shall, after response to the 
questions raised by the members in advance or during the course of 
the 29th aGm, formally propose to the members participating through 
VC/OaVm Facility to vote on the resolutions as set out in the notice 
of the 29th aGm and announce the start of the casting of vote through 
the e-Voting system. after the members participating through VC/
OaVm Facility, eligible and interested to cast votes, have cast the 
votes, the e-Voting will be closed with the formal announcement of 
closure of the 29th aGm.

23. the Scrutinizer shall after the conclusion of e-Voting at the 29th 
AGM, first download the votes cast at the AGM and thereafter 
unblock the votes cast through remote e-Voting and shall make a 
consolidated scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour or 
against, invalid votes, if any, and whether the resolution has been 
carried or not, and such report shall then be sent to the Chairman 
or a person authorized by him, within 48 (forty eight) hours from the 
conclusion of the 29th aGm, who shall then countersign and declare 
the result of the voting forthwith.

24. The Results declared along with the report of the Scrutinizer shall be 
placed on the website of the Company at www.inditrade.com and 
on the website of CdSl at www.evotingindia.com immediately after 
the declaration of results by the Chairman or a person authorized 
by him. the results shall also be immediately forwarded to BSe 
limited, mumbai.

25. process for those members whose email addresses are not 
registered with the depositories for obtaining login credentials for 
E-voting for the resolutions proposed in this notice: 

members whose email addresses are not registered with the 
depositories can register the same for obtaining login credentials 
for e-voting for the resolutions proposed in this notice in the 
following manner:

a) For members holding shares in physical mode - please provide 
necessary details like Folio number, name of shareholder, 
scanned copy of the share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-
attested scanned copy of pan card), aadHar (self-attested 
scanned copy of aadhar Card) by email to maya.menon@
inditrade.com.

b) For members holding shares in demat mode-, please update 
your email id and mobile no. with your respective depository 
participant (dp). 

c) For individuals holding shares in demat mode - please update 
your email id and mobile no. with your respective depository 
participant (dp) which is mandatory while e-voting and joining 
virtual meetings through the depository.

26. instructions of shareholders for remote E-voting and joining 
meeting through VC/OAVM are as under:

i) The remote E-voting period begins on 8th august, 2023 at 9.00 
a.m. and ends on 10th august, 2023 at 5.00 p.m. during this 
period, the Members’ of the Company, holding shares either in 
physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date, 
4th august, 2023 may cast their vote electronically. the remote 
e-voting module shall be disabled by CdSl for voting thereafter.

ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date 
would not be entitled to vote at the time of the meeting.

iii) pursuant to the SEBI Circular No. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/
CIR/P/2020/242 dated 09.12.2020, under Regulation 44 of 
Securities and exchange Board of India (listing Obligations and 
disclosure requirements) listed regulations, 2015, listed entities 
are required to provide remote e-voting facility to its members, 
in respect of all Members’ resolutions. However, it has been 
observed that the participation by the public non-institutional 
shareholders/retail shareholders is at a negligible level. 

Currently, there are multiple e-voting service providers (eSps) 
providing e-voting facility to the listed entities in India. this 
necessitates registration on various eSps and maintenance of 
multiple user Ids and passwords by the members. 

In order to increase the efficiency of the voting process, 
pursuant to a public consultation, it has been decided to enable 
e-voting to all the demat account holders, by way of a single 
login credential, through their demat accounts/ websites of 
Depositories/ Depository Participants. demat account holders 
would be able to cast their vote without having to register 
again with the eSps, thereby, not only facilitating seamless 
authentication but also enhancing ease and convenience of 
participating in the e-voting process. 

Step 1: Access through Depositories CDSL/NSDL e-Voting 
system in case of individual shareholders holding shares in 
demat mode. 

iv) In terms of SEBI circular no. SEBI/HO/CFD/CMD/
CIR/P/2020/242 dated December 9, 2020 on the e-voting facility 
provided by the listed Companies, Individual shareholders 
holding securities in demat mode are allowed to vote through 
their demat account maintained with their depositories and 
depository participants. Shareholders are advised to update 
their mobile number and email id in their demat accounts in 
order to access the e-voting facility.
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pursuant to the above said SeBI Circular, login method for e-voting and joining virtual meetings for individual shareholders holding securities 
in Demat mode CDSL/NSDL is given below:

type of members login method
Individual shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with CDSl

1)  Users who have opted for CdSl easi / easiest facility, can login through their existing user id and password. Option 
will be made available to reach e-Voting page without any further authentication. the users to login to easi / easiest 
are requested to visit cdsl website  HYPERLINK "http://www.cdslindia.com" www.cdslindia.com and click on login 
icon & New System Myeasi Tab.

2)  after successful login the easi / easiest user will be able to see the e-Voting option for eligible companies where the 
evoting is in progress as per the information provided by company. On clicking the evoting option, the user will be 
able to see e-Voting page of the e-Voting service provider for casting your vote during the remote e-Voting period or 
joining virtual meeting & voting during the meeting. Additionally, there is also links provided to access the system of 
all e-Voting Service Providers, so that the user can visit the e-Voting service providers’ website directly.

3)  If the user is not registered for Easi/Easiest, option to register is available at cdsl website  HYPERLINK "http://www.
cdslindia.com" www.cdslindia.com and click on login & New System Myeasi Tab and then click on registration option.

4)  Alternatively, the user can directly access e-Voting page by providing Demat Account Number and PAN No. from a 
e-Voting link available on   HYPERLINK "http://www.cdslindia.com" www.cdslindia.com home page. the system will 
authenticate the user by sending OTP on registered Mobile & Email as recorded in the Demat Account. After successful 
authentication, user will be able to see the e-Voting option where the evoting is in progress and also able to directly 
access the system of all e-Voting Service providers.

Individual shareholders 
holding securities in 
demat mode with nSDl

1)  If you are already registered for nSdl IdeaS facility, please visit the e-Services website of nSdl. Open web browser 
by typing the following URL: https://eservices.nsdl.com either on a personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home 
page of e-Services is launched, click on the “Beneficial Owner” icon under “Login” which is available under ‘IDeAS’ 
section. A new screen will open. You will have to enter your User ID and Password. After successful authentication, 
you will be able to see the e-Voting services. Click on “access to e-voting” under the e-voting services and you will 
be able to see the e-voting page. Click on the Company name or the e-voting service provider name and you will be 
re-directed to the e-voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-voting period.

2)  If the user is not registered for IdeaS e-Services, option to register is available at https://eservices.nsdl.com. Select 
“register Online for IdeaS “portal or click at https://eservices.nsdl.com/SecureWeb/IdeasDirectReg.jsp

3)  Visit the E-voting website of NSDL. Open web browser by typing the following URL: https://www.evoting.nsdl.com/ 
either on a personal Computer or on a mobile. Once the home page of the e-voting system is launched, click on the 
icon “Login” which is available under the ‘Shareholder/Member’ section. A new screen will open. You will have to 
enter your User ID (i.e. your sixteen digit demat account number held with NSDL), Password/OTP and a Verification 
Code as shown on the screen. after successful authentication, you will be redirected to the nSdl depository site 
wherein you can see the e-voting page. Click on Company name or the e-voting service provider name and you will be 
redirected to the e-voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-voting period or joining 
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

Individual shareholders 
(holding securities 
in demat mode) 
login through their 
Depository participants

You can also login using the login credentials of your demat account through your Depository Participant registered 
with nSdl/CdSl for the e-voting facility. after Successful login, you will be able to see the e-voting option. Once you 
click on the e-voting option, you will be redirected to the nSdl/CdSl depository site after successful authentication, 
wherein you can see an e-voting feature. Click on the Company name or the e-voting service provider name and you will 
be redirected to the e-voting service provider website for casting your vote during the remote e-voting period or joining 
virtual meeting & voting during the meeting.

important note: Shareholders who are unable to retrieve User Id/ password are advised to use Forget User Id and Forget password option 
available at the abovementioned website.
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notice

Helpdesk for individual members holding securities in demat mode for any technical issues related to login through the Depository i.e. 
CDSl and nSDl

login type Helpdesk details
Individual members holding securities in demat 
mode with CdSl

members facing any technical issue in login can contact CdSl helpdesk by sending a 
request at helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33

Individual members holding securities in demat 
mode with nSdl

members facing any technical issue in login can contact nSdl helpdesk by sending a 
request at evoting@nsdl.co.in or call at toll free no.: 1800 1020 990 and 1800 22 44 30 

Step 2: Access through CDSL e-Voting system in case of shareholders holding shares in physical mode and non-individual shareholders in 
demat mode.

v) login method for e-voting and joining virtual meeting for physical members and members other than individual holding in the Demat form.

the members should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.

1) Click on the “Shareholders” module.

2) now enter your User Id 

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID, 

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID, 

c. members holding shares in physical Form should enter Folio number registered with the Company.

3) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and click on Login.

If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an earlier e-voting of any company, 
then your existing password is to be used. 

4) If you are a first-time user follow the steps given below:

For physical shareholders and other than individual shareholders holding shares in Demat.
pan enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *pan issued by Income tax department (applicable for both demat members as 

well as members holding shares in physical form)
• Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/Depository Participant are requested to use the 

sequence number sent by the Company/rta or contact the Company/rta.
dividend Bank 
details Or date of 
Birth (dOB)

enter the dividend Bank details or date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as recorded in your demat account or in the 
Company records in order to login.
• If both the details are not recorded with the depository or Company, please enter the member id / folio number in the 

Dividend Bank details field as mentioned in instruction (v).

vi) after entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBmIt” tab.

vii) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly 
reach the Company selection screen. However, members 
holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ 
menu wherein they are required to mandatorily enter their 
login password in the new password field. Kindly note that this 
password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for 
resolutions of any other company on which they are eligible to 
vote, provided that the Company opts for e-voting through the 
CdSl platform. It is strongly recommended not to share your 
password with any other person and take utmost care to keep 
your password confidential.

viii) For shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details 
can be used only for e-voting on the resolutions contained in 
this notice.

ix) Click on the eVSn for the inditrade Capital limited on which 
you choose to vote.

x) On the voting page, you will see “reSOlUtIOn deSCrIptIOn” 
and against the same the option “YES/NO” for voting. Select the 
option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you 

assent to the resolution and option nO implies that you dissent 
to the resolution.

xi) Click on the “reSOlUtIOnS FIle lInK” if you wish to view the 
entire resolution details.

xii) after selecting the resolution, you have decided to vote on, click 
on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be displayed. If you wish 
to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, 
click on “CanCel” and accordingly modify your vote.

xiii) Once you “COnFIrm” your vote on the resolution, you will not 
be allowed to modify your vote.

xiv) You can also take a print of the votes cast by clicking on “Click 
here to print” option on the Voting page.

xv) If a demat account holder has forgotten the login password 
then Enter the User ID and the image verification code and click 
on Forgot password and enter the details as prompted by the 
system.

xvi) there is also an optional provision to upload Br/pOa if any 
uploaded, which will be made available to scrutinizer for 
verification.
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xvii) additional Facility for non – individual Shareholders and 
Custodians –For remote voting only.
• Non-Individual Shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, 

nrI etc.) and Custodians are required to log on to www.
evotingindia.com and register themselves in the “Corporates” 
module.
a scanned copy of the registration Form bearing the stamp 
of the entity and signature of its authorised person should 
be emailed to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

• After receiving the login details a Compliance User should 
be created using the admin login and password. the 
Compliance User would be able to link the account(s) for 
which they wish to vote on.

• The list of accounts linked in the login will be mapped 
automatically & can be delink in case of any wrong mapping.

• It is mandatory that, a scanned copy of the Board Resolution 
and power of attorney (pOa) which they have issued in 
favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in pdF 
format in the system for the scrutinizer to verify the same.

• Alternatively Non Individual shareholders are required to send 
the relevant Board resolution/ authority letter etc. together 
with attested specimen signature of the duly authorized 
signatory who are authorized to vote, to the Scrutinizer and 
to the Company at the email address viz; maya.menon@
inditrade.com, if they have voted from individual tab and 
not uploaded same in the remote CdSl e-voting system for 
the scrutinizer to verify the same.

INSTRUCTIONS FOR SHAREHOLDERS ATTENDING THE AGM/
EGM THROUGH VC/OAVM & E-VOTING DURING MEETING ARE 
aS unDEr:
1. The procedure for attending meeting & e-Voting on the day 

of the aGm/ eGm is same as the instructions mentioned 
above for e-voting.

2. the link for VC/OaVm to attend meeting will be available 
where the eVSn of Company will be displayed after 
successful login as per the instructions mentioned above 
for e-voting.

3. Shareholders who have voted through remote e-Voting will 
be eligible to attend the meeting. However, they will not be 
eligible to vote at the aGm/eGm.

4. Shareholders are encouraged to join the Meeting through 
laptops / Ipads for better experience.

5. Further shareholders will be required to allow Camera and 
use Internet with a good speed to avoid any disturbance 
during the meeting.

6. please note that participants Connecting from mobile 
devices or tablets or through laptop connecting via mobile 
Hotspot may experience audio/Video loss due to Fluctuation 
in their respective network. It is therefore recommended to 
use Stable Wi-Fi or lan Connection to mitigate any kind of 
aforesaid glitches.

7. Shareholders who would like to express their views/ask 
questions during the meeting may register themselves as a 

speaker by sending their request in advance atleast 5 days 
prior to meeting mentioning their name, demat account 
number/folio number, email id, mobile number at maya.
menon@inditrade.com. the shareholders who do not wish 
to speak during the aGm but have queries may send their 
queries in advance 5 days prior to meeting mentioning their 
name, demat account number/folio number, email id, mobile 
number at maya.menon@inditrade.com. these queries will 
be replied to by the company suitably by email. 

8. Those shareholders who have registered themselves as 
a speaker will only be allowed to express their views/ask 
questions during the meeting.

9. Only those shareholders, who are present in the aGm/eGm 
through VC/OaVm facility and have not casted their vote on 
the resolutions through remote e-Voting and are otherwise 
not barred from doing so, shall be eligible to vote through 
e-Voting system available during the eGm/aGm.

10. If any Votes are cast by the shareholders through the 
e-voting available during the eGm/aGm and if the same 
shareholders have not participated in the meeting through 
VC/OaVm facility, then the votes cast by such shareholders 
may be considered invalid as the facility of e-voting during 
the meeting is available only to the shareholders attending 
the meeting.

PROCESS FOR THOSE SHAREHOLDERS WHOSE EMAIL/
MOBILE NO. ARE NOT REGISTERED WITH THE COMPANY/
DEpOSitOriES.
1. For physical shareholders- please provide necessary details 

like Folio number, name of shareholder, scanned copy of the 
share certificate (front and back), PAN (self-attested scanned 
copy of pan card), aadHar (self-attested scanned copy of 
aadhar Card) by email to maya.menon@inditrade.com.

2. For Demat shareholders -, Please update your email id & 
mobile no. with your respective depository participant (dp).

3. For Individual Demat shareholders – Please update your 
email id & mobile no. with your respective Depository 
Participant (DP) which is mandatory while e-Voting & joining 
virtual meetings through depository.
If you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting from the 
CdSl e-voting System, you can write an email to helpdesk.
evoting@cdslindia.com or contact at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33.
all grievances connected with the facility for voting by 
electronic means may be addressed to mr. rakesh dalvi, 
Sr. manager, (CdSl) Central depository Services (India) 
limited, a Wing, 25th Floor, marathon Futurex, mafatlal mill 
Compounds, n m Joshi marg, lower parel (east), mumbai 
- 400013 or send an email to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.
com or call at toll free no. 1800 22 55 33.

By the order of the Board of Directors
For inditrade Capital limited

maya menon
Place: Mumbai Company Secretary
Date: 25th May, 2023 Membership No.: ACS 20656
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notice

EXplanatOry StatEmEnt
(pursuant to the provisions of Section 102 of the Companies act, 2013)

the explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102 of the Companies 
act, 2013 (“the act”), given hereunder sets out all material facts relating 
to the businesses mentioned at Item nos. 3 to 7 of the accompanying 
Notice:

item no. 3:

At the Annual General Meeting held in 2018, M/s. Haribhakti & Co, LLP 
Chartered Accountants (Firm Regn No. 103523W/W100048) were re-
appointed as the statutory auditors of the Company till the conclusion 
of the annual General meeting to be held in the year 2023. the second 
term of the Statutory auditors will be expiring at this annual General 
Meeting, and a new Audit firm need to appointed. Board of Directors 
had, based on the recommendations of the audit Committee and subject 
to the approval of the Members, appointed M/s. Kirtane & Pandit LLP, 
Chartered Accountants, (Firm Regn No. 105215W / W100057), as the 
Statutory auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years, from the 
conclusion of this 29th annual General meeting till the conclusion of the 
34th Annual General Meeting to be held for Financial Year 2027-2028.

Brief profile:

m/s. Kirtanr and pandit llp, Chartered accountants were established 
in 1956, with 24 partners having a presence in 7 locations namely at 
pune, mumbai, nashik, Hyderabad, Bangalore, delhi, and Chennai. they 
are PCAOB registered and Peer Reviewed firm and also empaneled 
with C&AG. They have a strong presence in Audit and Assurance 
practice across Industry with listed, non-listed Clients Banks, nBFCs, 
Insurance, and Other Corporate Sector clients, with 700+ employees 
across locations.

the Board of directors therefore seeks the approval of the members 
of the Company for the appointment of M/s. Kirtane & Pandit LLP as 
Statutory auditors of the Company for a period of 5 years, from the 
conclusion of this 29th annual General meeting till the conclusion of the 
34th annual General meeting to be held for Financial Year 2027-2028.

none of the other directors/ Key managerial personnel of the Company/ 
their relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or 
otherwise, in the resolution set out at item no. 3 of the notice.

the Board of directors recommend the Ordinary resolution set out in 
the notice for the approval of the members of the Company.

item no. 4

the members of the Company at its annual General meeting held 
on 30th July, 2021 had re-appointed mr. K. a. Somasekharan as the 
non-executive Independent director of the Company for a period of 
5 (five) years, i.e., upto 14th February, 2026. as per the provisions 
of Regulation 17(1A) inserted by the SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018, a person 
who has attained the age of seventy-five (75) years shall not continue as 
the non-executive director of the Company unless a special resolution 
is passed in this regard. In view of the said provision, the approval of 
the members of the Company, would be required for the continuation 
of Directorship of Mr. K. A. Somasekharan (DIN: 01573721) who will 
be attaining the age of 75 years on 15th July, 2024, as a non-executive 
Independent director of the Company for the remaining period of his 
existing term in office upto 14th February, 2026.

mr. Somasekharan is a Commerce and law graduate holding associate 
membership of the Insurance Institute of India (aIII). He has a rich 
experience of over 53 years in the General Insurance sector. He was the 
regional manager of United India Insurance and the executive director 
and CeO of reliance General Insurance Co. Under his leadership, reliance 
General Insurance became the third-largest private General Insurance 
Company. He also acted as the principal consultant of India First life 
Insurance Company.

the Board of directors of the Company is of the view that mr. 
Somasekharan has been contributing immensely to the Board as the 
non-executive Independent director of the Company and the Company 
has greatly benefited out of his vast experience in various fields of 
management. Keeping in view his vast expertise and knowledge, it will 
be in the interest of the Company that mr. Somasekharan continues as 
an Independent Non‐Executive Director of the Company for the remaining 
period of his existing term in office, i.e., upto 14th February, 2026. 

Save and except mr. Somasekharan and his relatives, to the extent of 
their shareholding interest, if any, in the Company, none of the other 
directors / Key managerial personnel of the Company / their relatives 
are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the 
resolution set out at in the aforesaid Special resolution.

the Board of directors recommends the Special resolution set out in 
the notice for the approval of the members of the Company.

item no 5:

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 149 Section 197 and 198 of the 
Companies act, 2013, read with the relevant rules an Independent 
director can receive remuneration by way of commission, as may be 
approved by the members, apart from the sitting fees and reimbursement 
of expenses for participation in the Board and other Committee meetings.

Independent directors are playing an important role by providing valuable 
inputs and professional advice to the management which has immensely 
helped the Company in its various business initiatives. to recognize the 
valuable contributions and professional advice being rendered by the 
Independent directors, the Board of directors, on the recommendation 
of the nomination and remuneration Committee and subject to approval 
of the members, has approved to pay commission, individually, to each 
of the Independent directors of the Company within the permissible 
limits under the Companies act, 2013, upto a sum not exceeding rs. 
5,00,000/- (Rupee Five Lakhs only) for the financial year 2023-2024, 
subject to the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V of the 
Companies act, 2013.

accordingly, approval of the members is being sought by way of a 
Special Resolution under Section 197 of the Companies Act, 2013 for 
the payment of commission to the non-executive Independent directors 
of the Company and shall be in accordance with provisions of Schedule 
V of Companies Act, 2013, if the Company has no profits or profits are 
inadequate, and to be paid in such amounts or proportions and in such 
manner as the Board of directors of the Company may from time to time 
determine on the basis of the recommendation(s) of the nomination and 
remuneration Committee of the Board. the payment of commission will 
be in addition to the sitting fees payable to such directors for attending 
meetings of the Board and/or Committee(s) thereof or for any other 
purpose whatsoever as may be decided by the Board and reimbursement 
of expenses for participation in the Board and/or Committee meetings. 

the directors, therefore, recommend the resolution to be passed as a 
Special resolution by the members.
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the details of transactions that require approval are given below:

Sr. 
no.

Description particulars

1. Name of the related party/
parties

inditrade 
Capital limited 
and  inditrade 
Microfinance 
limited 

inditrade Capital 
limited and  inditrade 
Fincorp limited 

  inditrade Capital 
limited and 
inditrade rural 
marketing limited

 inditrade 
Capital limited 
and inditrade 
Business 
Consultants 
limited

inditrade 
Fincorp limited 
and inditrade 
Business 
Consultants 
limited

 inditrade 
Microfinance 
limited and 
inditrade Fincorp 
limited

 inditrade 
technologies 
limited and 
inditrade Fincorp 
limited

  inditrade 
Microfinance 
limited and 
inditrade rural 
marketing 
limited

2. nature of relationship
[including nature of its interest 
(financial or otherwise)]

Subsidiary Subsidiary associate Subsidiary Fellow 
subsidiaries

Fellow 
subsidiaries

Fellow 
subsidiaries

Subsidiary and 
associate

3. type of the proposed transaction loans/advances/
Corporate 
Guarantee (CG)

loans/advances/
Corporate Guarantee 
(CG)

loans/advances loans/advances/
Corporate 
Guarantee (CG)

loans/advances loans/advances loans/advances loans/advances

4. Nature, duration/tenure, 
material terms, monetary value 
and particulars of contract/
arrangement

loans or 
advances 
repayable on 
demand with an 
agreement/
CG

loans or advances 
repayable on demand 
with an agreement/
CG

loans or advances 
repayable on 
demand with an 
agreement

loans or 
advances 
repayable on 
demand with an 
agreement/ CG

loans or 
advances 
repayable on 
demand with an 
agreement

loans or 
advances 
repayable on 
demand with an 
agreement

loans or 
advances 
repayable on 
demand with an 
agreement

loans or 
advances 
repayable on 
demand with an 
agreement

a Statement of additional information and other particulars as may be 
required under Section II of part II of Schedule V are provided in the 
annexure attached to this notice(annexure-i).

all the non-executive Independent directors of the Company and their 
relatives may be deemed to be concerned or interested in the proposed 
resolution to the extent of the remuneration that may be received by 
them. none of the other directors or Key managerial personnel (Kmps) 
of the Company either directly or through their relatives are, in any 
way, concerned or interested, whether financially or otherwise, in the 
proposed resolution.

the Board recommends the Special resolution set out in the notice for 
the approval of the members of the Company.

item no. 6

the Company may have to render support for the business requirements 
of its Subsidiary Companies or associate or Joint Venture or group 
entity or any other person in whom any of the director of the Company 
is deemed to be interested (collectively referred to as the "Entities"), 
from time to time. However, Section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013, 
restricts the same unless the special resolution in this effect is passed 
and is within the limit as approved by the members. as per provisions 
Section 185 of Companies Act, 2013, (as amended by the Companies 
(Amendment) Act, 2017), the Company with the approval of Members 
by way of special resolution, would be in a position to provide financial 
assistance by way of loan to other entities in the group or give guarantee 
or provide security in respect of loans taken by such entities, for their 
principal business activities.

the members may note that board of directors would carefully evaluate 
proposals and provide such loan, guarantee or security proposals 
through deployment of funds out of internal resources / accruals and 
/ or any other appropriate sources, from time to time, only for principal 
business activities of the entities. Hence, in order to enable the company 
to advance loan to directors/Subsidiaries/ Joint Ventures /associates/ 
Other Companies/ Firms in which directors are interested directly or 
indirectly under section 185 of the Companies Act, 2013 the approval 
of members by a Special resolution is sought.

none of the directors, Key managerial personnel of the Company or 
any of their relatives, are concerned or interested in the above proposed 
resolution, except to their equity holdings and directorships in the 

Company, if any.

the Board of directors recommend the Special resolution set out in the 
notice for the approval of the members of the Company.

item no. 7

The Securities and Exchange Board of India (‘SEBI’), vide its notification 
dated 9th November, 2021, has notified SEBI (Listing Obligations and 
disclosure requirements) (Sixth amendment) regulations, 2021 
(‘Amendments’) introducing amendments to the provisions pertaining 
to the related party transactions under the SeBI (listing Obligations 
and disclosure requirements) regulations, 2015 (“SeBI lOdr, 2015”). 
the aforesaid amendments inter-alia included replacing of current 
threshold i.e. 10% (ten percent) of the listed entity’s consolidated 
turnover, for determination of material related party transactions 
requiring prior Shareholders’ approval with the threshold of lower of 
rs. 1,000 Crores (rupees One thousand Crores only) or 10% (ten 
percent) of the annual consolidated turnover of the listed entity as per 
the last audited financial statements of the listed entity. Accordingly, 
the threshold for determination of material related party transactions 
under regulation 23(1) of the SeBI lOdr, 2015 has been reduced with 
effect from april 1, 2023.

Inditrade Capital Limited (‘ICL’), being the holding company of the 
Inditrade group of companies, in the course of its business and the 
businesses of its subsidiaries and associate companies, enters into 
transactions for, inter alia, availing/providing of loans, obtaining or 
providing guarantee in connection with the loans/facilities, availing and 
rendering of services related to common expenses, etc. 

In view of the amendment in the definition of the ‘related party’ and 
‘related party transactions’ in the regulation 2(1)(zb) and 2(1)(zc) and 
the provisions of regulation 23 of the of the SeBI lOdr, 2015, which now 
requires prior approval of shareholders of the Company and considering 
the fact that the list of related parties will change dynamically with no 
action on the part of the Company and to facilitate seamless contracting 
and rendering/availing of services between the Company and related 
parties, the Company seeks the approval of the shareholders to approve 
entering into contracts/arrangements within the thresholds and 
conditions mentioned in the resolution. all the contracts/arrangements 
and the transactions with related parties are reviewed and approved by 
the audit Committee of the Board of directors of the Company.
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Sr. 
no.

Description particulars

5. particulars of the proposed 
transaction

Short term 
loans/ advances/ 
reimbursement of 
expenses/
Corporate 
Guarantee 
commission

Short term 
loans/ advances/ 
reimbursement 
of expenses/ 
Corporate Guarantee 
commission

Short term 
loans/ advances/ 
reimbursement of 
expenses

Short term 
loans/ advances/ 
reimbursement 
of expenses/ 
Corporate 
Guarantee 
commission

Short term loans 
/advances/ 
reimbursement of 
expenses

Short term 
loans/ advances/ 
reimbursement of 
expenses

Short term loans 
/advances/ 
reimbursement of 
expenses

Short term 
loans/ advances/ 
reimbursement of 
expenses

6. tenure of the transaction On demand On demand On demand On demand On demand On demand On demand On demand
7. value of the proposed 

transaction (rs. in crores)
300 200 100 50 300 300 30 60

8. percentage of  iCl’s annual 
consolidated turnover, for the 
immediately preceding financial 
year, that is represented by 
the value of the proposed 
transaction

167.29% 111.53% 55.76% 27.88% 167.29% 167.29% 16.73% 33.46%

9. Benefits of the proposed 
transaction

Interest income Interest income Interest income Interest income Interest income Interest income Interest income Interest income

10. Details of the valuation report or 
external party report
(if any) enclosed with the notice

not applicable not applicable not applicable not applicable not applicable not applicable not applicable not applicable

11. name of the Director or key 
managerial personnel, who is 
related

1)  mr. Sudip 
Bandhypadhyay 
(director)

2)  mrs. Jhuma 
Guha (director)

3)  mr. Brij Gopal 
daga (director)

4)  Mr. K. A. 
Somasekharan 
(director)

1)  mr. Sudip 
Bandhypadhyay 
(director)

2)  mrs. Jhuma Guha 
(director)

3)  mr. Brij Gopal daga 
(director)

4)  Mr. K. A. 
Somasekharan 
(director)

5)  mr. ravi Jain (CFO)

1)  mr. Sudip 
Bandhypadhyay 
(director)

2)  mrs. Jhuma 
Guha (director)

3)  mr. Brij Gopal 
daga (director)

4)  Mr. K. A. 
Somasekharan 
(director)

5)  mr. anand 
maliwal (director)

1)  mr. Brij Gopal 
daga (director)

2)  mr. K. a. 
Somasekharan 
(director)

3)  mr. anand 
maliwal 
(director)

4)  Ms. Maya 
menon (CS)

1)  mr. Brij Gopal 
daga (director)

2)  mr. K. a. 
Somasekharan 
(director)

1)  mr. Sudip 
Bandhypadhyay 
(director)

2)  mrs. Jhuma 
Guha (director)

3)  mr. Brij Gopal 
daga (director)

4)  Mr. K. A. 
Somasekharan 
(director)

5)  mr. Vijay Chugh 
(director)

1)  mrs. Jhuma 
Guha (director)

1)  mr. Sudip 
Bandhypadhyay 
(director)

2)  mrs. Jhuma 
Guha (director)

3)  mr. Brij Gopal 
daga (director)

4)  Mr. K. A. 
Somasekharan 
(director)

12. additional disclosures related to loans, inter-corporate deposits, advances or investments made or given
a) Source of funds multiple Sources multiple Sources multiple Sources multiple Sources multiple Sources multiple Sources multiple Sources multiple Sources
B) In case any financial 

indebtedness is incurred to make 
or give loans, intercorporate 
deposits, advances or 
investment:

no no no no no no no no

• Nature of indebtedness
• cost of funds and
• tenure of the indebtedness

C) terms of the loan, inter-
corporate deposits, advances or 
investment made or given
(including covenants, tenure, 
interest rate and repayment 
schedule, whether secured or 
unsecured; if secured, the nature 
of security)

Up to 15% 
p.a. interest, 
Unsecured loan 
repayable on 
demand without 
repayment 
schedule

Up to 15% p.a. 
interest, Unsecured 
loan repayable on 
demand without 
repayment schedule

Up to 15% p.a. 
interest, Unsecured 
loan repayable on 
demand without 
repayment schedule

Up to 15% 
p.a. interest, 
Unsecured loan 
repayable on 
demand without 
repayment 
schedule

Up to 18% 
p.a. interest, 
Unsecured loan 
repayable on 
demand without 
repayment 
schedule

Up to 15% 
p.a. interest, 
Unsecured loan 
repayable on 
demand without 
repayment 
schedule

Up to 15% 
p.a. interest, 
Unsecured loan 
repayable on 
demand without 
repayment 
schedule

Up to 15% 
p.a. interest, 
Unsecured loan 
repayable on 
demand without 
repayment 
schedule

none of the directors or Key managerial personnel of the Company or its respective relatives, other than as mentioned above, is concerned or 
interested, in the resolution. 

the said transaction(s)/contract(s)/arrangement(s) have been recommended by the audit Committee and Board of directors of the Company for 
consideration and approval by the members. It is pertinent to note that no related party shall vote to approve this resolution whether the entity is 
a related party to the particular transaction or not.

By the order of the Board of Directors

maya menon
Place: Mumbai Company Secretary
Date: 25th May, 2023 Membership No.: ACS 20656
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Details of Directors seeking appointment/ re-appointment pursuant to Regulation 36 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) 
regulations, 2015) and Secretarial Standards-2.

name of the Director mr. Sudip Bandyopadhyay
Din 00007382
age 59 years
Qualification aCa, aCWa
Experience in specific functional area Gold Medalist from the University of Calcutta and is also a qualified Chartered Accountant 

and a Cost accountant, with over 3 decades of rich and diverse experience in various areas 
of finance and financial services.

Terms and conditions of appointment / re-appointment re-appointment as non-executive director, liable to retire by rotation
remuneration sought to be paid nil
remuneration last drawn nil
Date of first appointment on the Board 10th march 2021
Shareholding in the Company 50,000 equity Shares
relationship with other Directors, manager and key 
managerial personnel

nil

number of Board meetings attended during the year 4/4
*Directorship in other Companies 1. digilife technologies limited (a company incorporated in Singapore) 

2. Inditrade Fincorp limited
3. Inditrade Microfinance Limited
4. Inditrade Scalerator Limited
5. aGS transact technologies limited
6. totalstart entrepreneurship ecosystem developers
7. Securevalue India Limited
8. VST Industries Limited
9. India transact Services limited 
10. Inditrade rural marketing limited

*Membership/Chairmanship in Board Committee of other 
Companies

1. VST Industries Limited – Audit Committee Chairman
2. Inditrade Fincorp Limited - Audit Committee – Member
3. AGS Transact Technologies Limited- Audit Committee – Member

*Includes Directorship / Chairmanship / Membership of Audit Committees and Stakeholders’ Relationship Committee of Public Limited Companies only 
(Whether listed or not)
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annEXurE-i
tHE StatEmEnt COntaininG aDDitiOnal inFOrmatiOn aS rEQuirED in SCHEDulE v OF tHE COmpaniES aCt, 2013:

i. General information: 
1. Nature of Industry: Inditrade Capital Limited is engaged in the business of financial services through its subsidiaries.
2. date or expected date of 

commencement of commercial 
production:

not applicable

3. In case of new companies, 
expected date of commencement 
of activities as per project 
approved by financial institutions 
appearing in the prospectus:

not applicable

4. a.  Standalone Financial 
performance based on given 
indicators:

particulars year ended 
march 31, 2023 (rs. in lakhs) 

year ended 
march 31, 2022 (rs. in lakhs)

Income from Operations  
and other Income 

1,166.50 547.02

Operating Profit (before interest, 
depreciation and tax) 

1,083.33 273.11

Profit / (Loss) before Tax* 211.40 (89.31)
Profit / (Loss) after Tax 197.04 (131.21)

*excludes exceptional items. (Figures have been regrouped/recast wherever necessary)
b.  Consolidated Financial 

performance based on given 
indicators:

particulars year ended 
march 31, 2023 (rs.in lakhs) 

year ended 
march 31, 2022 (rs. in lakhs)

Income from Operations  
and other Income 

17,932.76 20,095.41

Operating Profit (before interest, 
depreciation and tax) 

2,136.84 4446.53

Profit/(Loss) before Tax* (2,059.21) 686.29
Profit/(Loss) after Tax (2,033.57) 368.04

*excludes exceptional items. (Figures have been regrouped/recast wherever necessary)
5. Foreign investments or 

collaborators, if any:
nIl

ii. a information about mr. Sivanandhan Dhanushkodi:
1. Background details: The brief profile of Mr. Sivanandhan Dhanushkodi, Former C.P. Mumbai and D.G.P .Maharashtra is given below:

• Retired as the Director General of Police, Maharashtra state in March, 2011
• Served as Commissioner of Police, Mumbai and was responsible for building up a world-class anti-terrorism 

mechanism
most recently, he has served as a member of the special task force in the national Security Council Secretariat 
(Prime Minister’s Office) for revamping India’s internal and external national security measures. He was the 
security advisor to the reserve Bank of India for three years from 2012 to 2015. He has co-authored a national 
best seller titled “Chanakya’s seven secrets of leadership” which is translated into five national languages.

2. Past remuneration: received the sitting fee for attending the Board meetings
3. Recognition or Awards: • Recipient of the President’s Distinguished Service Medal, 2000 as well as the Meritorious Service Medal, 1993 

and the Internal Security Medal, 1998
4. Job Profile and his suitability: mr. Sivanandhan dhanushkodi being a non-executive Independent director has distinguished records of service 

and administrative abilities. His experience being the Director in many other financial services companies including 
that of listed entities can bring immense value addition to your Company. 

5. remuneration proposed as stated in the explanatory Statement at Item no. 5 of this notice
6. Comparative remuneration policy 

with respect to industry, size 
of the company, profile of the 
position and person:

the remuneration proposed for the Independent director is well within the maximum permissible remuneration 
as laid down in Schedule V of the Companies act, 2013 which is comparable with the Companies of the same 
size, industry and profitability.

7. pecuniary relationship directly or 
indirectly with the Company or 
relationship with the managerial 
personnel, if any:

Besides the commission received for the Financial Year 2022-2023 and sitting fees for attending the meetings, 
mr. Sivanandhan dhanushkodi does not have any pecuniary relationship with the Company and is not related to 
any managerial personnel of the Company
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ii. B information about mr. radhakrishna nair:
1. Background details: a Finance professional well versed with Banking Operations, treasury and recovery management, Securities 

market regulation and Insurance regulation and Supervision. 
2. Past remuneration: received the sitting fee for attending the audit Committee and Board meetings
3. Recognition or Awards: nil
4. Job Profile and his suitability: mr. radhakrishna nair, the Independent director is well versed with banking operations and was occupying 

stalwart position with the regulators such as Securities and exchange Board of India (SeBI) and Insurance 
Regulatory and Development Authority of India (IRDAI). The vast experience and expertise is sure to benefit 
your Company and its group companies. 

5. remuneration proposed as stated in the explanatory Statement at Item no. 5 of this notice
6. Comparative remuneration policy 

with respect to industry, size 
of the company, profile of the 
position and person:

the remuneration proposed is well within the maximum permissible remuneration as laid down in Schedule V of 
the Companies Act, 2013 which is comparable with the Companies of the same size and profitability.

7. pecuniary relationship directly or 
indirectly with the Company or 
relationship with the managerial 
personnel, if any:

Besides the commission received for the Financial Year 2022-2023 and sitting fees for attending the meetings, 
mr. radhakrishna nair does not have any pecuniary relationship with the Company and is not related to any 
managerial personnel of the Company

ii. C information about mr. Sudhangshu Shekhar Biswal:
1. Background details: mr. Biswal possesses cross functional experience of more than 25 years across various industry verticals like 

consulting, software, aviation, education, Infrastructure and real estate. 
2. Past remuneration: received the sitting fee for attending the Board meetings. 
3. Recognition or Awards: nil
4. Job Profile and his suitability: mr. Biswal, Independent director is part of top management and Boards of various organizations having more 

than 25 years of experience which will immensely benefit your Company. 
5. remuneration proposed as stated in the explanatory Statement at Item no. 5 of this notice
6. Comparative remuneration policy 

with respect to industry, size 
of the company, profile of the 
position and person:

the remuneration proposed for the Independent director is well within the maximum permissible remuneration 
as laid down in Schedule V of the Companies act, 2013 which is comparable with the Companies of the same 
size, industry and profitability

7. pecuniary relationship directly or 
indirectly with the Company or 
relationship with the managerial 
personnel, if any:

Besides the commission received for the Financial Year 2022-2023 and sitting fees for attending the meetings, 
mr. Sudhangshu Shekhar Biswal does not have any pecuniary relationship with the Company and is not related 
to any managerial personnel of the Company

ii. D information about mr. Bri Gopal Daga:
1. Background details: A veteran in financial services sector with more than five decades of experience. 
2. Past remuneration: Sitting fees paid for attending the Board meetings.
3. Recognition or Awards: nil
4. Job Profile and his suitability: The Company will be immensely benefitted by the Independent Director- Mr. Daga’s extensive experience and 

knowledge in diverse fields like Finance, Investment, Capital and Securities Market, Regulatory compliances etc. 
5. remuneration proposed as stated in the explanatory Statement at Item no. 5 of this notice
6. Comparative remuneration policy 

with respect to industry, size 
of the company, profile of the 
position and person:

the remuneration proposed for the Independent director is well within the maximum permissible remuneration 
as laid down in Schedule V of the Companies act, 2013 which is comparable with the Companies of the same 
size, industry and profitability

7. pecuniary relationship directly or 
indirectly with the Company or 
relationship with the managerial 
personnel, if any:

Other than the proposed remuneration and the sitting fees for attending the meetings, mr. Brij Gopal daga does not 
have any pecuniary relationship with the Company and is not related to any managerial personnel of the Company
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ii.E information about mr. kerachan ayyappan Somasekharan:
1. Background details: mr. K a Somasekharan has more than 50 years of experience in General Insurance Sector. 
2. Past remuneration: Sitting fees paid for attending the audit Committee and Board meetings. 
3. Recognition or Awards: nil
4. Job Profile and his suitability: The Company will be immensely benefitted by the Independent Director- Mr. Somasekharan’s extensive experience 

and knowledge in General Insurance Sector. 
5. remuneration proposed as stated in the explanatory Statement at Item no. 5 of this notice
6. Comparative remuneration policy 

with respect to industry, size of 
the company, profile of the position 
and person:

the remuneration proposed for the Independent director is well within the maximum permissible remuneration 
as laid down in Schedule V of the Companies act, 2013 which is comparable with the Companies of the same 
size, industry and profitability

7. pecuniary relationship directly or 
indirectly with the Company or 
relationship with the managerial 
personnel, if any:

Other than the proposed remuneration and the sitting fees for attending the meetings, mr. K. a. Somasekharan 
does not have any pecuniary relationship with the Company and is not related to any managerial personnel of 
the Company. 
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